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Notice & Disclaimer

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Bank” or the “MTB" or the “lssuer™) has
authonzed RSA Advisory Limited (hercinafter referred as “RSAAL” or the “Lead Arranger” or just the
“Arranger”) 1o distnbute this Informauon Memorandum (IM) in connection with the proposed transaction
outlined in it (the “Transaction™) and the bonds proposed to be issued in the Transaction (the “Bonds™).

This Information Memormndum is provided 1o prospective investors ona prvate and confidenual basis for
use solely in connection with the issue, offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase the Subordinated
Bands. This Information Memorandum shall not be, in whole or in part, reproduced or used for any other
purpose without prior written consent of the Arranger.

This information memorandum has been prepared based on the information provided by the Issuer and
the Issuer is solely responsible for its contents. The issuer will comply with all rules, laws and regulations
and is responsible for obtaining all regulatory, governmental, and corporate approvals for the issuance of
the Bonds. The lssuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, confirms that this Information Memorandurm
contains all the information with respect to itself and the Bonds to be issued by it, which is material in the
context of the Bonds; that the information contained in this Informaton Memormandum is true and accurate
in all material respects and is not misleading; that the opinions and intentions expressed in this Information
Memorandum are honesily held and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make any
of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading, The Issuer accepts
responsibility accordingiy.

The Areanger have relied on the information provided by the Issuer and such mformation has not been
independently verified by the Arranger, No representation or warranty, expressed or implied, 15 or will be
made, and no responsibility or liability is or will be accepted, by the Arranger or any affiliate of the Arranger
for the accuracy, completeness, reliability, correctness or fairness of this Information Memorandum or any
of the information ot opinions contained therein, and the Arranger hereby expressly disclaim, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, any responsibility for the contents of this Information Memorandum and any
linbility, whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to or resulting from this Information
Memomndum or any information or errors contained therein or any ormissions therefore, By accepting this
Information Memorandum, investors agree that the Arranger will not have any such liability.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the Tssue
is intended to provide the complete basis of any credit or other evaluation, nor should it be considered as
a recommendation by the Arranger to the Issue that any recipient of this Information Memorandum (or
any other information supplied in connection with the Issue) should purchase or subscribe for any Bongs,
Each investor contemplating purchasing or subscribing for a Bond should make their own independent
nvestigation of the financial condition and affairs, and their own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the

5 ; o Issuer, Investors are advised not to construe the contents of this Information Memormndum as mvestment,
= % legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice. Investors are also advised 1o consult wath their own advisors as
- 8 g to all legal, accounting, regulatory, tax, financial and related matters, concerning an investiment in the Bonds.
i

sJ & %E) INVESTORS SHOULD RELY ON THEIR OWN EVALUATION TO ASSESS THE MERITS AND
i 3 RISKS OF THE INVESTMENT. IT 1S RECOMMENDED THAT PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS
1 oo \\{:(.‘JNSULT THEIR FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER ADVISERS BEFORE PURCHASING OR
267 |ACQUIRING OR INVESTING IN THE SUBORDINATED BONDS.
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I 's Disclal
All the Features of MTB 5% Subordinated Bond are deaft only and finalization of these features are subject

to the approvals of concemed regulators. These features may be modified as per the directions of
Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission or any other eoncerned regulators.
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1 Report to the Eligible Investors
By investing in the Bonds, you are hereby deemed o have acknowledged, represented and warranted o,
and agree (as the case may be) for the benefit of the Lead Arranger, as set out below:

High risk: You are fully aware that mvestment in the Bonds involves a high degree of nisk.

Consultation with advisers: You have (i) consulted with your own legal, regulatory, tax, business,
investment, financial and accounting advisers in connection herewith to the extent you have deemed
necessary, (i) collected and reviewed all information that you or your advisers believe is necessary or
appropriate in cotinection with the purchase of the Bonds, and (iii) made your own investment decisions
based upon your own judgment, due diligence and advice from such advisers as you have deemed necessary
and not upon any view expressed by or on behalf of the Lead Arranger.

No reliance: You acknowledge and agree that you may not rely on any mvestigation that the Lead Arranger
or any of its affiliates or any person acting on their behalf may have conducted with respect to the lssuer
or any of their affiliates, and neither the Lead Arranger nor its affiliates, employees, officers, directors, legal
advisers or representatives have made any representation to you, express or implied, with respect to your
investment in the Bonds.

Informed decision: You are in possession of all the informanon that you believe s necessary or
appropriate in order to make an informed decision regarding your purchise of the Bonds, including without
limitation, adequate information concerning the Issuer’s business, financial condition, resulis of operations
and prospects.

Knowledge and experience: You have such knowledge and experience in financial, business and
international investment matters that you are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of purchasing the
Bonds and are aware that you may be required to bear, and are able to bear, all risks including economic
risk of an investment in the Bonds.

Information of the Company: You acknowledpe that the informanon provided to you with regard to the
Issuer and the Bonds in this Information Memorandum has been supplied to you by the Lead Arranger
only on behalf of the Issuer and that neither the Lead Arranger nor any of its affiliates, employees, officers,
directors, legal advisers or representatives has verified such information or makes any representation or
warranty as to its accuracy or completeniess,

Review of Information Memorandum: You have reviewed this Information Memorandum in its entirety,
including the risks associated with investment in the Bonds, and you understand and acknowledge all of
the risks described herein. By investing in the Bonds, you have determined tha:

L the Bonds are a suitable investment for you and your investment in the Bonds does not and will

n
|

O & : . i e e

ok 3 not, when consummated, violate any investment or other guidelines, policies or restrictions
= ;J 3 (corporate or otherwise), or any law, rule, repulation or order applicable to you; and

i = 3 i you have obiained all approvals and consents (whether internal or external), and have made all
28 M notifications necessary for you to invest in the Bonds as contemplated; and you can bear the
= B na-' ’e economic nsk of the investment and are able to sustain a complete loss in connection wath your
5 e W investment.

= [T1 =y

I . - i :

a Own account: You are purchasing the Bonds for your own account and not with a view to any distribution

thereot.

~ No representation or warranty: The Lead Arranger has not made, and you have not relied upon any

Mohammad Na jon, warranty or condition (express and/or implied), and the Lead Arreanger shall not owe any

Group Chief mvﬂ to you in connection with the Bonds.

Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Corporate Head WeroBligation to purchase: The Lead Arranger shall have no obligation to purchase or acquire all or any
part of the Bonds purchased by you or to support losses, if any, directly or indirectly sustained or incurred
by you for any reason whatsoever in connection with the Bonds, meluding the non-performan ;

issuance, whether to you or otherwise.

Mahbubur Rahman

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limlted




firspem [iPS wice Ml Draft Information Memorandum
Mutual Trust Bank Lid. Subordmated Bonds nfup to BIYT 5,000 Million

jrosa kg Fond el il

2 Risk Factors and Management’s Perception about the Risks

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (The Issuer) operates in the banking industry which is cyclical and hence is
exposed to several nsk factors ansing from external as well as intemal matiers. Moreover, any investment
in debt securities carries risks, Since different debt securities carey different nisks, an investment in del
securines has to be evaluated on its own menis.

Investment in MTB 5% Subordinated Bond is in that respect no different. Potential investors are strongly
encouraped to carefully evaluate all the information in this Information Memorandum, specially the rick
factors both internal and external on their own merit and not by referent to any ather debit securities
whether of a comparable nature or otherwise before making any investment decision.

This section addresses the possible risks an investor might have to bear by investing in the bonds and each
risk factor is followed by management’s perception regarding the rsk. If any of the risks described below
muaterialize, it could have a serious impact on the Issuer's financial results and the ability of the Issuer to
fulfill its obligations under the Bonds to be issued. However, the list of risk factors explained below is not
meant to be a comprehensive description of all risks which may be relevant to investing in the Bonds. The
sequence in which the nisks below are listed s not intended to be mdicative of any order of prionty or of
the extent of their consequences.

a1 Interest Rare Risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the bank faces due to unfavorable movements of the market and industry
interest rates. The bank may face such unfavorable conditions due o rise in borrowing rates and/or fall in
lending rates. The bank’s financing in different sectors is mostly structured at fixed rates for specified terms.
Volatlity in the money marker can also raise the cost of funding of the issuer and thus hamper its
profitability. Any change in the government’s monetary policy also might cause unfavorable movement in
interest rates, The nisks derived from interest rate fluctuation thus may have a significant impact on the
bank’s business, profitability and financial condition.

MTB conducts its lending and other business operations by taking appropriate and judicious care of the
associated risks. Managing a varied and wide range of risks has always been the primary concemn of the
bank. In compliance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank's Asset Lisbility Manapement guidelines,
MTB has formed "Asset Liability Management Committee” (ALCO) with the senior executives. The
Committee meets once every month to set and review stratepies on Asset Liability Management (ALM).
MTB ALM desk performs Money Market activities, manages liquidity and interest rate risk of the bank, and
understands market dynamics Le. competition, potential tarpet markets etc., updates the balance sheet
movements and complies with the statutory obligations as well as the risk clements involved with the
business.
2.2 lLixchange Rate Risk

Exchange rate fluctuation may reduce the profitability of MTB because it funds foreign trade commitments
from various sources of foreign exchange like exports, imports and remittinces and holds foreign currencies
to serve these purposes. If the local currency appreciates against the major foreign currencies and the bank
holds 2 significant net long position in foreign currencies during that time, the bank might incur losses.
Similarly, if the local currency depreciates against the major foreign currences while the bank holds a net
short position in foreign currencies, the bank might also incur losses,
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MTB’s policy regarding Foreign Exchangg, in line with policy given by Bangladesh Bank, has well-defined
nternal approval procedures and position limits for each foreign currency trnsactions, as well as vigorous
accounting and information systems and intemal compliance control. In complisnce with the requirement
of Bangladesh Bank's Foreign F:chﬂngc Risk Management guidelines, Treasury dc[mrmu:n.! performs the
Mohammad N nge dealing in an appropriate manner and manages risks of the organization's overall balance
?ﬂﬂf ﬂﬂ.:“:ﬁ: K MI as the capital of the Bank. MTB's internal audit system reports on foreign exchange risk
Gorporats HoadARAgENaEat policy on a regular basis to the senior management, To minimize the F tial lrmm dm: (T
foreign exchange nsk the bank emphasizes on 1) monitoring dealers’ dealing i
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treasury front and back office positions i) daily reconcilianon of NOSTRO accounts iv) matching of open
items and many more.

23  Non-repavment Risk
Non-repayment risk is defined as the potential risk that borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its
obligations in accordance with apreed terms. Although MTB sets high standards in repaying all it
obligations to the depositors and lenders, it is possible that the bank may Fail to repay its obligations ansing

from the bonds to be issued in extreme cases. In the event of default, the investors might suffer from
[inancial loss,

Management’s perception

MTB operates under the tight regulations and close supervision of Bangladesh Bank. Moreover, it is highly
unlikely that a reputed organization like Mutual Trust Bank Limited will nsk its reputation by setting an
instance of default. Furthermare, in case of any event of default or non-repayment, the Trustee would give
notice penod to the lssuer in protectng the Event of Default and nke further steps to ensure the interest
of the investors.

24 Prepayment, Call or Refunding risk

Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the eurly repayment of the principal amount
of a bond. Such risks exist in a bond that has prepayment or call option.

Since there is no provision for early repayment of the principal amount of the Bonds, the bondholders will
not be exposed to prepayment or call risks associated with investing in the Bonds,

25 Securty Risk
Security is the specific revenue sources or assets pledged by an issuer to the bondholder to secure repayment
of the bond, Therefore, security risk is all about the process of recovering the investment by the bond

holder by utilizing the charge against the collateral securities in case of Issuer’s inability to repay the face
vilue of the bond(s).

Mutual Trust Bank’s subordinated bond is an unsecured bond. Specific revenue sources or assets are not
being pledged against issuance of the bonds. However, investors will have the right an the Bank's cash flow
to get repaid but rank of a subordinated bond holder is below than other loans (o securities) with regard
to claims on assets or earnings.

26 Liguidity Risk

The Bank's businesses are subject to liquidity risks and could affect the Bank's ability to meet its financial
obligations. In order for the Bank to continue to meet its funding obligations and 1o maintain or prow its

E - business generally, it relies on customer savings/ deposits as well as ongroing access to the wholesale lending
W oy markets. The ability of the Bank to aceess funding sources on favorible economic terms is dependent on a
58 3 variety of factors, including a number of factors outside of its control, such as general market conditions
25 3, and confidence in the banking system.

g8 2 ,
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’: i {g j The management of Mutual Trust Bank is well aware of the risks involving liquidity constraint and is capable
= fa - of har{rdlmg such risks b}: practicing modern :'ﬁlls?ct Liability Management (ALM) techniques. The ALM
1 committee regularly monitors the overall liquidity position of the bank and proactively makes policy

changes in due course of time. Therefore, it is very unlikely that the bondholders will face any material loss
liguidity nsk.
Nawzmu HW‘.;'.!'!”: Fclﬁlnll:lgcmum Rask

hia! Financial r
Eﬂrﬂiu:aﬂisl%wt risk refers to the chance that company managers may put their own interests ahead of the

Corporale Head the company and sharcholders. The term signifies the risk of the situation that may oceur if the
company or any of its stakeholders other than the management would have been betteff off without

choices made by management. ‘Ihe bondholders may suffer fipancial losses in such an
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The management of Mumal Trust Bank comprises a group of highly professional individuals with
considerable experience and reputation in the country’s financial indusiry, Therefore, it is very unlikely that
the management will conduct in such an unprofessional manner. Moreover, the management of the bank
18 constantly supervised by a board of directors consisting of seasoned professionals and entrepreneurs who
waork hard to ensure that the interests of all the stakeholders are served by the management, Being operated
in the highly regulated banking industry is also a safeguard against this risk as Bangladesh Bank monitors
the management to ensure best practice in the industry.

28 Opernuonal Risk

The business of the bank depends on the ability to process a large number of transactions efficiently and
accurately, Losses may occur from inadequate personnel, inadequate or failed internal control processes
and systems, or from external events that interrupt normal business operations. There can be no assurance
that the Bank will not suffer material losses from operational risk in the futre.

*

MTB has restructured Intemal Control and Compliance Division (ICC) headed by a senior level executive
in light of Core Risk guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Division is comprised of four departments; Audit
and Inspection Department, ICC Compliance Unit, ICC Monitoring Unit and 1CC System Audit unit. The
Bank has developed an Intemal Control and Compliance Policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.
As a tool of Internal Control, the Audit and inspection teams undertake periodic and special audit and
inspection on the branches and departments/divisions of Head Office in order to sort out the weaknesses
and defects in the control process and report to the management for taking corrective measures to protect
the interests of the Bank. The Compliance & Monitoring Units of this division ensure timely and proper
compliance of all regulatory instructions and internal policies and procedures in the day-to-day operation
of the Bank by way of using various control tools. They assess the operational risk and take appropriate
measures 1o mitigate the same for smooth operation of the Bank, 1CC Division reports serious non-
compliances detected by internal and external auditors with up-to-date compliance position thereto, large
financial risk exposures, control weaknesses etc. to the Audit Committee of the Board for review and taking
appropriate measures, The [CC division also ensures the clear definition of organizational structare,
appropriate assignment, accountability and delegation of authorities to functional management to create
control and compliance culture within organization with the active guidance and supervision of senior
management and Board of Ditectors.

2.9  Business Risk

Business risk refers to the possibility that the bank will have lower than anticipated profits, or that it will
experience a loss rather than a profit. Business risk of the issuer could occur by numerous factors including
interest spread, non-interest income, operating expenses, money & capital market volatlity, competition,
government regulations and economic climate. Like all other companies Mutual Trust Bank is also exposed

CE to certain business risk factors,
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o o g*) Like all other businesses such risks exist in the banking industry. The Bank scrutinizes all of its clients and

« @ Pa  theassociated risks systematically using up to date risk evaluation techniques and thereby has been able to
18 ‘w mamntain good asset quality so far and expects the same in the future. Some other systematie (Market) risks

c i é might arise from the external environment of the Bank, similar to any other bank.

B Vi 210 Industry Risk

The issuer is operating in 2 highly competitive market as modern banking industry has brought preater
ness diversification. Some banks in the industrialized world are entenng into investments, underwriting
of securitics and portfolio management. The entey of new competitors may also detetiorate the competinve

Mohammad Nazmal ' ﬁ?-:n: and result in lower profitability of the bank.
Group Chiel Financlial Qffice ]

Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Cotporate Head Office, Dhakp
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Being a robustly growing third generation private commercial bank, MIB has already carved a
commendable position in the banking industry of Bangladesh. The Bank has always been careful in offering
its products and services at competitive terms and conditions which in wrn optimizes its industry rigk
exposure. The management also continues to focus on more divesification of the loan book. However,
like all the other banks currently operating in Bangladesh, industry risk remains a key dsk factor for MTB.

201 Mlarket and Technology Related Risk

The financial industry of Bangladesh is eurrently one of the fastest growing in the country and is increasingly
becoming competitive. Especially the entrance of nine more banks in the industey in 201213 has made the
competitive atmosphere more intense. Strong marketing and brand mansgement would be required to
increase the bank's customer hase,

As the banking industry is becoming more and more technology dependent the risks deriving from
technological use is increasing day by day. The bank might be exposed to risks such as cyber-attack, system
collapse, system hacking, unauthotized electronic fund transfers, etc.

Business entities today exist in a highly competitive world, They are constantly innovating to meet their
business objectives providing essential and unique services to their customers. Technology advances have
business objectives providing essential and unique services to their customers. Technology advances have
enabled them to achieve their varied strategies. And yer, the threats of disaster, on account of business
interruption, are not extinct - in fact, they have also evolved along with the technology. Keeping that in
mind MTH has taken up its Business Continuity Planning (BCP) as the most significant challenges working
out a way to prevent, if possible, and manage the consequences of a disaster, limiting it to the extent that a
business can afford. Besides BCP, the Bank is also focusing on combating security threats as well In keeping
with our centralized management model, each branch within the Bank has its own ICT systems. Actions
taken include the updating of software and analyzing new software, enhancing 1CT' related controls, teaining
of staff in system knowledge and sharing of best practices between branch users.

212 Rigk Related to Porential or Existing Government Repulations

The issuer operates its business under the specific guidelines laid by Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission and other regulatory authorities. The bank is also regulated by Bank Companies
Act 1991 (amended up to 2013), Companies Act 1994, Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Income ‘T'ax Rules
1984 and Value Added Tax (VAT) Act 1991. Moreover, Bangladesh Bank changes policy rates including
Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) of banking institutions from time to
time, Any abrupt changes in the policies and regulations made by the authorities may adversely affect the
business of the company.

=
o
34 7 Unless any policy change that may negatively and significantly affect the industry as a whole, the business
et ) of the bank is expected not to be affected materially. Like all scheduled banks in Bangladesh, MTB has
}\—) been funding their assets from their deposits after maintaining required SLR including CRR has the bank
;' = has been consistently compliant to any such changes. Mutual Trust Bank is capable of dealing with
=3 consequences of unfavorable policy or regulatory changes made by the govemment. Additionally, the
4 0%, regulatory bodies in Bangladesh are least likely to take any steps that might prove detrimental to the
a Y country’s financial industry.

& 213 Rask Related to Porential Changes in Global or National Policies
A financial institution’s ability to operate a profitable business is disectly related to the monetary and fiseal
hammad Nazmul RelScBOAL the country at any given time. Imposition of restrctive monetary and/or fiscal policy by the

Mo
Group Chial Finagatié nt at any time may affect a company’s profitability. Apain, changes in the existing global or

Ti&:;‘;;;’:::; :IBO olicies can have either positive or negative impacts on the bank.

ieal government,
ol the

Livery company operates under the economic policies formulated and imposed by the poli
The government tends to reshape these policies time 1o time for the sake of greater intere
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economy. Sometimes those changes in existing policy or any futire policy framework adversely affect
smooth operation of such companies.

The management of the bank is always concerned about the prevailing and upmmmg furure changes in the
glubal or national policy and shall response appropuiately and umely to saleguard its interest. However, it
is possible that MTB sulfers from major adverse changes in global and/or national policies in the ﬁ1lur-:'.

214 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk due to a borrower’s inability to meet its financal obligations to the lender. The eredn
risk is generally made up of transaction risk or default risk and portfolio risk. This risk 15 controlled through
segmental exposure limits to various industries and sectors, prudential exposure and substantial exposure
cetling and risk mitigation by obtaining collateral and puaraniees,

Mutual Trust Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management policy duly approved by the
Board. In addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the company has also framed board approved credit
policy and ensures compliance with repulatory requirements, more particulary in respect of Exposures
norms, Assets Classification puidelines, Capital Adequacy puideline, etc. of Bangladesh Bank/other
Stamtory Authorities.

Credit Risk is monitored by the company account wise and complisnce with the risk limits /exposure cap
approved by the board is ensured. The quality of internal control system is also monitored and in-house
expertise has been built up to tackle all the facets of Credit Risk.

The Bank follows a well-defined multi-layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credit
Gnd has been constituted at Plead office level for considering fresh/ enhancements proposals. It assesses
various risk factors for new products prior to its introduction. Therefore, the Issuer takes various measures
for minimizing its credir risk.

215 Reputatnon Risk

Money Laundering risk of financial institutions lies with the involvement in any single transact on or series
of transactions that assists a criminal in keeping, concealing or disposing of proceeds derived from illegal
activities, So it is a major threat to the banks and non-bank financial institutions. In place of the Money
Laundering Prevention Act, 2002, the povemnment re-enacted Money Laundering Prevention Ordinance,
2008 (ordinance 12 of 2008) on 13.04.08. The government enacted Anti-Terrorism Ordinance, 2008 on
09.06.2008 in order to combat terrorism and financing of terrorism, ‘These two ordinances entrust some
duties and responsibilities with financial institutions. Bangladesh Bank, the regulatory authority, has issued
at least 20 (twenty) circulars so far which includes, among others, KYC procedures, STR, CI'R, Money
Laundering Prevention Ordinance 2008, Anti-Terrorism Ordinance, 2008 and their implementation
processes, There can be many other reasons for which an organization can suffer from reputational loss,
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MTB in line with the said ordinances, circulars and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank, has developed two

o separate guidelines on policies and procedures on prevention of Money Laundering and on Combating
= Financing of Terrorism. As per the provisions of these two ordinances the employees of the Bank have to
Ao carry out some duties and responsibilities under the supervigion of Bangladesh Bank. In order to ensure

Unit (CCU) has been established and Chief Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer (CAMLCO) and

" Branch. Ant-Money Lavndering Compliance Officers (BAMLCO) have been designated. Additionally,

Tmﬁiﬂﬁﬁamﬂndu the leadership of one of the strongest Board of Directors in the country as well as a

M'E:Jifﬂ! Trust Barprofesadnal top management, is continuously working to improve its standards and practices in order to
orporate Heao OMEgeR" iR e with global best practices.

Q the compliance of all the instructions given on different occasions by Bangladesh Bank, Central Compliance

- Sews d Mahbubiur Rahman
1| 7o g englie Munia Sye
g, Expculive ,u::l' Sapnatary Managing Director & CEO
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3 Detailed Description and Information of Issuer’s Application

1. Particulars of the issuer, Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)

(a)

MName of the lssuer:

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (M'1H)

(1) Legal status of the issuer Pulilic company limited by shires
{c)] Details of Contact Information: Corporate Office: MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Plot 5, Block
SED), Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212
Phone  : B8O (2) 984 6966, 184 2429,
Fax : BBO (2) 984 4303
E-mail  : infof@lmutualtrustbank.com
Website: https:/ /www.mutualtrustbank, com
Coniact Person
Mame: Mohammad Mazmul Hossain, FCA
Designation: Group Chiel Fmanaal Officer
Phone: 01730.781 184
E-mail: n.hossainf@mutualirst bank.com
Adidress: MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Plot 5, Block SE(D),
Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212
(d} Date of incorporation: Septerber 29, 1999
(e} Date of commencement of Ocrober 24, 1999
Business:
(f)  Authorized capital: BLYT 10,000,000,000 {as on December 31, 2021}
() Paid-up capital: BT 8,124,956,590 (as on December 31, 2021)
(h)  Total equity: BIIT 19,654,773,315 (s on December 31, 2021)
(i) Total liabilities: BDT 286,846,018,576 (as on December 31, 2021)
(i)  Total financial obligations: BT 286,846,001 8376 (Total Libility)
(k) Total asseis: BIDT 306,500,925,149 (as on December 31, 2021)
(1) Total tangible asscts: BT 5,394,493 735 (Fixed Assct mcluding Premises, Fumiture and
ng
Fixtures) (as on December 31, 2021}
(m) Net worth: BIOT 19,654,773,315 (us on December 31, 2021)
(n) Others: Nat Applicable
2. Particulars of Issue Manager: Not Applicable
G =
8 3. Particulaes of the issue:
= |Eu} - |
= 8 % (a} MName of the issue: MIB 5* Subordinared Bond
L
{8 (b} Type of instruments to be issued:  Tier 2 Elgible Non-Convertible Fully-redeemable coupon-bearng
S B Unsecured Subordinated Bond
ey, "
5 ?} (£) Putpose of the isaue: The issuance is to generate liquiclity 1o strengthen Tier 1T capital of the
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bank

(d} MNumber of securities and total Number of securities being offered: 500 (Five Hundred) no
size of the issuve to be offered: Total issue amount: BIYT 5,000,000,000 (Fve Billion Taka)
(e) Face valoe and issue price of
securities mentioning discount or
Mohammad Nazmul Hosssin
Group Chief Financlal Of ﬁé&mmﬂ Thereok:

Wutual Trust Bankfy. m@ledpon rate/discount rate and
orporate Head Cifice. Divgpavg.

Face valoe: BT 10,000,000
Tssue price: BIXT 10,000,000

of all prvate
as published by

Benchmark Rate: Latest average 6-month FDR m
commeraal banks excluding banks licensed after 2
he quotation day.

B.ilig]a:h:sh H:nk L
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(b} Details of conversion /exchange
option features:

() Maode of redemprion or
conversion/exchange

(1) Mode of option (call or put), if
any, in case of redemption or
conversion/exchange and
discount or premium thereof

(k) Rate of return

(1}  Applicable tax rate
(m] Default protection, if any

= ==
241 ﬂ_I{ (n) Type of collateral securities being
- l:: offered, if any:
I N
! '3"' (o) Status of securities holders in case
I of priority of payment

R

E o E?] "™y () Period within which securities to
ﬁ-' mn= be issued:

B C

> Mature of tradability or listing in

the stock exchange(s) (Main
Board /ATB/any other platform,
rncnl;inui.ug the name of the stock
Mohammad Nazul Hosaa, FCAS®
Group Chie! FifgncidDthsse

Mutual Trust Bank Limiled
Corporate Heasd Office. Dhake
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{The Benchmark Rate will be rounded to 2 (two) decimal places. For
example, if the benchmark smte s 5155, then it should be rounded off
to 516 and if the benchmark eate is 5.154 then it should be rounded off
to 5.15); plus

Muargin: 2.00% pua.

Coupon Floor Rate: 6.00% p.a.

Coupon Ceiling Rate:9.00% p.o

Coupon Payment: Semi-ansual coupon payment starting at the ead of
6 months from the date of dowdown

7 years from the date of isswsnce
Not applicalile as the bond is Non Convertible
The bond i Fully redeemable. Poncipal sedemprions will be in 5 (five)

cqual annual instalments commencing at the end of 39 year (36" month)
from the date of drawdown m the follswing manner;

Repavment Balance
End of 1" Year . 5,000,000, 000
End of 20 Year . 5,000,000,000

End of 3 Year 1,000,000,000 4, (0, (00,00
End of 4% Year 1,000, 000,000 3,000, 000, 000
End of 5™ Year 1, R0, OO0, 00 2,000, 0008 (0
End of 6* Year 1,100, CH00,CRK 1,000,000, 000
End of T Year 1,000,000,000 -

Not applhcable as the bond is non-convernble and fully redeemabile

Benchmark Rate: Latest avernge 6-month FDR rate of all pavate
commercial banks excluding banks licensed afier 2000 as published by
Bangladesh Bank on the quotition day; plus

Margin: 2.00% p.a,

Coupon Floor Rate: 60016 pa,

Coupon Ceiling Rate: 9.00% p.a

(excluding risk premium in case of eating tngger all and late payment
penalty in case of late payment)

As per applicable Tax Laws of Bangladesh

Not applicalile

Unsecured

The Bonds shall constitute direct, subordinated, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall atall dmes rank pan passu

anel without any preference or priorty smong themsclves.

As per regulnory approvals

Altemative Trading Board (ATB)

Rntlng Tnggl:r If the cn:dlt ram,g of the isfue Yfalls below the

16 | Page
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4. Particulars of the Trustee:

(a) MName of the trustee:
(b)  Paid-up capital of the trustee:
(¢} Net worth of the trustee:

(d} Name of the issue(s) where
performing as trustec:

{e) Others:

Draft Informanon Memorandum
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the short term, then the lssuer shall pay an additonal fee on wop of
the stipulated Coupon Rate as a sk premium as mentioned in the
table below:
Risk Premium to be

\1 ||.i'. '\I

Issue H:Hlll'__fl

LCB mvestment Limited
BT 1,000,000,000 {(as on December 31, 2021)
BIXT 1,132,493,978 (as on December 31, 2021)

o MNRBC Bank Suboedipated Bord-1
*  Bank Asia Perpetual Bond

+  Mercantile Bank Perpetnl Bond

¢ Mir Akhrer Zero Coupon Bond

= Envoy Testiles Zero Conpon Bond
«  AI'TB 5% Subordinated Bond

Mot Applicable

5. Particulars of the credit rating company;

(a) Name of credit rating company:

(h)  Credit rating status of the issuer

(€} Credit rating status of the issue:

{d) Date and validity of rating along
with surveillance rating for the

issuce:

(e} Latest default rate of the credit
rating company:

c=
w 1 # (f)  Average time to default of the
=3 '3 ﬂ rated category:
‘o 3/ (@) Rating wigger, if any:
o i Pl a
2 o
= e 3
r:“ﬂ,ﬁ'|

Mohamimad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Shial Financial Ofocer
pautusl Trust Bank LI1='||..I-GE
Gorporate Hesd Offica, Dhaks

Credit rating of the Issuer: Credit Rating Information and Services
Limited (CRISL)

Credit rating of the Issue: Emerging Credit Ranng Limited (ECRL)
Long Term Ranng: AA

Short Term Rating: ST-2

Chutlook: Stable

Long Term Rating: Ad-g»
Otlook: Stable

*H denics Bond
Issucr Rating

Valid From: 12-May-2022
Validity Date: 11-May-2023

Issue Rating

Valid From: 15-June-2022
Valichity Date: 14-June-2023

Rating category wiser (11%
Rating band wise 10 years cumulatve mte: 0.2%

49 months

If the credit rating of the issue falls below the minimum investment
grade 1e. ‘BBB in the long term or “5T1-3" in the short term, then
the Issuer shall pay an additional fee on top of the stipulated
Coupon Rate as a risk premium as mentioned in the table below:
Risk Premium 1o be

Yeldecl

[ssue Rating

C
D:
{W 4
17| Page, un -*{ﬁ:- v\ Syed Mahbubur Rahman
5 :uzcg;;‘ oy ?*LT;I’;_‘ET,_J_ naging Director & CEQ
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(h) Others:
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Not Applicable

6. Particulars of originators, if any: Not Applicable

7. Particulars of other contractual parties;
(a) Name of the Lead Arranger:

(b} Legal status of the Lead Arranger:

(¢} Details of contact information of
Lead Arranger:

{d) MName of the issue managed by
the issue managen:

(e} Mame of the Co-Arranger:

(f) Legal status of the Co-Atranger:

(] Details of contact information of
Co-Arranger:

(h) .Pilfing Agent, Register, Transfer
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Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chial Financlal Oificer
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Corporate nesd Office, Dhaka

REA Advizory Limited

Private limited company

R5A Advisory Limited

Flouse 85, Level 04, Road 03,

Block F, Banani, Dhaka-1213

Phone 0967 733 3664,

E-mail  : infof@rsacapitnl.com
Website: hitps:/ /www.rsacapitaleom

Contact Person

Mame: Md. Muyeedul Islam Muyeed
Designanion: Sentor Officer

Phone: 016 8800 G080

E-mail; muyeed(iirsacapital.com

Address: House 85, Level (04, Road 03, Block F, Banani, Dhaks-1213

MTB 5% Subordinated Bond

MTB Capital Limited
Private bmited compainy

MTB Capital Limited

Chandrashila Suyastu Tower (Znd Floot)
69/1, Panthapath, Dhaka 1205

Phone: 4880 2 964 1157

Fax: +880 2 964 1159

E-mail: info.mtbeapi@mutualiiusibank com
Webstte: www.mthcap.com

Contact Person
MName: Md. Ashadul Islam

Designation: Board Secrerary ind Compliance Officer

Phone: 018 1841 6284
E-mail: ashad@@murualtrusthank com

Address: Chandrashila Suvastu T'ower (2nd Floor)

69/1, Panthapath, Dhaka 1205
UCB Investment Limited

Lex Jutis

Syed Mahbubur Rahman
Managing Direclor & GEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limitad
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4 Detail Plan of the Utilization of Proceeds

4.1 r'urrn we of lssuance of MTRB 5" Subordinated Bond

Mutual Trust Bank has decided to raise capital through issuance of subordinated bonds in order to
strengthen its capital base in accordance with Basel 111 guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The proposed
subordinated bond issue will help the bank enhance its capital strength through raising Tier 2 capital and
continue its balance sheet growth.

42 Plan lhrg:!rding LUtihizanon of Procecds

Apart from strengthening of the bank’s capital base, the proceeds from the issue will be used for
undertaking peneral business activities of the bank including loans ind investments in treasury and other
securities. In summary, the proceeds will primarily be used for:

®  Raising Tier-2 capital of the bank

®  Growing the bank’s loan portfolio in corporate, SME and retail segments
® Investing in treasury securities and other instruments
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5 Features of the Debt Security

MTB 5% Subordinated Bond is a non-convertible, fully redeemable, unsecured subordinated debt
instrumnent with a tenure of 7 years. The claims of the potential holders of the Bonds are junior to the claims
of the depositors and other creditors of the Issuer. The bonds are unsecured and will not be insured by any
deposit insurance scheme. The bonds are non-convertible and fully redeemable and will be incligible as
callateral for any loan made by the Issuer. The major features! of the MI'B 5 Subordinated Bond are

presented below:

5.1 Basie Features of the Instrument
Table 1: Basic Feamres of M1TB 50 Subordinared Bond

Issuer:

Mumal Trust Bank Limited

The Issue:

5(N) coupon-bearing non-convertible fully redeemable unsecured
Subordinated Bonds of BIY1" 10,000,000 {T'en million Taka) cach
at par totaling BIYT 5,000,000,000 {(Five billion Taka)

Name of the Instrument:

MTRB 5% Subordinated Bond

Mandated Lead Jltrﬂngm RSA Advisory Limited
Arrangement Basis: Best Efforts
Purpose: To raise Tier-2 Capital

Local Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies
I = ] m-P ¥

i Corporate etc and any other ebgible investors.

Currency: Bangladeshi Taka (“BDT”)
Face Value: BDT 10,000,000 (Ten Million) Per Bond
Denomination/Minimum ;
Subscription: BDT 10,000,000 (Ten Million Taka)

Mode of Placement:

Private Placement on a best effor: basis

Issue Price: 100% at Par

Issue Size: BIYT 5,000,000,000 (Five Billion Taka)

Issue Type: Tier 2 Eligible Subordinated Bornd

Tenor: 7 years from the date of issuance

Trustee: UCB Investment Limited
Mﬂgem, Reglster, Transfer UCB Investment Limited

Legal Counsel: Lex Juris

Credit Rating Agency: Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL)

Total Bonds to be issued:

500 (Five Hundred) no.

Investors:

Instuutional investors and high net-worth individual investors

Yield to Maturity/ Rate of Return

Coupon Rate

C = » Coupon Rate: Reference Rate + Coupon Margin

(=1}

L Latest average G6-month FDR rate of all private commercial
22N banks excluding banks licensed after 2010 as published by
% o 3 TJ Bangladesh Bank on the quotation day.

3 2 )

24 % Reference Rate: The Reference Rate will be rounded to 2 (two) decimal places.
o 3 W For example, if the benchmark vate 15 5.155, then it should be
3 o rounded off to 5.16 and if the benchmark rate is 5.154 then it
- should be rounded off to 5.15

%

Mohammad Naznill Hossam, FOR
Group cmm%lﬂﬁ%umn of MTB 5" Subordinated Bond are deafi only and finalietion of these fe

Mutual Trust iistconcermed regulators,
Cotporale Head Offica, Dhaka
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Quotation Day:

Loapon Rate s to be determined.

.Cnupon Margin:

Deaft Information Memorandum
Subordinated Bonds of up to BIXT 5,000 Million

..l'llwlni!im:!-u days before the ﬁrﬂ .;iil}" of any period for which a

2.0

Range of Coupon Rate:

G.00%% to 9,00% at all tmes.

(excluding risk premium in case of rating tripper fall and lare
payment penalty in case of late payment)

Coupon Payment:

Semi-annually starting after 6 months from the drawdown date

Repayment Schedule:

Face Value (principal) redemptions will be in 5 (five) equal
annual tranches commencing at the end of 3+ year from the date
of deawdown in the following manner

5,000,000, 000
5,004,000,000

End of 1" Year
End of 2 Year
End of 3 Year

1,000,000, 0K

4,000,000,000

End of 4" Year

1,000, 000,000

3,000,000,000

End of 5 Year

1,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

End of 6" Year
End of 7™ Year

LOOM000,000 1,060, 000,000
1000000000 :

Credit Rating:

Issuer Rating

AA (Long Term), 8T-2 (Short T'erm), Outlook: Stable

Validly Date: 11-May-2023

Raung Agency: Credit Ratng Information and Services Limited
(CRISL)

Issue Rating

AA-p

Validity Date: 14-June-2023

Rating Agency: Emerping Credit Rating Limited (ECRL)

Rating trigger, if any:

=W

If the credit rating of the issue falls below the minimum
mvestment grade i.e. ‘BBB in the long term or “ST1-3" in the
short term, then the Issuer shall pay an additional fee on op of
the stipulated Coupon Rate as a nsk premium as mentoned in
the table below:

BB 0.5%
B 1.0%
C 1.5%
D 2.0%

Listing:

Will be listed on Alternative "Trading Board (ATH)

Governing Law:

Laws of Bangladesh.

%

39 B 400940

o

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chief Financial Officaf
Mutual Trust Bank Limiled
Corporate Head Office, Dhike
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== Mulual Trust Bank Lid, Subordinated Bonds of up to BT 5,000 Million
5.2  Rate of Remrn, Yield o Matunity, Coupon/Discount Rate

Rate of return comprises of reference rate and Margin.

¢ Reference Rate: Latest average 6-month FDR rmte of all povate commereial banks excluding
banks licensed after 2010 as published by Bangladesh Bank on the quotation day.

o 'The Reference Rate will be rounded to 2 (two) decimal places. For example, if the
benchmark rate is 5.155, then it should be rounded off to 5,16 and i the benchmark rare
is 5,154 then it should be rounded off to 5.15.

¢ Coupon Margin; 2.00% p.a.
¢ Coupon Floor Rate: 6.00%
* Coupon Ceiling Rate: 9.0

¢ Coupon payment: Coupon to be paid semi-annually, Fist coupon will be paid after 6 months
from the devwdown date,

53 Transfembiliny/Liguidity;
Transferable in accordance with the provisions of T'rust Deed.

54 Prepayment, Call, Refunding, Conversion or Exchange option;
The Bond 1s non-convertible and not-callable in nature and has no prepayment option.

5.5 Farly redempuon or Late redemption;

The Tssuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% (two per cent) higher than the Coupon Rate and be
payable an the amount not paid on the due date up ull the date of actual payment.

5.6 Tax Featares;

All payments made by the Issuer or under or in respect of the Trust eed or the Bonds will be subject to
any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or on behalf of Bangladesh or any political subdivision thereof or
any authority thereof or therein having power to tax. The Issuer will not be Obligated pay any additional
amounts in respect of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges that may from time to time
be deducted or withheld from such payments, but will provide or procure the provision of original or
authenticated tax receipts relating to any such deductions or withholdings to Bondholders.

= o . .
%} 77 Costs related to the ssue;
. . Total costs for issuing the bond (considering BD'T 5,000 million is success fully raised) have been estimated
i \J to be BDT 48.95 million. The details of the cost breakdown is given below:
@ W Face value of MTB 5th bond 5,000,000,000
= Areanger & Co-arranger Fee 25,000,000
VAT on armanger fee 3,750,000
Da. BSEC consent fee 5,000,000
Monammad Nazmul Hossain, BREC Application fee 10,000
Group Chiel Financal -
Mueai Tt Bank Limiisiee application fee () 50,000
Corporute rigad Office, Dhakipustee registration fee 2 k,#ﬂ[]m
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| Annual trustee fee to BSEC (7 vears) 354,000
Trustee fee (7 years) B 1 1,750,000
VAT on Trustee fee 262,500
Credit rating fee (7 vears) 63 u:inu
VAT on credit rating fee oy _IEEL_!

| Legal Counsel 150,000
VAT on legal counsel fee 22,500
Miscellancous (stamp, printing ad) 'ill 000
(ﬁ] I" utal hﬂnd issuance fee Il 37 1?2,25ﬂ

Listing Fee on ATB o
CDBL. Fee II‘E[HJHHIHHHHFWPﬂ(:lﬂl'}} 750,000
CDBL Annual fee — : 5[!,.1-“-!'..'!
DSE listing Fee (5000000000%0.15%) 7,500,000
DSE listing Annual fee 600,000
Total Listing fee m 8,900,000
]ssm’: manager fee for listing 2 5000, 000
"'-’ /AT on 1ssue manager . ] 1 .T’?.[]Hﬂ
(B] Total [lsnng fee ) 11,775,000
| Total bond cost (A+B) I 48,947,250 |

58  Repayment Schedule
Face Value (principal) redemptions of every tranche will be m 5 (five) equal annual installments
commencing at the end of 3 year from the issue date of the respective tranche.

Table 2: I{I:'li.'lil..'t'lu:lit Schedule of MTDE 5% Subordinated Bond

MTB 5

"Subordinated Bond

Repayment Schedule for Total Issue of BDT 5,000 Million

Vet MNa. of Manths Begliining Principal Primcijal Ending
Franches Balance Kedemption (™) Redemption Balance
: ;000,000,000 |
12 5,000,000,000 0.00% 5,000,000,000
S NpspRomed] iy 18 _ .| 2000000000 | _ __ Lo o e o o S2RO0000,000
K 24 5,000,000,000 0.00% : 5, 000,000,000
T e n e i ML L B e L Ml B ol 3,000.000,000 |
o 1 36 5,000,000,000 20.00% 1 D0 DO [0 A 000, 000,00
G E - g Beesgass B R S EEE o AR PR g -4,000,000,000 |
— % 2 48 4,000,000,000 20.00% 1 GO M LD 3,000,000, 0Ok
B @ k- sl o assaihas 34 _ _L 2000000000 | _ _ _ _ Ly S| I - S | 3 000,000,000 |
2 od) 3 60 3,000,000,000 20,00% 1,000000000 | 2,000,000,000
5 | T 66 __| 2000000000 000%_ ___ I T | 2,000,000,000 |
o =3 I T2 2 0000, 000,000 20.00% 1,000,000 000 1 K0 OO 0G0
2 g ! b e e L - JB . 10000000 | Ly Lo e s o SIIOR00,000
=1 : 5 84 1,000,000,000 20.00% 1,000,000,000

C: 39 Call or put option,

Morammad Nazrb¥hisebpprlige ble
Group Chial Finan cial Oificor

Mutual Trust Bank | irry b

Comnomate Hissd Dl o, Dhaka

and premivm or discount thereof, if any;

Man.igtng dectur & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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5100 Credit enhancement or guarantee, il any;
Not Applicable
.11 Enforcement of Charges over Securities

The Trustee may at any time, at its discretion and without further notice, institute such proceedings against
the Issuer as it may think fit to recover any amounts due in respect of the Bonds which are unpaid or 10
enforce any of its nghts under this Trust Deed or the Conditions but it shall not be bound to ke any such
proceedings unless (a) it shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution or a Written Resolution
and (b) it shall have been indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction against all liabilities, proceedings,
claims and demands to which it may thereby become liable and all costs, charges and expenses which may
be incurred by it in connection therewith and provided that the Trustee shall not be held liable for the
consequence of taking any such action and may take such action without having regard to the effect of such
action on individual Bondholders. Only the Trustee may enforce the provisions of the Bonds ar this Trust
Deed and no Bondholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Trustee, having
become bound so 10 proceed, fails 1o do so within a reasonable time and such failure is continuing,

6 Description of collateral Security

Subordinated Bonds are unsecured and rank below deposits, borrowings and secured bonds with regard to
claims on assets or earnings. MTB 5* Subordinated Bond is unsecured and the claims of the bondholders
are not covered by any collateral or secunity thereon and therefore no charge against the issues,
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7 Rights Duties and Obligations of the Issuer

Tl Covenant to Repay

The Tssuer covenants with the Trustee thar it will, ag and when the Bonds op any of them become due to be redeemed
or any pancipal on the Bonds or any of them becomes due to be npaul in accordance with the Conditions,
uncomditionally pay or procure 1o be paid 1o or to

the onder of the Trustee in Bangladesh Taka in Dhaka in immediately avalable Freely ransferable funds the principal
amount of the Bonds or any of them becoming due for redemption ar repayment on that date and shall (sulyeet 10
the provisions of the Concitions) until all such payments (loth before and after pdgment or other ordee) are duly
made unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesnid on the dates provided
for in the Conditions interest on the pancipal amount of the Bonds or any of them oustanding from time o tme as
set out in the Conditions proided that:

711 every payment of prncipal or interest in respect of the Bonds or any of them made 1o or to the sccount of the
Bondholders shall sansfy, to the extent of such payment ;

T.1.2 if any payment of prncipal or mterest in respect of the Bonds or any of them is made afier the due date,
payment shall be deemed not to have been made until esther the fll amount is paid to the Bondholders o, if
carlier, the seventh day afier notice has been given to the Bondholders m accordance with the Conditions that
the full amount has been received by the Trustee to the extent that there is failure in the subsequent payment
10 the Bondholders under the Condinons; and

713 m any case where payment of the whole or any part of the prncipal mmount due in tespect of any Bond is
improperly withheld or refused mterest shall accrue at applicable interest mte for the Bond on the whole or
such part of such prancpal amount from the date of such withholding or refusal until the date either on which
such principal amount due is pmd to the Bondholdess or, if eatlies, the seventh day after which notice is given
to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions that the full smount payable in respect of the sad
principal amount is available for collection by the Bondholders such payment is in fact made.

The Trustee wall hold the benefit of this covenant and the covenants in Clinse 11.3 (Coenant fo comply sith Tt Deed,
Conditions aud Sohedules,) and Clause 11.4 (Corewants by the Inmer) on trust for the Bondholders,

7.2 Following an Event of Default
At any time after any Event of Default shall have occurred, the Trustee may:

by notice in writing to the Issuer, require it to make all subsequent payments in respect of Bonds 1o or 1o the order of
the T'rustee and with effect from the 1ssue of any such notice unuil such notce is withdrawn, sub-clause 11.1.10f Clause
111 (Covenant fo Repay) and (so far as it concemns payments by the Issuer) Clause 19.2 of the T'rast Deed (Payment fo
Bondbalders) shall cease to have effecr.

7.3 Covenant to comply with Trust Deed, Conditions, Schedules and applicable law

7.51  The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee 1o comply with, perform and observe all those provisions of this
Trust Deed, the Conditions (including, without limitation, Condition 5 (Caenants)) and the other Schedules
which are expressed to be binding on it and to perform and observe the same. The Bonds are subject to the
provisions contained in this Trust Deed, all of which shall be binding upon the Issuer and the Bondholders
and all persons claiming through or under them respectively. The Bondholders and all persons chiming undler
or through them respectively will also be entitled to the benefit of, and will be bound by, this Trust Deed and
the other Bond Documents and will be deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Bond Documents
spplicable to them.

732 The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee 1o comply with, perform and ebserve all those provisions of the

apphcable law mcluding but is not limited 1o Bangladesh Secusities and Exchange Commission (Debt

Secunties) Rules 2021, The Issuer agrees that Bondholdess and all persons claiming under or through them

respectively wall also be entitled 1o the benefit of, and will be bound by, the spplicable liw and will be deemed

to have notice of all of the provisions of the applicable kaw applicable to them.

The Trustee shall isself be enntled to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds and the Conditions

and the applicable law as if the same were set out and contained in this Trust Deed which shall be read and

construed as one document with the Bonds.
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TA1 Books of account:
At all times keep and procure that all s Subsidiaries keep such books of account as may be necessary to comply
with all apphcable laws and so as to enable the financial statements of the Issuer 1o be prepared and allow,
subject 1o confidentiality obligatons under applicable law, the Trstee and any person appomted by o free
access to the same at all reasonable ames and to discuss the same with responsible officers of the Issuer;

74.2 Event of Defaalt:
Give notice in writing to the Trustee forthwith upon becoming awarc of any Event of Default and wathout
waiting for the T'rustee 1o take any further acuon;

743 Corporate Governance:
Comply (and shall ensure that each member of the Group will) in all material respects with the corporate
povemnance guidelines set out by the Bangladesh Bank and the Bangladesh Secunties and Exchange
Commission.

744 Information:
So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times give to the Trusiee such mfommation, opinions, certificates
and other evidence as it shall require and, in such form, as it shall require in relation to Issuer for the
performance of its abligations under the Bond Documents;

745 Execotion of further Documents:
So far as permitted by applicable law, at all times execute all such further documents and do all such further
acts and things as may be necessary at any time or times in the opinion of the Trustee 1o give effect o the
provisions of this Trust Deed;

746 Nonces to Bondholders:
Send or procure to be sent to the Trustee not less than 5 {five) business days prior 1o the date of publicanion,
one copy of each notice to be given to the Bondholders in accordmee with the Condittons and, upon
publication, send o the Trustee two copies of such notice;

TA7 Nouficaton of non-payment:
Notfy the T'rustee forthwith in the event that it does not, on or before the due date for payment in reapect of
the Bands or any of them, pay unconditionally the full amount in the relevant currency of the moneys payable
on such due date on all such Bonds;

748 Notfication of late payment:
In the event of the unconditional payment to the Trustee of any sum due in respect of the Bonds or any of
them being made after the due date for payment thereof, forthwith give notice 1o the Bondholders that such
payment has been made;

749 Nonfication of redemption or repayment:

14 (Fourteen) days prior to the Redemption Dates or purchase i respect of any Bond, give to the Tustee
notice in writing of the amount of such redempuoen or purchase pussuant to the Condinons and duly proceed
o redeem or purchase such Bonds accardingly;

7410 Auothorised Signatones:

Pugpy

zZue|

S
- L’

032 ¥ w2
=)

Upon the execution hereaf and thereafter forthwith upon any change of the same, deliver to the Trustee a list
of the Authonsed Signatories of the lssuer, together with certified specimen signatures of the same; and

7411 Payments

Pay moneys payable by it to the Trustee hereunder without set off, comnterclaim, deduction or withholding,
unless otherwise compelled by law and in the event of any deduction or withholding compelled by Tnw will pay
such additional amount as will result in the payment to the Trustee of the amount which would otherwise have
been payable by it 1o the Trostee hercunder

Lo

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Graup Chist Finanginl Officer
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Corporatiy +ead Ofice, Dhaka o I
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8 Rights Duties and Obligations of the Trustee

B.1 Trustee’s Rights

Bl Applicable Law: Notwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed the Trustee shall have all such nghis
and powers granted to it under the applicable liw including but s oot limited to Bangladesh Securdties and
Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021,

B.1.2 . Adwee The Trustee may in relation to this Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice of or a certificate or any
information obtained fron any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, sccountant or other expen
{whether obtamed by the Trustee, the Issuer, or any Subsidiary) and which advice or opinion may be provided
on such terms (inchuding as to Emitations on bability) as the Trustee may consider in its sole discretion to be
consistent with prevailing market practice with regard 1 advice of opmions of that nature and shall not be
responsible for any Liabality occasioned by so acting; any such opinion, advice, certificate or information may
be sent or obtained by letter, telegram, telex, cablegram or facsimile transrission;

B.L3  Reslution or direction of Bowdbelders: the Trustee shall not be responsible for actng upon any resolution purporting
to be o Watten Resolution or to have been passed at any meetimg of the Bondholders n respect whereof
minutes have been made and signed or a direction of a specified percentage of Bondholders, even though it
may subsequently be found that there was some defect in the constimtion of the meenng or the passing of the
resolution or the making of the directions or that for any reason the resolition purporting to be a Watten
Resolution or to have been passed at any Meeting or the making of the dircctions was not vabd or binding
upon the Bondholders;

B4 Trudter wot responsible for investigations; save as otherwise provided by applicable law, the Trustee shall not be
responsible for, or for nvestigating any matter which is the subject of, any recital, statement, representation,
witranty of covenant of any pesson contained in this Trust Deed, the Bonds, or any other agreement or
document relating to the tmnsactions hercin or therein contemphited or for the execution, legality,
effectiveness, adequacy, genuineness, validiry, enforceability or admissibility in evidence thereof;

B.1.5  Entry oo the Register: the Trustee shall not be hable to the lssuer or any Bondholder by reason of having aceepted
as valid or not having rejected any entry on the Register later found 1o be forged or not authentic and can
assume for all purposes in relation hereto that any entry on the Registeris correct;

8.1.6  Ewats of Defaudr. save ns otherwise provided by applicable law, unal it shall have actual knowledge or express
notice to the contrary, the Trustee shall be entitled 1o assume that no such Event of Default has happened and
that the 1ssuer is observing and performing all the obligations on its part contsined in the Bonds and under
this Trust Deed and no event has happened as a consequence of which any of the Bonds may become
repayable; and

B.LT  Right to Deduct or Withheld: notwithstanding anything contained in this T'ust Deed, to the extent required by any
applicable law, if the Trustee is or will be reguired to make any deduction or withholding from any distalution
or payment made by it hereunder or i the Trusree is or will be atherwise charged 10, o is or may become hable
o, tax as a4 consequence of performing its dunes hereunder whether as prinapal, ageat or otherwise, and
whether by resson of any assessment, prospectve assessment or other imposinon of lnbility 1w taxation of
whatsoever nanuee and whenever made upon the Trustee, and whether i connection with or arsing from any
sums recewved or distributed by it or ro which it may be entitled under this Trust Deed (other than in connection
with its remuneration s provided for herein) or any investments ot depostts from time to time representing
the same, including any mcome or gains ansing there from or any sction of the Trustee in connection with the
trusis of this Trust Deed (other than the remuneration herein specified) or othersase, then the Trustee shall be
entitled 1o make such deducnon or withholding or, as the case may be, 10 retin out of sums received by it an
amount sufficient to discharge any lialility to tax which relates 1o sums so received or distributed or (o discharge
any such other liability of the Trustee to tax from the funds held by the T'rustee upon the trusts of this Trust
Deed.

B.18  Liabifity: The Trustee thall not be lable to any person for any matter or thing done or omitted in any way in
connection with or in relation to this Trust Deed or the Bonds save in relation to its own gross negligence,
wilful default or fraud. This Clause 6.1.8 shall survive the teemination or expiry of this Trust Deed or the
removal or termination of the Trustee.

nBwepy uyzue|
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B.1.9  Fore Magewre: The Trustee shall not be hable for any filure or delay in the performance of its obligatons under
this Trust Deed or any other Bond Document because of ciroumstnces beyond such Trustee's control,
including, withour hmitation, acts of God, flood, war (whether declared or undeclwed), 1erronsm, fire, rior,
embargo, labour dispures, any laws, ordinances, repulations or the like which resinct or prohilue the
performance of the obliganons contemplated by this Trust Deed or any other Bond Docament, mabiliy 1o
obtain or the filure of equipment, or mterraption of communications or computer facilities, and other causes
beyond such Trustee's control whether or not of the same ¢lass or kind a8 specifically named above.

B.L10 [mwmanitier: The Trostee's immunities and protections from lability and its right o mdemnification
connection with the pecformance of its duties under this Trust Deed shall extend to the Trustec's officers,
directors and employees. Such immunities and protections and right 1o ndemnification, together with the
Trustee's right to compensanion, shall survive the Trustee's resipnation or removal, the defeasance or discharge
of this Trust Deed and final payment of the Bonds. The Issuer acknowledges that in any proceedings taken in
relation to this Trist Deed, it wall not be entifled to claim for itself or any of its assets immunity from suit,
execution, attachment or other legal process.

B.1L11 Profecrowal dharges: any trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other peson engiged in any profession or
business shall be eatitled to charge and be paid all usual professional and other charges for business transacted
and acts done by him or his partner or firm on matters anising in connection with the trusts of this Trust Deed
and also his properly incurred charges in additon 1o disbursements for all other work and business done and
all ime spent by him or his partner or firm on matters ansing in connection with this Trust Deed, in each case
as agreed pursuant to the Fee Letter (including matters which might or should have been attended to in person
by a trustee not heing # banker, lawyer, broker or other professional penonl;

B.1.12 Expenditure by the Trustee. nothing contained in this Trust Deed shall require the Trustee to expend or nsk irs
own funds or otherwise incur any financial Bability in the performance of its duties or the exercise of any aghr,
power, authonty or discretion hereunder if it has grounds for believing the repayment of such funds or adequate
mdemmnity against, or secunty for, such tsk or Bability is not reasomably assured fo it and

8113 Trustee may enter into finandal transactions with the Imer: no Trustee and no director or officer of any corporation
being a Trustee hereol shall by reason of the fiduciary position of such Trustee be in any way precluded from
making any contracts or entenng into any transactions in the ordinary course of business with the Tssuer or any
Subswdiary, or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the Issuer or any Subsidiary,
or from accepting the trusteeship of any other debenture stock, debentures or secunties of the lssuer or any
Subsidiury or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the Issuer or any Subsidiary,
and neither the Trustee nor any such dircctor or officer shall be accountabsle 1o the Bondholders or the Issuer
ot any Subsidiary, or any person or body corporate directly ot indivectly associated with the lssuer or any
Subsidiary, for any profit, fees, commissions, interest, disconnts or share of brokemge eamed, adsing or
resulting from any such contracts or tumsactions and the Trustee and any such director or officer shall also be
at liberty to retain the same for its or his own benefit

B014 Towatee Lihility. The Trustee shall not be lable to any person for any matter or thing done or omitted in any
wiy n connection with or in relation to this Trust Deed or the Bonds sive in relation 1o s own gross
negligence, wilful defaunlt or fraud.

B.1.15 Right o Swe: The Trustee may sue and may be sued on behalf of the Bondholders

B.2  Trostee's powers and duties

B.21 Appbable Law: Norwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed the Trustee shall have all such
responsibility as set out in the applicable law including but is not limited 10 Bangladesh Secunties and Exchange
Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021,

B.22 A for Bondholders: Subject to applicable law and terms and conditions of this Trust Deed, the Trustee shall act
on behalf and for the exclusive interest of the Bondholders;

8.23  Mowitorigg: Trustee shall ensure thar Tssuer is observing the applicable bw for the Bonds and the terms and
conditions of the Bond Documents. As soon as the Trustee is aware of any breach by the Issuer it shall
immediately inform the Bondholders and the Tssuer of such breach,

8.24  Report fo BSEC Trustee shall submit an annual compliance report o the BSEC on the activities of the Tssuer
ncluding repayment of dues 1o the Bondholders. When Trustee shall subimut such report to the BSEC it shall

L3
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provide copy to the Issuer and the Bondholders;
B25  Grienances of the Bandbolders: Upon receipt of a complaint from the Bondholders Trustee shall take necessary
steps for redress of grievances of the Bondholders within one month of the date of receipt of the i

= and he shall keep the BSEC and the Issuer informed about the number, mature and ogher pagth

Managing Director & CEO
Nazmul Hossain, FCA Muluglw R
Gmun Chiaf Financial Officr
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B.2.6  Trustee's determination The Trustee may determine whether or not a defalt i the petformance or observance by
the Issuer of any oblipation under the provisions of this Trust Deed or contained n the Bonds is capable of
remedy and if the Trustee shall cernfy that any such default is, i its opinon, not capable of remedy, such
centificate shall be conchusive and binding upon the Tssuer and the Bondholders,

BLT  Determination of questions: the T'rustee as berween itself and the Bondholders shall have full power 1o determine
all quesnans and doubts ansing in relation 1o any of the provisions of this Trust Deed and every such
determination, whether made upon a question actually mised or imphed n the acts or proceedings of the
Trustee, shall be conclusive and shall bind the Trustee and the Bosdholders;

B2B  Truitee's diveretion: the Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided heran) as regards all the trasts, powers,
authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed or by operation of liw,_on reasonable ground have
abzolute and wncontrolled discretion as to the exercise or non-exercise thereof and the Trustee shall not be
responsible for any Liability that may vesult from the exercise or ton-exercise thereof (tave ux atherwise
provided by applicable law) but whenever the Trustee is under the provisions of this Trust Deed bound 1o act
at the request or direction of the Boadholders, the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound unless first
indemnified and/or provided with security to its satisfaction agiinst all actions, proceedings, claims and
demands to which it may render itself liable and all costs, charges, damages, expenses and liabilities which n
may incur by so doing;

B9 Trustee's onsent: any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this Trust Deed may be given on such
terms and subject to such conditions (F any) as the Trustee may requireg

B.210 Appleation of proceeds. the Trustee shall not be responsible for the recapt or application by the Issuer of the
procecds of the issue of the Bonds;

B.211 Ervr of judgwent; the Trustee shall not be Bable for any error of pdgment made in good faith applying due
diligence and without neghgence by any officer or employee of the Trustee assgned by the Trustee to
administer its corporite trust matters, save in relation to its own gross negligence, wilful default or fraud;

B.2.12 Agents: Subject to the provisions of the Trust Act 1882 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commussion
(Debt Secunities) Rules 2021, the Trustee may, in the conduct of the trusts of this Trust Deed instead of acting
personally, employ and pay an agent on any terms, whether or not a bwyer or other professional person, to
transact or conduct, or concur in transacting or conducting, any business and to do or concur in doing all acts
required to be done by the Trustee (including the receipt and payment of money) with the consent of lssucr
and the Trustee shall not be responsble for any loss, hability, expense, demand, cost, claim or proceedings
ncurred by reason of the misconduct, omission or default on the part of any person appointed by it hercunder
ot be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such person promded that the Trustee had exercised
reasonable care in the appointment of such person;

8213 Confidential information: the Trustee shall not (unless required by law ot ordered so 1o do by a court of competent
jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder confidentul information or other information made
available to the Trustee by the Issuer in connection with this Trust Deed and no Bondholder shall be enntled
to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such information.

8.2.14 Determination of Interest Rate. the Trastee shall determine Applicable Interest Rate in accordance with Condition

of the Bond,
8.3  Exercise of Discretion
7.3.1. Notwithstunding anything in this Trust Deed to the contrary, the Trusiee shall not be obliged 10 exercise or

consider exercising any discretion or consider making or make any determinanon (mcluding, without bmitation,
any determination as 1o whether any fact or circumstance or activity or thing is material or substantial or
complies with some such similar quantitative standand) or to consider taking or take any action whatsoever in
conacction with or under or pursuant to the Bonds unless directed to do so by the holdess of not less than
662/ percent w poncipal amount of the Bonds then ourstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution of Bondholders (subject in all cases to the Trustee having been indemnified or provided with security
to its sansfacuon and otherwise being satsfied that it 15 lawful for it to so exercise discretion, make a
determination or otherwise take any action). Such direction shall specify the way in which the Trustee shall
exercise such discretion or, as the case may be, make the determination or ke the action 10 be tuken by the
Trustee,

-\‘ 7.32. The Trustee will be respansible for any loss, expense, damage, clam, wost, chage or lability which may be
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suffered as a result of any exercise or non-exercise of a discretion or the making or failure 1 make any
determination or the taking or failure to take any acton by the Trustee, acting on the directions of the
Bondholders as aforesaid or pending the provision of such a direction,

Jibus

Mohammad Mazml Hossain, FCA
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9 Rights Duties and Obligations of the Arranger
The lssuer has appointed RSA Advisory Limited as the Mandated Lead Aranger of the proposed Bonds.
Rights and Obligations of the Arranger of MTB 5 Subordinated Bond indude:

9.1  Due diligence of the issue prior to submission of the proposed bonds 1o extemal parties;

9.2 Coordinate and provide integral support for preparation of Informanon Memorandum and appomrment of
relevant partics;

9.3 Ensure proper documentation complenon and compliance with regulitory requirements, prior to submission
o reglatons;

9.4  Engage with regulators and Issuer for approval of the bonds;

9.5 Support due diligence of prospective investors for investing in the boncls,

9.6 Complete documentation of the bonds prior to subscription of the bonds,
9.7 Monitor compliance with conditions precedent prior to issuance of the bonds.
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10 Rights Duties and Obligations of the Bondholders

101 Each Bondholder has the right to demand information from the Issuer as set out in the Trust Deed
and the Condition attached in Schedule 1 Part B of the Trust Deed (Terms and Conditions of the Bowds).

102 Each Bondholder has the night 1o receive payment of prncpal amount of the Bond on the
Redemption Date as set out in the Condition attached in Schedule 1 of the Trost Deed (Terms and

Comditions of the Bondy).

103 Fach Bondholder has the right to recetve interest on the Bond on the Interest Payment Date as set
out in the Condition attached in Schedule 1 of the Trust Deed (Terms and Canditions of the Bondl).

104 Hach Bondholder has the right to attend meeting of the Bondholders and vote therein in accordance
with Condition 12 of the Trust Deed (Meetings of Bondbolders, Modification, Waiver and Substitution).
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11" Description of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Mutual Trust Bank Limited was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on September 29, 1999, under
the Companies Act 1994, with an Authorized Share Capital of BDT 1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares of BDT 100 each. At present, the Authorized Share Capital of the company is BDT
10,000,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each.

‘The Company was also issued Certificate for Commencement of Business on the same day and was granted
license on October 05, 1999 by Bangladesh Bank under the Banking Companies Act 1991 and started its
banking operation on October 24, 1999.

Table 3: Basie Information of the Tssuer

Registered name of the company Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Company Registration No. c38707 (665)/99 on September 29, 1999
Bangladesh Bank Permission No. BRPD (I°) 744(78)/99-3081 on October 5, 1999
SWIFT Code MTBL BD DI

® The Institute of Bankers Bangladesh (IBB)

Banpladesh Agsociaton of Banks (BAB)

¢ DBangladesh Foreign Exchange Dealers Association
(BAFEDA)

o Bangladesh Insutite of Bank Management (BIBM)
Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed
Companies (BAPLC)

o  Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce and Industry,
Dhaka (MCCI)

* International Chamber of Commerce Bangladesh
Limited (ICCB)
Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)
Dhaka Chamber of Commerce & Industry (IDCCI)
American Chamber of Commeree in Bangladesh
{AmCham)

® Prmary Dealers Bangladesh Limited (PDBL)

Memberships

*  Received the DHL-Daily Star Award as “The Best
Financial Institution” of 2014

¢ MIB received Best SME Bank of the Year 2014 &
Best Women Entreprencurs’ Friendly Bank of the
Year 2014

¢ Won the Golden Globe Tigers Summit Award 2015

for Excellence in Branding & Marketing

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Bangladesh (ICAB) National Award for best

presented Annual Repons-2015 & 17

MTB won the “Dreeam Company to Work for"

award in the organizational category at “Asia’s Best

Employer Brand Awards 2018"

e MITB won Award for Fixcellence in lmproving
Performance Through Leadership 2018
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Mahammad Nazmd Hossain, FCA

Group Chief Financial Officar

Mutusl Trust B tad i Y : . :

Cormorils Hewa it past 22 years of operation, the Issuer has laid a strong foundation 1o create a string brand image
and strengthen it foothold in the highly regulated banking industey. MTB is equipped with strong delivery
channels consisting of 119 branches & 33 Sub-branches, 201 Agent Banking Centeys, 18 kiosks, 310
modern ATMs mcluding 6 CRM Booths, 4 Air Lounpes, over 3.220 Point of Sales (POS] mjachi
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in prime commercial, urban and rural areas. MTB offers fully integrted real time Online Banking Services,
24/7 modern Contact Centre and Internet and SMS Banking to its growing clientele, through a dedicated
team of experienced Relationship Managers and Alternate Delivery Channels (ADC). Currently there are
2,418 number of employees working for the Bank.

11,1 Subsichiaries of Mutual Trust Bank Limited
The Bank has 3 (three) subsidiary companies namely MTB Securities Limited, MTB Capital Limited and
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited.

1111 MTB Securities Limated

MTB Securities Limited (MTBSL.) was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private mited company on March
01, 2010 vide 1ts registration number no. 82868/10 under the companies Act 1994 and converted into
public limited company in the year 2015 under the Companies Act, 1994, The company has started
commercial operation on September 23, 2010 after getting approval from the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) as a separate entity. The Main objective of the company is to act as a
member of the stock exchange and of the Central Depository System (CDS) companies, and carry out
business of brokers, jobbers, or dealers in stocks, secutities, bonds, divestures ete. The Company it also
authonzed to buy, sell, hold and otherwise acquire or invest the capital of the company in shares, stocks,
anidl fixed income secunties.

11.1.2 MTB Capital Limited
The Issuer obtained permission to embark upon Merchant Banking from the Bangladesh Secunties and
Exchange Commission (SEC) vide its certificate No. MB-55/2010 dared December 06, 2010 under the
Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993. The operation has started as on Apnl 17, 2011. MTB
f_apm] Limited (MTBCL) offers the following services to the market:
Discretionary and Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management Services to both the retail and
nstitutional investors under different product lines.
* Issue management services to medium and larpe corporate houses to manage their Initial Public
Offering (TPO), secondary offering, debt issuance and right issuance.
* Underwriting services for both debt and equity issues.
Besides, MTBCL develops various investment schemes suiting varying objectives and constraints of
different investor classes,

11.1.3 MTB Exchange (UK) Limited
MTB Exchange (UK) Limited (MTB UK} was incorporated on June 14, 2010 under the Companies Act
2006 of UK with registration number 7282261 as a private company limited by shares. The registered office
of MTB UK is located at 25 White Chapel Road, London. The main objective of the exchange house s to
carry on the remittance business and to undertake and participate in transactions, activites and operations
commonly carried out or undertaken by remittance and exchange houses.

: -
;::’ :% ﬁ 112 Capial Structure (Consolidated basis)
% £ 3 ,  Mutual Trust Bank Limited, the issuer of the subordinated bonds, is a commercial bank and like other
i % banks, its capital structure comprises shareholder’s equity, deposits and other liabilities. Most of MTB's
T :_: = _ﬂ] assets (73.8%) have been financed by deposits and other accounts.
3 @
i o Table 4: Sources of Issuer's Fuml
= As of 31 December, 2021
BDT million
Mohamiad Nazmu fiobsiahitities 286,846.02
Eﬂrﬂ:m ?_;lﬂ" i'gﬂf cia! Pls@bwings from other banks, Fls and agents 35,205.78
.:u":pz?m r::ﬂd gm:ﬂ Trust Bank Subordinated & petperual Bond 12,600.00
Deposits and other accounts 211,78242
Other liabilities 2725781
M\ N N
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Total Equity 19,654.77
Paid-up capital 8,124.96
Satulory reserve 5.696.35
Share Premium 1,095.30
General reserve TB6.TR
Revaluation reserve 457.93%
Retained earnings 3 488,74
Foreign Currency Translational Gain 470

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 306,500.92

The Issuer maintains appropriate eapital adequacy, which enables it to confront various risk factors it may
be exposed to. The current CRAR of 14.41% on 31 December, 2021 was higher than the minimum
requirement of 10% (excluding 2.5% buffer), due to the increase in minimum requirement in accordance
with BASEL 111 implementation roadmap by Bangladesh Bank. The proposed subordinated bond will help
meet this requirement. The total eligible capital of the bank, on consolidated basis, was BDT 30,343.19
million as on 31 December, 2021 against the nsk weighted assets of BIYT' 210,635.87 million.

Table 5: Regulatory Capital of the lssuer

As of 31 December, 2021
BDT Million
Total Risk Weighted Assets 210,635.87
Core capital (Tier- I) 20,312.24
Supplementary capital (Ties-1T) 10,030.95
Total Capital 30,343.19
Total Required Capital 21,063.58
Capital Surplus/(Shortfall) 9,279.60
Capital Adequacy Ratio 14, 41%
Core capital to Risk Weighted Assets 9.64%
Supplementary capital to Risk Weighted Assets 4.76%

Issuer’s total paid up capital stood at BDT 8,124.96 million at the end of 31 December, 2021 which was
divided into 812,495,659 number of ordinary shares with a face value of BDT 10 per share. Out of the total
shares, 32.8% (266,547,829 number of shares) were held by Sponsors of the lssuer.

Table 6: Shareholding Structure of the Issuer

1.5 Business Deseription

All
Mohammad Hamﬁ
Group Chial Firal L

hutusi Trust

%J[D

. e As on 31 December, 2021
3 & o No, of Shares Share Value (BDT mn) | % of Holding |
— & 8 Sponsors 266,547,829 2,665,478,290 32.8061%
a2 N Foreign Investors (NORFUND) 77,415,576 774,155,760 9.5281%
g S Institutions 186,861,530 1,868,615,300 22.9985%
i ,;r-j General Public 281,670,724 2,816,707,240 34.6674%
C e Total 812,495,659 §,124,956,590 100.00%
g0

commercial banking services are provided by the Bank wathin the stipulations hid down by the
anies Act, 1991 (as amended in 2013) and directive as received from the Bangladesh Bank from
gl htitne. Registered office of the Bank is at MTB Centre, 26 Gulhan Avenue, Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212,

Corporats Head DieeB#lt Started its commercial business from October 24, 1999, The principal activities of the bank are
to provide all kinds of commercial banking and related services such as accepting deposits, lending loans

to customers, trade and services, treasury functions, cash management, securities and
remittance services etc. The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit Permission vide
(P-3)744(105)/2009- 4470 dated December 03, 2009, The Bank commenced operation |

3| Page
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anaging Director & CEQ
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December 07, 2009, The Off-shore Banking Unit is governed under the rules and guidelines of Banglacesh
Bank. The principal actvities of the Unit are 1o provide all kinds of commercial banking services to irs
customers in foreign currencies approved by the Bangladesh Bank.

11.3.1 Products & Services

11.3.1.1 Wholesale Banking
MTB Wholesale Banking services are a blend of the Corporate, Off-Shore Banking, and Syndication &
Structured Finance, that focuses on offering a wide range of services to lirge corporates, multinationals and
institutional clients. The bank puts highest priority to assist its customers fund requirements with diversified
financial products and services. The bank always focuses on delivering services by creating exceptional
value to its customers while offering market competitive relationship loan pricing and conditions.
Wholesale banking products includes;

Term Finance: MIB provides loans that have specified repayment schedule and a floating interest
tate with tenure more than one year but less than ten years. It offers term loans for the following

broader purposes.

*  Project Finance

®  Finance for Importing Capital Machinery
® Lease Finance

*  House Building Finance

Working Capital Finance: To meet customers' running cpital requirements MTB offers the
following products:

& Secured Overdraft (SOD)

®  Cash Credit (Hypo.)

¢ Cash Against Document

»  Short Term Loan

e Inland Bill Purchase (1BI?)

®  Foreign Bill Purchase (FBP)

Trade Finance: MTB offers export and import finance facilities for its customers depending on their
requirements. M1'B's trade finance service is a uniry of funded snd non-funded facilities:

* Export Finance Facility includes;

o Back-to-Back L/C Opening

o Expon Bill Discounting (FDBP and IDBP)
Import Finance Facility includes;

o Loan Against Trust Receipt (L'TR)

o Term lLoan
Non-funded Trade Finance Facility includes;

uibeuey
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23 o L/C Opening (Sight & Deferred)
ge, o L/C Advising
= o L/C Transfer
C:@‘ o Bank Guarantee
o Secured Overdrmaft (SOD) in the form of SOD (general /export bill) and
Mohammad Nazmd Hossain, FGA SOD (Others-work order, FDR, land, etc.)
Group Chisf Financial Qffice: o Bank Guarantee in the form of Performance guarantee, Advance Payment
Mutual Trust Bank Limite guarantee, anc

Co te Head Office, Dhak: : . . .
i o Bid bond, Inland Bill Purchase (IBP) includes mainly government security

hills and bonds.
o Foreign Bill Purchase (FBP) in

fwen s Syed Mahbubur Rahman
Lecrotn®d  Managing Director & CEO
ity Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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MTB Offshore Banking: M1B Offshore Banking services specially talored for 1007 foreign owned
company, joint venture and locally owned company in Export Processing Zones (EPZ). It offers term
finance, working L‘Ipil:l] finance and trade finance services in different modes. It also provides term
finance facility to locally owned industrial units outside EPZ under some special conditions.

Syndications & Structured Finance: M1 is active in the Syndication market with professional team
having finest expertise and wide market network for enabling its carponte clients to access large loans
through cost effident structures, MTB offers tallor made solstions to [t customers” business
requirements. It also facilitates its peer group in closing their syndicated deals by co-armnging or by
taking large exposures in both Greenfield and Brownfield projects including;

* Infrastructure Financing e.g. Power, Telecom, Hotels

o Aircraft Financing

*  Manufacturing Project Financing e.p. Steel, Cement, Glass, Petrochemical
*  Apro-based Project Financing

*  Micro Financing

MTB's product basket contains Long Term Finaneing along with full mnge of product mix for Short
Term Financing of day to day operations and non-fund based facilities. The bank always secks to
understand unique needs of its customers’ business and incessantly strive 10 meet and to exceed their
expectations,

11.3.1.2 Rerail Banking
MTB offers various retail banking products to meet its customers different needs.

a) Deposit Products: MTB has designed various deposit accounts to service its customers” different
needs. From a straight forward Savings account to Fixed Depaosits, MTB always strives to offer the
best value for its customers’ money. Banking with MTB enables its customers to priodties between
flexibility, highest interest yield and convenience. Various deposit products offered by MTB are
explained below;

Regular Savings Account: An easy-to-operate savings account that allows customers (o
issue cheques, deaw Demand Drafts and withdraw cash.

Current Account: A Current account is ideal for carrying out day-to-day business
transactions. With the MTB Regular Current Account, customers can access to their
accounts anytime, anywhere, pay using payable at par cheques or deposit cheque at any

BF o M1 bank branch.
m2 4
39 R Fixed Deposit: MTB offers fixed deposit products with automatic renewal, overdrafi
f o3 facility etc.
38 2l ; | ey . g
280 Brick by Brick: MTB Brick by Brick is a monthly deposit scheme in which any one can
£ -:]rj w deposit on a monthly basis and at the end of the period pets a handsome amount.
= m = Customer can open this account for 3/5/8/10 years and the monthly installment of this
o Plan is BIYT 250.00, 500.00, 1,000.00, 2,000.00, 5,000.00, i.¢. it can be any amount multiple
!; of BIYT 500.00. The customer may avail loan up to 90% and credit card limit up o 80%
of the payable amount, If the depositor wants to close the aceount in between two maturity
i ossin, FCP periods, e.g. 3 and 5 years, 5 and 8 years, 8 and 10 years, s/he will be paid the full amount

Group Chiof Financial Office admissible for the immediate past mawnty period and simple interest on the deposited

Mutual Trust Bank Limitc amount at the prevailing savings mte for the rest period
Corporate Head Ofice, Dhirt
Monthly Benefit Plan: It has been designed to help and assist consci

strata of the socicty. The plan is for 3(three) years and 5(five) years anc

gir REZ% SR

cgpresselt & Syed Mahbubur Rahman

Seried Managing Director & CEO
yak®  Mutual Trust Bank Limlled
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account will be renewed automatically. A Savings/Cumrent account is required to open an
MBP/MBPs. The monthly benefit wall be credited 1o this account. The customer may avail
loan up to 90% of the deposited amount.

MTB Double Saver: MTB Double Saver is a fixed deposit scheme where the deposit
doubles in 7 (seven) years. Minimum deposit amount will be of BT 50,000.00 or any
amount above this inatead of its muluple. Account hokler can avail loan up 10 90% of the
payable amount instead of the deposited amount.

Children’s Education Plan: This product is designed for childeen where no nitial
deposit is required. Monthly installments are Tk. 1,000 or muluples of Tk. 1,000 but cannot
exceed Tk 20,000, The savings periods are 4, 7, 9 and 12 yeats.

MTB Millionaire Plan: MTB Millionaire Plan = a monthly deposit scheme which will
make a client mullionaire after a certain penod. The tenure of this scheme is
6/8/10/12/15/20 years. More than one account ean be opened by the same depositor in
the same branch. The customer may avail loan up to 90% and credit card limit up to 80%
of the payable amount.

MTB Inspire: MTB Inspire provides a range of enhanced services including free debit
card, free internet banking ete. Interest is caleulated on daiy basis and paid monthly.

MTB Ruby: MTB Ruby enables today's independent women to enjoy hassle-free banking
services. Besides the core MTB banking advanuge, MTB Ruby, an exclusive savings
account for women, is packed with special benefits.

MTB Kotipati: This product has been designed for the customers who want to have BIYT
10 million after certain period through monthly insallments of a specified amount.

MTB Junior: MTB Junior is 4 savings account for minors that offer the opportunity to
save for today and the future. School and college students below 18 years are eligible for
this accounts.

MTB Graduate: MTB Graduate is a savings account for college and univessity students
who are 18 years and above.

MTB Senior: MTB Senior has been desipned keeping in mind the fact that a senior
citizen's banking requirements are wholly different and deserve special atenuon.
Bangladeshi citizens who are 60 years and above are eligible for this account.

MTB Shanchay: M1B Shanchay, a savings product for the “Base of the Pyramid”. Low
income group who don't manage their finance due to the lack of available banking
facilities; opening the product would help minimize their financial risks, Minimum account
opening balance is Tk 50, Interest will be calculasted on monthly average balance and
credited to account on half yearly basis.

MTB Care: MTB Care, a unique proposition of M1'B, is 2 savings product for children
with special needs. Through this product, special needs children will pet assistance from
branches in opening and maintaining the account at a lower cost compared to other
savings products. This is also MTB’s commitment towands helping special children to have
access 1o banking services,

b) Loan Products: MTB has a comprehensive selection of fadlities to offer, from a simple personal
loan, credit cards, auto loan and overdeaft facilities 1o home loan. MTB strives 1o remain
competitive and are committed to constantly reviewing both its lending policies and rates to ensure
that customers get the best deals in town.
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MTB Personal Loan: MTB Personal Loan 1s simple, convenient and quick. Loan amount
varies from BDT 50,000 to BDT 1,000,000, With Hexible repayment options it has no
hidden charge.

MTB Auto Loan: MTB Auto Loans are built for utmost speed and competence. MTB
Auto Loan is available for financing both new and recondlitoned cars. Loan Amount varies
from Tk, 3000 to Tk, 4,000 000,

MTB Home Loan: Whether it is purchasing a new house or a new apartment, M'TB has
n wide range of home lean options that can be customized 1o customers” specific need.
Loan amounts from BT 500,000 wo BDT 10,000,000,

MTB Home Equity Loan: MTB offers this loan for house construction, extension,
renovation, face upliftment, finishing work.

MTB Professional Loan: MTB Professional Loan is 2 multi-purpose cash loan which is
collateral free, with fixed monthly installment.

¢) Card Products: MTB has designed its card products with a lot of features like — convenient, instant
line of credit, global recognition and acceptance, exclusive privileges and more. MTH's range of
cardls help the card holders to meet their financial objectives.

MTB Credit Card: Its credit cards are accepted at over 23 million Merchant
Establishments around the world, including 110,000 Merchant Establishments in India.
Revolving credit faciliues are available wath & payment of minimum amount. Card
holders can avail the credit facilities up to 45 days without paying any interest from the
date of purchase.

MTB Debit Card: MTB Visa Debit card can be used as an ATM card at any VISA ATM
across the world, as well as for making purchases at merchant locations. MTB's Visa
Debit card is extremely versatile and simple to use. It allows the card holders to pay
directly from their bank account for purchases, without having to carey any cash.

d) MTB FlexiPay: It allows the MTB credit card holders to convert any retail transaction with
repayment on monthly equal installments. Any retail purchase transaction of BDT 3,000 or above
can be converted to FlexiPay without any enrollment fees.

11.3.1.3 Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) Loan

SMEs, the engine of growth in Bangladesh, is considered a prionity sector as announced by Bangladesh
Bank. M'TB has been awarded as Best SME Bank of the Year 2014 at the SME Financing Fair - 2014.
MTB SME Banking has differentiated itself in the market in its business approach. MTB have desipned a
number of loan products to meet the needs which are explained below:

MTB Bhagyobati: MTB Bhagyobati loan is only for the SMEs owned by the women

entreprencurs. Loan amount esanges between BDT LOO lac and BIYT 50.00 lac with tenure

of up to 3 years.

MTB Krishi: MTB Knashi is designed for dicect lending in the agriculture sector, Ounly
cligible farmers and agri SMEs may apply for the loan. Crops cultivation, fisheries,
livestock & poultry are the prionity sector of lending. Loan amount can be up to BT 30
million.

¥
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MTB Mousumi: SME customers need additional fund in some occasions, festivals and
Mohammad Nazmid Hossaln, FCA  seasons. MTB Mousumi enables those SMEs which has seasonal type of business, Loan

Chied Finencis! OMC2r  gameunt ean be up to BDT 1 million.
Eu'ﬂ?'fm Trust Bank Limited P
Corporata Head Ofice, Dhaka MTB Revolving Loan: Any SME, manulacturing, seevice, imding or fieming, requires

working capital for smooth operation of the business. This loan product enables those
SMEsz 0 meet their working capital requirements to suppaort their operations and future
growth. It s CC (H) and revolving type loan, Loan ameunt can be up to Bl
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MTB Digoon: MTTE Diggon enables the SMEs to get loan double amoumt of ther
deposit. Loan amount ranges between BDT 5.00 ke and BIYT 2000 lac.

MTB Small Business Loan: This loan enables the SMEs to expand their business. Loan
amount can be up 1o BDT 5 million.

MTB Green Energy Loan: M1B Green Energy Loan is an environment friendly loan
enables the prospective customers to set up renewable energy projects such as solar,
biogas, wind, hydro and any other potential renewable plant. Any individual, business
entrepreneurs, NGO, institutions having capacity to sepay may apply for the loan. Loan
amount can be up to BDT 30 million.

MTB Gunobati — MTB Gunobati offers the lowest nte 1e., 8.5% in market.

MTB also recognized as Best Women Entreprencur Friendly Bank of the Year 2014 besides SME
Bank of the Year 2014 at the SME Financing Fair-2014 for its efforts to promote the Women
entreprencurship development.

11.3.1.4 NREB Banking:

MTB offers an areay of deposit products in local currency for the NRBs who are residing abroad and want
to save their hard-earned money to utilize in future and facilitate their family maintenance.
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Maohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chiel Financial L’.!Hn:ws::1
Mutual Trust Bank Lirmite

Corporata Head Olfice, Dhake

NRB Savings Account: NRB Taka Savings Account offers a regular savings account in
local currency for the NRBs who are residing abroad and want to save their hard-camed
money to utilize in future and facilitate their family maintenance. This is an interest bearing
Taka account in which interest is paid twice a year.

MNRB Deposit Pension Scheme (NRB DPS): NRB DPS is 2 monthly installment base
savings deposit product in Bangladeshi Taka for individuals. [t is specially designed for
NRBs and their nominated beneficiaries. NRB Deposit Pension Scheme is a new deposit
preduct for NRBs as well as new concept since there is no separate or any pension scheme
for the NRBs.

NRB Fixed Deposit (NRB FDR): NRB Fixed Deposit Account will offer a regular
fixed deposit account in loeal currency for the NRBs who are residing abroad and want to
save their hard-earned moncy to utilize in future and facilitate their family maintenance.
Tenor of NRB Fixed Deposit: Duration may be One month, Three Months, Six Months
or One Year.

11.3.1.5 Treasury Services

MTB treasury offers sophisticated solutions supported by a large sales force and a state of the art dealing
room in Bangladesh. Currently MTB’s team covers Foreign Exchange, Fixed Income, Money Marker,
Corporate Sales and Primary Dealers Business.

Money Market: Money markets refer to raising and deploying short-term resources, with
maturity of funds generally not exceeding one year. MTB money market is one of the most
active and efficient desk in the interbank market of the country. The money market is sub-
divided into Call Money, T'erm Money Market, SWAP, Repo & Reverse Repo etc.

DIBOR: Interbank market 1s considered to be a risk free market, though in reality, the
banks do carry counterparty risk. However, for practical purposes, interbank market
carries Jowest risk, not only to sovereign risk; hence the interest rates prevailing in
interbank market constutute "benchmark” rates, The all money rate as indicated by the
overnight Dhaka Interbank Offered Rate is most widely accepted benchmark rate for
corporate debt paper, as also for bank credit extended on floating rate basis.
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Foreign Exchange: MTB's dynamic Corporate and institutional marketing teams provide
up to date market intellipence, advice and timely execution of deals of its customers
throughout the rading day including the following:

spot Foregn Exchange, Forward Foreign Exchange, Fx SWADP, (:un'q}eiir_ive Forex Rates
for Remittances, Export and Import, Market outlook etc.

Primary Dealers Business: Primary dealer system 15 an agreement between two major
stakeholders in the domestic povernment debt marker The central bank has given
approval to Mutual Trust Bank Limited as primary deser (PD) aiming to boost the
country's secondary securities market, The authority has approved Mutal Trust Bank
Limited as PD) of the government secunties dated Movember 23, 2009.Central Bank has
taken the latest move to increase the number of market makers to bring dynamism in the
secondary market. Mutual Trust Bank, a dynamic thind generation Bank, through its 44
network plans to gradually do business by selling govemment secunities to corporate,
institutions and individuals. The business will be administered by the MTB Treasury team,
which is equipped with state-of-the-art technology, the industry's leading edge skilled
manpower that have expertise in handling povernment securities trading.

114 Business Analysis Based on Solo Financials

11.4.1

Asset Size & Growth

MTBLs total assets grew significantly during the last 10 years of its opertion. At the end of 31 December,
2021, total assets of the company stood at BDT 306,501 million which is 13.8% higher than that of
December 31, 2020. During the last 10 years MTD's asset size prew to 329 times at 14.1% compound
annual growth rate (CAGR).
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11.4.2

Trend in MTBL's Total Assets (BD'T mn)
306,501
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Growth of Loans & Advances

At the end of 31 December, 2021 total loans and advances of the Bank stood at BDT 226,012 million
which 1 10.9% higher than that of December 31, 2020, During the last 10 yeass, MTBL's total loans and
aclvances size grew to 4 times at 16,.7% CAGR.
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Trend in MTBL's Loans & Advances (BD'T mn)
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1143 Growth of Deposits
MTBL’s deposits and other accounts grew by 12.2% in 2021 compared to its preceding year to stand at
BDT 211,782 million. During the last 10 years, the Issuer's total deposit grew to 2.89 nmes at 12.5% CAGR.

Trend in MTBL's Deposits (BDT mn)

211,782
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= » The Issuer has managed to keep its advance deposit ratio (ADR) at 8242% at the end of 31 December,
3y 2021,
B
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o3 V) Trend in MTBL's Advance to Deposit Ratio
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144 Operati mal Performance
In BT meillion athenpise stated

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
NIM 5247 |  3945| 5430|5251 4308 | 3,878
Profit before provision 5,661 3,518 5240 4,884 3,916 3408
Total Provision 2,122 1,600 ]  2140]  2342] 1,656 947
Profit before tax 3,539 1,820 | 3099 2542| 2259 2461
Net profit after tax 2973 970 | 1,338 1,734 1,980 | 1464
Cost to Income (ratio) 55.79% | 64.77% | 53.21%| 5031% | 53.82% | 54.65%

Fable 7: MTH's Operating Porformane

Cost income ratio was 50.79% in 2021 which is a lot lower than previous year’s ratio indicating the increase
in efficiency. The ratio, which measures operating expense as a percentage of operating income, is used to
gauge efficiency and productivity for financial institutions. The avenge cost income ratio was 35.43% over
the period from 2016 to 2019,

MTB’s return on assets (ROA) and return on equity (ROE) were 1.03% and 16.22% respectively. Other
Key Ratios for Last 5 years is given below:

0 Cowm am| am wom o 2
CRAR 14.41% 12.92% . 12.91% 1286% 13.76% 11.29%
Loan-Deposit 8242%  83.90% B3.36%  B2E&3% 83.45% 77.60%
NPL 5.80% 4.61% | 5.30% 539% 4.300% 4.36%
Cost-income ratio 55.79% | 64.77% @ 5321%  5031% | 53.82% 54.65%
Retumn on Average Assecis . 1.03% 0.37% | 0.56% (.82% 1.08% 0.94%
Return on Average Equity 16.22% 5.83% 0.03%  1383%  18.35% 15.61%
Earnings per share (BDT) 3.66 1.31 2.03 3.03 389 330
NAYV per share (BDT) 24.19 23.03 23.16 23.24 23.08 19.26

Pable 8 Koy Ratwos for Last 3 yean

1.5 Profile of the Board of Directors
MTB’s Board of Directors consists of highly reputable businessmen and professionals. The current Board
of Directors comprises:
o Mr Md, Wakiluddin, Chairman
*  Mr. Md. Abdul Malek, Vice Chairman

C o=

w3 g * M, Syed Manzur Elahi, Director (Founding Chairman)
S8 _ s MrMd. Hedayetullah, Director

‘: = ]:l C) * Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury, Director

'-_' f' JJ_J' *  Dr. Asif Dowla, Director

3 = g j ¢ Ms. Khwaja Nargis Hossain, Director

ae ¢ Ms. Anika Chowdhury, Director

¢ Mr. Daniel Donald de Lange, Director

*  Ms. Nasreen Sattar, Independent Director
= ¢  Mr Farug Ahmad Siddiqi, Independent Director

Syed Ma ‘Rahman

. d Mahbubur Rahman, Managing Direct E
sanad Nazmul Hossin, FOR NI it e LR Managing Director & CEO
jroup Chiel Financial Ofice! Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Autual Trust Bank Limited
oeporate Head Offico, Dhitks &4 - Raza
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Me. Md. Wakiluddin, Chairman

Mr. Md. Wakiluddin is the Chairman of the Board of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB) and its subsidiaries,
MTB Securities Lad. (MTBSL) and MTB Capital Limited (MTBCL) He is also the Chairman of Baridhara
Corpoeaton Lid. & Baridhara Apro & Food Processing L.

He 1s presently serving as:
*  Managing Director of Swadesh Properties Lid.
®  Swadesh Global Media Ltd.
e Managing Ditector of HURDCO International School
®  Director of Swadesh Land Developers Lid.

Mr. Md. Abdul Malek, Vice Chairman

Mr. Md. Abdul Malek is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Mutual Trust Bank Lid. (MTB), obtained B.Se.
Engineering (Civil) from BUET, a renowned engineering institution of the country, He has vast experience
and special skills and expertise in structuring and developing along witha glorious tradition in construction
of multistoried buildings.

e was the Chairman of Sheltech Consultants (Pvt.) Ltd. (SCPL), 2 major practitioner in Urban Planning,
Architecturl, Engineering Design, and Tourism Development. SCPL. has earned a good recognition botl
locally and intemationally. He has also vast experience in the Garments sector.

Mr. Syed Manzur Elahi, Director (Founding Chairman)

Mr. Syed Manzur Elahi is the Founding Chairman of Mutual Trust Bank Ld, (MTB), Pioneer Insurance
Company Limited, Chairman of MTB Foundation and served as the Chairman of the MTB Board
Execunve Committee of the bank. Mr. Elahi is the Chairman of Apex Group, a leading business
conplomerate in Bangladesh, and has won various awards for his contnbutions to trade and industry
including “Business Executive of the Year 20007 by the American Chamber of Commeree (AmCham),
Bangladesh and “Business Person of the Year 2002” award, sponsored by the Daily Star and DHL

Worldwide Express.

Mz. Flahi is currently the Chairman of
. Apex Tannery Lid. . Grey Advertising (Bangladesh) Lid.
= Apex Footwear Lid. . Quantum Consumer Solutions Ltd.
L, Apex Pharma Lid. . Manusher] onno Foundation
. Blue Ocean Footwear Lid, . Sunbenrms School Lid,
* Apex Enterprises Lid. . MTB Foundation

F8AUI 30N
o ¥ iojrsl] Suibeuely

He is also Managing Director of International Publications Limited, the owning company of The Financial
Express, Director of Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB), Director of Central Depository
Bangladesh Lid. (CDBL), Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Fast West University, Member of the
Board of Trustees of Centre for Policy Dialogue (CPD), Member of Trustee Board of Diabetic Association
of Bangladesh and Member of Trustee Board of Bangladesh Freedom Foundation,

nbwely wizue|
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Mr. Md. Hedayetullah, Director
Mr. Md. Hedayetullah is the Chairman of the Exccutive Committee of Mutual Trust Bapk Ltd. (MTB).
Prior to his new role, he was the Chairman of the Board of MTB.

¥

He is presently serving as the:

Mohammad Nazmul Hossaim FCAChairman of Hedayetullah Secuniries 1.td.
Group Chief Financlal Olfiosr - - .
Mutual Trust Bank |iditedManaging Director of IB Footwear Ltd.

Lorporate Head ONow, Dhaks
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*  Managing Director of Footbed Footwear Lud.
»  Managing Director of Nuovo Shoes (B1D) Lud.
*  Director of Apex Tannery Lid.

®  Director of Apex Property Development Litd.

Mr. Md. Hedayetullah obtained B.Sc. (Honors) degree in Leather Technology from the British School of
Leather Technology, University of Leicester, Northampton, UK and M.A. in International Business from
Webster University, Regents College, London, UK.

Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury, Director

Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury is the Director and Chairman of the Board Risk Management Committee
of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. (MTHB). Prior to assuming this role, he was the Chairman of the bank and its
three subsidiary companies.

Mr. Chowdhury is the:
®  Chaitman of Banga Garments Lid,

®  Chairman of ABC Building Products Ltd.

¢ Founder Trustee and former Chairman of the Board of Trustees of TUB

e Founding member and past President of Cadet College Club Linited

e Member of the Management Committee of Ispahani Islamia Eye lnstitute and Hospital (IIEI&H)
e Member of the Board of Trustees of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Centre

®  Member of the Board of Trustees of the Bangladesh Business & Disability Network (BBDN)

L

Senior Vice President of Bangladesh Squash Rackets Fedention,

He is alsc:

®  Director of Associated Builders Corporation Lid. (ABC), a pioneer in the field of construction and
real estate development in Bangladesh

s  Director of ABC Real Estates Ltd,

Dr. Arif Dowla, Director

Dr. Anf Dowla has served as Chairman of Mutual Trust Bank Lid. (MTB) from Janvary 17, 2012 1o
February 26, 2014. Dr. Dowla is the Managing Director of the renowned conglomerate, Advanced
Chemieal Industries (ACI) Ltd., ACI Logistics Limited and Stochastic Logae Limited.

He is Director of:
&  ACI Formulations Limited
e ACI Motors Limited

M

uEy

sy
=
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e ®  ACI Pure Flour Limited
PE P\ ®  ACI Agrolink Limited
8- —\ *  Premiaflex Plastics Limited
20% *  ACI Foods Limited
g 3
Besides, Dr. Dowla is also the Chairman of Tetley ACI (Bangladesh) Ltd And Vice Chairman of ACI
Healtheare Ltd.

Ms. Khwaja Nargis Hossain, Director
Ms. Khwaja Nargis Hossain was the Vice Chairman of the Board of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Mohammad Nezmu sl pemain received Master’s Degree in Islamic History from the University of Dhaka.
ﬁmupﬂl‘tief Finanﬁ,ai Offica
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mﬁ? IPDC Finance Lid, Ms, Nasreen is an international banking professional having over 23 years

Mutual Trust Befiexpomegce. She started her career with ANZ, Grindlays Bank in 1986, which was acquired by Standa
Cotpornle Head Office, Dhaka
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*  Corporate Director of SAHCO International Limited

e Member of BOAO Forum for Asia (BFA), China. BEA is 2 non-profit international organization
formed by twenty six Astan Countries and Australia for sodo-economic development of the people
of Asia and rest of the world.

Ms. Anika Chowdhury, Director

Ms. Anika Chowdhury 1s a Director of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (M1'B), grand daughter of the iconic
and legendary MTB Chairman, late Me, Samson H Chowdhury and daughter of Mr. Tapan Chowdhury,
Managing Director of Square Pharmaceuticals Lid. and former Adviser to the Caretaker Government of
Bangladesh in 2007.

She received Master's Degree in Business Administration from the Unive sty of Columbia, New York.

She is also a Managing Ditector of Square Health Limited, Director of Square Fashions L., Manapement
Coordinator of Square Group the leading business conglomerate in Bangladesh and Director (Business
Development) of Square Pharmaceuticals Lid

Mr. Daniel Donald de Lange, Director

Mr. Daniel Donald de Lange has over 30 years' experience in the finance industry and as such has pained
significant insight into all aspects of banking and finance. He is based in Hong Kong and has lived and
transacted in Asia for over 25 years.

He was a Managing Director with JPMorgan Chase, and during his 17 years with the firm was based in
New York, Jakarta, and Hong Kong. He led multidiseiplinary teams otiginating, advising, and executing
crossborder transactions with multinational and domestic companies. As advisor to large multi-sponsor
transactions, he was closely involved in financial, commercial and legal aspects of ventures,

Mr. de Lange was a member of the management team and board of directors of a London-listed company
focused on investment in, and development of, alternative energy projects. As a member of the main and
investee boards, he was involved in oversight of all aspects of the company.

He currently is a senior advisor to responsibility Investments AG, a USD 3 billion Zurich-based impact
asset manager focused on the finance industry and renewable energy in Asia, Alrica, and Latin America. He
is on the Investment Committee of the ACPF fund, involved in approving new investments, as well as
undertaking risk and other related activities,

Mr. de Lange has extensively acted as corporate finance advisor to different companies and projects in the
Asia-FPacific region, principally focused on strategic advice, transaction implementation, and capital raising.
In this context, he had interactions with multiple financial market parucipants, including investment and
commercial banks, private equity funds, project developers, institutional investment funds, export credit
and political risk agencies, and others.

Mr. de Lange holds an MBA from Columbia University in New York, and an LL.Min Civil Law from
Leiden University in the Netherlands. He speaks several languages, including advanced- mtermediate
Mandarin.

Ms. Nasreen Sattar, Independent Director

Ms. Nasreen Sattar presently sits in the Board of Mutual Trust Bank as an Independent Director and the
Chairman of the MTB Board Audit Committee. She is involved in tmining & developing professional
women in enhancing their leadership skills, aspirations, achieving goals, discovering their own strengths
and exploiting them. Prior to the current role she served as Indepenclent Director and Audit Committee
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Chartered Bank in 2000, Soon after the acquisition she became Regional Head for Development
Ohrganizations covering South Asia.

Her last assipnment was as CEQ for Standard Chartered Bank, Afghanstan from 2007 to 2009 where she
successfully led the Bank over challenging and difficult times. She not only grew business bur, more
importantly developed the local human resources.

Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddiqi, Independent Director

Mr. Faruq Ahmad Siddiqi has recently been appointed as an Independent Director of Mutual Trast Bank
Limited (MTB). Prior to joining MTB, he was an Independent Director of Apex Tanneries Limited, Runner
Automobiles Limited and its subsidiary Runner Motors Limited. He, currently, is serving Summit Power
Limited as Independent Director and a member of rating committee of Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh
Lid. (CRAB). He, also, served Al-Arafah 1slami Bank Limited as Independent Director from 2016 to 2018.
He discharged responsibilities as Chairman, Board Audit Committee in Apex Tanneres Limited and
Summit Power Limited.

He served Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission from 2006 to 2009 as Chairman, Mr, Farug
also served Posts & Telecommunication, Edueation and Commerce Ministries of the People’s Republic of
Bangladesh as Secretary. He served National Board of Revenue as Member, Jamuna Bridge Multipurpose
Authority as Director (Accounts & Finance) from 1997 to 1999 and RAJUK as Member (Finance) from
1990 to 1992 He also served Commissioner of Taxes.

Syed Mahbubur Rahman, Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Syed Mahbubur Rahman is the Managing Director & CEO of Mutual ‘Trst Bank Limited (MTB). Prior
to joining MTB, he was the Managing Director & CEO of Dhaka Bank Limited. Before joining Dhaka
Bank Limited, he served BRAC Bank Limited as Managing Director & CEO and Deputy Managing
Director (DMD). He also served Prime Bank Limited as Deputy Managing Director, He is the former
Chairman of the Association of Bankers, Bangladesh Limited (ABB). He was accorded with “The Asian

Banker Leadership Achievement Award' for Bangladesh for his achievement in the period from 2011 to
2013

Currently, he is serving as the Vice Chairman of the Board of 1IDFC, Vice Clairman of Primary Dealers
Bangladesh Limited (PDBL), Director of LIC of Bangladesh Ltd. He started his carcer with Saudi
Bangladesh Industnal & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd. (SABINCO) as a Monitoring Officer in 1988,
He served Industrial Leasing & Development Co. (BD) Limited (IDLC) as Manager, Monitoring from 1993
to 1996. He also served ANZ Grindlays Bank, Bangladesh as Manager, Corporate Banking from 1996 to
1998 andl Standard Chartered Bank as Relationship Manager, Corporate Banking from 1998 to 2000. In
2002, he jomned Citibank N.A. as Resident Vice President and left the bank in 2008 when he was a Ditector
of the bank and was serving as the Head of Financial Insttutions Group.

b
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Mr. Chowdhury Akhtar Asif
Additional Managing Director & GCRO

Chowdhury Akhtar Asif has been appointed as Additional Managing Direcior & Group Chief Risk Officer
(GCRO) of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). Currently he is the Acting Managing Director of M1TB.
Prior to joining MTB, he was the Deputy Managing Director (DMD) and Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of
BRAC Bank Limited. Before joining BRAC Bank Limited, he served ONE Bank Limited as the Head of
Credit Risk Management & Senior Executive Vice President. He also served Eastern Bank Limited as the
Unit Head, Corporate Unit.

After completing Master of Commerce in Finance from the Univensity of Dhaka, he started his career with
IFIC Bank Limited as a Probationary Officer in 1992 and served the bank 1l 2014, He served 1FIC Bank
Limited as the Head of Credit Risk Management (CRM) from 2013 to 2014 and the Head of Corporate
Risk, CRM Division from 2011 1o 2012,

Goutam Prosad Das
Deputy Managing Director & Group Head of ICC

Goutam Prosad Das has been promoted to the rank of Deputy Managing Dircctor of Mutual Trust Bank
Limited (MTB) with effect from November 1, 2016, Prior to this elevation, he was the Senior Executive
Vice President (SEVP) and Head of MTB Group Internal Control & Compliance (GICC) Division. Das
joined MTB on September 26, 2012 and since then has made significant contributions 1o the bank.

Md. Khalid Mahmood Khan
DMD, Corporate & Commercial Business

Md. Khalid Mahmood Khan has recently been promoted to the rank of Deputy Managing Director (DMD)
of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB) with effect from April 01, 2021. Prior to this elevation, Khalid was
serving Mutual Trust Bank Limited as Senior Executive Vice President & Head of Wholesale Banking
Division — 02, Out of 21 years of his service duration at M'IB, he has successfully served the bank as the
Manager of three important branches of MTB such as Principal Branch, Dilkusha Branch & Panthapath
Branch for 13 years.

Rais Uddin Ahmad
Deputy Managing Director & CAMLCO

Rais Uddin Ahmad has been appointed as Deputy Managing Director & CAMLCO of Mutual Trust Bank
Limited (MTB). Rais has been working in the banking sector since 1994, He started his career with ANZ
Grndlays Bank, Bangladesh as a Management Trainee. He joined BRAC Bank Limited on March 2005 as
Company Secretary, Head of Risk Management & CAMLCO. He also worked with Standard Chartered
Bank from 2002 to 2003 as Acting Head of Legal & Compliance. Concurrently, he was the Integration
Manaper for SCB & ANZ Girindlays Bank. Fle has 27 years of working expenience in Business, Regulatory,
Risk Management and Company Matters in the banking sector.

Md. Bakhteyer Hossain
Head of Transaction Banking

Mr. Hossain is a seasoned banker with over rwenty-six years of experience with specialization in
International Trade. He is currently heading MTB International Trade Services (M1TS) Division of Mutual
Trust Bank Limited (MTB) — a reputed private sector commercial bank in Bangladesh. Prior to joining
MTH, he rendered his services to Agrani Bank Limited — one of the larpest nationalized commercial bank
of the country. As a part of his portfolio in MTB, he looks after the Transaction Banking, Financial
Institutions, Offshore Banking Unit (operations), SWIFT, MNC Banking and M1'B NRB Division,

-

bubur Rahman
Mohammed Nazmu Hossain, FCA Managing Direclor & CEQ
Group Chied Financial Officer Mutual Trust Bank Limitad
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M. Shamsul Islam
Group Head of Treasury

Mr. Md. Shamsul Islam, Senior Executive Vice President and Head OFf Treasury Department Joined MTB
on July 01, 2013 as Senior Vice President and since then he has made significant contributions to the bank.
Before joining MTB, he worked in National Bank Limited at Intemational Division as Senior Vice
President. Mr. Shamsul Complered his M.Com from University of Dhaka and subsequently completed
MBA from “National Louis University” USA. He possess 22 years' Experience in banking profession. His
core concentration was with Treasury function,

Malik Muntasir Reza
Group Company Secretary

Mr, Malik Muntasir Reza is the Group Company Secretary of Mutual T'mist Bank Limited (MTB) since July
1, 2015. Mr. Muntasir joined MTB as Executive Vice President on March 24, 2015, Muntasir brings in over
19 years of banking experience with him.

He received the MTB Board of Directors” appreciation for working as a member of the Deal Team and
accomplishing the Norfund's equity investment, successfully, The highest ever equity FDI by an
International Organization (9.53% shares held in MTB) in a Bangladeshi Bank. He also received
appreciation for amending and updatng the Articles of Association of bank.

Mr. Muntasir has completed his M, Com. in Accounting under National University. He is a Fellow Member
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSH),

Usman Rashed Muyeen
Head of Credit Risk Management

Usman Rashed Muyeen has been appointed as the Head of Credit Risk Management & Senior Executive
Vice President (SEVP) of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). Prior to joining MTB, he was the Head of
Credit Risk Management of Eastern Bank Limited (EBL). Muyeen is an Omega (UK) Certified Credit
professional who brings with him more than 23 years in banking in different capacities.

Md. Shafquat Hossain
Head of Retail Banking Division

Mr. Md. Shafquat Hossain has joined as the Head of SME & Retail Banking Division and Senior Executive
Vice President of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). Shafquat has 23 years of extensive experience in
Retail, Cards and Branch Banking, holding various positions in Retail and Branch Banking which included
the Head of Retail Banking and Wealth Management of HSBC in Bangladesh, Head of Producis and
Segments in Standard Chartered Bank in Bangladesh and more recently Head of Retail Banking and Card
Division at Dhaka Bank Limited. He has attended different profesionl training and development
programs at home and abroad.

Masud Mushfig Zaman
Group Head of Human Resources

- Masud Mushfiq Zaman has joined Mutual Trust Bank Limited {MTB) on September 21, 2020 as Senior
8 Vice President. He is the Group Head of Human Resources of MTB. Mr. Mushfiq has 17 years of extensive
&, experience in Human Resources, holding various positions in Leadership, HR Stratepy & Culture, Learning
] & Talent Management, Recruitment & Selection, Training & Development, which included the Assodate
‘r; ,  Director, Head of Learning & Talent Management at BRAC HR & Learning Division, National Consultant

i A2i in Pome Minister’s Office, Head of Strategic Business Parmer, T'echnology Division, People &

w Organization at Grameen Phone.

C@a a r Rahman

Diractor & CED
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Azam Khan
Group Chief Communication Officer

Azam Khan has been appointed as the Head of Communications & Senior Vice President (SVP) of Mutual
Trust Bank Limited (MTB). He brings wath him more than 20 years in banking and 12 years in development
sector in different capacities.

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA, CSRS has joined Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB) on January 11,
2022 as Group Chief Financial Officer (GCFO). He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant (FCA) of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and completed his Chartered Accountancy
training from KPMG Bangladesh (Rahman Rahman Hug). He is also qualified as a Certified Sustainability
Reporting Specialist (CSRS) awarded by the National Center for Sustainability Reporting, Jakarta, Indonesia
— a certified training partner of Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). Nazmul has more than 15 years of
extensive diversified experience in Accounts and Finance, holding various positions in Banks, and service
providing industries.

12 Description of Encumbered and Unencumbered Assets with Value
Thereof

121 Encumbered Assers
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. has no encumbered assets as on 31 December, 2021,

122 Unencumbered Asseis
All the assets of the Issuer including all fixed assets are unencumbered a5 on 31 December, 2021.

13 Description of Assets and Liabilities
13.1 Descripion of Assets (Salo)

Since Mumal Trust Bank Limited is a commercial bank, most of its assets are financial assets like loans &
advances, bills discounted, government treasury securities, debt and equity securities issued by corporates,
etc. while loans & advances comprises the lion’s share of the company’s total assets. At the end of 31
December, 2021 total assets of MTB stood at BT 304,742,53 million. Demils breakdown of total assets
are given below.

Table & Composition of Total Asset

31 December, 2021
Types of Assets BT mn
Cash o 14,800.35
Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 3,713.67
Money at Call and Short Notice - 200,00
Investments ; 45,776.42
= _Loans and Advances : 22292420
oS Fixed Asset including Premises, Furniture & Fixture 5.203.87
g8 Other Assets o 12,124.02
& o Total Assets 304,742.53
2.
= o 3TN Cash:
% %E 5 MTB’s Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of 31 December,

most of that was kept with Bangladesh Bank.

Mo Hessain, FCA
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Talde 10: Detaile of Cash

31 December, 2021

BDT mn

In Hand (Including foreign currency) 3,602.71
_Local Currency = — 3,509.7%
Foreign Currency ) - 69.13
Islamic Banking Branches 3 23,80

| Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank 11,197.64
Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Local Currency) 9,642.19.

Balance with Bangladesh Bank (Foreipn Currency) 1,201.41

Balance with Agent Bank ; ) 243.31
Islamic Banking Branches o - o 11073
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent 14,800.35

Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions:
MTB’s total Balance with other banks and financial institutions stood at BDY1' 3,713.67 million on solo basis
at the end of 31 December, 2021, out of which BIYT 2,169.98 million was outside Bangladesh.

Table 11: Balance with Other Banks & Financial lnsitunons

31 December, 2021

i =S S ~ BDT mn

In Banpladesh 1.543.69

Outside Bangladesh N 216998

Balance with Other Banks & Financial Institutions 3,713.67
[nvestments:

MTB’s total investments of 31 December, 2021 was BDYT 45,776.42 million of which 88% were invested
EOVEIMMEnt securites.
Table 12: Details of Investments

31 December, 2021

BDT mn
Government Securities o 40,432,15
Treasury Bills 21905

Treasury Bonds i ) 020943

Prize Bonds 3.65
Others 4,924.29
Investment in Quoted Shares 1,256.81
_Investmentin Un-quoted Shares _ 179.88
Funds 267.59
Subordinated Bond 670,00
PepewalBond 1,050.00
Investment in Preference Share 1,500.00
Total Investment 45,776.42

Loans and Advances:

Out of the BDT 222924.20 million total loans and advances, BDT 8#1,537.22 million was Term Loan
(36.6%).
Table 13: Details of Loans and Advances

31 December, 2021

T = BDT mn
Overdrafi 19,60201
Cash Credit 27,811.00

Contnuous Loans 8.930.34
Demand Loans N47,689.84

S50 | Page
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Term Loans = 81,537.22
Short term Agri, Credit and Microcredit . 3,968.59
Packing Credit — L 639.47
Credit Cards B o 307273
Staff Loan - - B4834
Lease Finance 42430
Offshore Banking Unit B 22515.59
Islamic Banking Branches 34492
Others loan 12.14
Bills Purchased & Discounted 3,527.71
Total Loans and Advances 222,924.20

Fixed assets:

MTBs fixed assets include land, buildings, machineries & equipment and fumiture and fixtures among
others. At the end of 31 December, 2021 MTB’s total net fixed assets stood at BDT 5,203.87 million.

Table 14: Details of Fixed Assets

s 31 December, 2021

BDT mn

Land . . 104.25

Immovable Property 1,455.74

Furnimure & Fixtures 1,652.60
Office Fguipment 276269

Motor Vehicles 214.38

Intangible Assets - 915.27

| Right-of-use assets 1,826.97

Islamic Banking Branches 28.61

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 3,756.65

Book value at the end of the year 5,203.87

Other Assets:

MTB’s other assets include investments in subsidiary companies, interest/profit receivables, security
deposit, suspense account among others. Total other assets of the MTB at the end of 31 December, 2021

stood at BDT 12,124.02 million on solo basis.

Table 15 Details of Other Assets

31 December, 2021
BDT mn

Income generating =. . = 352839
Non-income gencrating other assets 8,595.63
Total Other assets 12,124.02

132 Deseription of Liabilities (Solo)

= = o At the end of 31 December, 2021, total liabilities of Mutual Trust Bank Limited stood at BDT 285,581.62
o e "‘_111 million. Description of these liahilities are given below:
25t
E ‘fjj :qj Table 16: Description of Liabilities
5 3 b\‘? 31 December, 2021
siT DT mu
(s rﬁ] w Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents - 35,205.78
;f-, e Depaosit and Other Accounts 212,956.94
e Bond = 12,6000
(
.- ROT
s|r Bif .
Mmﬂﬁh@%ﬁ FCA Lo ot et et Y of Viahbubur Rahman
Group Chief Financial Officar g1, EXO mpany L\ il Director & CEO
k Lirnited G yat B onuke Managing
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Total 285,581.62

Borrowing From Other Banks, Financinl Institutions and Agents:
MTB's borrowing from other banks, financial institutions & agents stood at BD'T' 35,205.78 million ar the
end of 31 December, 2021. MTB borrowed BDT 33,515.37 million in Bangladesh and BD'T 8,764.62
million from outside Bangladesh.

Table 17: Description of Borrowmgs

31 December, 2021

__ BDT mn

In Bangiadesh 33,515.37
Outside Bangladesh 8.764.62
Less: Inter transaction with Offshore Banking Unit {7,074.21)
| Borrowing From Other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents 35,205.78

Deposits and other accounts:
Given the nature of its business, MTB'’s major liabilities come in the form of deposits and other accounts.
Atthe end of 31 December, 2021, MTB's total deposits & other accounts stood at BDT 212,956.94 million.

Table 18: Description of Deposits and Other Accounts

31 December, 2021

SLiL BDT mn

Current Deposit & Other Accounts 26,915.62
Bills Payable 197509

Savings deposits 42,589.74

Fixed deposits 91,528.35

| Special Noticed Deposits i B - 26,332.45

Deposit Products o 23,615.68

Total Deposit & Other Accounts  212,956.94

Mutual Trust Bank Subordinated Bond;

The Bank floated MTB 2nd Non-Convertible Subordinated Debt through prvate placement for BDT' 3,000
million, date of issue October 20, 2015, Interest on the 10.50% to 13.50%. This non-convertible
subordinated debt is payable half yearly from the date of Issue Le., April and October of each year.

The Bank floated MTB 3rd Non-Convertible Subordinated Debt through povate placement for BDT 5,000
million, date of issue February 16, 2017. Interest on the 7.008 1o 10.50% This non-convertible
subordinated debt is payable half yearly from the date of Issue i.e,, Febmary and August of each year.

The bank issued its MTB 4th Non-convertible Subordinate Bond amounting to BDT 5,000 million on
January 2020 through prvate placement. The Coupon 18 semi-annually payable, and it ranges from 7.00%
to 10,00%,

The Bank issued a contngent-convertible Perpetual bond amounting to BDT 4,000 million as additional
Tier-1 capital in December, 2020 through private placement, The conpon is Semi-annually payable, and it

ranges from 6% to 10%, where the reference rate is 20-year treasury bond rate along with 2% margin.

» At the end of 31 December, 2021, outstandi iz amount from the issuance of above-mentioned subordinated
{_}; bonds stood at BT 12,600 million.
g' Table 19 Outstanding Balance of Subordinated Bonds & perpetual Boneds
™ y | SL No. | Name of Subordinated Bond Outstanding Amount (BDT mn.)
?; 1 MTB 2nd Subardinated Debt 600
3 ) [2 | MIB 3rd Subordinted Deb 3,000
= 3 MTDB 4th Subordinated Debt 5,000

4 MTRB Perpetual Bond 4,000

Total subordinated & perpetual bond liability _ 12,600

{ 8
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Other Liabilities:

MTR's other liabilitics include various provisions including provision for dassified and unclassified loans

& advances, provision for off-balance sheet exposure, provision for income tax and others. At the end of
31 December, 2021, MTB’s other habilies stood at BIYT 24,818.9% million.

Table 20: Descniption of Other Liabilities

Provision for Loans and Advances : 7.406.59
Provision for Off Balance Sheet Ttems - 114789
Provision for Income Tax . _5279.02
Interest Suspense 532315
Leasehold Liabilities Under IFRS 16 1,404.49
Interest Payable on Deposits and Other Accounts 789.50
Others 34068.26
[h 24,818.90
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WALNE. T M L. Subordinated Bonds of up to BDT 5,000 Million

14 Description of Previously Issued Debt or Equity Securities

4.1 Inital Public Offering
MTB Issued 4,000,000 shares of BDT 100 each through Initial Public Offering at 25% premium (@ BDT
125 each) in 2003. MTB collected BDT 600 million in cash as TPO proceedings and Paid-up capital was
inereased by BIT 400 million,

14.2  Rights offering
In the year 2008 MTB issued Right share at 5:1 ratio {20%) without any premium to enhance the capital of

the Bank. Just before the right issue the paid-up capital was BT 1,247.4 million and the amount of right
issue was BDT 249.48 million. The offer was duly subscribed. The sumber of right shares issued was

24,948,000.

143 MTB 1" Subordinated Bond

Mutual Trust Bank Limited issued 250 (Two Hundred Fifty) fully receemable non-convertible unsecured
subordinared bonds of BDT 10,000,000 (One Crore) each totaling BIYT 2500,000,000 {Two Hundred Fifty
Crore) through private placement on 23 September 2010. The tenor of the bond was 07 years. Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission vide its letter SEC/CI1/CPLC-219/10-249 dated August 3, 2010 and
Bangladesh Bank vide irs letter BRPD (BIC) 661/14B (")2010-227 dated August 30, 2010 had given
consent to MTB (Mutual Trust Bank Limited) to raise Tier-2 Capinl through issuance of the bond, MTB
collected BDT 2500,000,000 (Two Hundred Fifty Crore) from 22 institational investors on 23 September
2010. The below table shows the investors of the bond along with their respective investment amounts.

ﬁmqunt in Crcm: Tk,

payw] waunsaaul 80N
037 1 openg Bubeven
nbwe

¥

T | AK Khan & Co. Limited ) 36 Full .
2 | Agrani Bank Limited 30 Full -
3 | Dhaka Bank Limited 19 Full

4 | Sonali Bank Limited 25 Full .
5 | IPDC of Bangladesh Limited 15 Full .
6 | Rupali Bank Limited 20 Full

7 | Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 15 Full .
8 | Bank Asia Liimted 15 Full -
9 | Trust Bank Limited 11 Full

10 | BASIC Bank Limited 7 FFull

11 | National Life Insurance Co. Lid. 7 Full
12 | Janata Bank Limited 10 Full

13| Central Depository Bangladesh Limited 7 Full :
14 | NCC Bank Limited 4 Full -
15 | Pubali Bank Limited 4 Full -
16 | Prime Bank Employees Provident Fund 4 Full

17 | Popular Life Insurance Co, Lid. 4 Full
18 | Delta Life Insurance Company Lid. 4 Full
19 | Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 5 Full R} 1 -

7

=2
B Page _ 5;;5&‘;‘3 4 ubur Rahman
g any Secretary Managing Director & CEQ
Graup runt g‘g& Vs Mulual Trust Bank Limitod
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20 | Grameen Mutual Fund One- Scheme Twa 4 Full
21 | Pragati Life Insurance Limited 2 Full
22 | Pacific Jeans Limited 2 Full
Total 250

144 MTB 2% Subordinated Bond

Mutual Trust Bank Limited issued 300 (Three Hundred) fully redeemable non-convertible unsecured
subordinated bonds of BDT 10,000,000 (one crore) each totaling BD'T 3000,000,000 (Three Hundred
Crore) through private placement on 20 October 2015. The tenor of the bond was 7 years. Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission vide its letter BSEC/CI/DS/-29/412 dated August 24, 2015 and
Bangladesh Bank vide its letter BRPD (BFIS) 661/14B (P)2015-11985 dated September 27, 2015 had given
consent to MTB (Mutual Trust Bank Limited) to raise Tier-2 Capital through issuance of the bond. MTB
collected BD'T 3000,000,000 (Three Hundred Crore) from 08 insututional mvestors on 20 October 2015.
‘The below table shows the investors of the bond along with their respective investment amounts.

Amount in Crore Tk,
[T [
.13 Bl
AT AL
i bt "._l . .,|I.1|
1 | Sonali Bank Limited 100 80 ]
2 | BRAC Provident Fund 50) 40 10
3 | Bank Asia Limited 40 32 8
4 | Unara Bank Limited an 24 4
5 | BRAC 25 20 5
6 | BRAC Bank Limited 25 20 5
7 | NRB Commercial Bank Limited 20 16 4
8 | United Finance Limited 10 8 2
Total 300 240 60

145 MTB 3" Subordinated Bond
Mutual Trust Bank Limited issued 500 (Five hundred) fully redeemable non-convertible unsecured
subordinated bonds of BDT 10,000,000 (One Crore) each totaling BD'T 5000,000,000 (Five Hundred
Crore) through private placement on 16 February 2017. The tenor of the bond was 7 years. Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission vide its letter BSEC/C1/1D8/-29/2015/670 dated November 22,
2016 and Bangladesh Bank vide its letter BRPD (BFIS) 661/14B (P)2016-8316 dated December 20, 2016
had given consent to MIB (Mutual Trust Bank Limited) to raise Tier-2 Capital through issuance of the
bond. MTB collected BDT 5000,000,000 (Five Hundred Crore) from 11 institutional investors on 16

ﬁ i _y  February 2017. The below table shows the investors of the bond along with their respective investment
=g % Armounis.
: 2% Amount in Crore Tk.
% 2 i‘g - ""."-.I_J""‘..‘_'""“"j_!-" - i Py [
2 § o | s
E “E j . |:.I;.
% g 1| Pubal Bankl.mrted

2 | Dhaka Bank Limited

Sonall Bank Limited =~

B .

Mohammad Mazmul Hossan, FCA
Group Chiel Financial Officer

2 L mﬁmpm il clor & CEO
hlhllua‘:ql‘r:f‘td Bank u;!mu g:’tﬁ1 Tr_r,lﬁ't_ﬁﬂ".*' L',E:?.I utual Trust Bank Limlied
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Ly

4 | Sowheast Bank Limited 65 39 26
5 | Janata Bank Limited 50 30 20
6 | Agrani Bank Limited 3 18 12
7 | Eastern Bank Limired 30 18 12
8 | Rupali Bank Limited 20 12 8
9 | Delta Life Insurance Company Limited 20 12 &
10 | Standard Bank Limited 15 9 6
Il | United Finance Limited 10 6 4
Total 500 300 200

14.6 MTE 4" Subordinated Bond

Mutual Trust Bank Limited issued 500 (Five hundred) fully redeemable non-convertible unsecured
subordinated bonds of BDT 10,000,000 (One Crore) each totaling BDT 5,000,000,000 (Five Hundred
Crore) through private placement on 14 September 2020, The tenor of the bond was 07 years. Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission vide its letter BSEC/C1/DS-29/2015/549, dated December 31, 2019
and Bangladesh Bank wide its letter BRPD (BFIS) 6617148 ()2019- 10070 dated December 5, 2019 had
given consent to MTB (Mutual I'rust Bank Limited) to mise Tier-2 Capital through issuance of the bond.
MTH collected BIYT 5000,000,000 (Five Hundred Crore) from 9 institutional investors and 1 high net
worth individual on 14 September 2020. The below table shows the investors of the bond along with their
respective investment amounts.

Amount in Crore Tk
1 | Eastern Bank Limited 100 -
2 | BRAC Bank Limited 40 - Full
3 | Square Pharmaceuticals Limited 200 - Full
4 | Agrani Bank Limited 50 . Full
5 | Sonali Bank Limited 50 - Full
6 | Community Bank Bangladesh Limited 10 - Full
7 | Shadharan Bima Corporation 10 - Full
8 | Guardian Life Insurance Limited 10 - Full
9 | Ms. Monisha Anwar Hug 20 - Full
10 | Shimanto Bank Limited 10 - Full
Total 500 - Full
= 147 MTB Perperual Bond
2 y Mutual Trust Bank Limited issued 4000 (Four Thousand) fully redeemable non-convertible unsecured
SR . subordinated bonds of BT 1,000,000 (Ten Lac) each toraling BDT 4,000,000,000 (Four Hundred Croe)
3 (‘J through private placement on 12 August 2021, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide its
g E ' letter BSEC/CI/DS-114/2019/298, dated December 23, 2020 and Bangladesh Bank vide its letter BRPD
=3 ) (BFIS)661/14B (P)2020-7418 dated September 14, 2020 had given consent to MTB (Mutual Trust Bank
8% | Limited) to mise Additional Tier-1 Capital through issuance of this perpetual bond. MTP collected BDT

4000,000,000 (Four Hundred Crore) from 5 institutional investors and 1 high net worth findivid

C%‘ B|Tage v ¥ r Ranman

Monammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA ralik hasir REZ Director & CEO
Group Chief Financial Officar ';, & ppoutn iee Prosident gt Trust Bank Limited
Mutual Trust Bank Limited Q.;'w Company iﬁtmltnd
Corporate Husd Qffice, Dk wiutunl Trust Bﬂr",*- L ET'MIHI-

e ppurate Hond OIfce.
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August 2021, The below table shows the investors of the bond along with their respective investment
amounts,

Amount in Crore Tk.

1 Trust Bank Limired | 63 - Full
2 Bank Asia Limited J' 100 - ! Full
3 Hastern Bank Limited | 100 ‘ - .' Full
4 | Ms. AfrozaSultana I 10 . ' Full
5  Mercantile Bank Limited | 40 : Full
6 | PrimeBankLimited 8 | . Full
Taotal 400 . Full

:

3

>\ -

3

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain

Group Chief Financial aﬂﬂ it

Mutual Trust Bank Limite
Comporate Maan M Mkt
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15 Comparative Financial Statements of MTB for the Last 3 (Three) Years

15.1 Comparanve Balance Sheer (Consolidated)

PROPERTY AND ASSET

Cash

In hand (incl. FCs)

Balance wath Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) (incl. FCs)
Balance with others bank and financial institutions
In Bangladesh

Cutade Bangladesh

Money at call and on short notice

Investment

Govemmeni

Others

Loans, advances and lease/investments

Loans, cash credits, overdrafis, erc./Investments

Bills purchased and discounted

Fixed assets incl. premises, fumiture and fixtures
Other Asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities

Borrowings from other banks & Fls and agents
Bond

Deposits and other accounts
Current Deposit & Other Accounts
Bills payalle

Savings Deposit

Fixed deposit

Orther deposits

Other Liability

Total Liabilities
Capital/Shareholders' Equity
Paid-up Capital

Statutory Reserve

Share Premium

Foreign Currency Translatonal Gain
Retained Earnings

=
g Ohther Reserve
N Minonty Interest
¥
i g) Total Equity
@ '' TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY
3 )

Ao

Mohammad MNazmul Hossaln, FCA
Graup Chiel Financial ['m'urru
Mutual Trust Bank Limiler
I'_,orpnr ilg Hesd Office Dhak

BB P aype

2021 2020 2019
BOT Ma | BDT Mn | BDT Mn
14,815 11,781 14,557
3,617 2840 2887
11,198 8,942 11,670
3,95 5,031 3,385
1,795 3323 648
2,170 1,708 2,737
200 1,114 207
.47 36,657 34,200
400,852 32 824 11064
6,565 3,831 3135
226,012 203,744 189,730
222 484 201,997 186,991
3,528 1,747 2738
5,394 4,896 4,30
8,697 6,046 10,534
306,501 269,269 256,913
35,206 30,847 21,701
12,600 10,850 6,800
211,782 188,734 190,948
26,915 19214 16,351
1,975 1,988 1,644
42,590 36,213 20,885
91,528 73,322 01,061
48,774 55,997 52,008
27,258 21,827 21,174
286,846 252,258 240,623
8,125 7386 7,035
5,609 5,038 4,692
1,095 1,095 1,095
5 -+ 5
1,489 2166 2254
1,245 1,322 1209
0.133 0,132 0.130
19,655 17,011 16,290
306,501 269,269 256,913
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Comparative Balance Sheetr (Solo)

Muotual "U'rost Bank Limited

Balance Sheet
As on December 31

papan juswsaadl gon

2021 2020 2019
BT Mn BDT Mn BT Mn
PROPERTY AND ASSET
Cash 14,800 11,762 14,544
In hand (incl, FCs) 3603 2521 2875
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and s sgent bank(s) (incl, FCx) 11,198 8942 11,670
Balance with others bank and financial ingtinutions 374 4,656 31239
In Banpladezh 1,54 2,048 502
Outside Bangladesh 2170 1,708 2737
Money at call and on short notice 200 1,114 207
Investment 45,776 35,382 33,195
Govemment 40,852 12826 31,064
Others 4924 2556 2130
Loans, advances and lease/investments 222924 200,848 186,769
Laoans, cash credits, overdealts, ete./Tnvestmenis 219,396 199,101 154,030
Bills purchased and discounted 3528 1,747 2,738
Fixed assets incl. premises, furniture and fixtures 5,204 4,831 4,228
Other Asset 12,124 0,320 13,874
TOTAL ASSETS 304,743 267,913 256,056
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilitics
Borrowings from other banks & Fls and agents 35,206 0,847 21,701
Bond 12600 10,850 6,800
Deposits and other accounts 212,957 189,221 191,369
Current account and other accounts 26916 19221 16,351
Bills payable 1,975 1,988 1,644
Savings bank deposits 42 590 36,215 20 885
Fived deposit 91,528 03,477 91,161
Other deposits 49,948 38,320 22,320
Onther Liability 24,819 20,423 20,265
Total Liabilities 285582 251,41 240,135
Capital /Shareholders' Equity
Paicl-up Capital 8125 7386 7035
Sututory Reserve 5,654 5,038 i,692
Share Premium 10195 1,095 1,095
= -] Foretgn Currency Transhtional Gain/Loss 1 )] 1
E_ g Retained Earnings 3046 1,779 1,938
E N, Oither Reserve 1197 1.274 1,161
g irj Minonty Interest
% ) 3 *  Total Equity 19,161 16,572 15,921
o S ") TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 304743 \67,913 256,056
mS
%\ ubur Rahman
- e mnaging Director & CEO
Mohammad Nazmul Hossan, FCA ' 44 .,'f Al B r;r:':‘ m.dm tual Trust Bank Limited

Compuny Secrotary

Group Chief Financial Oilicer
Touwt Bank Limitod

MLl Trust Bank Lbemlted
Corporate Head Office, Dhalkop

Graup

al
:fﬂi:m\n Haoad Offize, Oha
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3.3 Comparative Profit & Loss Account (Consolidated

Mutoal rust Bank Limited & lts Subsidaries

Consohdared Profin and Loss Accoun

OPERATING INCOME

Interest inl:rbn1r.-'r|'rmﬁ1 on investments
Interest Expenses

Net interest income

Income from Investment
Commission, exchange and brokerage
Other operating income

Total operating income
OPERATING EXPENSES

Salary and allowances

Rent, mxes, mswrance, electociy, etc
Lepal expenses

Postage, stamps, telecommunication, ete,
Stationery, pnnting, advertisement, etc.
Chief executive's salary and fees
Dhrectors' fees

Auditors' fees

Deprecianon and repairs of Bank's assets
Otther expenses

Total operating expenscs

Profit before provision

Provison tor Classified Loan and Advance
Other provisions

Total provision

Profit before tax
Less: Income tax expenses
Current Tax
Deferred T'ax expense [ (lncome)
Net Profit
Sharcholders™ of the bank
Minonty Interest
Remined surplus brought forward

Appropriations

Bonus share issued

Dhwvidend Pad during the year
Trnsferred to statutory reserve
Trnsferred to Start-Up Fund

Retained surplus carried forward
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

S

Mohammad Mazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chinl Financial Officos
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Comporate Hoad Offica, Dhuky

For the vear ended 31

60 | I g

2021 2020 219
BDT Mn BDT Mn BDT Mn
14562 15,565 18,304
5815 11,620 12,964
5,747 3,045 5,430
34670 3461 2536
2488 1,922 2,630
A09 658 612
7057 6,042 5117
12,804 9,987 11,207
4058 3,632 3,276
127 578 671
L 2 5
21 T 17
117 7 136
29 26 23
4 3 3
2 3 2
B &0 633
1340 1,336 1,200
7143 6,469 5,967
5,661 3,518 5,240
733 BRO 178
1,389 B0 1,962
2122 1,690 2,140
3,539 1,529 3,000
366 £59 1,762
1449 &57 1,660
(B83) 2 102
2573 970 1,338
2973 90 1,338
0 0 4]
2166 2.254 2176
5,139 3,224 3,514
739 352 i
224 352
(5% 36 5006
29 9
1651
3489
166

sy ety

Group G Bank Limited

Hant Ofics, Dhaka,

L
. :5_5':_' '_.: |1|
i/ige Plotiaedt &
any Secratary

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited




Figpmm Grt aes Whds
r."fullml Trus! Bank Lid

Pyasd car

s

15.4

Compambive Prohit & Loss Account (Solo)

Diraft Information Memormndum
subordinated Bonds of up to BIYT 5,000 Million

Muteal Trust Bank Limiged

Profint and Loss

For the ye

Acoount

ar ended 31

2021 2020 2019
BDT Mn BDT Mn BI¥T Mn
OPERATING INCOME
Iaterest tncome/ profit on investments 14,330 15472 18,275
Interest Expenses 8821 11,635 12,990
Met interest income 5,508 1,837 5,285
[neome from Investment 1392 3380 2481
Commassion, exchange and brokerage 2087 1,757 2471
Other operating income 862 633 584
6,341 5,779 5,536
Total operating income 11,850 9,617 10,821
OPERATING EXPENSES -
Salary and allowsinces 3,951 1,532 377
Rent, taxes, insurance, electncity, etc 706 54() 633
Legal expenses 3 2 5
Postage, stamps, telecommunication, et 20 fi 14
Stationery, panting, advertisement, cfc 114 7t 134
Managing Director's salary and fees 2 26 23
Directors' fees 2 2 2
Auditors' fees 1 2 2
Depreciation and repairs of Bank's assets B33 79 625
Other expenses 1311 1,311 1,176
Total operating expenses 6,974 6,293 5,793
Profit before provision 4,876 332 5,028
Provisian for Classified Loan and Advance 733 880 178
Other provisions 849 T16 1870
Total provision 1,582 1,596 2,048
Profit before tax 329 1,728 2,980
Income Tax Expenses 37 829 1,716
Current Tax 1,260 826 1,614
Deferred Tax (B83) 2 102
MNet Profit 2,918 899 1,264
Retained Surplus brought forward 1,779 1,938 1934
4,697 2,837 3198
E z 4 Appropriations =
o2 . Bonus share issued 739 352 i
Fwa J i =
<3 ™, Davidend Paid during the year 224 352 :
n o3 (—) Transfeered to stantory reserve 659 346 596
% g Pl* Trnsferred to Start-Up Fund 29 9
X n_% \ . 1,651 1,058 1,260
;’_:_ ‘I'?‘l = Retained surplus I,,?Ti 1,938
ao Earnings Per Share (EPS)

61. | rl | '.rl |8 r r ?
Moham&d Nazmul Hossain, FCA i ’E"g-:'r; :{:ypehﬂiff:“i Managing Dlmmk&L?ni? d
Group Chiof Financial Officer - ,:"‘?:E” Truwmt Bank Limitad Mutual Trust Ban o

Mutual Trust Bank Limited orporte Heed Oifce, Dhaka.

Comorate Hosd Offca Dhal



Py Juswissadl 230

032 ¥ Jevang Guibeuey

JBwepy wizue|

A=

Frpum Bt wmen Fhids
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd

w o el an oy

Dieaft Information Memorandum

13,5 Comparatve Cash Flow Statement (Consoldared)

SMuotwal Trost Bank Lomited & Trs Subsidiari

Consolidated Cash Flow

statemefit

As al December 3

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts

Interest payments

Dividend receiprs

Fees and commission receipts
Recoveries of loans previously watten off
Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Income wmxes paid

Receipts from other operating activities
Payments for other operating activities

Increase / (decrease) in operating asscis and liabilitics
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Deposits from other banks / borrowings

Deposits fram customers

Borrowing from Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agents
Other liahlines

Operating profit

Met cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in T. Bills, T. Bonds and other
Investments in Shaves & Boads

Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net)

MNet cash used in investing activities

Canh Nows from financing activities

Issue of new share with preminm

Subordinated debts & Perpetal bond

Dividend for Perperual Bandholders

Met cagh used in Anancing activitics

Met increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effects of exchange rte changes on cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear *
*Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank{s)
Balance with other banks and financial instmpnons

Money ar call and short notice
Prze bonds

MNet Operating Cash Flows Per Share

62| Pape

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chiol Finnncial Oficor
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Corparpte Hod Offee Dbk

Subordinated Bonds of up to BIXT 5,000 Million

2021 2020 2019
BT Mn BDT Mn BT Mn
18,945 15,159 20,554
(11,160) (10,761) (12,033)
434 26 67
2,488 1,922 2,630
5 35 45
(4.0D87) (3,658) (3,300)
(117) amn (136)
(1,155) (1,220) (1,082)
1,852 1,756 987
(2,209 (2,012) (1.996)
5,036 1,169 5,736
(22,268) (10,998) (23,563)
(3,595) 7 (486)
3,950 (5,500) (5,400)
21,437 2,546 20,288
4,358 0,146 2,060
2,645 3,352 1,239
6,527 (1,447) 3,139
11,564 (278) 8,876
(8,101) (1,649) (7.078)
(2,735) (695) (149)
(1,199 (1,297) (1,689)
(12035 (3,641) (8.917)
1,732
1,750 4.050 =
(224 {352) (G0
1,526 3,698 1,132
1,055 (220) 1,092
1 (1) (1)
17,928 18,150 17,059
18,984 17,928 18,150
al17 2,840 2887
11,198 8,942 11,670
1,965 5,031 3,385
200 1,114 07
4 2 2
18,084 17,928 /| 18,150
14.23 (0.34)

P
&, Exac Ul

aroun CGompany 8
Matual Trus! I".-':
v ahg Hads s

& Prasidant &
ocrelary
nk Limited

L e

LAl

ubur Rahman
Managirg Director & CEO
mMutual Trust Bank Limited
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Mutual Trost Bank Limited & Tts Subsidiric

W atatement

sl Decemibiér 31

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest receipts

Interest payments

Dividend receipts

Fees and commission receipes

Recoveries of loans previously written off

Payments 10 cmployees

Payments to suppliers

Income taxes paid

Receipts from other operating activities

Payments for other opersting activitics

Operating profit

Increase / (decrease) in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances to customens

Other assers

Depasits from other banks / borrowings

Deposits from customers

Borrowing from Orher Banks, Financial Insttutions & Agents
Oither babalities

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in T, Billy, 1. Bonds and other
Investments in Shares & Bonds

Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net)

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitics

Issue of new share with premium

Subordinated debts & Perpetual hond

Dividend for Perpetual Bondholders

Net cash used in financing activitics

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Effeets of exchange rate changes on cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year *

*Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash

Balunce with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)
Balance with other banks and fnancial institutions
Money at call and short notice

Prze bonds

MNet Operating Cash Flows Per Share

a2mul Hossain, FOA

Group Chial Financigl Oficor
Mutisal Trusi Bank Limited
Corpoitle Mend Offics. Dhaka

Subordinated Bonds of up w BDT 5,000 Million

( 13.77
63| Page {Q/‘JW‘AM“QU

201 2020 2019
BT Mn BDT Mn BT Mn
18,712 15,0066 20436
(11,166) (10,776) (12,059)
383 4 39
2,087 1,757 2471
45 15 45
(3,081) (3,558) (3,201
{114) (76) (134)
(1,086) (1,202 (1,042
1,588 1,680 932
(2.159) (1,946) (1,929)
4,310 084 5,558
{(22.076) (11,064 {23,465)
(3817) M (522)
3,950 (5,500 (5,400)
19,786 2611 29,169
1,358 9,146 2,060
4678 2982 1,349
6,479 (1,770 3,191
11,189 (786) 8,748
(8,101) (1,649) (7,018)
(2,368) (425) 38
(1063) (1,295) {1,688)
(11533) (3,369) (8,728)
: 1,732
1,750 4,050 z
(224) (152) (600)
1,526 3,698 1,132
1,182 (457) 1,153
[ (1) 0
17534 17,992 16,839
18,718 17,534 17,992
1603 2,821 2,875
11,198 8,942 11,670
3,714 4,656 329
200 1,114 207
4 2. 2
18,718 17,534 17
(0. ¢
. ufibpsir ROE ahbubur Rahman
L Eecstivetliee Piosdat s Managing Director & CEO
Group *-'r-*”**"”,';:n*; Limited  Mulual Trust Bank Limited
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16 Financial Ratios for last 3 (Three) Years

Table 21: Financial Ranos of MTE for Las Three Years

Metric

Particulars

1 | Current Ratio Ratio 1.05 1.04 1.00
2 | Quick Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 | Times Interest Earned Rano N/A M/A N/A MN/A
4 | Break-Even Point N/A N/A N/A N/A
5 | Debt to Equity Ratio Ratio 14.59 14.83 1477
6 | Debt to Total Asset Ratio Ratio 9359 93.68 03.66
T | Accounts Receivable Turnover Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A
8 | Inventory Turnover Ratio N/A N/ A N/A N/A
9 | Asset Turnover Ratio %% 7.05%, B02% 9.400%
10 | Debt Service Coverage Ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A
11 | Cost to Income Ratio % 55.79% 64.77% | 53.21%
12 | Operating Profit Ratio % 26.18% 16.28% | 21.69%
13 | Net Profit Margin % 23.22% 9.72% 11.95%
14 | Net Operating Cash Flow to Net Income Ratio 189 (0.29) 6.63
15 | Debrt to Tangible Assets Ratio Ratio 41.90 41.61 44.11
16 | Cost of Fund % G.46% 7.92% 9.55%
17 | Loan Deposit Ratio Yo 8242% B390% | 83.38%
18 | Cost Income Rano Y 55.T9% 4. T7% 53.21%
19 | Return Avg. Assets (ROA) % 1.03% | 037% | 056%
20 | Tier 1 Capital Ratio % D.64%0 B.17% 7.76%
21 | Tier IT Capital Ratio % 4, 76% 4.75% 3.15%
22 | Capital Adequacy Ratio Yo 14.41% | 1292% | 1291%
23 | Non-performing Loan Ratio (NPL) Yo 5.80% 4.61% 5.39%
24 | Return on Avg. Equity (ROE) Yo 16.22% 5.83% 9.03%
23 | Eamings Per Share BDT 366 1.3 2.03
24 | Price Eaming Ratio Times 5.36 18.4 13.03
25 | NAV per Share BDT 2419 23.03 23.16
26 | Dividend Coverage Ratio Ratio .66 1.31 1.90
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* The Issuer of Subordinated Bond i.e. Mutual Trust Bank Limited opentes in banking industry which is a
service industry. Considering the business nature of the Issuer, oaly relevant financial mtios have been
presented above.
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17 Credit Rating Summary with Rating Rationale of the Issuer and the

Issue

171 Credit Rating Summary of the [ssuer
Date of Valid Till | Rating Long Term | Short Term | Rated by | Outlook
Declaration Type
May 12, May 11, Entity AA 5T-2 CRISIL Stable
2022 2023 Rating

17.2 Rating Rationale of the Issuer

Credit Rating Information and Services Limited (CRISL) has reaffirmed the Long Term Rating to "AA"
(pronounced as double A) and the Short Term Rating to 'ST-2' of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTH)
through an in-depth analysis of the operational and the financial performance of the bank along with all its
relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. The basis of its evaluation was financials of the bank up to
December 31, 2021, 1Q of 2022 and other prevailing factors up to the date of the rating. The above ratings
have been assigned after due consideration of MTB's position in the areas of financial performance, asset
quality, capital adequacy, liquidity, risk management practice, portfolio management, compliance,
povernance practice, robustness of I'l' infrastructure & I'T sk management, FIR development practice and
above all MTB's strategy to address future contingency. While assigning the rating CRISL also factored the
operational performance and fund management efficiency of the bank through its capital market
subsidiaries as well as the performance of exchange house operation.

CRISL assigned the above ratngs in consideration of its fundamentals such as its average financial
performance, compliance of capital adequacy in line with Bangladesh Bank circular, pood I'T infrastructure,
pood branch network, experienced top management, etc, CRISL, however, observed few limitations which
include moderate asset quality and operating performance, dominance of high-cost deposit in funding mix,
etc. However, these factors are not expected to have any significant impact on MTB during the rating
validity period.

Overall financial performance of MTB has been found average in 2021. ‘The earnings per share (EPS) of
the Bank improved ro Tk. 3.66 in YE2021 from Tk. 1.19 at YE2020. Operating profit of the bank improved
and out of total operating income in 2021, 44.88% income generated from net interest income, 28.66%
from investment in share and securities, 19.43% from commission, exchange & brokerage income and rest
1.02% from other operating income. After accommodating the increase in expenditure, the net profit after
tax stood at Tk. 2,973.20 million in YE2021 against ‘Tk. 970.39 million in YE2020.

The owverall asset quality of the bank has been found moderate. As on December 31, 2021, the consolidated
asset of the Bank has grown by 13.83%, Gross non-performing loan (NPL) has increased to 5.88% in 2021
due to comply with the Bangladesh Bank’s loan classification circular, the Bank classify significant amount
of mvestment facility through consulting with the client during 2021

The overall liquidity of M'T'B with all its indicators has been improved during 2021, The loans and advance
to deposit ratio stood at 82.42% (with regulatory adjustment ADR was 85.00%) as on December 31, 2021

S=

EE # agamst B3.90% as on December 31, 2020. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio of
328  the Bank stood at 115,14 % and 106.68% respectively on December 31, 2021, which was found to be
] Ic’; 3 satisfactory considering regulatory standards. However, because of high inflation rate, there are indications
g g > 3 that the financial and banking industries might have to face remarkable instbility in the coming months.
2gw

53". ﬂé Owerall Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) of the Bank stood at 14.41% which is in line w-uh
E E e w the requirement under risk based capital adequacy framework. CRISL found that the ¢ ;

Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) stood at 13,34% (Sola) as on March 31, 2022
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Banks rated in this category are adjudged to be of high quality, offer higher safety, and have high eredit
quality. This level of rating indicates a corporate entity with a sound credit profile and without significant
problems, Risks are modest and may vary slightly from time to time because of economic conditions. The
Short term rating indicates a high certainty of timely repayment. Liquidity factors are strong and supported
by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors are very small.

{20
)

Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA

G":mp ﬂliu! Financia Officer a Mﬂlh‘l.lbur H‘amn
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Corparate Head Office, Dhaka | Page tar Sduntasir Reza pmutual Trust Bank Limited

Expcitve Vit Precident &
E;rwr: Company Sm:!m'bur-;
pautuial Trust Bank Limnitod
eorarts Hasd Ofze, Dhuke.



E RrSpum §pb aies ffids

1 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd

il bl gl s s

17,3 Credit Rating Summary of the Issue

Dirafdi Information Memorandum
Subordinated Bonds of Lp 1o BT 5,000 Million

Date of Valid Till Rating Type | Long Term | Rated by Outlook

Declaration

June 15,2022 | June 14, 2023 | Initial AA-p ECRI Stable
174 Ranng Raronale of the Tssue

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) has assigned AA-p (Pronounced as "Double A minus Bond') long
term credit rating to MTEB 5th Subordinated Bond (hereinalter referred to as "The Subordinated Bond” or
"The Bond" or "The Issue") to be issued by Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). The outlook on the rating
is Stable. The rating is consistent with ECRL's methodology for this type of bond rating.

The rating reflects the sirengths of the bank and prospective performance of the bond which are backed
by good capital base, growth in total asset base and loan portfolio, income diversification through
strengthening investment portfolio, compliance with the CRR and SLR requircement. However, ECRI is
concerned that the bond market is competitive with limited subscribers, non-performing loan (NPL)
growth of the bank as well as provision deferral facility which would limit the futare profit of the bank.
The rating was assigned on the basis of draft information memorand um, drafi agreements between
the issuer and trustee provided by the entity in discussion and the rating may significantly change
if the covenants in those documents are altered.

The proposed bond will be repayable in seven years with five equal installments starting from the end of
year three. Semi-annual coupon payment will be paid starting at the end of 6 months from the date of
drawdown. The interest rate for the bond is between 7.00% to 9.00% pa. Coupon rate of the bond will be
determined by the benchmark rate/ reference rate plus 2.00% p.a. Moreover, RSA Advisory Limited will
act as the mandated lead arranger, MTB Capital Limited will act as the co-arranger and UCB Investment
Limited will act as the trustee for this issue. The fund will be used in regular lending and business activities
of the bank which will help to grow the bank's loan and advance postfolio.

In terms of performance of the issuer, Mutual Trust Bank Limited has improved its capital base recently
through issuance of perpetual bond of BDT 4,000 million as well as 10% bonus share in FY2021 (10% in
FY2020). A good growth of retained earnings has also facilitated to strengthen the capital base in FY2021
as a result, the capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR) reached 1o 14.16% (12.75% in FY2020) which
was well above the regulatory requirement of 12.50%,

The total loans portfolio of MTB reached to BIYT 222,924.20 million in FY2021 from BDT 200,848.10
million a year back with a growth of 10.99% (7.54% in FY2020) as the demand for loan has increased
recently. Besides, the investment porifolio of MTB has had fluctuating growth in the recent four financial
years with a remarkable 29.38% growth in FY2021. Since the interest rale cap was established, banks in the
country have begun to focus more on diversifying their income streams and asset base by paying close
attention to their investment portfolio. MTB has increased its investment in government's treasury honds
by 36.13% in FY2021 to BDT 40,209.43 million from BDT 29,538.19 million in FY2020.

On the other hand, NPL ratio of the bank remained at 5.88% in the latest year in review which was 4.67%
in FY2Q2() and 5.48% in FY2019, Gross NPL has increased by 39.62% and 28.16% in 2021 as compared
to FY2020 and FY2019 respectively. It is concerning that the performance of loan may further deteriorate
in FY2022 due to the withdrawal of provided relaxation on loan repayment.

The bank rescheduled a total of BDT 759,59 million worth of loan as compared to BDT 403.21 million
loans in FY2020 and BDT 4,201.00 million loans in FY2019. The bank wrote off BDT 362.06 million,
BT 924.85 million and BDT 334,96 million bad loans respectively in hst three years ie. 2021, 2020 and
2019. NPL alang with reschedule and written off loan altogether comprise 6.38% of loans Siadvances in
FY2021 wheteas the rates were 5.34% and 7.90% in the year 2020 and 2019 respectively. The bank's
exposure o large loans (funded and non-funded rogether exceeding 107 of bank's capit il
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amounting to BDT 73,336.40 million in FY2021 in contrast to the 28 accounts with total outstanding
amount of BD'T 91,205.00 million in FY2020,

The deposit composition of the bank has changed recently and nowadays MTB is focusing more on low
cost o no cost fund Le. current account—saving accounts (CASA) thus, the CASA funding has improved
to 46.74% of the total deposit in FY2021 as opposed to 38.67% and 38.39% in FY2020 and FY2019
respectively. Loan to deposit ratio of the bank has been always within the regulatory limit (currently 87%)
in last four years indicating a good balance between the deposit collection and loan disbursement.

MTR has kept 4.08% CRR and 21.61% SLR at the end of FY2021 with a surplus CRR of BDT 168.36
mullion and surplus SLR of BDT 18,036.28 million against the requiterment in FY2021. The matunty-based
asset and habilines profile of MTB are distributed over different time horizons, The bank had net liquidity
gap in 1- 5 years bracket in FY2021 and shown surplus net liquidity in the other brackets. However, the
total net liquidity comprising all maturity periods in FY2021 has surplus liquidity.

From the profitability perspective, MTB has regained its pace in FY2021 after a sharp decline of net interest
income in FY2020. Net interest income significantly increased by 4355% in FY2021 s opposed to a
25.45% decline in FY2020, However, companng with the FY2019 income, net interest income of the bank
only grew by 4.22%. The interest expense of the bank fell by 24.18% as a consequence of increasing low-
cost funding (i.e. CASA) in the deposit mix as well as the excess liquidity in the banking sector in FY2021.
On the other hand, the bank has continued its growth in non-interest income portion through good growth
in commission/ fees, exchange and other operating income in FY2021. Consequently, the overall operating
income of the bank improved with a rate of 23.22% to BDT 11,84975 million in FY2021 from BDT
9,616.57 million in FY2020. Operating expense, however, increased by 10.81% which ultimately resulted
the pre-provision profit of BD'T 4,876.19 million in FY2021 from BD'T 3,323.40 million a year ago with a
record growth of 46.72% year-on-year.

The bank s under the provision deferral facility and as per Banghdesh Bank leter in April, 2022, the
provision of BDT 2,567.34 million has been deferred which is equivalent to the shortfall amount at the end
of year 2021. For its classified loan full provision was kept but unclassified loan has provision deficit of
BDT' 2,567.34 million in FY2021 for which deferral facility has been taken. The deferred provision wall be
maintained in next three (03) years. In FY2021, the bank had deferred tax income of BDT 883.20 million
(specific provision caused huge deferred tax income) which underpins the profit in that year. Therefore,
post-tax profit had a sudden gain and reached BDT 2 917.83 mullion in FY2021 from BIDT 1,263.71 million
in FY2019 with 130.89% increase (BD'T' 899.32 million in FY2020).

ECRL views MTBL's outlook as Stable due to the current position of the bank and good capital base.

FY 31 December 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total Asset (BDT million) ‘ 304,742.53  267,913.21  256,056.00  221,827.58
Assot Growth (%) , 13.75 4,63 15.43 10,21
g = = Gross Loans (BDT Million) ! 222,924.20 200,848.10 186,768.62 163,281.71
®s 5 Gross Loans Growth (%) { 10.99 7.54 14,38 14.33
sez Dwom::: J::Tm Million) | 21295694 18922078  191,369.29  166,700,99
393 5 G nmnon [ v (RS /1 (NS v ) -~
1A Loan to Deposit Ratio (%) 82.42 83,90 83.38 82.83
g 3 :: ::hmt :nm (BOT ﬂml 5,508.26 3,837.11 5,2685.13 5,090.84
2 0% w Non-Interest Income (BOT million) | 43?3 Gl 5 80 .03
go | WonintaestincomeGrowth (%) | 972 440 B a0
:;:T:n Profit {m million) 3,294.16 1,727.85 2,979.75 2,368.90
-Tax ROAE 32.66 5,54 8.73 12.81

CRAR (%) _ 14,16 12,75 1286 N 128

or detailed Credit Rating Report of the Issue, please see Annexure 3.
Monammad Nazmul Hossan, FCA 68| Page . “Syed Ma
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18 Latest Default Matrix and Transition Statistics of CRC
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19 Description of the Trustee
UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL) shall act as the Trustee for MT'B 5 Subordinated Bond subject to
regulatory approval.

19.1 Overview to the Trustee
UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL) 1s a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank Limited, It was
incorporated in Bangladesh with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RJSC&F), vide
registration number: C-94654/11 dated 03 August, 2011 as a private limited company under the Companies

Act (Act XVI) of 1994, It obtained full-fledged Merchant Banker & Porifolio Management license (Reg
No: MB- 97/2020) from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on 3th October, 2020.

The company has been inaugumted on 29th November 2020, The company aims to play a vital role in
bridging the gap in professional financial management services in the country and the gap between investors
and investment opportunities. The registered address of the company is Bulus Center, Road: 34, Plot: CWS.
(A)- 1, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212.

The key strength of UCBIL comes from its people, who are highly tilented investment managers with vast
and versatile experience in the investment landscape. Keeping innovation and sustainable growth at the
core of its operations, UCBIL intends 1o lead its clients and the country to 2 brghter and wealthier future
and promote unigue financial solutions for some of the nation's most successful institutions.

192  Board of Directors:
Mr. Habibur Rahman, Chairman

Me. Habibur Rahman is the Chairman of UCB Investment Limited. He is acting as Deputy Managing
Director of United Commercial Bank Limited. Pricr to joining UCE Lid., he was Senior Executive Vice
President at the Corporate Banking division of Eastern Bank Limited.

Mr. Rahman has vast expetience in home and abroad in diverse sectors of banking for over 24 years working
in different financial institutions like Bank Indosuez, ANZ Grndlays, Standard Chartered, Toronto
Dominion (112), HSBC, City and FBL. He worked as Deal Administeation Manager in TD Securities
(Wholesale Banking) a1 TID Bank Canada. His credentials also include as relanonship manager in Corporare
Banking at ANZ Gnndlays Bank, Standard Chartered bank and HSBC Bangladesh.

Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan, Director

Me. Md. Shah Alam Bhutyan is one of the directors of UCB Investment Limited (nominated Director of
United Commercial Bank Limited), He is a distinguished banking professional with 32 years of experience
of which over 27 years covering experience in the financial service industry with both foreign and local
Banks. He is the Deputy Managing Director of United Commercial Bank Limited.

Me. Bhuiyan joined the service of United Commercial Bank Limited in the rank and capacity of Senior
Executive Viee President (SEVI) & Head of Special Asset Management Division (SAMD) of the Bank in
2017. He obtained graduation in Management, Accounting & Costing from the University of Dhaka and
Executive MBA from NIBM, India.

Mr. M. Mustafa Tarek, Director

Mr. N. Mustafa Tarek is one of the directors of UCB Investment Limited (nominated Director of United
Commercial Bank Limited). He is serving as Deputy Managing Director of United Commercial Bank
Limited since 14th May, 2018.

Mr. Tarek, having 29 years of professional experience in Government, Multinational, Telecommunications,
Loeal Conglomerate and financial institutions, joined Umited Commerdal Bank Limited on 5th Janvary,
2012 as Executive Vice President. He has a long professional track record in Human Resource and
Industnal Relations, Administration, Project Management, Supply Chain and Safety, Health and
Environment.

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon, Director

Mr. Md Abdullah Al Mamoon is one of the directots of UCB Invesment Limited (nominated
United Commercial Bank Limited). He is the Dyeputy Managing Director and Chief Ope
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(COQ) of United Commercial Bank Limited. Mr. Mamoon joined United Commercial Bank Limited on
01/03/2017 as Senior Executive Vice President with over 30 years of multi-disciplinary experiences in
diversified professional domains with Government and Financial Institutions,

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman, Independent Director

Me. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman is the Independent Director of UCB Investment Limited. Mr
Rafiquzzaman is a highly experienced international banker with 36 years of professional experience in the
entire gamut of banking, having worked in two multi-national banks across four geographies. He is a
certified risk professional and has extensive experience working in emerging markets.

Mr. Tanzim Alamgir, Managing Director & CEO

Tanzim Alamgir is the founding Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of UCB
Investment Limited. Prior to joining UCB Investment Limited, he was the Chief Operating Officer (COO)
of City Bank Capital and looked after the overall operatians of the company. There he completed numerous
first of its kind deals such as perpetual bonds, bank guarantee backed bonds, preference share of the first
prvate LNG terminal in Bangladesh, first subordinated bond for a stite-owned bank- Agrani Bank Limited,
and many more which led the investment banking division to reach its highest peak. His tremendous efforts
for City Bank Capital also led the bank to win the Finance Asia 2020 Best Investment Bank in Bangladesh
Award.

With deep business and industry expertise, Mr, Alamgir puts special focus on fund eising for large, loeal,
and multinational corporate houses in the country, He is a seasoned professional having diversified
exposure in finance, operations and strategy for more than 13 years, which in turn developed great
relationships with banks, NBFIs and corporates in different industnes.

193 Product and Services

With its group of versaule financial consultants, UCBIL covers all investment banking services, including
Corporate Advisory, Fixed Income Securities, Syndicate Loans, IPO Management, Issue Management
Service, Underwriting and Portfolio Management. The entity aims ar delivering top-clss, customized
vestment solutions to its clients to cater to their specific needs and be their long-term growth partner.

1931 Fixed Income Secunties:

When we act as Arranger and Issue Manager, we provide full-fledged support 1o our clients —starting from
analyzing the requirement and structuring the product, accordingly, preparing prospectus as per the latest
rules and regulations, negotiating terms with the investors, assisting to get all necessary regulatory approvals,
fund raising, completing documentation and listing of the bonds as and when required.

19.32 lLocal and ]*'nrui.gn Loan Syndicanon:

At UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL), we cater to the need of dients whose needs are complex and
unconventional. Our Structured Finance team helps them in every step of their transaction. From preparing
necessary documents to funding, mising and collaborating with suitable local snd forcign financial institutes,
we serve on our best effort basis.

12.33 Issue Management and Underwnting:

UCB Investment Limited provides a high quality of Issue Management services to their clients. Our Issue
Management services include- Initial Public Offering (IPO), Rights Offering, Repeat Public Offering
(RPO), Qualified Investors Offer (QIO), etc.

19.34 Portfolio Management:

In Discretionary Portfolio Management, our investment managers looks after client’s portfolio with their
best judgment and outlook of the market. We also provide Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management
services where experts do all the market-related research and recommendations the clients but the clients
have absolute discretionary power to make the final decision.
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19.3.5 Corporare Advise iy

Our Corporate Advisory services include a review of capital structure and providing necessary advisory
services for approprate financial restructuring, structuring of the mnsaction, assisting in a formal capital
planning exercise for clients, thorough due t'.iligcntr: for preparation of the offenng, resolving legal and
regulatory issues, advising on the timing of the placement and offering of the secunties etc.

19.3.6 Merger and Acquisition

The professional advisers of UCB Investment provide 360-degree due diligence of transferor and tmnsferee
companies for developing Amalgamation Schemes. At UCBIL, our experts assess the intrinsic value of a
business. As a reliable M&A adviser, we structure the transaction, conduct valuaton, conduct due diligence,
assess all material agreements, negotiate the best price for our client and ensure closing the deal.

19.3.7 Business Valuntion

Valuation of Business is the process of revealing the economic value of a company. Business Valuation is
required for numerous reasons- be it a regulatory requirement for investment or repatriation of funds to a
foreign country, taxation reporting, determining the sales/purchase price of a company ar any other ad-
hoq requirement of clients; UCB Investment caters to all segments of valuation. Our valuation service
includes analysis of the company's management, its capital structure, its future earnings prospects and
evaluation of the market value of its assets.

19.3.8 Agency and Trustee

At UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL), our expenienced team provides the service of a Trustee, Facility and
Security Agent and Issuing and Paying Agent to ease financial transactions by ensuring different compliance
reguirements,

As a Trustee or Agency, we conduct due diligence on the financial and transactional documents as and
when required as per relevant law of the country, act in the best intérest of the Investors and Lenders as
per relevant trust deeds and Agency Agreements, monitor and adminstrate the trust, act as a point of
contact between [ssuer/Borrower and Investors/Lenders group, ensure timely and seamless transactional
supports, coordinate legal procedures on behalf of the Investors and Lenders within the scope of relevant

law and agreements.
19.3.9 Placement and Transfer Agent Services

The dynamic team of UCH lavestment is equipped to provide out-of-the-box services to you such as acting
as placement agent and Transfer Agent Services. This service of UCBIL is unique because we are ready to
be by your side —even when you appoint another Arranger to mise funds and they struggle to do so 1 As a
placement agent we would find investors/lenders for you and help you to close the deal — be it a debt
instrument or syndication/ club financing transaction; with the help of our strong network and partnership
with local and foreign investor/lender groups. As a transfer agent, we can also help our clients to find a
buyer/seller to offload cerrain investments in absence of active secondary market.

194 Key Operanonal Results
UCB Investment Limited is one of the prominent merchant banks in Bangladesh. The following rable

shows the financial position of the company.
Table 22: Key Financials of the Trustee

032 ¥ sopang Subeuey

In BDT Miflion
1% ; iecember 31, 2 | Jecen Decemlser 31, 201
o) "Total Assets 1,225.38 370.40 356,36
N Shareholders’ Equity 1,132.49 31219 316.36
3 7y | Pad up Capital 1,000.00 250.00 250,00
> Investments 23322 193.88 300,75
2 7 | Total Operating Income 136.96 (1.75) 36.42
IS‘ Profit Before Provision 96.61 (6.32) 36,38
e Net Profit After Tax 70.30 (417) 19.32]
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Subordinated Bonds of up to BT 5,000 Million
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20 Modus Operandi of the Issue

2001 Application Procedure:
The Bonds shall be distributed 100% throuph private placement. Fach Investor (Bondholder) <hall
enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with tespect 1o their investment wath the Issuer and
shall be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the Subscnption Agreciment and the Trust
Deed containing in details the Aghts and obligations of the Investor(s),

2002 The lssuance of Bond

Notwithstanding anything contained anywhere in this Trust Deed, the Bonds shall be issued in
dematerialised form as per the CDBL Bye Laws and the Issuer shall apply to the respective stock
exchange(s) for listing in the Alternative Trading Board (ATB) immediately from the date of
availing ATB facilities under the Bangladesh Securitics and Exchange Commission (Alternative
Trading System) Rules, 2019 and respective regulations of the stock exchange(s) in this regard.
The Bond shall be rated by the Credit Rating Agency and its periodical surveillance rating shall be
done by the Credit Rating Agency in line with the provisions of the Credit Rating Companies Rules,
1996 up 1o the full and final redemption or conversion of the ssued securities,

203 Allotment;

On the Closing Date, to be determined, the Issuer shall allotand issue the Bonds to the Investor(s).

‘The Bonds will be allotted according to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Debt Securities) Rules, 2021.

24 Refund

Not applicable at the ume of lssuance. However, subject to recelving proper consent from the
regulatory authorities Refund in relation to the subscription may be possible upon mutual
agreement between the Issuer and each Bondholder.

2005 T'ransfer
Bonds are transferable subject to the Terms and Conditions set out in the Trust Deed.

206 Repayment and Redemprion features of the Bond

Coupon on the Bonds shall be paid on semi-annual basis on the Interest Payment Dates. The
Interest Payment Dates shall be determined depending upon the Issue Date, Unless previously
redeemed or purchased or cancelled, the principal of the Bonds will amartize, and paid annually
on a pro rata basis o the Bondholders in instalments of 20% per year commencing at the third
anniversary of the Bonds from the Issue Date. The final maturity of the Bonds will at the end of
seventh year from the Issue Date of the Bonds.

Details of conversion or exchange option
Not Applicable.

T5|Page hbubur
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22 Details of Fees Structure and Expenses

Total costs for issuing the bond (considering BIYT 5,000 million is successfully rised) have been estimated
to be BDT 48.95 million, The details of the cost breakdown are given below:

e FTRLI d BB g L T B P e R B

G seociated with MTB 8% Subordinated Bond

Face value of MTB 5th bond 5,000,000,000
Arranger & Co-arranger Fee 25,000,000
VAT on arranger fee 3,750,000
BSEC consent fee 5,000,000
BSEC Application fee 10,000
Trustee application fee 50,000
Trustee registration fee 100,000
Annual trustee fee to BSEC (7 years) 350,000
Trustee fee (7 years) 1,750,000
VAT on Trustee fee 262,500
Credit rating fee (7 years) 630,000
VAT on credit rating fee 47,250
Legal Counsel 150,000
VAT on lnﬂal counsel fee 22500
Miscellaneous (stamp, printing ad) 50,000
(A) Total bond issuance fee 37,172,250
R vy A P ' ' g Fee on ATB
CDBL Fee (5000000000*0.00015)
CDBL Annual fee 50,000
DSE listing Fee (5000000000%0.15%) 7,500,000
DSE listing Annual fee 600,000
Total Listing fee 8,900,000
Issue manager fee for listing 2,500,000
VAT on issue manager 375,000
(B) Total listing fee 11,775,000
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Annexure 1: Issue Application as per Schedule A
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MTB/CHO/GF/2022/88
September 08, 2022

The Chairman

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Securities Commission Bhaban

E-6/C, Agargaon

Sher-e-Bangla Nagar Administrative Area
Dhaka-1207, Bangladesh.

Subject: Application for Issuance of Fully Redeemable Non-Convertible Unsecured
Floating Rate MTB 5" Subordinated Bond of BOT 5,000 Million.

Dear Sir,
Please accept best compliments from Mutual Trust Bank Limited.

The Board of Directors of Mutual Trust Bank Limited in its 276" meeting held on Monday, May 30,
2022 decided to Issue 500 nos. coupon-bearing non-convertible fully redeemable unsecured
subordinated Bonds of BOT 5,000,000,000 (Five billion Bangladeshi Taka), subject to necessary
regulatory approvals. The purpose of the proposed subordinated bond is to enhance the capital
strength of Mutual Trust Bank Limited by increasing Tier-2 Capital.

1. Particulars of the issuer are given below:

Mame: Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Legal status: Public company limited by shares

Corporate Office: MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Plot 5,
Block SE(D), Guishan 1, Dhaka 1212

Phone : B8O (2) 984 6966, 984 2429,

Fax : BB0 (2) 984 4303

E-mail : info@mutualtrustbank.com

Website: htl:p5:waw.mutualtrusthankncm

Details of contact information: Contact Person

Mame: Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Designation: Group Chief Financial Dfficer
Phone: 01730-781184

é E E'i' E-mail: n.hossain@mutualtrustbank.com

398 Address: MTB Centre, 26 Gulshan Avenue, Plot 5, Block
t'ea SE(D), Guishan 1, Dhaka 1212

g g :';]YJ Date of incorporation: September 29, 1999

- . )

- ;g Date of commencement of Business: October 24, 1999

=8 :‘W Authorized capital: BDT 10,000,000,000 (as on December 31, 2031)

g Paid-up capital: BOT 8,124,956,590 (as on December 31, 20

ed Mahbubur Rahman
Managing Director & CEO

Mutual
rAaliv M.”-.iaapi':lﬂkwegﬁm Limited
aka 1213:. Etméw e PEeE

u(‘l"lpmﬂ
=il : InFodgii YA rosiais

e Trmeaspqrale Head Office; MTB Cenlre, 26 Gudshwan Avenue, Gulshan 1
B4 2700223 283 986, Fax : 880 (2)222 264 3073, SWIFT : MTEL BDDH
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Total equity:

Total liabllities:

T'otal financial obligations:
Tolal assels:

Tatal tangiole assets:

Net worlln

] Fpae Gt s o
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

BDT 19,654,773,315 (as on December 31, 2021)
BDT 286,846,018,576 (as on December 31, 2021)
BDT 286,846,018,576 ( Total Liability)

BOT 306,500,925,149 (as on December 31, 2021)

BOT 5,394,493,735 (Fixed Asset including Premises,
Furniture and Fixtures) (as on December 31, 2021)

BDT 19,654,773,315 (as on December 31, 2021)

2. Particulars of the arrangers are given below:

Name of the Lead Arranger:
Name of the Co-Arranger:

Legal status of the Lead Arranger:
Legal status of the Co-Arranger:

Details of ‘contact information of Lead
Arranger:

Detalls of contact Informaltion of Co
Arranger:

Mame of the issue managed by the
lssue manager;

Jibwey wizue|
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Anokometl (i H Vi coponnie Head Office: MTB Centhé, an A
ﬁm 1 !Eﬁk&a}. <422 203 966, Fax ; B8O (2)222 264 303, SWIF

RSA Advisory Limited
MTB Capital Limited
Private limited company
Private limited company

RSA Advisory Limited

House 85, Level 04, Road 03,

Block F, Banani, Dhaka-1213

Phone : 0967 733 3666,

E-rnail : Info@rsacapital.com
Website: https://www.rsacapital.com

Contact Person

Name: Md. Muyeedul Islam Muyeed

Designation: Senior Officer

Phone: 016 BB0OD 6080

E-mail: muyeed@rsacapital .com

Address: House 85, Level 04, Road 03, Block F, Banani,
Dhaka-1213

MTB Capital Limited

Chandrashila Suvastu Tower (2nd Floor)
69/1, Panthapath, Dhaka 1205

Phone: +880 2964 1157

Fax: +880 2 964 1153

E-mall: info.mtbcap@mutuallrustbank.com
Website: www.mtbcap.com

Contact Person

Name: Md. Ashadul Tslam
Designation: Board Secretary and Compliance Officer
Phone: 018 1841 6284

E-mail; ashad@mutualtrustbank.com
Address: Chandrashila Suvastu Tower {2nd
69/1, Panthapath, Dhaka 1205

MTB 5" Subordinated Bond
Rahman
Managing
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
/ At M“ﬁ':-;lﬁpitrnmf.:i

/ oy, Suncultivo VIS ety
, Gulshary, Eﬁﬁ%‘mh l.h‘nll'lld
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Wi miitualtrustbank con
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3. Key information regarding the proposed issue are surmmarized below:

Name of the issue:
Type of instruments to be issued:

Purpose of the Issue:

Number of secunities and total size of
the issue to be offered:

Face value and tssue price of securities

mentioning discount or
premium thereof:

Coupon rate/discount rate and YTM:

Coupon Payment:

Redemption:

Mode of redemption:

Tenor

Detalls of conversion/exchange oplion
features:

Maode ol redemption or
conversionfexchange

Maode of option (call or put), if any, In
case of redemption or
conversion/exchange and discount or
premium thereof

Rate of relurn

yrate Head Olfice: MTE Cdhilre, 28 Gulshan Ay
222 783 966, Fax : 880 (2)222 264 303, SWIFF

MTB 5t Subordinated Bond

Tier 2 Eligible Non-Convertible Fully-redeemable coupon-
bearing Unsecured Subordinated Bond

To ralse Ther-2 Capital

Number of securities being offered: 500 (Five Hundred) no.
Total Issue amount: BD'T 5,000,000,000 (Five Billion Taka)

Face value: BDT 10,000,000
Issue price: BDT 10,000,000

Benchmark Rate: latest average 6-month FDR rate of all
private commercial banks excluding banks licensed after
2010 as published by Bangladesh Bank on the quotation
day.

(The Benchmark Rate will be rounded to 2 (two) decimal
places. For example, if the benchmark rate is 5,155, then it
should be rounded off to 5.16 and If the benchmark rate Is
5.154 then it should be rounded off to 5.15); plus
Margin: 2.00% p.a.

Coupon Floor Rate: 6.00% p.a.

Coupon Ceiling Rate:9.00% p.a.

Semi-annual coupon payment starting at the end of 6
months from the date of drawdown

Principal redemptions will be in 5 (five) equal annual
instalinents commendng at the end of 3 year (36™ month)
from the date of drawdown in the following manner;

Redeniptian: R '.".t:i_'-.

& 20%
4" Year 0%
_ S™Year 20%
6" Year 200
B T Year 0% |

Cash
7 years from the date of issuance

Mon-Convertible

Fully redesmable

Non-Convertible, Non-Callable

Benchinark Rate: Latest average 6
private commercial banks excluding
2010 as published by Bangladesh Ba

!

A

yed :
Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Applicacle tax rate
Default protection, IF any

Type of collateral securities being
offered, if any:

Status of securities holders in case of
priority of payment

Periug within which securities to be
fssued;

Nature of tradability or listing In the
stock exchanga(s) (Main

Biard / ATR Jany other platform,
mentioning the name of the stock
exchange)

Others:

fepae GI6 Wi i
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

day; plus

Margin: 2.00% p.a.

Coupon Floor Rate: 6.00% p.a.
Coupon Celling Rate: 9.00% p.a.

(excluding risk premium in case of rating trigger fall and late
payment penalty In case of late payment)

As per the laws of Bangladesh
Unsecured

Unsecured

The Bonds shall constitute direct, subordinated,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference
or priority among themselves.

As per regulatory approvals

Alternative Trading Board (ATB)

Rating Trigger: If the credit rating of the issue falls below
the minimum Investment grade Le. 'BBB' in the long term o
"ST-3"in the short term, then the Issuer shall pay an

aciditional tee on top of the stipulated Coupon Rate as & risk
premiwn as mentioned In the table below:

Rick Rremicimitobeidded

i lssue Rating

2.0%

4. Particulars of the Trustee are given below:

Namea of the trustee;
Patid- up capital of the trustee:
Nelwoarth of the trustee:

5 &
a8 = . -
£9 3 Name of the issue(s) where performing
5 g > (T) as lrustee:
280
C
358 )
S
a e

www.mutuaitrustbank . com

ale Haad Office: MTE Cenlre, 26 Mh@n{u, Gelghan 1, Dhaka 1212
48, 22¢ 763 966, Fax : B8O (2)222 264 303, 5 SMTBLBD DH  E-mail : infof@mutusdirustbank com

UCB investment Limited

BOT 1;000,000,000 (as on December 31, 2021)
BDT1,132,493,978 (asion Decgmber 31, 2021) %=
MRBC Bank Subordinated Bond-1

Bank Asia Perpetual Bond

Mercantile Bank Perpetual Bond

Mir Akhter Zero Coupon Bond

Envoy Textiles Zero Coupon Baond
MTB 5% Subordinated Bond

ahbubur Rahman
@ Director & CED
Mutual Trust Bank Limitag
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5. Particulars of the credit rating company are glven below:

Name of credit rating company:
Credit rating status of the Issuer

Date and validity of rating along with
survelllance rating for the issuer:

Credit rating status of the issue:

Date and validity of rating along with
survelllance rating for the |ssue:

Latest default rate of the credit rating
company:

Average time to default of the rated
category:

Rating Irigger, If any:

Emerging Credit Rating Limited
AA (Long Term), ST-2 (Short Term)

Valid From: 12-May-2022

Validity Date: 11-May-2023

Surveillance Rating:

Rating Agency: Credit Rating Information and Services

Limited (CRISL)
AA-u-

*B denoles Bond

Valid From: 15-June-2022

Validity Date: 14-June-2023

Survelllance Rating:

Rating Agency: Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL)

Rating category wise: 0.1%
Rating band wise 10 years cumulative rate: 0.2%

49 months

If the credit rating of the issue falls below the minimum
investment grade i.e,"BBB’ in the long term or "5T-3" in the
short term, then the Issuer shall pay an additional fee on
top of the stipulated Coupon Rate as a risk premium as
mentioned in the table below:
Issue Rating  Risk Premium to be Added

6. Particulars of originators, if any: Not Applicable

7. Particulars of other contractual parties:

Paying Agent, Register, Transfer Agent UCB Investment Limited

Legal Advisor Lex Juris

555

5 E % with our previous application Ref: MTB/CHO/GF/2022/57 dated June 16,2022, we have enclosed the

é 8 = necessary documents and Pay Order No. 1675406 dated June 16, 2022 for BDT 10,000 (ten thousand

o3 Y

2 g_ >\, anly) In favor of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission as per rule 4 of Bangladesh
=28 Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021. The bank has followed relevant

% g‘E. w rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchangg Cmmis

30"
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Managing Director &CEO
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We, therefore, request you to accord your kind consent to lssue MTH 5 Subordinated Bond and allow
us to strengthen the capital base.
Thanking You,

Yours sincerely,

Syed Mahbubur Rahman
Managing Directer & CEOQ

Enclosed:
1. Draft Information Memorandum prepared as per Schedue '8’ of the Securities and Exchange
Comimission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021

2. Draft Deed of Trust prepared as per Schedule 'C' of the Securities and Exchange Commission {Debt
Securities) Rules, 2021

JBwe|y wizuel
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Group Chief Financial Officar
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Annexure 2: Audited Financial as of 31 December 2021

Auditors’ Report Along with Audited Financial Statements of
Mutual Trust Bank Limited & its Subsidiarics
For the year ended 31 December, 2021
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| INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND
CONSOLIDATED & SEPARATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 ]

AUDITORS’

M. J. ABEDIN & CO
Chartered Accountants
National Plaza (3rd Floor)
109 Bir Uttam C. R, Datta Road
Dhaka - 1205

An independent member firm of I

MOORE GLOBAL
NETWORK LIMITED
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Chartered Accountants

Mational Plaza, 3rd Floor
108 Blr Uttam C, R. Datia Road
; Dhaka - 1205, Bangladesh
T +088 02-9632568, 02223366340
E audit@mjabedincom
| www.mijabedin.com

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinlon

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd, (MTB) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group®) as well as the separate financial statements of Mutual Trust Bank Lid. (the *Bank’), which
comprise the consolidated and separale balance sheets as at 31 December 2021 and the consolidated
and separale profit and loss accounts, consolidated and separate cash flow statements, consolidated and
separate statements of changes in equily for the year then ended, and noles to the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated of the Group and separate financlal statements of the bank
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the separate financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated and separate financial performance
and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Interational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note #2 and other applicable laws and regulalions,

Basis for Opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with IESBA Code the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Bangladesh

(ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matlers are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mmtersw,,-
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The koy audit matters

| How the matter was addressed In our audit.

Measurement of Provision for Loans and Advances

The process of estimaling provision for loans and
advances associated with credit risk is judgmental
and complex, While estimating such provisions
certain judgmental faclors need lo be considered
including:

* Future business performance of the
borrower;

* Key assumptions relating to further business
performance of the borrower,;

+ Market value of the collateral;

« Ability to repossess collaleral; and

» Recovery rales.

Furthermore, these provisions are processed
manually using the voluminous data extracted from
the IT system of the Bank and following the
instructions of Bangladesh Bank (the central bank of
Bangladesh) issued time to time.

Due to high level of judgment involved and using
some manual process in estimating the provision for
loans and advances, we considered this lo be a key
audit matter.

Al year end the Group and the Bank reported total
gross loans and advances of BDT 226.01 billion
(2020: BOT 203.74 billion) and BDT 222.92 billion
(2020; BOT 20085 bilion) respectively and
provision for loans and advances of BDT 8,89 billion
(2020: BDT 7.72 billion) and BDT 8.17 billion (2020:
BDT 7.37 billion) respeclively.

Seonote#2.2.3,7,7.a,12.01,12.a.1 and 12.a.2 to
the financlal statements.

We lested the design and operating effecliveness
of key controls focusing on the following:

Credit moniloring and provisioning process,
Identification of loss events, including early
warming and default warning indicators; and

« Review of quarterly Classification of Loans
(cL)

Our substantive procedures In relation lo the
provision for loans and advances portfolio
comprised the following:

* Reviewed the adequacy of the general and
specific provisions In line with related
Bangladesh Bank guidelines;

« Assessed the melhodologles on which the
provislon amounts based, recalculated the
provisions and tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information;

» Tesled a seleclion of loans and advances to
axamine the validity of the recorded amounts,
loan docurnentation, examined the statement
of accounts, indicators of impairment, provision
for non-performing loans and compliance with
relevant Bangladesh Bank guidelines; and

» Finally, assessed the appropriateness of

disclosures against relevant accounting
slandards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are the main element of
financial slatements of the Bank. Income of the Bank
15 mainly dependent on the portfolio of loans and
advances, Management performance is highly
dependent on the larget achievemenl of loans and
advances. Loan disbursement requires robust
documentation followed by approval from
appropriate level of authority.

We have identified loans and advances as key audit
maller because there is an inherent risk of fraud in

disbursement of loans and advances by
management to meet specific targels or
expectations

See note # 2,23, 7 and 7.a to the financlal
statements

i Hossain, FCA
Grouwp Chiel Financial Oficar

Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Corporale Head Ol [k

We tested the design and operaling effectiveness
of key controls focusing on credit appraisal, loan
disbursement procedures and monitoring process
of loans and advances.

We have perormed procedure to check whether
the Bank has ensured appropriate documentation
as per Bangladesh Bank regulations and the
Bank's policy before disbursement of loans and
advances. In addition, we have performed
procedure to check whether the loans and
advances is recorded completely and accurately
and that are exisled at the reporting date.

Furthermore, we have assessed the
appropriateness of disclosure against Bangladesh
Bank guidelines.

Mutual Trust Bank Limited

e

i W L{ wahbubur Reahman
A - sreza  Managing Director & CEQ



A MOORE

sBwey wizuej
=

O L papwi] wsunssau goN
03 7 opang Swibeuvep

%f

Wohammad Nazrmul

iroup Chiel Financ
futual Trust Ba
rporate Head O

M. J. ABEDIN & CO
Chartered Accountants

Recognition of interest income has significant and
wide influence on financial stalements.

Recognition and measurement of interest income
has involvement of complex IT environment.

We identify recognition of interest income from loans
and advances as a key audit matter because this is
one of the key performance indicators of the Bank
and therefore there is an inherent risk of fraud and
error In recognition of Interest by management to
meet specific targels or expectations.

‘Rocognition of Interest income from loans and advances

We lested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls over recognition and measurement
of Inlerest on loans and advances.

We perdormed lesl of operating effecliveness on
automated control in place lo measure and
recognize interest income.

We have also performed substantive procedure lo
check whether interest income is recognized

completely and accurately,
We assessed (he appropriateness and
presentation of disclosure against relevant

accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.

Valuation of Treasury Bill and Treasury Bond

The classification and measurement of treasury
bonds require judgment and complex estimates.

in the absence of a quoted price in an active market,
the fair value of treasury bills and treasury bonds is
determined using complex valuation techniques
which may take into consideration direct or indirect
uncbservable market dala and complex pricing
madels which require an elevaled level of judgment,

Soe note # 222, 6.4a.11 and 6.2.1.2 to the
financial stataments.

We lested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls focusing on the classification and
measurement of ireasury bills and treasury bonds.
We tested a sample of the valuation models and
the inpuls used in those models, using a variety of
techniques applicable in the circumstances.

Finally, we have assessed lhe appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank

guidelines,

i Ra:ugnltinn and subsequent measurement of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases became effective for annual
reporting beginning on or after 01 January 2019
which replaced IAS 17 Leases. The application of
the lease standard resulted in the recognition and
subsequent measurement, a right-of-use (ROU)
assel at BDT 1,330.13 million (net present value)
(2020: BDT 1,325,099 million) (Annexure C(i)) and
lease liabilities at BDT 1,404.50 million (2020: BDT
1,098.76 million).

The recognition and subsequent measurement of
IFRS 16 Leases is considered a key audit matter, as
the balances recorded are material, management
had to apply several judgments and estimates such
as lease period, incremenlal borrowing rate,
measurement basis among others and consider a
significant data analysis to summarize the lease
informaltion used in their lease calculation model.

Seenote #2.2.8, 8, 8.a,12.4.8, 35.a and 36.a to the
financial statements.

In responding to the identified key audit matter, we
completed the following audit procedures;

Assessed lhe design and implementation of
key controls pertaining lo the determination of
the IFRS 16 Leases impact on the financial
statements of the bank;

Assessed the appropriateness of the

Incremental borrowing rate;

Verified the accuracy of the underlying lease
data by agreeing to original contract and
checked the accuracy of the IFRS 16
calculations through recalculation of the
expected IFRS 16 adjustment and;

Assessed the disclosures given in the financial
statemeanis.

For identifying the individual lease contract as ‘low
value item' the Bank has applied a threshold of Tk
20 million for each lease and also considered the
probability of exercising non-renewal option of
those lease contract.

3 W Ro?® yed Mahbubur Rahman
'lﬂ.q. e BN ,,.m;rh -1*“” Managing Director & CEQ
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We focused on legal and regulatory malters because
the Bank and its subsidiaries (the "Group") operate
in a legal and regulatory environment that is exposed
to significant litigation and similar risks arising from
disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such malters
are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome
may be difficult to predict.

These uncertainties inherently affect the amount and
timing of potential outflows with respect to the
provisions which have been eslablished and other
conlingent liabilities.

We lested the design and operaling effectiveness
of key controls over the legal provision and
conlingencles process,

We inquired to those charged with governance fo
obtain their view on lhe status of all significant
litigation and regulatory matters.

We inquired of the Bank's internal legal counsel for
all significant litigation and regulatory malters and
inspected internal noles and reports.

We assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts are based, recalculated the
provisions, and tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information.

We also assessed the Group's provisions and
contingent liabilities disclosure,

IT systems and centrols

Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems
and conlrols due to the business environment and
changes to the IT environment, the large volume of
lransactions processed in numerous locations daily
and the reliance on aulomated and IT dependent
manual controls.

We lested the design and operating effecliveness
of the Bank's IT access conlrols over the
information systems that are critical to financial
reporling. We lested IT general controls (logical
access, changes management and aspects of |T
operational controls). This included;

s lesting that requests for access to systems
were appropriately reviewed and autherized
testing the Bank's periodic review of access
rights

inspecting requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization

Our areas of audit focus included user access
management, developer access to the production | «
environment and changes to the IT environment.
These are key to ensuring IT dependent and |
application-based controls are operating effectively.

e —

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
in the Annual Report other than the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge oblained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If based on such work we perform, we conclude thal there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to communicate the matter to these charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
and separale Financlal Statements and Internal Control,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financlal statements of the Bank
in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note # 2, and for such internal control as management
delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1891 and the
Bangladesh Bank Regulations require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, intemal control
and risk management functions of the Group and the Bank. The Management Is also required lo make a
self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on
instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Bank's abllity to continue as a going concenm, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related
, to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless mapagement ajtheTintends to
liquidate the Bank lo cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to db'so.
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} Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Bank's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
' statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee thal an audit conducted In accordance with 15As will always delect a material misstatement
L when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
stalements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit svidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenls
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Bank's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention
in our auditor's report to the relaled dlsclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, lo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
staterments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
stalements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Oblain sufficlent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial stalements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

5= 4 matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
o a & safeguards.

ﬁ a N From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
59 3 r—) were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current
@ 3 2\ period and are therefore the key audit malters. We describe these malters in our auditors' report unless
123 % law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
E] ; s v\ we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
- ﬁ ms ol doing so would reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interest benefits icati
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Acl, 1994, the Securilies and Exchange Rules 2020, the Bank Company
b Act, 1991 and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

) i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

i) tothe extent noled during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the
' Auditor's Responsibility section in forming the above opinion on the consolidated financial
, statemenis of the Group and the separate financial stalements of the Bank and considering the
reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud internal controls and instances of
fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management's Responsibility for the financial staternents

and internal control:

a. Internal audit, Internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group as
disclosed in the financial statements appeared lo be materially adequate;

b. nothing has come lo our atlention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity
or administrative error and exception or anylhing detrimental committed by employees of
the Group and the Bank (other than matters disclosed in these financial statements),

iily  consolidated financial slatements for the year ended 31 December 2021 of Mutual Trust Bank
Limited's subsidiaries namely, MTB Securities Limited and MTE Capital Limited have been audited
by Shaliq Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants and MT B Exchange (UK) Limited has been audited
by Jahan & Co. Chartered Management Accountants and have been properly reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. The auditors have expressed an unqualified opinion for both
companjes.

W) inour opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the
Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

v)  lhe records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements,

vi)  the consolidaled balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together with the annexed
notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

vii)  the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Group's and the Bank's business for the
year,
vii)  the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separale financial statements of the

Bank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules, regulations and accounting standards
as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

ix) adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery as explained in Note 7.a.8.

%) the Information and explanations required by us have been recelved and found satistactory;

xi)  we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 5,700 person
hours; and

xi)  Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as required by Bangladesh Bank has been
maintained adequately during the year.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hasan Mahmood
FCA.

Dated, Dhaka
25 April 2022 M. J. Abedin & Co.

Chartored Accountants

R%ﬁ/\,\l:\\\

Hasan Mahmood FCA
Enrolment no. 564
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidlaries
Consolidated Balance Sheol

Panlculars

lﬂfwt

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash

Cash In Hand (Inchuding IForeign Currency)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and lis agent Bank(s) (including foreign currency)

Balance with other Banks & Financlal Institutions
In Bangladesh
Qutside Bangladesh

Money al Call on Short Notice

Invesiments
Govermment
Othars

Loans and Advancosfinvestments
Loans, Cash Credils, Overdrafls, elc/Invesimenis
Bils Purchasad and Discountad

Fixed Assel Including Premises, Furniture and Flxtures

Othor Assels
Non-Banking Assats
Total Property and Assets

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Borrowing from ether Banks, Financlal Institutlons and Agants

Deposits and Other Accounts
Current Daposit & Other Accounts
Gifs Payable

Savings Daposil

Fixed Deposits

Special Noliced Deposils

Depostl Products

Othor Liabilitlos

Bond
Pemetual Bond
Subardnaled Debis

Total Liabiiitles

CapitaliShareholders' Equity

Paid up Capital

Stalutory Resenve

Share Premium

Revaluation Reserve on lnvesiment in Securities
Foreign Currency Trangiations! GainfLoss

Genaral Reserve

Surplus in Profit and Loss AccountRelained Eaminga
Total Shareholders' Equity

Non-Controlling Interast
Tots! Liabilities and Total Equity

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (2020 Rastatad)

Lin BD
i
Notes 2021 020
1.00 1
3817408 521 2 439,055 300
11,197 535,965 1 11
400 B 5937
1,785,397,175 3,322.877.323
|___2,160,081.073 | 1,708,088 615
Sa 200,000,000 1,114,100,000
6.00 4
40,852 ,130.399 32 BM6 020472
3450 3.830.677.710
1.00 67 572
222 483 851 588 201,996, 814,197
527,713,085 1,746.601.375
800 5,194 403,738 4, BO8, 306,425
a.00 B,006,950,252 6,046,188,739
—.206,900,925,149 __269,269.259.576
10,00 35,206,781.006 30,847,308.439
11.00
26.914,905,893 18,213.879.562
1,876,002.070 1,988,092,081
42,588,740,210 36.213.478.525
01,520,348, 348 75,421 877,215
25,150,651, 767 15,364.633,356
23,615.088.572 | | 40,831,938 974
12.00 ar,.287.811,801 21,826,658,949
13a 10,850,001
"qmrmum 35"1“1”0
| 8.600,000,000 w.@.ﬂn,mnl
_286,846,018,5T6 _ 252,257,967,102
14a 8,124,956 580 7.386,324,180
152 5,606,354 496 5037523368
16a 1,005,304,778 1,085.304,778
17.00 457 933,517 535,041,698
4,699,421 3837.8M1
18a 785,777,324 TBETTT.329
10,60 3488 7471 2186251 505
— 19654773015 __ 17,011.960,723
20.00 133,258 131,751

~306:300.925.149 __269.269.259,576

48.00 24,18 20.94
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheal

\ cember 2021
In

: Partleulars Mates . 030 2030

| Oft-Balance Sheal ltlems
Contra & Continnent Assets & Liabilllies; 21a
Acceplances and endorsements 44,841 639,706 25672:241,302
Letier of guasranies 40,340, 440,673 34,807 647,852
Irrevocable lellers of credit 36,768, 759,417 25,753,147, 769
Bills far collection 10,053,512,136 7.2082,883.368
Other contingend liabdities - -
Total Off- Balance Shoeot lloms 132,011,351, 93,508.970,291
Other Commitmenls

Dacumentary cradils and shod term irade relaled iransactions
Forward assel purchased and lorward deposit placed .
Undrawn nole issuance snd revolving undenwriting facilities .
Undeawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments C
Clnim ngainsl the bank nol acknowledged as debl
Litigation pending against Bank

Other Memorandum ltems

Value of Travelers' Cheque on Hand P %
Value of Bangiadesh Sanchay Pairs on Hand . -
Total Off-Balance Sheot Hems including Contingent Liabliities 132011351831 93,595,070,201

The annexed accounting policles and other notes form an Integral part of jhese financlal statements

anaglng Direclor & CED

Signod as per annexed report on even date

Dated, Dhaka M. J, ABEDIN & CO,
25 April 2022 Chartored Accountanis
REG. No.: NIA

Hasan Mahmood FCA
Enraliment No. 564
ove:

2204260564A8 877635
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Far the Year anded 3 December 2021

Partlculars

ot — S AL

Intoresl Incomadprofil on investmanis
Intares| paidiprofil shared on deposits and bovowings ala.

Mol Interest lncomelpreflt en invesimants

Investimenl income
Commission, Exchange and Diokoisge
Oiher Operaling Income

Tolal Other Incoms

Total Dperating Income

Less: Operating Expenses:
Salary and Alowances
Renl, Taxes, Insuwrance, Elecincily elc.
Legal Expantas
Pastage, Stamps, Telecommunicalion elc.
Slationery, Printings, Adverdisemanis alc
Chief Execulive’s salary and lees
Dlrectar's Fees
Auddor's Faes
Dupreclaion and repak of bank's assels
Othes Expanses

Taotal Oporating Expensos

Profil Befors Provision

Less: Provision for Loans, investmant & Other
Provision for Unclassiiod Loan and Advances
Special General Provision-COVID-19
Provision for Classified Loan snd Advance
Provislon for Of-Balance Sheet items
Pravision for Diminution in Value of Invastmenls
Prowision for Othar Assels

Total Pravision

Prollt Bafore Tax

Less: Provision for Tazation
Current Tax Expansos
Deferrad Tax Expenses/(income)
Net Profll Aftor Tax

Shareholders’ of (he Bank
Noa-Controliing Inferasi

Retalned Surplus Brought Forwand

Appropriations:
Banus Shares lssusd dusing the year
Cash Dividend Pald during the vear
Dividend for Perpaiual Bondholders
Transferred 1o Statutory Resaive
Translerred to Star-Up Fund

Retalned Surplus, Carrled Forward

Eamings Per Share (EPS) (2020 Restated)

The annexed accounting polieles and other nates form an Intagral partof t

e AT,

c =
g§ D_li Chalrman Diractor
23 R Dated, Dhaka
%03 25 April 2022
ad> ﬁ
280\
&3
209 T
g_ [a]

4

]

Nazmud Hossaln, FCA
Group Chisl Fingncal O o
Mutual Trust Bark L imitac
Corporile Hoead Office. Dk,

Signed as per annexed report on aven date

2300 | 14,562,481.415 |[ 15,565,020.600
2400 |_0.815300,843 )| 118107688100
5747085772  3,945252419
2500 | 3,6689,781,318 | 3461032548
2000 | 2487897400 || 1,022450300
2100 | 34 | 858286767 |
12,804,110,085  9,987,002,102
2000 | 4,057,020,000 || 3.831.841384
2000 726,521,483 G78.276894
30,00 5,167,512 2170500
3100 20,852,310 6.920.554
3200 116,627,488 71269229
28a.1 26,390,087 28266028
3100 3,633,000 2,710,048
3400 2,158,380 2,844,200
as00 B41,347 501 802,922,080
3600 | 1338687788 || 1
—_1,143,308,579
5,660,803,506 3518461157
37.00
13,726,058 188,823,408
475,868,961 408,639,000
732,840,719 870,760,282
335,592 653 60626571
540,000,000 5,500,000
1 1
3,538,772.115 1828312866
168.00 1,448,034 228 BEE546.014
38m 1
—_2973,200427 970367008
2,073,168 920 970,385,102
1,507 1
2,073,200,427 §70,387.608
1
5,139,450,425  1,224273,7162
138,632,410 351,120,720 |
. 361,729,122
224,061,356 -
658,831,130 345,569,587
20,178,340 8,993 728
—1,088,022,257
—3,480.747,180 __ 2.166.251,505
19.00 388 118

M. J. ABEDIN & CO,
Chartered Accountants
REG, No.: NIA

5D

Hasan Mahmood FCA
Enralment No. 564

pve:
22042605
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35

ahbubur Ranmar

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limllea



Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidlaries
Consolidaled Statomant of Cash Flow
Foi the Year ended 31 Docember 2021

Ameount in BOT

Particulars Notea 2021 T1 2020
A) Cash Flows From Oparating Activities:
Interest recaipis/investment income recelpls in cash 18,944 616,404 16,158,811, 147
Interas| paymentsiprolil paid on Deposits, Borrowings, elo. (11,150,731,807)] | (10,781,122 434)
Dividend raceipls 434,224,337 25,751,904
Fees & Commission receipts in cash 2,487 897 409 1,022,450, 368
Recoveries on loansfinvestment previously wrilten off 44,858,845 34 550,987
Cash payments to employees {4,087,311,017) (3.658,207,392)
Cash payments lo suppliers (116,627 488) (77.250,220)
Income taxes paid (1,154,524,080)] | (1.220,193.713)
Recaipls from olher operating activities 40.00 1,851,655.817 1,766.224 2684
Payments for olher oparating activities 41,00 (2,200,003 263) (2,011,691,831)
Operating profit before changes in operating assots and Habllitles: 5,038,254,958 1,168,323,162
Increase/Decrease In operating assets and liabilities |
Losns and Advances/investment lo cuslomers {ﬂﬁﬁ,m.m&j (10,998.185,218)
Other Assats {3,585,334,472) 8,734,227
Deposits from olher banks 3,850,000,000 (5,400,850,000)
Deposils from cuslomars 21.437,384,418 2.545.710.538
Borowing from Other Banks, Financial Institutions & Agenls 4,358 472,567 9,146,130,952
Other Liabflites 2,844,800,387 3,352,162 083
Cash generated from operating assets and llabllitles %m,w,gg 1,447,298,439
Mot Cash Flows from Oparating Acilvitles 11,563,598 761 (277.975,2TT)
B} Cash Flow from Investing Activilies:
Investmants in T, Bills, T. Bonds and ciher (8,101,431,2589) (1.648,684,520)
Investments in Shares & Bonds (2,734,675,7489) (BO5,447,373)
Purchase of Fixed Assels (Net) 1,198 552 120 {1 181
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (12,034,559,108) (3,640,688,074)
C) Cash Flow from Financing Activilles:
Subordinated debls 1,750,000,000 4,050,000,000
Dividend lor Perpelual Bondholders | 224,061 356)| | 1,728,722
Mot Cash Flow from Finanaing Activities 1 m,ﬁiﬁw 3,688,270,278
D) Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,054,878,238 (220,393,073)
E] Effect of Changes of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents 761,550 (1,454, 368)
F) Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,028,429 557 18,150,276,006
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) = 18,084,169,345 17,928,429 557

The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
Cash In Hand (Including Forelgn Currency)

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent Bank(s) (Including foreign currency)

Balance with Other Banks & Financial Instilulions
Money al Call and Shorl Nolica
Prize Bond

Nat Oparating Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Restated)

3,617 488,523
11,197 635,065

3,965,379,148
200,000,000

14,23 (0.34)

The annexed accounting policles and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Group Ct al | el f_]ll'-.'JC,EI
.":-1u1u:if Trust Bank Limited
Corporale Hygg Olfige, Dhaka

Chalrman Diractor Director
Signed as per annexed report on aven date
Dated, Dhaka
25 April 2022
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Chartered Accountanis
REG. No.: NIA
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Hagan Mahmood FCA
Enralment No. 564
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220426056448877635
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Balanca Sheet
As atl 31 December 2021

L

) o~ (

Mohammad Nazmdd Hossain, FCA
Group Chiol Financial Olfcar

Amounl In BOT

Particulars Notes 2021 T 2020
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Gash 3a 14,800,349,000 11,762, 169,061
Cash In Hand (Including Forelgn Curtancy) 3,B02,713,035 2.820,629 650
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and ils agenl Bank{s) (including foreign currency) 11,187,635,865 8,841,538 411
Balance with other Banks & Financlal Institutions 4. 1
In Bangladesh 1,543 885,647 2 047 809, 042
Outside Bangladash 2, 168,981,873 1,708,088 615
Maonay at Call on Short Nolice 8. 200,000,000 1,114,100,000
Investments G.n 353 35,381,049 _
Government 40,852,130,309 32 526,020,472
Qthers 4 924 291 054 2 555 028,977
Lonns and Advances/invéstments 7.8 222 024 200,25 200,848,104,834
Loans, Cash Credits, Overdrafls, etc/investments 210,308,487 169 199.101,413,450
Bilis Purchased and Discounted 3.527,713,085 1,.746.691,375
Fixed Assel Including Premizes, Furniture and Fixtures B.a 5,203,874 445 4,830,768,592
Other Assels %.a 12,124,015,514 9,320,133,085
Non-Banking Assots - .
Total Property and Assets -304,742,529,186 267.013,213,677
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Borrowling from other Banks, Financlal insthutions and Agents 10.a 35,205,781,008 30,847,308,438
Depesits and Other Accounts 11.a 21 5,942 491 188, 220,776,373
Curment Deposil & Othar Accounts 20,915,622 014 19,221,022, 349
Bilis Payable 1.975,002.979 1.868,092,081
Savings Deposit 42,589,740,210 368,214,718.059
Fixed Deposits 91,628,348,248 83 476,844 770
Speclal Noticad Deposiis 16,744, 357 228
Deposit Products 75,731,886
Other Liabilities 1Z.a 24,818,899,708 20,423,196,275
Bond 13.a 10, 850,000,000
Perpetual Bond 4,000,000,000 | 650,000,000
Subordinated Debts 4,600,000,000 || 10,200,000,000
Total Liabilities 285,581,823.205 _ 251,341,281,087
Caplal/Shareholders' Equity
Paid up Capital 4.0 8,124,956 500 7,385,324, 180
Stalutory Reserve 15.a 5,686,154 496 5,037,523,386
Share Pramium 16.a 1,085,304, 778 1,085,204,778
Rewvaluation Reserve on Invesiment In Securities 17.a 400,820,227 485,928 408
Foreign Cumrancy Transinfional Galnfloss 1,366,243 (121,128))
General Resanve 18.a 786,777,324 76777324
Surplus n Profit and Loss AccountRetalned Eamings 18.a 4] 323 1,779,185 662

Total Shareholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Total Equity

Net Assot Value (NAV) per share (2020 Restated)

13

Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Corporale Head Office, Dhako

d48.a

—_19,160,905,981_ _ 16,571,932,490_
m,mﬁ;j 46 267,913,213,577

2358 20.40

ir Reza

e Prasidon & Mahbubur Rahman
pany SeTetOTE Managing Director & CEO

hasd

o L5t Bank LICVCS Mutual Trust Bank Limited

L A




Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Balance Sheal
As at 31 Decamnber 2021

- Particulars " Noles

2021

Mwunlll In BOT

2020

Ofl-Balance Sheet llems

Contra & Contingent Assels & Liabilities; i1a
Acceplances and endorsemenls

Lefter of guaranios

Irevocable letlers of credit

Bilts for collection

Other conlingani Eabilitas

Total Off- Balance Sheal ltems

Other Commitments

Documenlary credits and short term irade related transactions
Fomward asset purchased and forward deposit placed

Undrawn note issuance and revolving undeswriling facilities

Undravwn lormal standby facilities, credit lines and othar commitmants
Claim againsi the bank not acknowledged as debt

Litgation pending against Bank

Other Memorandum Hems
Walue of Travelers’ Cheque on Hand
Vilue of Bangladesh Sanchoy Patra on Hand

Total Oif-Balance Sheet llems Including Contingent Liabliities

The annexed accounting pollcies and other notes form an Integral

@zﬁ@_ﬁ.s/

Chalrman wDireclor

Direclor

Signed as per annexed repor on even date

Dated, Dhaka
26 Mpril 2022

sbwely wizuel

i

papwn T usugsaagl gaon
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5

Mohammead Mazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chiel Financial Office
Mutual Trust Bank Limet
Corporale Head Offca 1

44,84 1,638,706
40,349,440,573
36,766, 750,417
10,053,512,136

25672.241,302
34,887 687 852
25,753,147,769

7.282,803,304

132,011,351,831

93,595,970,291

]

192.011.951831 __ 93565670291

of these financlal siatements

luninsﬁ_n‘kc

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

REG. No.: NIA

Hasan Mahmood FCA
Enrolment No, 564

PVCra04260564 AS 877635

ahbubur Rahman

u Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limited



sanu] gan

L _ 039 geweng Gubevely

pa jual
Jbwey wizue|

o o ®

S—

Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For tha Year endaod 31 Decamber 2021
Parliculars Holos 2021 2020
Inferes| Incomadprofl on iInvestmants Zia 14.320,16,118 16.471,885,.104
Inlerest paidiprofit shared on deposils and bormowings elc. 2M.a 11,634, 778,635
Nal interest Incomelprofit on Investments 5,508,257 420 3,837 ,105,659
Investment income 2%a 3.302.100,218 3,389,576.110
Commission, Exchanga and Brokorage 26a 2,087,248,334 1,757,459, 306
Oiher Operaling Income ila | BE1,948, 128 633,428 267
Tatal Other Income
Total Operating Income 11,849,753,098 §,616,569,342
Less: Operating Expenses:
Salary and Allownncet 28a 3,051 310,178 3,531 ,820,176
Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Eledinicity ale. 20.a 708,146,335 540,460,541
Lagal Expentes e 6,167 612 2,178,699
Poslage. Stamps, Telecommunication elc MNa 20,047 383 5,082,584
Stationety, Printings. Adverlisements sle. dia 113,880,409 76,181,043
Chiof Execulive's salary and fees 28.2.1 20,390,087 26,206,028
Direclors Foes 318 2,217,600 1,628,149
Audilor's Fees 3a 1,485,000 2,267,500
Depreciation and repalr of bank's assels Asa 832,571 524 795,878,201
Other Expenses a6a | _1,311,20009 || 1,310,509,204 |
Total Operating Expenses T
Profit Bofora Provision 4,876,187,043 3,323,386,267
Loss: Provision for Loans, Inveatmant & Other aTa
Provision for Unclassilied Loan and Advances 13,728,058 168,823,408
Speclal Ganeral Provision-COVID-19 476,868,061 408,839,000
Provision for Classified Loan and Advance 732,840,719 BT9, 753,262
Provislon for Off-Balance Sheet ilems 336,602,653 60,626,571
Provislon for Ceminution in Value of Invesiments - 1,600,000
Provision for Other Assels | 24,000,000 [| 79,200,000 |
Tolal Provision 1,582,031,391 1,595,548.331
Profit Bolore Tax 3,204,155,652 1,727.047.925
Loss: Provision for Taxation 376,321,654 L]
Cumenl Tax Expanses 3B8a 1,258,525 860 B26, 244 660
Deferrod Tox Expansoni{income) 3801 | (B83,204,205) 2,280,523
Mol Profit After Tax 2,917,833,087 899,321,763
Retsined Surphus Brought Fonearnd 1,778,195,662 1,837
4,607,020,659  2,837,217,818
Appropriafions:
Bonus Shares lssued durng the year 734,632,410 351,720,720
Cash Dividend Paid during the year . 351,720,722
Dividend for Perpaiual Bondholders 224,061,350 .
Transferred to Stalulory Resenve 658,831,130 345,668,587
Transterred Lo Start-Up Fund

Retalnod Burplus, Camiod Forward

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (2020 Restated)

The annexed accounting policles and olher notes form an integral

s AT

1.11

Thﬁl financial statements

Chairman = Dlrector

Director

Slgned as per annoxed report on even lhl'a

Dated, Dhaka
25 Apil 2022

o s

Mahammead Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chisl Faancal Officer
Mutual Trust Bank Limitad
Corporate Head Office, Dhakn
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nn Diféctar & CEO
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Charterad Accountants _
REG, No.: NA s

Hasan Mahmood FCA
Enrolment No, 584
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Chalrman Birector " Director Managin tor & CED
Slgned as por annaxed reporl an aven date
Datad, Dhaka M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
25 April 2022 Chartered Accounlanis
REG. No.: N/A
683
:?: 13_ =
@ 1.2 =, Hasan Mahmood FCA
,i_g-:, 'ir) Enroiment No. 564
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited 1'_" ?__lt.,..‘l.lh‘v J*f:?p:';l,r_-m'!.ul'l Mmlnﬂ DimmrEL?EEad
Corporate Head Office, Dhaka Group COME L Sk Limits Mutual Trust Bank Lim
il T!u‘}gd Offisa Diuks

Mutual Trust Bank Limitad
Statement of Cash Flow
For tho Year ended 31 December 2021

Amount in BOT

Particulars MNoloa 2091 1 2020
A} Cash Flows From Operaling Activities:
Inlerés| recalpisfinvestmenl incoma roceipls in cash 18,712,151,107 15.085675,732
Interast payments/profil paid on Deposits, Boirowings, ale, (11,165,704,863) | (10.776,133.779)
Dividend recelpts 382870434 4720 266
Fees & Commission recelpls in cash 2,087,348,324 1,767.458,306
Recovarias on loansfnvestment previously wrillen ofl 44,858,845 34,558,987
Cash paymonts o employeos (3,080,770,183) (3.558,086,204)
Cash payments fo suppliers {113.860,499) (76.181.943)
Incoma laxes pakd (1.085,671.635) (1.202,008.807)
Receipls from other operating aclivities 40.a 1.588,120,880 1,680452,053
Paymanis for other operaling activities d1.a (2,158,822 ,080) {1.946,199.770)
Operating profit before changes in operating assels and liabilitios: 4,310,130,544 #B3 767,743
Increase/Decrease in operaling assets and liabilities
Loans and Advances/investment lo cuslomers (22,076,005420)|| (11.063805,266)
Diher Assets (3,817,298,934) 54,488,005
Deposils from other banks 3,850,000,000 {5,499.850,000)
Deposits from cuslomers 18,786,166,118 2610807 349
Borrowing from Other Banks, Financlal Instilutions & Agenis 4,358,472 587 9.146,130,852

Other Liabilities

Cash generated (rom operating assets and Habllities
Mol Cash Flows from Operating Acllvities

B) Cash Flow from Investing Activitlas:

invesiments in T. Bills, T. Bonds and olhar

Investmants in Shares & Bonds

Purchase of Fived Assets (MNel)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

C) Cash Flow from Financing Activilles:

Subordinaled debts

Dividend for Perpelual Bondholders

Het Cash Flow from Financing Activities

D) Met Increage lin Cash and Cash Equivalents

E) Efteci of Changes of Exchanga Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents
F) Cpening Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalonts (D+E+F)

The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:
Cash In Hand {Including Forelgn Currency)

Balance wilh Bangladesh Bank and ils agenl Bank(s) {including foreign cutrancy)

Balance with Olher Banks & Financial Institutions
Money al Call and Short Notice
Prize Bond

Net Operaling Cash Flows Per Share (2020 Reatatad)

50.a

The annoxed accounting policles and other notes form an inlegral part

Aorfoe S i e,

2,082 429 897
{1,769,789,173)

11,189.033,239 (786,021,430)
[8,101,431,200)| [ (1,646,684,520)
(2.268.382.078)| | (425491.243)
1,003,110,188)| | (1.205.122,101)
T{11,592,013,443) _(3,369.207,863)
1.750,000,000 4 050,000,000
(224,081.356)] | (351.729.722)
1,525,038,044 __ 3,696.270,278 _
1,182,058,441 (457,049,015)
1,487,371 (124,872)
17,534,126.517  17,891,900,404
A L672,330 17534128517
5.602.713,035 | [ 2820420,650
11.1“.‘535,%5 8.941.530.411
3713867620 ||  4.856.988.556
200,000,000 1,114.100,000
3.655.710
071,672,330 _
877
thesa financlal siatements
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statemenls
For tho year ended 31 December 2021

Corporate Profile and Significant Accounting Pollcles
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Group Cheal Financial Officar
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Gorporate Head Office, Dhaka

The Bank and its activities

Legal form of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTBL) was Incorporated in Bangladesh in the year 1999 as a Banking Company
under the Companies Acl, 1994 as a Public Limited Company, Al types of commerclal banking services are
provided by the Bank within the stiputations laid down by the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment
thereon) and directive as recelved from the Bangladesh Bank from time to time. Registered office of the Bank
is al MTB Cenlre, 26 Guishan Avenue, Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212. The Bank starled its commercial business from
24 October 1999. The Bank Is listed with the Dhaka and Chittagong Slock Exchanges Limited. Authorized
capilal of the Bank is BDT 10 billlon. The Bank has 119 (One hundred ninetaen) Branches including 14
(Fourtean) SME/Agri Branches all over the Bangladesh, 201 (Two Hundred One) Agent Banking Centre, 33
(Thirty Three) Sub Branch, 04 (Four) Air Lounge and 02 (Two) Booth localed at Hazral Shahjalal International
Airport, Dhaka.

Principal activities and nature of operation of Mutual Trust Bank Limited

The principal activities of the bank are to provide all kinds of commercial banking and related services such as
accepling deposits, lending loans to customers, trade and semices, issuing letter of Credit, treasury funclions,
inter bank borrowing and lending, dealing in government securities, equity shares, cash management, Issuing
debit and credit cards, SMS banking, inlernet banking, cal centre, securilies and custody services, remittance
seivices, privilege banking services, etc.

Ofi-Shore Banking Unit (OBU)

The Bank obtained the Off-shore Banking Unit Permission vide Latler # BRPD (P-3)744(105)/2000-4470 daled
03 December 2008. The Bank commenced operation of this unit from 07 December 2009, This unit is governed
under the policy, rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank vide reference no. BRPD Circular no. 02, dated 25
February 2019 and amendment thereon BRPD Circular no. 09 daled 27 May 2019 & BRPD Circular no, 31
dated 18 June 2020. The principal activities of the unit are lo provide all kinds of commercial banking services
to its customers i; foreign currencies. Separate Financlal Statemenis of Off-shore Banking Unit has been drawn
up In Annexure H,

Agent Banking

The Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 07/01/2016 vide reference no. BRPD (P-3) 745
(51)/2016-142 o start the operation of Agent Banking and subsequently started ils commercial operation on
06/06/2016. Till December 31, 2020 there are 200 agent outlels launched around the country. The services
that are currenlly being offered includes- Account Opening { Savings), Cash deposil & withdrawal (Agent
Banking A/C),Cash Deposil in Branch A/C, Inward foreign remiltance disbursement, Collections of bills/utility
bills, Payment of social benefits, Transfer of funds, Paymenl of salafies, Generalion and Issuance of bank
stalements, SME Loan repayment collection, Balance Inquiry, Internet Banking & SMS banking, Corporate
Bill/Dislributor fee collection, Insurance Premium Collection ate.

Subsidiaries

MTB Securitles Limited (MTBSL)

MTB Securities Limited was incorporated In Bangladesh as a prvate limited company on 01 March 2010 vide
lls registration no. 828668/10 and converted into public limited company in the year 2015 under the Companies
Acl, 1894, The company has started its commerclal operation on 23 Seplember 2010 after getting approval
from the Bangladesh Securiies and Exchange Commission (BSEC) as a separale entity. The Brokerage
registration is REG 3.1/DSE-197/2010/427 and Dealer regisiration is REG 3,1/DSE-197/2010/428.

MTBSEL is engaged in buying and selling of securlties for Ils customers and margin loan is extended lo the
cuslomers against their margin for investment in the listed companies. The required margin lavel is monitorad
daily and margin loan is provided as per eslablished guidelnes. Separale Financial Statements of MTB
Securities Limiled has been drawn up in the reports,

MTB Exchange (UK) Limited (MTB UK)

Bangladesh Bank vide their letter # BRPD (M)204/25/2010-280 dated 10 August 2010 has accorded approval
{0 the bank for opening a lully owned subsidiary company in the name of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited. The
Company was incorporated on 14 June 2010 under the Companies Acts 2006 of UK with the registration
number 7282261 as a privale company limited by shares. The registered office is localed at 25 While Chapel
Road, London,

The main aclivities of the exchange house are to carry on the remittance business and 1o underdake and
participaie in ransactions, aclivilles and operalions commenly canied on or undertaken by remittance and
exchange houses. Separate Financial Stalements of MTB Exchange (UK) Limited has been drawn up in the
reporls.
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MTB Gapital Limited (MTBCL)
The Bank obtained permission to embark upon Merchant Banking from the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) vide its Certificale No, MB-552010 dated 08 December 2010 under the
Securilies and Exchange Commission Act, 1993. The operstion was slarted as on 17 April 2011, Separate
financial statements have been drawn up in the reports.

MTBCL offers the following services te the market:

3. Discretionary and Non-Discretionary Porifolio Management senvices lo both the retail and institutional
investors under different product lines.

b. Issue management sarvices to medium and large corporate houses 1o manage thalr Initial Public Offaring
(IPO), secondary offering, debl issuance and rights issuance.

€. Undenwriling services for both debt and eqully issues.

Besides, MTBCL davelops various investment schemes suiling varying objectives and consiraints of
differenl investor classes,

Significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of financial stalements

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31 Decamber 2021 comprise those
of Domestic Banking Unit (Main operations) and Offshore Banking Unit (OBU), and the consofidated financial
statements of the group comprise those of ‘tha Bank® (Parent company) and its subsidiaries {logether referred lo
as 'the Group' and Individually referred to as 'Subsidiaries). There was no significant change in the nature of
principal business activities of the Bank and the subsidiaries duwing the financial period.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidaled financial statements of the Group and separate financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidinries as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been prepared under the hisiorical cost
convention and in accordance wilh the "First Schedule” (saclion-38) of the Bank Companias Act, 1981 (and
amendmen thereon), BRPD Circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003, other Bangladesh Bank circulars, International
Accounling Standards (1ASs) and Interational Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the Financial
Reporting Council of Bangladesh (FRC). In addition to this, the Bank complied with the requirements of following
laws and regulations from various Govemment's bodies:

i) Tha Bank Company Acl, 1991 and amendment thereon:

i} The Companies Acl, 1994

iif) Rules, reguintions and circulars issuad by Bangladesh Bank from time lo time:

w) Bangladesh Securilies and Exchange ordinance 1969, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987,
Bangladesh Securilies and Exchange Act 1993 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public
Issue) Rules 2015;

v) The Income Tax ordinance 1984 and amendment therean:

vi) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duly Act 2012;

vii) Financial Reporting Act 201 5;

viil) Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE), Chaltogram Stock Exchange (CSE) and Central Depasitory Bangladesh
Limited (CDBL) rules and regulations.

Departures from |IAS/IFRS:

Where the requirement of provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank differ with those of the regulalory
authorities and accounting standards, the provisions and circulars Issued by Bangladesh Bank shall pravail, As
such the Group and the Bank has departed from those contradictory requirements of IFRSs in order to comply
with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which are disclosed below:

i) Presentation of financlal statements
IFRS: As per IAS 1, a complete sel of financial statemenls comprises a statement of financial position, a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, a statement of changes in aquily, a stalement of
cash flows, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
and comparative information. IAS 1 has also stated the enlity to disclose sssels and liabilities under current
and non-current classification separately in its statement of financlal position.

Bangladesh Bank: A format of financial statements (i.e. balance sheot, profit and loss account, cash flows
statement, changes in equiy, liquidity statement) is prescribed in the "First Schedule” of section 38 of the Bank
Company Act 1991 (and amendment thereon) and BRPD Cireular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003 of Bangladesh
Bank. Assels and liabilities are no! classified under current and non-current heading in the prescribed format of
financial slalemants,

ll) Investment In shares and securitles

IFRS: As per requirements of "IFRS 9: classification and measuweameni of investment in shares and securities
will depend on how these are managed (the enlity's business model) and their contraclual cash flow
characleristics, Based on Ihese faclors it would generally fall either under “at fainvalue through profit or loss
account” or under "at falr value through other comprehensive income”, where anyjcha
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maasured In accordence with IFRS 13) al the yoarend is taken to profil and loss accounl or olher
comprehensive income respectively.

Bangladesh Bank: As per Banking Regulation & Policy Depariment (BRPD) Circular no. 14 daled 25 June
2003 of Bangladesh Bank, Investiments in quoled shares and unquoted shares are revalued al the year end al
markel price and as per book value of last audited balance sheet respectively. Provision should be made for any
loss arising from diminution in value of investments; otherwise invesiments are recognized at cost. As such Mutual
Trust Bank Limited measures and recognizes Investment in Quoted and Unquoled shares at cost if the year-end
Market value (for Quoled shares) and book value (Unquoled shares) are higher than the cost.

ii) Revaluation gainfloss on Government securities
IFRS: As per requirement of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, where securities will fall under the category of fair
value through profit or loss account, any change in the fak value of assets is recognized through the profit and
loss accounl. Securilies designated as amoriized cost are measured al effective interest rale method and
interest Income is recognized through the profit and loss account,

Bangladesh Bank: According to Depariment of Offsite Supervision (DOS) Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008
and subsequent clarification in DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January 2009 of Bangladesh Bank, loss on
revaluation of Governmenlt securities (T-bill'T-bond) which are calegorized as held for trading will be charged
through Income accounts, but any gain on such revaluation should be recorded under revaluation reserve
accounls. However, at the year-end if there is any revaluation gain for any particular held for trading T-bill/T-
band, such gain can be used lo the extent of any revalualion loss for thal particular held for rading T-bill/T-
bond. T-bil/T-bond designated as held to malurity are measured al amortized cost methed bul inlerest
incomad/gain should be recognized through revaluation reserve,

Iv) Provislon on loans and advances

IFRB: As per IFRS 8: Financial Instruments, an entity shall recognize an impairment allowance on loans and
advances based on expecled credit losses. Al each reporting dale, an entily shall measure the impairment
allowance for loans and advances al an amount aqual to the lifelime expected credit losses if the credil risk on
these loans and advances has increased significanlly since initial recognition whether assessed on an individual
or colleclive basls considering all reasonable information, including that which is forward-looking, For those
loans and advances lor which the credit risk has nol increased significantly since inilial recognition, at each
reporling date, an enlity shall measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal 1o 12 menth expected
credit losses that may resull from defaull events on such loans and advances that are possible within 12 menths
after reponting dale.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 83 dasted 31 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 59 dated 30
December 2020, BRPD Circular # 56 dated 10 December 2020, BRPD Circular # 52 dated 20 October 2020,
BRPD Circular # 17 dated 28 September 2020, BRPD Circular # 16 dated 21 July 2020, BRPD Circular # 13
daled 15 June 2020, BRPD Circular # 03 dated 21 April 2019, BRPD Circular # 01 dated 20 February 2018,
BRFD Circular # 15 daled 27 September 2017, BRPD Circular # 08 dated 02 Augusi 2015, BRPD Circular #
16 dated 18 November 2014, BRPD Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2013, BRPD Clrcular # 19 dated 27 December
2012, BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23 Seplember 2012, and a general provision al 0,25% to 2% under different
categories of unclassified loans (standard and SMA loans) has to be maintained regardless of objective
evidenca of impairment. Also, provision for sub-standard loans, doubtful loans and bad losses, should be
provided at 5%, 20%, 50% and 100% respectively for loans and advances depending on the duration of
overdue, Again as per BRPD Circular # 10 daled 18 Seplember 2007, BRPD Circular # 01 daled 03 January
2018, BRPD Circular # O7 dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD Circular # 13 dated 18 Oclober 2018 a general
provision at 1% should be provided for all off-balance sheel exposures except general provision against the LC
for First Track Power Supply Projects, ‘bills for collection' and ‘guarantess’ where the counter guaranieas have
been issued by Multilateral Development Bank (MDB)/Intemational Bank having BB raling grade '1' equivalent
oullined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks
in line with Basel Ill). Such provision policies are not specifically In line with those prescribed by IFRS 9.

v) Recognition of Interest In suspense
IFRS: Loans and advances to cuslomers are generally classified al amortized cost as per IFRS ©: Financlal
Instruments and interest income is recognized by using the effective interest rate methad to the gross carrying
amount aver the term of the loan, Once a loan subsequently become credil-impaired, the entity shall apply the
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of these loans and advances.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 23 Seplember 2012, once a loan is classified as impaired,
interest on such loan is not allowed to be recognized as income, rather the corresponding amount needs to be
credited lo an interest in suspense account, which is presentad as a liabdity in the balance sheet

vi} Other comprohensive income
IFRS: As per IAS 1, Other Comprehensive Incoma (OCI) Is a component of financial stalemenis or the slements
of OC| are lo be included in & single other comprehensive incoma statemant

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has issued lemplates for financial stalements which will striclly be
followed by all banks. The templales of financial statements issued by BangladeshF i E
Comprehensive Incoma nor are the elements of Other Comprehensive Income .il

1
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single Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Statement. However, alements of OCI, if any, are shown in the
stalement of changes In equity.

vil) Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

in several cases Bangladesh Bank guidelines categorize, recognize, measure and present financlal instruments
differently from those prescribed in IFRS 8: Financlal Instruments. As such full disclosure and presentation
requiraments of IFRS 7: Financial Instrument- Disclosures and IAS 32: Financial Instrumenis-Presentation
cannol be made in the accounts.

viil) Repo and reverse repo transactions

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Inslruments, when an enily sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters
into an agreemant to repurchase the asset (or a similar assel) al a fixed price on a future date (REPO), the
arrangement is treated as a loan and the underlying asset continues to be recognized at amortized cost in the
entity’s financial stalements. The difference between seling price and repurchase price will be treated as
interest expense. The same rule applies lo the opposite side of the transaction (reverse repo).

Bangladesh Bank: As per DOS Circular Leller # 08 dated 15 July 2010 & subsequent clarificalion in DOS
Circular # 02 dated 23 June 2013, when a bank sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters Inlo an
agraement lo repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) al a fixed price on a lulure date (REPO or slock lending),
the arrangement is accounted for as normal sales Iransactions and the financlal assels are derecognized in the
seller's book and recognized in the buyer's book.

Ix) Financlal guarantees

IFRS: As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer lo make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for 2 loss it incurs because a specified debior falls to make paymeni
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilitles
are recognized inilially al their fair value plus transaction cost that are directly atiributable to the issue of the
financial llabilitles, The financial guaranlee liabllity is subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance for expecled credit losses as per impairment requirement and the amount initislly recognized
less, income recognized in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15. Financial guarantees are included within
other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 26 June 2003, financial guarantees such as LIC, L/G will
be Irealed as off balance sheet items. No liability is recognized for the guarantes except the cash margin and
1% general provision for all contingent liabilities.

%) Cash and cash equivalents
IFRS: Cash and cash equivalents items should be reporled as cash lem as per |AS 7: Statement of Cash
Flows.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, Cash and Cash-equivalents consist of
cash with Bangladesh Bank, with its agent bank(s), government securlties (prize bond) and deposils with olher
banks. Some cash and cash equivalent items such as money at call and on short notice, Ireasury bills,
Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bond are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Monay at call and on shor
notice presented on the face of the balance sheet, and treasury bills, prize bonds are shown in investments.

xi) Non-banking assals
IFRS: No indication of non-banking assets is found in any IFRS.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 22 daled 20 September 2021, there is a separale balance sheel
item litled as non-banking assets that exisls in the standard format prescribed by BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25
June 2003,

wii) Cash flow statemant

IFRS: Cash flow slatement, which educates stakeholders about fund movement, can be prepared using either
the diract method or the indirect method as per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. The presentation is selected
to present these cash flows in a manner thal is most appropriate for the business or induslry. The method
selecled s applied consistently,

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, cash flow should be a mixdure of direct
and indirect method,

¥iH) Balance with Bangladesh Bank:
IFRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be trealed as olher assets as il is not available for use in day-to-
day operations as per IAS 7. Statement of Cash Flows,

agh and cash equivalents.
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xlv) Prasentation of intangible assots
IFRS: Intangible assets must be Identified and recognized, and the disclosure must be given as per IAS 38
Intangible Assels.

Bangladesh Bank: There is no ragulation for intangible assets in BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003,

xv) Off-balance shoet ltems
IFRS: There is no concepl of off-balance sheet items in any IFRS; hence there is no requirement for disclosure
ol off-balance sheel ilems on the face of the balance shest.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 14 daled 25 June 2003, off balance sheet ltems must be disclosed

separataly on the face of the balance sheel. Accordingly, the Bank has recognized the following ofl balance
sheel ftems;

- Acceplances and endorsements
- Letlers of guarantee

- Iirevocable letlers of credit

- Bills for collection

- Foreign exchange contracls

xvl) Disclosure of appropriation of profit
IFRS: There is no requirement lo show appropriation of profit on the face of Statement of Comprehensive
Incoma.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Clroular # 14 daled 25 June 2003, an appropriation of profit should be
disclosed in the face of profit and loss account,

xvll) Loans and advance net of provision
IFRS: Loans and advances should be presented nel of provisions.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Clrcular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, provision on loans and advancas should
be presented separately as liability and cannol be netted off against loans and advances. [Also reler to Molo
2.16: Compliance of International Accounting Standards (AS) and Intemalional Financial Reporiing Standards
(IFRS)]

xviil) Provislon on undrawn loan commitments

IFRS: As per IFRS 8 bank shall recognize credit losses on undrawn loan commitments such as Letter of Credit
(LIC), Letter of Guarantee (L/G) etc. as the present value of the difference between the conlraciual cash flow
that are due by the customer if the commilment is drawn down and the cash flows that bank expects lo receive.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD Circular # 07 dated 21 June 2018 and BRPD Clrcular # 14 daled 23
Seplember 2012, the Bank Is required to maintain provision at 1% rate against off-balance shest exposures
{which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments),

xix) Uniform Accounting Policy

In several case Bangladesh Bank and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission guidelines
calegorize, recognize, measure and presenl financlal Instruments differently from those prescribed in IFRS 10.
As such some disclosure, presentation and measurement requirements of IFRS 10 cannot be made in financial
statements. [Also refer to Note 2,16 Compliance of International Accounting Standards (I1AS) and | nlesnalional
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)).

Basls of consolidation

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as mentioned in nole no. 1.05 has been
consolidated in accordance with IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements. Intra-company transactions,
balances and intra-group gains on transactions between grou P companies are eliminaled on consolidation.

The total profit of the Company and its subsidiaries has been shown in the Consolidated Profil & Loss Account
with the proportion of profit afier taxation. All assets and liabilities of the Company and of its subsidiaries aro
shown in the consolidaled Balance Sheel. The consolicated financial slalements are prepared fo a common
reporting year (also called ‘accounting year') ended 31 December 2021,

Conversion Policy:
The conversion policy of Off-shore Banking Unil (OBU) and MTB Exchange (UK) Limited is given below:

.. Detalls Price Rate of GBP for MTB UK_| Rate of USD for OBU | Rale of EURO for OBU_
For assals & liabWilies _Closing price 116.7271 85,8000 67.38%0
Forlncome & expenses | Average price 118.9723 851350 __ mr7Te
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2.1.3  Basis of moasuroment
) The financial stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material items:
a) Governmenl Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as ‘Held for Trading (HFT)' al present value using
marking lo market concept with gain crediled to revaluation reserve but loss charged to income statement.
b) Governmen! Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as ‘Held to Malurity (HTM)' al present value using
amoriization concept.
The accounting policles, unless olherwise stated have been consistently applied by the company and consistent
with those of the previous year,

214  Golng concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, which contemplates
the realization of assets and the salisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The accompanying
financial statements do not include any adjustments should the Bank be unable fo continue as a8 going concern,

2.1.5  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) currency, which Is the Bank’s lunclional
currency. All financial information presented in BDT has been rounded lo the nearest BODT.

21.6  Use of estimates and Judgmants
The preparation of financial statements in conformily with Intemational Accounting Standards (IASs) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) requires managemenl lo make estimates and assumplions
thal affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Il also requires disdosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.

The most perilous estimales and judgments are applied 1o the Provision for impairment of loans & ivestments
and Employees benefils,

The eslimates and associaled assumplions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed lo be reasonable under the crcumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assels and liabllities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Howaver, the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on
an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the period in which the estimates are revisod

21.7  Materlality, aggregation and off sotting
Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the financial
statements. No amount has been sel off unless the Bank has a legal right to sul off the amounts and intends 1o
sellle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a nel basis only when permitted by the relevant
accounling standards.

The values of any assel or liability as shown in the balance sheet are not ofl-sel by way of deduction from
another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident existed during the period,

2.1.8  Comparative information
The accounting policies have been consislently applied by ihe Bank and are consistent with those used in the
previous year. Comparative information is reclassified and rearanged wherever necessary 1o conform to the
currenl presaniation.

2.1.9  Forelgn currency transaction and commitments

a) Forelgn currency
llems included in the financlal statements of each antity in the group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, ie. the functional currency. The financial
slatements of the group and the Bank are presented in BOT which is the Bank's functional and presentation
currency,

b) Forelgn currencies transiation

Foreign currency ransactions are converted inlo equivalent BDT using the ruling exchange rates on the dates
of respective transactions as per IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales, Formign cumency
balances held in US Dollar are converted into BDT at weighled average rate of inter-bank market as determined
by Bangladesh Bank on the closing date of every month. Balances held In forelgn currencies other than US
Dollar are converted into equivalent US Dollar at buying rales of New York closing of the previous day and
converied Into equivalent BDT. The resulling exchange transaction galns and losses are included |n the prafil
and lass account.

¢} Commitments
Commitments / Contingent liabilities for outstanding forward loreign exchange
consolidaled financial statements and financial stalements of Bank have been Wa
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Contingent liabililies/commitments for leller of credil, letter of guarantes and acceplance denominated in foreign
currencies have been expressed in BDT at the rale of revalualion rate.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash fiows has been prepared In accordance with 1AS 7; Statement of Cash Flows and under the
guideline of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003. The Statemen! shows the Structure of
Changes in cash and cash equivalents during the financial perod.

Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity reflacts information aboul the increase or decrease in net assets or wealth
Stalement of changes in equily has been prepared in accordance with IAS 1: Presentation of Financial
Statements and relevanl guidelines of Bangladesh Bank & BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003

Liguidity statement

The liquidity statement has been prepared in accordance with remaining maturity grouping of Assets and

Liabiliies as of the close of the period as per following basis.

a) Balance with other banks and financial institutions, money at call and shorl notice ete. are on the basis of
thelr maturity term.

b) Invesimenis are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

¢} Loans and advancesfinvestments are on the basis of their repayment schadule.

d) Fixed assels are on the basis of thelr useful lives,

o) Other assets are on the basis of their realization/amorization,

f) Baorrowing from otherbanks, financial institutions and agents elc. are as per thelr maturity/repayment terms.

g) Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their malurity term and past rend of withdrawal by the
deposilors.

h) Provision and other liabilities ara on the basis of their payments/adjustments schedule.

Accounting for contingent labllities and contingent assels

The bank recognized provisions only when it has a present obligation as a resull of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seltie the obligation and
when a reliable estimale of the obligation can be made, No provision Is recognized for.

a) Any possible obligation thal arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future event nol wholly within the control of the
bank; or

b) Any present obligation thal arises from past events bul is not recognized because
* Itis not probable that an oulfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or
= Araeliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannol be mads.

Reporiing perlod
These financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries cover the periad from 01 January to 31 December
2021,

Assots and basls of thelr valuation

Cash and cash oquivalenls

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unresticled balances held with Bangladesh Bank
and highly liquid financial assets which are subject lo Insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are
used by the Bank managemenl for its shorl-term commilments.

Investmants
All investmenl In securllies is initially recognized at cost, being fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associaled with the investment. Premiums are amortized and discounts acoredded, using
ihe effective yield method and are taken to discount income. The valuation methods of invesiments used are:
a) Held to maturity (HTM)
Investments which have 'fixed or determinable payments’ and are intended to be "held to matuity’ other than
these that meet the definition of 'held at amortized cosf, are classified as held to maturity (HTM). These
invesiments are subsequently measured at present valus as per Bangladesh Bank guidefine,

b} Held for trading (HFT)
Invesiments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing In
short lrading or if designaled as such by the management. After initial recognition, invesiments are
measured al fair value and any change in the fair value is recognized In the statement of income for the
period in which it arlses.

Sy ahbubur Rahman
Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limiled
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c) Rovaluation

As per the DOS Circular letter # 05 dated 26 May 2008 & subsequent amendment DOS Circular # 05 dated
28 January 2000 and DOS Circular # 21 dated 27 October 2000, HFT securities are revalued on weekly
basis and HTM securities are amorlized on yearly basis. The HTM securities are also revalued if they are
reclassified to HFT category with the Board's approval. Any gain or loss on revaluation of HTM securities
is recognized in the stalement of changes in equity. Gainfloss on revaluation of HFT securities is
recognized in the profit and loss accounl on weekly basis and gain on revaluation Is transferred lo
slatement of changes in aquily on monthly basis.

Valuation of investments has been shown as under Government treasury bills and bonds (HTM) at present
value (using amontization concept), Government tressury bills and bonds (HFT) al present value (using
marking to market concept),

d) Investment in listed securities
Thesa securilies are bought and held primarily for the purpose of selling them in future or hald for dividend
income which are reported at cosl. Unrealized galns are not recognized in the profil and loss stalement.
But provision was made for diminution in value of Investment.

2} [Investmont In ungquoted securlties
Investment in unlisted securities is reporled at cost under cost method. Adjustment is given for any
shortage of book value over cost for determining the carrying amount of investment in unlisied securities.

As per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular # 04 daled 15 June 2010 and DOS Circular # 04 dated 24
November 2011, provision for diminution in value of nvestment was made by netting of unrealized gain/
loss of shares from market price/ book value less cost price.

Besides, the Bank complied with BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003 as follows, “All investments in
shares and securilies (both dealing and investment) should be revalued al the year end. The quoled shares
should be valued as per market price in the stock exchange(s) and unquoled shares as per book value of
last audited balance sheet. Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in value of
investmants,"

) Investmaent in subsidiary

Invesiment in subsidiary is accounted for under the cost method of accounting in the Bank's financial
Stalements in accordance with tha IAS 27: Separale Financial Stalements,

g) Value of Investments has been shown as undar:

Initial Measurement after
Investment class recognition rocognition Recording of change
Loss transferred lo profit and loss account
Governmant treasury Marking to
bills (HFT) Cost kool VIR In;dammna transferred lo revaluation
Loss transferred to profit and loss account
Hovernment wemely || e Amortized cost | and gain transferred fo  revaluation
bills (HTM) P
Loss transferred lo profit and less sccount
Government lreasury Marking to
bonds (HFT) Cosl market/fair vake m r:‘ncnm transferred lo revaluation
Government treasury Amoitized gainfloss Wanslerred 1o
bonds (HTM) Cosl Amonized cont | 7 ualuation rederve.
Zero coupon bond Cost Amortized cost Nong
Prize bond Cosl None Mone
Dobentures Cosl Al cost price None
Unquoted shares and Cost None Loss transferred to profit and loss account
dabenlure bul no unrealized gain recorded.
L.oss transferred to profit and loss account
Quoted shares Cosl Coslt but no unrealized gain 1 fed.

Loans, advances and provisions
Loans and advances are staled al gross amount. General provisions on unclassified loans & off-balance sheat
exposures, specific provisians for classified loans and interest suspense account thereon are shown under
other liabilities. Provision against classified loans and advances is made on the basis of quarer-end review by
the management and instruction contained in BRPD Circular # 63, 59, 56, 52, 17, 16, 13, 03, 01, 15, 08, 16,
05, 19, 14, 10, 01, 07 & 13 dated 31 December 2020, 30 December 2020, 10 December 2020, 20 Oclober
2020, 28 Seplember 2020, 21 July 2020, 15 June 2020, 21 April 2019, 20 February 2018, 27 Seplember 2017,
02 August 2015, 18 November 2014, 28 May 2013, 27 December 2012, 23 Septes & il

2007, 03 January 2018, 21 June 2018, 18 Oclober 2018 respacively. ;
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Interest on loans and advances

Interest is calculated on daily product basis but debited lo the party's loan account quarterly, No interast is
charged on loans and advances which are classified as bad and loss. Interest is calculated on unclassified
loans and advances (only standard) and recognized as Income during the period. Interest calculated on
classified loans and advances (including special menlion accounts) as per Bangladesh Bank circulars is kept
in Interes! suspense account and credited lo Income on reslization. Inlerest suspense and penal interest (if any)

calculated on classified loans and advances are taken o iIncome in the period of its receipl from the defaulting
bofrowers.

Commission and discounls on bills purchased and discounled are recognized at the time of realization

Recovary of written off loans and advances are laken inlo income In the perlod of its receipts from the defaulting
borrowears.

Provislon for loans and advances

Provision for loans and advances are made on the basis of quarter as well as year-end review by the
managemeni following inslructions conlained in BRPD Circular # 14, 16 & 52 dated 23 Seplember 2012, 21

July 2020 & 20 Oclober 2020 respectively and subsequent changes of Bangladesh Bank. The percentage of
provision on loans and advance are given balow:

Rate of provision
L ____ RATE OF PROVISION
Small & Medium Enterpriso
Shorl Term Consumer Financing F:nlmlng Lﬂt:m e
Agri. Other Cottage, Micro
Particulars Medium BHs/M | other
Crodit & th o and Small
Microcredit | HF& | HF LP | Cord | Credits under | Entorprise | Ba/SO | credit
— Lp cga | Frawing.| S8 |
uc | Standard 1% 2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25% 0.25% 2% 1%
SMA 0% 2% 1% 2% 2% 0.25% 0.25% 2% 1%
Cla S5 5% 20% | 20% | 20% | 20% 6% 20% _20% | 20%
ssifi DF 5% 50% | 50% | 60% | 650% 20% 650% 50% | 50%
ed BiL 100% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 100% 100% 100% | 100%

Prasentalion of loans and advancoes

Loans and advances are shown at gross amounl as assels while interest suspense and loan loss provision

againsi classilied loans & advances are shown as llabilities in the Balance Shest.

Security agalnst Loans

u. Project loan: Project land and building ara taken as securily in the form of mortyage and plant & machinery
ara laken in the form of hypothecation.

k. Working Capital: Goods are taken as securily in the form of hypothecation along with land and building
mortgage. Listed securities of slock exchange, fixed deposits, assignments of receivables etc. are also
laken as security.

Bills Purchased and Discounted

a.  Bills purchased and discounted do not include Govemmenl Treasury bills and have been classified into

Iwo sub-heads viz.:
i. Payable in Bangladesh;
ii. Payable outside Bangladesh,
b

The bills purchased and discounled have been analyzed as per the maturily grouping.
Writlen off loans and advances

Loans and advances are willen off lo the extent thal (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery, (i) and against
which legal cases are filed and classified as bad loss more than five years as per guidelines of Bangladash
Bank and (i) special permission of Bangladesh Bank. These write off however, will not underminefaffect that

claim amount against the borrowers, Detailed memorandum records for all such write off acoounls are
meticulously mainlained and followed up.

] - 224  Property, plant and equipment
E ] a) Recognition
-3 8 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment (Fixed assels) shall be recognized as an asset, if and only
o3 it is probable thal fulure economic benefils associaled with the item will flow 1o the entity and the cost of the
a P = item can be measured refiably.
% ) Property, plani and equipment have been accounted for at cost less accumulaled depraciation (except land)
E;g as per IAS- 16; Properly, Plant and Equipment. Cost includes expendilure that is directly altributable to the
i acquisition of the jtems. Subsequent cost of enhancement of an existing assel is recognized as a separate
=] asset, only when it is probable thal fulure economic benefils asseciated with the ilem can be measured reliably.
All olher repairs and mainlenance are charged to the profit & loss sccount duringAhe cial pariods which
) are Incurred. oo P
= f 27 ) : (~
a
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b) Depreciation

| &N Category of Fixed Assels Mathod of Depreciation Rate of Depreciation
Land NIA NA
_Immovable Property Reducing balance method 2.50%
Furniture & Fixtures = Reducing balance method i 10%
Office Equipment Reducing balance meéthod 20%
Mator Vehicles Straight line method 20% i
Books & Periodicals Reducing balance method 10%
Intangible Assets Reducing balance method 20%

c) Disposal of fixed asseis
On disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulaled depreciation are eliminated from the fixed assels
schedule and gains or losses on such disposal are reflecied in the profil and loss account as per provision
of IAS 16: Properly, Plant and Equipment.

d) Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress Is stated al cost. These are expenses of a capilal nature directly incurred in the
construction of building, system development, awailing capitaizalion.

e} Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly allributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of qualifying
assels have been capilalized as part of the cos! of the assets,

f)  Impairment
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets
should be reduced to ils recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense In the profit and loss accounl.

22.5 Intanglble assets
Soflware represents the value of computer application soltware licensed use of the Bank, other than software
applied to the operation software system of compulers, Software acquired by the Bank is slated al cosl less
accumulated amorlization and accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure incurred on software |s capitalized
only when it enhances and extends the economic benefits of compuler software beyond their original
specificalions and lives and such cost is recognized as capital improvement and added lo the original cost of
software. Software is amortized using the reducing balance method at the rate of 20%.

22.86  Other assets
Other assels include all assets not covered specifically in other areas of the supervisory aclivily and such
accounts may be quite Insignificant in the overall financial condition of the bank,

Pravision for othor assats

Other assets have been classified as per BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2001 of Bangladesh Bank and
necessary provisions made thereon accordingly and for items not covered under the circular adequale
provisions have been made considering their reliability.

22.7 Recoivables
Recelvables are recognized when there is a conlractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
another antity.

22.8 Loases
The Bank follows IFRS 16 which has been effective from 01 January 2018, As IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17
Leases, lhe Bank has made recognition, measurement and disclosure In the financial stalements of 31
December 2021 both as Lessee and Lessor as per IFRS 16

The Bank as Lessea
The Bank assesses at initistion of a contract whether the contracl |s, or conlains a lease. Thal is, if the contract
convays the right to control the use of an idenlified asset for a period of ime In exchange of consideration, then
TJ (he Bank considers the conlract as a lease contract.
r

The Bank as a lessee applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, excepl for shorl-
7 lerm leases, or, and lease of low value of assels. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities 1o make lease payment

and right-of-use assefs representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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If tenor of a lease conlract does nol exceed twelve months from the date of Inltiation/application, the Bank
considers (he lease pedod as short term In line with the recognition threshold of R
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policy of the Bank. In case of low value of lease assals, the Bank has sel a materiality threshold which is 0,10%
of Total capilal of the Bank. However, the bank used a flat threshold of BDT 20 million and above’ which Is
0.088% of total capital of the bank as of 31 December 2021, The reason behind considering the materialily
threshold of BDT 20 million and above js thal the Bank operates many ATM booths, sub-branches with short
and single contracts, recording of which as ROU assels would inflate the balance sheet both In assels and
liabilities. Moreover, frequent changes of those establishments would create misreporting as well as complexity

in recording,

Right-of-use assets (ROU);

The bank racognizes the right-of-use assets (ROU) at the commencement date of the lease (Le. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). ROU assels are measured at cosl less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment of losses and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ROU assets
includes the amount of lease liabililies recognized, initial direct cost incurred, and lease paymenl made at or
before Ihe commencemenl dale less any lease incenlives recsived. Right-of-use assets are deprecialed on a
straight-line basis over the lease tarm, or remaining period of the lease term.

The bank assessed all lease contracts live in 2019 & up lo December 2021 and recognized as Roll assels of
all leases, excepl short lerm and low value of assets as parameler guided by Bangladesh Bank and Banks'
own policy sel as per IAS 16 and IFRS 18. The ROU assels are presented in [he note no. 8 of lhese financlal
statements.

Lease Liabilities (Bank as a lesses):

At the commencemenl of the lease, the bank recognizes lease labdities measured al the present value of lease
payments lo be made over the lease torm. The lease payments Incude fixed and variable lease payment (loss
any adjusiment for inltial payment), and amount Is expected to be paid under residual value of guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of purchase optlon reasonably certain to be exsrcised by the
bank and payment of penalties for terminating the lease.

In 2019 & up to December 2021, the bank reassessed all lease payment of exisling contracts for remaining
period considering a cut-olf date L.e. 01 January 2019, The lease llabllities are presented in the nole 12.a2.8 of
Ihese financial stalements.

The Bank as Lessor

Amount due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Bank’s net
invesiment in the leases (Note-7.03), Finance lease Income Is allocated to accounling perods so as to reflect
& conslant periodic rale of return on the Bank's nel investment outstanding in respect of the leases

Non-Banking Assets

Non-banking assels are acquired on account of the failure of a borrower to repay the loan in fime after receiving
the decree from the court regarding the right and title of the morigaged properly, Howaver, lhe bank has no
non-benking assels,

Liabilities and provision

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Borrowings from other banks, financlal institutions and agents include Interest bearing borrowing redeemable
al call, on-demand and short-term deposits lodged for periods of less than 8 months. These ilems are broughi
lo account at the gross value of the oulstanding balance. Interest paid or payable on these borrowings is
charged to tha profil and lose account,

Deposits and other accounts
Deposils and other accounts include non-interest bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interesis bearing
on demand and short lerm deposits, savings deposit, term deposit, margin, bills payable elc. These items are
brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balances.

Othar lability

Other liability js recognized in the balance sheel according lo the guideline of Bangladesh Bank and Income-
lax Ordinance, 1984, IAS 37 and internal policy of the banks. Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized
in the financial stalements when the bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, il is
probable that an oulflow of economic benefil will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employee banefit schome

The retirement benefils accrued for the employees of the Bank as on reporting date have been accounted for
In accordance with provisions of IAS 19: Employee Benefils. Bases of enumeralting the retirement benefit
schemes operaled by the Bank are ouliined balow:

a) Provident Fund

x o [ T i~ E"G" lal
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Provident fund benefits are given to the permanent employees of the Bank In accordance with Bank's service
fules. Accordingly, a trust deed and provident fund rules were prepared. The Commissioner of Income Tax,
Taxes Zone 3, Dhaka has approved the Provident Fund as a recognized provident fund within the meaning of
section 2(52), read with the provisions of part-B of the First Schedule of Income-tax Ordinance, 1984, The
recognition took effect from 30 April 2001. The Fund |s operaled by a Board of Trustees consisting of 5 (five)
members. All confirmed employees of the Bank conlribule 10% of their basic salary as a subscription to the
fund. Tha Bank also contribules equal amount of the employees' contribulion, Interest earned from the
investment is credited to the members’ account on yaarly basis,

b) Gratuity

The Bank operates a funded graluily scheme approved by the National Board of Revenue. The Gratuity Fund
is managed separately by "Mulual Trus! Bank Limited Employeas Gratuily Fund® and any investrment decision
out of this fund is also made by this trust,

As per graluity scheme every permanenl employee will get gratully benefit as per following policy thal rendering
thelr service without break;

Completed years of Service Paymaent of Gratulty
20 B years & above 2.00 baslc for each year of service in MTB
7 years 1.70 basic for each year of service in MTE
= . 6 years 1.35 basic for each year of service in MTB
5 years 1.00 basic for each year of service in MTB e

c) MTB Employees’ Welfare Fund

The welfare fund Is subscribed by monthly contribution of the employees. The Bank also contributes to the fund
from time to lime. The fund has been established lo provide a loken of appreciation or financial assistance to
the employees and their family members for education, funeral function etc. The fund is governed and
administered by (he Board of frustees consisting of four (04) members.

d) MTB Employees’ Madical Assistance Fund

Medical Assistance fund is subscribed by the employees as per policy. The Bank also conlributes lo the fund
from time 1o lime. The fund has been established to provide modical assistance lo the employees with
dependents. The fund is govemed and administered by the Board of trustees consisting of four (04) members.

e) MTB Employees’ Hospitalization and Group Life Policy

The Bank, as an adherence 1o the bes! practice in the banking industry and to strengthen its corporate culture,
introduced the Group Life and Hospilalization policy for its employees and Ihelr dependents (spouse and kids)
effective from 01 January 2019,

f) MTB Employees' Death Benefit Plan

The plan has been formed lo provide financial benefil to fhe bareaved family of a deceased employee. The
Bank contributes to the fund from the annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed and
administered by the Board of trustees consisling of four (04) membars. In case of death of an employee while
in active service, financial benefit is paid 1o the nominee of the deceased employee al a prescribed amount
ranging from BDT 3 (three) lacs to 10 (len) lacs.

a) MTB Foundation

The Bank, as parl of corporate social responsibilily, has established MTB Foundation for the benefil of the
community in which it operates and as part of its said responsibility it commils itself 1o human development,
poverly alleviation and overall national economic development, The Bank contributes to the fund from the
annual profit of the Bank on requirement basis. The fund is governed and adminislered by the Board of trustees
consisting of nine (08) members,

§ § — h} Incentive Bonus
ke Mutual Trust Bank Limited has started an incentive bonus schame for its employees. This bonus amount is
g 3N \J distributed among the employees based on their performance. The bonus amount is paid annually and costs
Wi are accounted for the period lo which It relates,
g,ﬁ E T 235 Debt securities
- i 3 The Bank issued a conlingenl-converlible Perpatual bond as additional Tier-1 capital having received required
5 o approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC through private placement and bank issuad T-year non-convenible
=m= floating rale subordinated debls in two phases mainly to increase Tier-2 capital having received requined
& e approval from Bangladesh Bank and BSEC. Outstanding balance against the Bonds are stated in the financial
ﬁ\-‘“ staternents al principal amount and interes! payable of which is reported under other liabilities, Delails of debt
securilles is glven in note no. 13.a & annexure-D of the financial stalsments.
J
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jMMM?“.T-_iIE'!-"" !1'1:'.4_.._11 Ot
Group Chie pirg rrited

J Mutual Trust .j{.ir.lus.i_muh\

Corporate Head

anaging Directar & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limitad




Jbwey wizue|

s

paywr] uswgsasdj gonN
032 % topaug Buibeuey

P

i s - F
ghammad M i
Téj?up Chial P

& E'-'l'
mﬂﬁﬁmm

oeatn beed O

)
wd

2.6

2.3.7

2.4
2.4.1

24.2

24.3

244

24.5

24.6

Taxation

a. Gurrent tax

The tax currently payable s based on taxable profit for the perlod. Taxable profit differs from profil as reporied
in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of incomie or expense that are laxable or deductible in
other period or are never taxable or deductible. Bank’s liability for cument tax Is calculaled using tax rates thal
have been enacted the reporling period. Tax provision of the Group enlities is made on laxable income of
subsidiaries al different rates applicable as per the ITO 1984 and the tax authority of the country where it is
incorporated.

b, Deferred tax

The Bank recognizes the current and deferred tax in the financial statements using the provisions of the
prevailing tax laws applicable in Bangladesh, as per IAS 12 (Income Taxes) and BRPD Circular no. 11 dated
12 December 2011. Deferred lax liabilities are generaly recognized for all laxable lemporary differences.
Deferred tax assels are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable thal laxable profils will be available agains! which such differences can be uliized. Deferred Tax
liabilites are also recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investmenis and it is probable that
temparary differences will not reverse in the loreseeable future. Deferred lax is calculated atthe lax rates, which
are expecled to apply in the period when the liability is sellled or the asset is realized. Details of deferred tax
assels or labilities and amount recognized in profit and loss account for deferred tax income or expense are
given in note 8.a.4.2.1 in the financial stalements.

Provislon for Nostro Accounts

As per Instruclions contained in the Circular Letter # FEPD (FEM0)/01/2005-877, dated 13 Seplember 2005
issued by Foreign Exchange Policy Depariment of Bangladesh Bank, the Bank is not required to make @
provision regarding the un-reconciled debil balance of Nostro accounts as on the reporing dale in these
financials as there are no un-reconciled anlrias which are cutstanding more than 3 months.

Capltal and shareholders' equity

Capital management

The Bank has a capital management process in place to measure, deploy and monitor its available capital and
assess (ls adequacy. This capital managemen! process aims to achieve four major objectives; exceed
regulatory thresholds and meet longer-term internal capllal targets, maintain slrong credit rating, manage
capilal lavels commensurale with the risk profile of the Bank snd provide the Bank's shareholders with
acceplable relurns.

Capital is managed in accordance with the board approved capital management planning from time to time.
Senlor management develops the capital stralegy and oversees the capital management planning of the Bank.
The Bank's finance and risk management depariment are key to implementing the Bank's capilal strategy and
managing capital, Capital is managed by using both regulalory control measure and internal matrix.

Paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents lotal amount of shareholder capital that has been pald In full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive diidends as declared from lime Io time and
are enlitied lo vole at shareholders meetings. In the event of a winding-up of the company ordinary shareholders
rank after all other shareholders and credilors and are fully entitled 1o any residual proceeds of iquidation.

Statutory reserve
The Stalutory reserve has been maintained @ 20% of profit before tax in accordance with provisions of section
24 of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 (and amendment lhereon).

Share Premlum

Share premium is the capital that the Bank raises upon Issuing shares that Is in excess of Ihe nominal value
of the shares. The share premium shall be utilized in accordance with provisions of section 57 of the Companies
Act, 1894 and as direcled by Bangladesh Securilies and Exchange Commission in this respect.

Revaluation Resorve on Govl. Securltles
Revaluation reserve represent revaluation on Treasury band (HFT and HTM) in accordance wilh the DOS
Circular # 05 dated 26 May 2008 & DOS Circular # 05, dated 28 January 2009.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-Conlrolling Interesi in business is that portion of the profit of loss and nel assets of a subsidiary atiibutable
lo equily inlerests that are not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent.

nssip, FCA
._iafgﬂ‘-ri"' Off Balance Sheat items
« Limited Under general banking transactions, liabilities against acceptance, endorsements and other obligations and

u Dhoka. bills against which acceptance has been given and claims exists there agains

have been shown as Off-
Balance Sheel items. Provision for off balance sheet items is made as per BRPD Circular # da
Seplember 2012 and BRPD Circular # 01 dated 03 January 2018,

( 3 . ﬂu::'i‘. -
e
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b Managing Director & CEO
"o e Hesd Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Memorandum items
Momorandum items are maintained for those items for which the Bank has only a business responsibility and
no legal commitment.

Revenuo recognition
The Revenue during the period has been recognized according o the provision of IFRS 15: Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, as well as Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

Interest Income

In lerms of the provisions of the IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Cuslomers, the interest income is

recognized on accrual basis. Inleres! on loans and advances ceases fo be laken Into income when such

advances are classified.

a) Inlerest on unclassified loans and advances (except SMA) has been accounted for as income on accrual
basis and calculated on dally product basis but charged and accounted for quarterly and in some cases
yearly;

b) Inlerest on classified loans and advances has been credited (o interest suspense account with aclual
receipl of interest there from having credited to income as and when received as per instruclion of
Bangladesh Bank;

¢) No Interest is changed on loans and advances which have been classified as badfoss:

d) Commission and discount on bills purchased and discounied are recognized at the lime of realization; and

) Recovery of wrillen off loans and advances are taken inlo income In the period of its recaipis from the
defaulling borrowers,

Investment income

Interest income on investments is recognized on accrual basis. Capilal gain on investments in shares is also

included in investment income. Capltal gain is recognized when it is realized.

* Income on invasiment in ireasury bills, bonds, preference shares and debenture elc. other than equity shares
has been accounted for on accrual basis.

* Govl. securiies (HTM) are revalued on accrual basis and effect of such revaluation gain has been credited
to Asset Revaluation Reserve account,

+ Dividend on equily shares is recognized during the period In which it is declared and duly approved,

* Netincrease in securities held to maturity during the perod due to the valuation al mark-to-markel basis has
been credited to income statement.

Fees and commission Income

+ Commission charged to cuslomers on letlers of credit and letters of guarantee are credited to income at
the time of effecting the transactions.

* Fees and Commissions on bills discounted, purchased & cthers are recognized at the lime of realization.

* Foreign currency iransactions are converted into BDT al prevalling on the dates of such transactions and
exchange gains of losses arising oul of such transactions are recognized as income or apense for the
period and deall with exchange account.

Dividend incoma on shares
Dividend income on shares is racognized during the perfod in which it is declared and ascertained.

Othor operating income
Other operaling income is recognized at the time when il is realized

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings
Interest paid on deposils, borrowing and other expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

Oparaling expenses
Expenses incurred by the bank are recognized on accrual basis. Expenses incurred by the Bank shown in these
financiat statements are Inclusive of VAT where applicable as per the Value Added Tax Act, 2012

Other comprohansive income
Other comprehensive income is not prepared in accordance with |AS 1: Presentation of Financial Stalements.
However, elements of other comprehensive income, if any, are shown in the statement of changes inequily.

Earnings per shara

Baslc earnings per share
Basic eamings per share have baen calculaled in accordance with 1AS 33: Earmings per Share which has been
shown on the face of statement of profit and loss account This has been calculated by dividing the basic
earmings by the welghted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding during Ihe period.
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Woeighted average numbaer of ordinary shares

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at Ihe beginning of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares [ssued during the year. The basis of compulation of number of shares is in ine with the pravision
of IAS 33: Eamings per Share.

Diluted earnings per share
No diluted eamings per share is required o calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year under review,

Reconciliation of inter-bank/inter-branch account

Accounts with regard lo inter-bank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) are reconciled regularly and there
are no material differences which may affect the financial statements significantly. Un-reconciled
eniries/balances In the case of inter-branch transactions as on the reporting date are nol material.

Proposed dividend

Final dividend is recognized when it Is approved by the shareholders In AGM. However, the proposed dividend
for the year 2021 has nol been recognized as a liability in the balance sheel in accordance with IAS 10: Events
aftar the Reporling Period. Dividend payable to the Bank's shareholders is recognized as a ability and
:ieducln: from the shareholders’ equity in the period In which the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
eslablished,

Operating segmant

As per IFRS- 8: The Group has identified following five reportable segments which are the Group's major
slrategic business units/entities. The strategic business units offer different products and services, and are
managed separalely based on the management and intemal reporting structure of the group. For each of the
siralegic business units, the Group's/Bank's Managemen! Commiillee reviews Internal management reports on
quarterly basls. The following summary describes the operations in each of the reportable segmanis:

Sogmant Nama Description

Deals with the fuli range of commercial banking products and services
DBO (Domestic Banking Operation) | oMered by four different business units: Cosporate, Commercial, Retail
_Banking and Treasary. et
Deals with loans, deposits and olher transaclions and balances in freely

98U (Ofkars B Unk) convertible ible corporate customars.
curilie It buys, sells and deals in shares, debenlures and other securiies on behall
pate d lelud of customers and dogs landing elc.

It s Issue mansgement, underwriling, portfollo management, corporate
MTB Capital Limited advisory services lo the clients including advisory services on mesger and
amalgamation, capial restructuring, bond services ate.

MTB Exchangs (UK) Limiled m@:ﬂﬁlh trade fnance and off-shote banking business n Uniled

Conselidated Solo

Performance is measured based on segment revenue and profit, as Included in he Internal managemen
reports that are reviewed by the Management Commitlee of the Bank. Segment profil is used to measure
performance as management believes that such Information is relevant In avalualing the results of certain

segments.

Litigation
The Bank is not a party to any lawsuits except those arising in the normal course of business, which ware filed
against the defaull clients for non-performance in loans repayment and against various level of tax authority
regarding some dispuled tax issues. The Bank, however, provides adequate provisions as per guidelines of
IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels.

Write-Off

Wiite-ofl describes a reduction in recognized value, It refers to racognition of the reduced or zero value of an
assel, Generally, it refers toloan for which a relum on the loan is now impossible or unlikely. The itern’s potential
retum is thus canceled and removed from ("written off’) the bank's statement of financial position. Recovery
against debis writlen off/provided for s credited lo revenus. Income is recognized where amounis are eilher
recovered andlor adjusted agains! securities/properties or advances thare-againsi or are considered
recoverable.

Accounting for changes in policy, Accounting Estimates and Errors

According to IAS 8 Accounling policies, changes In accounling estimates and errors, the effect of a change in
accounting policy and correction of error if material is to be applied retrospectively and change in an accounting
estimale is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amount of assets, liabilities, or equity may be changed
following @ change In accounling estimates in the period of the change. The Bank followed the same
accordingly.

S Wahaging Direclor & CEO
paukibsit BOG Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Mt L

s



2.15 Related Parly disclosures
A parly Is related to the company If;

i) direclly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the parly conlrol, ls controlled by, or is under

) common control with, the company; has an interast in the company that gives it significant influence over
the company; or has joint control over the company;

i} the parly is an associate;

ill) the parly is a joint venture,

iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the company of its parent;

v) lhe pary Is a close member of the family of any individual refemred to in (i) or (iv);

vi) the party is an enlily that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant
' voling power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to In (iv) or (v); or

vii) the party Is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the company, or of any entity

thal is a related party of the company,

216 Compliance report on International Accounting Standards (1ASs) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)
The Financial Reporling Council of Bangladesh (FRC) Is the sole authorlly for adoption of International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporfing Standards (IFRSs). Mutual Trust Bank
Limited has applied all the applicable IASs and IFRSs ss adopled by the FRC while preparing the financial

slatements. Detalls are given below;

F Name of the International Accounting Standards (IAS) IAS No. | Status
Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied*
Inventories 2 | WA
Slatemenl of Cash Flows 7 Applied"
Accounling policies, Changes in accounting Estimates & Errors [ Applied
Events after the Reporting Period 10 Applied
Income Taxes 12 Applied
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied
Employees Benefits 19 Applied
| Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance 20 NA
The Effecls of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales 21 Applied
Borrowing Costs 23 | Applied |
Related Parly Disclosures 24 Applied |
Accounling and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 26 NIA
Separate Financlal Statements S 27 Applied
Invesiment in Associates 28 NIA
Intarest in Joint Venltures 3 NIA
Financial Instruments; Presentation 32 Applied*
Earnings per share 33 Applied
| Interim Financial 34 Appliad
Impairment of Assels 36 Applied
. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingenl Assels 37 Apphad*
o= - _Intangible Assels 38 Applied
bt Invastmanl Properly 40 NI
22 g Agricuiure ¥ 41 NIA
3o Y international Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRS) IFRS No. | Status
Ef 4 First-fime Adoption of Bangladesh Financial Reporling Standard 1 NIA
® 3 % ' Shares Based Payment 2 NIA
c e Business Combination 3 Applied
! Q 7s] Insurance Conlracts —— 74 NIA
E an Non-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation 5 NA
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources A 8 NIA
Financial instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied*
Operating Segments 8 Applied
Financial Inslruments ] Applad*
Consolidated Financial Statemenis 10 Applied
Joint Arrangements 1 MNIA
| Disclosure of Interests in other Entilies 12 NIA
| Fair Value Measuremant 13 |  Apphed*
| Regulatory Deferral Accounts ST 14 A
/ in, FCA_Revenue from conlracls with customers 15 Applied
Ngrammad NamUFOSE o1 T enses 18 Applied

i ﬂg;:f',ﬂ::j;t'gm Limited Bangladesh Bank is the prime regulatory body for banks in Bangladesh. Some requirements of Bangladesh

dorporatn Head Office, Dhaks Bank's rules and regulations conlradict with the provision of IASIFRS as marked above and described in note
2.1.1 As such ihe bank has deparied from those contradiclory requirements of i

J wilh the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank,

Mahbubur Ranmar
Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Risk Managemaont

Risk is an integral part of banking business, and MTB aims al delivering superior shareholder value by achieving
an appropriale trade-off belween risks and relurn. The policies and procedures established for this purpose are
continuously reviewed in our ques! 1o benefit from a blend of local and Intemational praclices. MTB conducts
s risk management aclivities following six core risk guidelines of Bangladesh Bank and Basel norms. Al the
directives of Bangladesh Bank, MTB has established a separate Risk Management Division (RMD) to identify,
measure, monilor and manage risks more eflectively and efficiently. MTB's Risk management process is
accomplished al stralegic level, managerial level and at operational level. Al strategic level, MTB Board of
Directors (BOD), through Board Risk Management Commitiee {BRMC) & senior management, sels up risk
govermance slructure & risk philosophy, endorses risk sirategies, reviews & approves risk policies as well as
the threshold fimits of risks that may be taken in line with Bank’s risk appetite. These limils are continuousiy
monitored by an experienced risk management team and overseen by BRMC. At managerial level, policies and
sirategies formulated by BOD are implemented by middle managemant or divislons/departments/units devoled
to risk reviews. RMD reports high-risk related matters, identified by the management-level risk committee to the
BRMC. RMD also submils periodic stress lesling resulls o the BOD as well. Operational level encompasses
on-the-line risk management, where risks are actually created at front office or at credit desk of the bank.

MTB's risk management in the following areas, among others, is mentionad briefly:

(a) Credit Risk Managemant

Credil risk is the risk due lo a borrower's inability to meet iis financial obligations o the lender. The credil risk
is ganerally made up of tansaction risk or defaull risk and portfolio risk. We have standardized credi approval
processes. Credit risk is controlled through segmental exposure limits lo various industries and sectors,
prudential exposure and substantial exposure celling and risk mitigation by oblaining collateral and guarantees.

The Bank has put in place a well-struclured Credil Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board. In
addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the Bank has also famed Board approved credit policy and ensures
compliance with regulalory requirements, more particulady in respect of Exposures norms, Assels
Classification guidelines, Capital Adequacy guideline, atc. of Bangladesh Bank/other Statutory Autharities.

Credil Risk is monitored by the Bank account wise and compliance with the risk lim/ts/exposure cap approved
by the Board is ensured. The quality of internal control syslem is also monitored and in-house expertise has
been built up to tackle all ihe facels of Cradil Risk,

The Bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credil Grid
has been constituled al Head office level for considering freshienhancements proposals, The Bank assessos
varlous risk factors for new products prior lo s introduction.

{b) Market Risk
Markel risk is the possibiity of loss arising from changes In the value of a financial instrument as a result of
changes in market variables such as inferest rates, exchange rates, equity and commodily prices,

l. Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Foreign Exchange Risk s a measure by the variance of the dornestic currency value of an asset, Bability or
operaling income that is allributable to unanlicipated change in the exchange rates. Simply, It Is the risk that
relatas lo gainsflosses that arise due to fluctuatlons in the exchange rales.

In view of the significance of the markel risk and in order lo apgregate all such risks at a single depariment and
to bring expertise in such functions, the concept of treasury has evolved. Today's financial institutions engage
in activities from import, export and remittance to complex derivatives involving basic foreign exchange and
money markel to complex struclured products. All these require a high degree of experfise thal is diflicult to
achieve in the transactions originating from departments and as such the expertise in housed In a separale
deparlmeni L.e. Treasury.

MTE has already segregated Treasury funclions in three separste wings i.e. Front office, Back office and Mid
office.

In compiiance with the requirement of Bangladesh Bank's Foreign Exchange Risk Management guidelines,
Treasury depariment is pedorming the foreign exchange dealing in an appropriale manner and managing risks
of the organization's overal balance sheel as well as the capital of the Bank,

,, Dhake associaled with business and failure lo take timely measures in giving a sense of direction threalens the very

existence of the institulions. It is therefore, imperalive for the bank to form a fAsset Liab ‘ gemenl

{ K J AA8ieRlahbubur Rahman
s yRez8 Managing Director & CEO
itk Mo Pabicent & Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Gommillee (ALGO)" with the senior managemenl as its members lo control and betler manage its Balance
Sheel Risk,

In compliance wilh the requirement of Bangladesh Bank's Asset Liability Management guidelines, MTE has
formed "Asset Liabilily Management Commiltee" (ALCO) with the senlor executives. The Commitlee meets
once every month to set and review strategies on Asset Liabiity Management (ALM).

MTB ALM desk performs Money Market activitios, manages liquidily and interest rate risk of the bank and
understands markel dynamics i.e. competilion, potential target markels elc., updates the balance sheet
movements and complies with the statulory obligations as well as the risk elements involved with the business.

il Equity Risk
Equity risk arises from movement in market value of securiies. The investment committee monitors the risks
under a well-designed policy framework.

{c) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external evenls. Operational risks in the Bank are managed through a comprehensive and wellarticulated
internal control framework. Material losses are regulary analyzed by cause and actions are taken lo improve
syslem and controls to prevent recurrence in the future,

MTB has restruciured Intemal Control and Compliance Department (ICCD) headed by a senior level execulive
in light of Core Risk guldelines of Bangladesh Bank, The Depariment Is comprised of three divisions: Audit and
Inspection Division, Compliance Division and Monitoring Division. The Bank has developed Intemal Control and
Compliance Policy duly approved by the Board of Direclors, complying with the directives of the revised
guidelines of Bangladesh Bank on ICC in Banks,

As a lool of Internal Control, the Audit and inspection teams undertake periodic and special sudit and inspeclion
on the branches and depardments/divisions of Head Office in order to sort out the weaknesses and defects in
the conltrol process and report 1o the management for laking correclive measures lo protect the interests of the
Bank,

The Compliance and Monitoring Divisions of this deparimen! ensure timely and proper compliance of all
regulatory instructions and internal policies and procedures in the day-to-day operation of the Bank by way of
using various control tools. They assess the operational rlsk and take appropriate measures to miigate the same
for smooth operation of the Bank. ICCD reports serious non-compliances delected by internal and external
auditors with up-to-date compliance position thereto, large financial risk exposures, conlrol weaknesses etc. lo
the Audit Committee of ihe Board for review and taking appropriate measures.

The ICCD also ensures clear definition of organizational structure, appropriate assignment, accountability and
delegation of authorities to functional management to create control and compliance cullure within the
ofganization with active guidance and supervision of senior management and Board of Directors.

Business anlities today exist in a highly competitive world. They are constantly innovating to meet the# business
objectives providing essential and unique services to their cuslomers. Technology advances have enabled them
to achieve their varied stralegies. And yel, the threals of disaster, on account of business interruption, are not

=

O®

by 8 extincl. In fact, they have also evolved along with the technology. Keeping that in mind MTB has taken up its
E a N Business Continuity Planning (BCP) as the most significant challenges working oul a way lo prevent, if possible,
» o3 and manage the consequences of a disaster, limiting it lo the extent thal a business can afford. Besides BCP,
g 5> the Bank Is also facusing on combating securily threats as well. In keeping with our cenlralized management
3 '& &= b model, each branch within the Bank has its own ICT systems. Aclions taken include the updaling of software
o and analyzing new software, enhancing ICT relaled conlrols, training of staff in system knowledge and sharing
3 o Q w of best practices batween branch users,

] -

B (d) Money Laundering Risk

Money Laundering risk of Financial Institutions lies with the involvement in any single transaction or series of
iransactions thal assists a criminal in keeping, concealing o disposing of proceeds derived from lilegal
aclivities. So it is a major threat to the banks and non-bank financial institutions.

™ Mutual Trust Bank (MTB), as a compliant bank, is firmly delermined not to lel money launderars and terrorists

o perpelralors lo use it as a channel to launder money or finance terrorism in any possible way. Hence, MTB

ECA hag its own Anti Mana:@r Lqunderlnq (AML) & Combating Financing of Terrorism (CFT) compliance program

—; Nazmil Fossa .'-I-i“ . which is designed considering the size & range of activilies, complexity of operations and the nalure & degree
ko up Chiet Frisead 0 of Money Laundering & Terrorist Financing risks faced by the bank. Certainly, it is designed as per the prevailing
tr?.t':':ah?m Trust Ban® L. . laws (ie. Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012 (Amendment 2015), The Anti-Terorlsm Act, 2000
Corporte Head O {Amended- 2012 & 2013), rules (i.e. Money Laundering Prevention Rules, 2013, Anli-Terorism Rules, 2013),
) BFIU guidelines (i.e. Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk Management Guidelines), circulars &
instruction and international standards. MTB applies risk sensitive Cuslomer Due Diligence {CDD) measures,

[ ' i R
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monitors business relationships and records suspicious Fansactions pursuant lo the national reguations and
international standards.

MTB has developed its own Money Laundering (ML) & Terroris| Financing (TF) Risk Management Guideline
enlaifing the cuslomer acceplance policy and the ML & TF Risk Assessment Guldeline. The customer
acceplance policy Incorporates the delail customer due diigence procedure for acceptancefejection of
cuslomer, procedures lo open & operate different types of account, The ML & TF Risk Assessment Guideline
incorporates the risk register in line with BFIU guideline. Department has been reformed as 'Central
Compliance Unit (CCU)" under the direct supervision of the MD & CEO which consists of 8 (eight) members
having experlise in the field of general banking and information technology. Every year, the MD & CEO of the
bank makes statement of commitment in writing to all employees thal clearly sels forih MTB's polcy against
Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing & Proliferation Financing.,

(e) Fraud and Forgerles

Fraud Deteclion and Management Process: The Bank has ils board approved Fraud Management Policy
Internal Audit (1A) team conducts surprise audil on all MTE tranches and offices of the Head Office al leasl
once in a year (high risk branches are audited half-yearly basis). While auditing branches and offices, the
Internal Audlt (IA) teams thoroughly check the operational ectivilies of lhe branchesfofices including
Iransactions in various accounlts and search for any iregularties occurred in those accounts. 1A leams also
manitor the staff accounts and if necessary investigate the suspicious lransaclions and report the same to the
management, IA leams also conducl investigation Inlo specific allegalions and submils repods o the
management for action. Senior management of the bank also conducts regular visit to MTB branches and
advises the branch officials to comply with all the regulatory instructions, policies and procedures of the bank.

Implemantation of BASEL-lII

Bangladesh Bank issued ‘Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RECA) for banks’ (Revised Regulatory
Capltal Framework in line with Basel-lll) vide iis BRPD Clrcular 18 dated 21 December 2014 that Basal-lil
reporting starl from January 2015 and full implementation will star from January 2021. The Basel-ll rules on
capital consist of measures on improving the quality, consistency and transparency of capital, enhancing risk
coverage, introducing a supplementary laverage ralio and promoling counter-cyclical buffers and addressing
systemic risk and interconnectedness,

In 2021, the Bank Is required to maintain minimum Common Equity Tier-1 (CET-1) capital ratio of 4.50%, capital
conservation buffer 2.50%, minimum CET-1 plus conservaion bufler of 7.00%, minlmum Tier-1 capital ratio of
6.00%, minimum total capital ratio 10.00% and minimum tolal capital plus capital conservation buffer 12.50%

Pillar-l: Minimum Capital Requirement
Banks must hold minimum regulalory capital against Credil, Market and Operational Risk Inherent with Banking
Business. Mutual Trust Bank Limited has adopted the following measuremen! approaches for compuling its
Capital Adequacy Ratio;

- Standardized Approach for Credil Risk

- Basle Indicalor Approach for Operational Risk, and

- Standardized Approach for Marke! Risk

Pillar-ll: Suparvisory Review Process (SRP)
The Supervisory Review Process (the Second Pillar of Basal-1ll) of he risk-based capital adequacy ramework
is inlended fo ensure that banks have adequate capilal to support allthe risks in the business and, concurrently,
lo encourage banks to develop and ulilize superior risk management techniques in moniloring and managing
risks. In compliance with the Pillar-1l guidelines of tha Bangladesh Bank under Basel||l framework, Mutual Trust
Bank Limited has formulated its own Board approved Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
lo assess various risks that il is exposed to. Following Risk has lo be assessed for Adequate Capital
Requiremenl under ICAAP as per Bangladesh Bank Guldeline:

- Residual Risk

- Concenlration Risk

- Liguidity Risk

- Reputation Risk

- Strategic Risk

- Setllerment Risk

- Evaluation of Core Risk Managemenl

- Environmenial & Climate Change Risk

= Other Material Risks

Pilfar-li: Market Discipline
The purpose of market discipline is lo establish transparency and discipline in the financial markets so that
stakeholders can assess the position of a bank with respect lo the assets held by it as well as lo identify the
risks relating to these assels and the capital adequacy lo mest probable losses, For (his purpose, banks have
la develop a set of disclosures containing information on the assels, risk exposures, risk assessment processes
and the capital adequacy 1o meet the risks. The Pillar-Ill Disclosures are published on a yearly basis on the
Bank's website also published in the Bank's Annual Repont,
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219 Audit Committos
) In compliance to Bangladesh Bank's circular, the Board of Directors has formed an Audit Commillee comprising

of the following 4 (Four) Direclors of the Board,

81, No. Namo of the Director Status with the Bank | Status with the Commiltee
01, | Ms Nasreen Saltar Independent_Direclor Chairman
02 | Mr. M. A Roul JP Direclor Member
03| Ms. Anika Chowdhury Director Member
04. | Mr. Daniel Donald de Lange Direclor Member
05 Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddigi Independent Direclor Member

During the period, 04 (Two) meetings of Ihe audil committee were hald.

Audit commilles reviews various audilfinspection reports al regular intervals. Upon scruling of the audil
objections and compliance, the commiltee advised the management lo remain within the policy guidelines and
diractives of the regulatory authoritias.

As per circular, the commiltee places their report regularly to the board meetings of the Bank mentioning their
aclivites & recommendations of the Internal control system, compliance of rules and regulalions and

establishmant of good governance within the organization

220  Directors responsibllity on statements
The Board of Direclors lakes the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial

statemanis.

2 Credit rating of the Bank
As per BRPD Circular no. 6 dated 5§ July 2008, the Bank has done ils credil rating by Credit Rating Information
and Services Limiled (CRISL) based on the audiled financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

December 2020, The following ralings have been awarded:

Particulars Periods Date of rating Validity Date 'l"“:“u Short term
Entity rating | January lo December 2020 | 23 May 2021 | 22 May 2022 AN sT-2
Enlity rating | January (o December 2018 | 15 July 2020 | 14 July 2021 A 5T-2

2.22 Events afier the reporting period

Material events after the reporting period need to be considered and appropriate adjustments/ disclosures
accordingly are always made Iin the financial statemenis as per IAS 10: Events after Ihe Reporiing Period.
Board's recommendation for dividend distribution is a common item presented In the note no. 51.

223 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial stalements were approved by the Board of Direclors on 25 April 2022,

2.24 General;

8) These financial staleménts are presented In BDT, which s the Bank's functional currency, Figure appearing
in these financial statements have been rounded off to lhe neares! BOT,

E =
0
s 5 E‘r* b) The expenses, irespective of capital or revenue nalure, accrued/due but not paid have been provided for
EE ﬁ in the books of the Bank,
o o3 c) Figures of previous year have been rearranged whenever necessary lo conform to current period's
g - | :b' presantation.
2 é 0 le d) NoAssat has been sel off against any Liabilily except MTE General Account.
|
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Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and lis Subsidiarios
Notes (o tha Financlal $tatements
 th Year onibaid

o 1 .
Particulsrs

300 Comsalidsied cash
|, Emah b hand iineluding forslan curneney
Musual Trust sk Limited (Nots-3.1)
MTH Securies Limitod
MTI Cagpilal Lirnised
MTE Exchasge (L) Limbad

il, Balance with Banalssesh Bank and its Asant Bankis) fincleding foroion eutreasy)
Mutssal Tromd Bk Limllod (Nobe- 3023

MTH Socisitss Limiad

MTE Caplsl Limiled

MTE Enchangs (UK) Linlod

3a Cash
Cirsh in Hand {Includling Facnign Cusincy)
Dstanice with Bargisdash Baik snd ks agand Dankis] pochasing lomekgn curency)

3 Cash i Hand (Inchuciing Faralgn Curmaney)
Loca Cunénty
Farelgn Cutrancy

Mlamic Banking Branchas

303 Balance with Banglacesh Bank and its sgent Bank(s} inchiding farsign currency)
Wilh Dangladesh [ ank:
Local Carrancy
Fareign Currency
With Sonall Bank {23 agend of Hangiadesh Bank-Local Curency)

Iutsmile Baihlng Brasches

2820639 B50
10,810,302
any |

:.m.::!;ﬁm'

a.041 530,411

[tiwanoml| atarm
1 1
—LAB0I0000, 31, TLI60.081,

raf un

[

g_

IR FE | KL NATE

All unadjusied anires pe -M%hluuﬂr baals,
4.2 Gosh Resorve Roquiramant (CAR ) and Sistutary Liquidity Ratio (SLR |

mmmmmmmwmmmmwﬁ mEntalaed i sccordance with Soction 33 of The Bark A,
VB (s amended In 2013) and Bangladesh Dank MPO circutnr . 03 dated 09 Apl 2020, BOS creular no. 70 dated 10 Augual 2010 and BIPD (*3WT442TII020.

4000 for Offskern Bankdng Link,
A Canh Rosarvs Requieman (CHI)

As per Bangfadash Bank MPD circular me. 03 daled 09 Apel, 2020; bank has ko mairdsn CRR 3.50% on dady basls aod 4.00% on bi-weskly basis based on wepkly
Average of Tobsl Demand snd Time Linbifia (ATOTL) of the bane monih which i bvo metlhe pior laraparing month. Tha reasna imlrldinad by MIB an sl 31 Docembes

2021 s prossndad beiow,
8. Cash Renerve Mequiremant (CRR) for Ofahore banking Unit

A3 per Bangladesh Bank cocular no. BRPOWP- FTAARTV2020-4088 deted 18 Jume, 2000 Offshore banking unil has o maviasa CRR 1.50% on dady basis and 2 00% on
bé-woukly bash based on woskly Avirags of Total Demand snd Tienan Lisbslitian (ATOTL of Ba bade iiionth which I bwa mosiha priod 10 reparting monis. Tho resssve

maklaingd by WTE s of 31 Decsmbar 2001 |5 presenisd below.

Dagdoan Dec2030
L Dafty Bank's CRR Makntanance includag Offshore Banking Ualt Ratio in % BOT Milllon Ratio In'% BOT Milllon
Requited Resarve (3.50% of ATOTL) for DS0 A5 6,980,17 150% .07 68
Raduired Reseren (1 800 of ATDTL) lor OBO 1 149 1 50% 118.08
Al ‘[ﬁ!‘ ____Thdsd
Achunl Rosores Maintsng i 4 1 4 0402 41
Surples A 1,069.47
Ui, Blwwekly Bank's CAR Malnienance’
Requred Resenma (4.00% of ATDTL) jor DBO 4 00 787738 400 0.346.00
Peiquined Rasand (200% of ATOTL) lor OB " 15341
IE BATE0 alal B,402.41
Actunl Ressrve Malilainod A 8,344 4 4035 1,443 93
Sorples 1 S (7

* Lasl b-weekly average os of 3 Decernber 2021
€. Siatatory Liguldity Ratio [SLR)

Ax por Saction 10 of e Bank Cornpany Acl, 1091 & WPD circulnd e, 0F detedd Decomber 10, 1013 msued by Dangladesh Bank wih efsct bem Fotevary 1, 2014, bk
had b mainkain SLR of minimum 13 00% based on weelly Average Total Demand and Ting Lishilities (ATOTL) of the basa month which is b monss prioe o mparing

manth SLR masdnned By s bivk a4 0l 31 December 2021 is prosentod below,

Dag'2821 Dot
Ratiein % BOT Miltian Ralin in % BOT Maion
13.00% 5000 13 0,600 27
1.3 004 g &

Roquiied Reseres (1% of ATDTL) for RO
Requied Rosare (13% of ATOTL) for QB0

Hesnive Waitsned

{voeporale Head Office, Dhaka

J
]
)

V'Syed Mahbubur Rahman

Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limited



Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and Its Subsidiarios
Notes (o the Financlal Stalemania
[Iﬂmimnﬁﬂ.MIML_ ;

Particulars

! | Companents of Siallary Liguldity Ratie (SLA) {BOT Million)
Cagh i Hasd

1] Excess Cash Reserve®

i Binlanco with Agoest Blank (Sonad Bank Lid)

\ Hisldl s Musdurily (HTM) Bacurlias
Huid few Trmding (HFT) SecurSes
b alipisis setuitinn

'-'lli_'l" amgladosh Bank D08 chreuar mo. 28 dabed |0 Augusl 2010; Cash Resarve (f pry) in excess of 380% of ATDTL cal
cansatared st mn elgible consponenl of Slabuiovy Ligadily Resenve for thal paricular day,

4.09 Consolldated Balanes with sthai Banks and Flnanclal lnslituticns

! in Bangindesh
Muhnl Truwt Bank Limiod (Nobe-4.0.1) 1,543,685, 047 FECERE DT
m ml Limitad 1,412,381 7090 843,109,205
WITH Exchangs (LK) Linied 13""1- 'm{“
Lees: Inlrageoup Deponi |_papaseran | 48677685
Ol st 1,785 097,118 1332.077.21
MMTB B:ﬂn:;l:ml'-l."lmmd (Mote-4 0.2 7,160,581,073 1,708,0B6.615 |
MTB Capital Limited - :
MITB Exchanga (LK) Limbed x 5
LGS ENLETE. _ 1,TOB088.615
RSN 140, 5030863007
4.2 Balance wilk olhss Banks and Financial Institutions
In Bangladesh (Note-4.n.1) m 3,107 0D D42
Cutsid Gangladesh (Nola. 4.2 et
IS0 L5500 808,
d.ad In Bangladesh 00,000,000
Tml.:?nn Cap|ts! Lirisod : 5
GEP Firance Compary [Bangladesh) Limsad 45,500,000 r_ -
MaSons Cradi and Covrengica Bk Lisnded - 00,000 000
Houlh Bangla Agrkouiurg And Commarce Bank Limised - 200,000,000
O P Liinded . 500,000, D00
Mercantla Bark, Limded . 500,000 D00
Maghna Bank Limbed . 200 Q0 100
R Bari Lo - || 200,000,000 |
Spoecial Netics Depasil [END) BT854 ;I‘
BABK Bank Lmiad Hﬁﬂ! 33,700
‘Sonal Bank Limited 53,618,263 DT IETATS
Agrand Bank Limibed B T4 530
m :::ml mitad 2A44 10,401,580
1,000 -
Labiml frank Limutard 1510 ]
Currant Deposlts (CO) _%% nmﬁg‘g
L} i L
Asah Bank Limited - ﬁ;.WT
m:auurrm A o4t .0u7 1,810
indai Biangiadesh Limsted £ 13
Standaed Chasteved Bank (SO0} 15,624,163 .3345
Jaruria Bank Lnlied 16488417 LLES T
Agran| Bank Limiled L 1asmzie 2
Offshora Banking Undl » -
s Surg Bmshe E‘:’
= I — LIATE
§ [ 422 Outsids Banglacesh (NOSTRO Accoumti)
pesal E g lm glreni secodmnt
oo Mashreq bank, Mew York 443 TEAATE 101 091,955
ELE N, Standard Chadeced Bark, How Yo 373 AmA13 304,381,370
e 3 Mm m“ Mnmm 34,008 555 403,398 BEZ
] 2 X Masheeg Borik London ) Y0028
=2 o W, KB Kookmin Bank 0,750950 A7, 718.495
e 3 JP Modgan, New York 389,000 4337 10,243 828
3 o@® ICICL Hong Kong 7118588 20,941,116
ﬁ m s Srandand Chaaered Bavk, Segapomn 0,130804 npazaa
- ] P Margan, Losdan 1.700825 7,200,683
Saaradand Chadened Bank, Lomdon 40838747 2,381,000
Habrb Asnavican Bank, Zurich 9008217 17,371,308
Saandaed Chanered Bank, Tokyo GEEI602 17,713,651
UBAF, Tolya . 554 00T
Chartered Bank, Gamany 41004788 3.219,994
ICHCE, Marnbpi 800,300 40,207
Uicrodit. (o fninsey 13,000,835 10,832,143
Commuprze Bank, Germany 107, 787452 50,970,447
Urstétd Bk of india, Molkata 411407 438,
Standprd Chanenad Bank, Mumbsi 10882 2185 2876,060
Standard Ghanered Bank, Kolkatn 41041300 47441 004
| Standard Chanered Baak, Pasisian 2. 754500 21,952 663
WMaonammad Nazmul Hossain, FCR  Standant Chanered Bank, Cotombo 1275444 0,075 357
Group Chief Financial OCBr  Sonst Bark, Kebata 3927504 1315440
; ) Bank Limited Habib i A 4 12,027 756
vutual Trust Bar Minshiingbank, Ml 1081 758
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiarios
MNobes bo the Financlal Statemants

ke Year snded 01 Decamber 2031
Parficulars

! AB Bask, Murital BT 021,150
i : ::In; rl,u-. Mt 45,000,398
] Murnba 71,870,873
Himalmyan Bank LM | Kalhvmnd 034 240
\ Kopal Banglsdash Bark Lid. 11,303,378
United Bank of Indis, Kokata T.on G
HDFC Dank, Mymbal BT 400,004
| EMIRATES ISLAMIC BAKK 10,053, Gba
muﬂli.. B.U'.:::' e
] 2,784,364
Bank A Bilnd i.ﬂ?ﬁ.?ll

ks Al Fajls

iy it Bt

BCICH Bank L, Mumbal - Term Degosil
Oittwheore Banking Linli
Dwlaits of NOSTHRD aceounts are s hown in Anisxura-A
4.8 ) Matirity greuping of Dalancs with other Benks and Financlal inslilutions
Oy Demuand

Loss Ban thvea moniha

bare han Ifeie mooethe bl less ihan one yoar
Mare than one yoar but less than five yean
Meww than five yoan

5. Money ai Call on Short Metlce
Coll Manay
Wisth Banking Comparéas | Mods §.0.1)
Wath Mon-Banking Finsncial lnaialons (Noles 505

501 Call Money-With Banking Camgpanies
Midland Baak Limied

Sa2 Coll Monsy With Monv-Banking Finencial Instituifons
Bangladesh Fnance and lnvaalmenl Comgany Limdod
Linlon Copital Lid
G5 Finance Campary [Bangladest) Limitod
PRC Finance Lid
IDLC Fanamce Limted
Dt Beac Howsing Firainos Compoiaton Ll
Lanks Bangls Finance Lid

8,00 Consoldaled invesiments
Covernment Invastman
Muilusd Toust Bark Limilod (Modo 0 u 1)
MTE Secunliss Limbed
MTE Capilnd Limiled
MTH E schange (LK) LimAed

Othor Wnvastmanis

Bl Tiusd Bank Limited (Nols-B.a 3)
WTH Securiies Limied

MT0 Capilal Limilad

MTB Eschangs (LK) Lirmited

ba Imvastmaniy
Govermman (Male Ga. 1)
Cibars (Wole 0a 3)

1 Government finvestmant bn Govi. securdbes)
Traasury Bisy (Mols 8.8.1.1)
Treasury Bonds (Nole @.a.1 2)

Suibaik Inlamic Bona

Banghadesh Bank Bila

Priga Bondy

Islaimlc Banking Branches
Bl

Treasury BUis (al present value )
Un-sncumbersd

8 days reasuy bils

1 days reanury bils

182 days Woawury s

354 days Ireasury bills

Suhtotal

.lgﬁwew wizue|

Pl jusunsasu] gan
-039 ¥ opann Bubeuey

Encuimbased
B1 days ireasury bills
V&I doys oy bily
Mohahmad Nazmut Hossain, FCAZS: S reeseny bis
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42 B30.THY
TN
18,352 133
D284 o1
11,181 684
4,240,167
Er R ALY
56.320.492
B8 430,107
S01e.0m0
07RO M3

R 138
2607 |

FRET
AEsMAN _ saners

—lLLBESYE,

952,734,000
5,319,243
055,261

FETRITRFIL

0066525 7143
1104485418
0354733
44,008,088
A0S 570

—855.998,555

. HIM,&I‘.‘]

LA
1,1

::I

73,000,000 |
72,100,000
5,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000

B DO,
170000000 |

—lalli100,099,

22 AN 020472

228000472

2555920 977 |
1.011,784.027
262504, 112

3,153,008, 1 70
20534, 192 205
131, S50, 000
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Ils Subsidiaries
Notes lo the Finencial Statements

For the Yoo anded ) Decambar 2021
Parliculars

AR e

#8.0.7 Treasury Bonds
| Un-ancurmbered
| ] 2 Yeais Danglndesh Govennment ieasury bonds
5 Years Bangladesh Govemmont fensury bonds
\ 10 Years Bangladesh Govarmmen bansury bonds
15 Years Bangladesh Gevermment keaiury bords
H Yean langladesh Govermment reasury bords
1 Sub-tolal
Encumbeied
2 Years Dangladesh Oovemment Wpasury bonds
5 Years Banglodesh Govemment ¥easury bonds
10 Yaars Bangladesh Gowarnmend bemsury bords
15 Years Bangladesh Gowemment beasey bonds
2 Yoars Bangladesh Govarnment ¥ easury bands
Hub-tolal
Total Treasery Band
inlnmic Danking Branchsn

Gmd bvestmant Classfed s por Dangiadesh Beak Clroular
Hild to Maburity (HIM) [Mote §.2.2.1)
Hald for TrmsSing (1 T) (Mol & a3 2)
Diher Bocuisan

B2t Held to Msturliy (HTM)
Treasury Bond
I Yoo
5 Yeas
10 Yoars
15 Yo
20 Years

£2.2.2 Held for Trading (HFT)
Treavury Bin
91 deya
187 days
384 days
Treasury Band
1 Yourn
5 Yeurs
10 Years
18 Years
10 Years

£a.3 Other (Investmant in olher securities)
Shares and Matual Fund in quoted compaanies
Shares n Quoled companiss.
Mubinl Fund in Duobed companias

Shares In unquolsd companies (st tacs valus)

BO Venture Limiled

Cenval Dopostory (BO) Limied

Enongy pach Pewer Genestion Limiod

Inclusiad & Infraginachure Develepmen] France Cormpany Limied
LIC Bangladesh

Cenlral Counterp vty Bangladesh Limilod

The Bangiadesh Raling Agency Limded

Funds
Unquoded Mutual Fund

Sulsordinated Bonda

AR Bank Subordinats Bond
Qe By, Biulnondinaled Bond
Trus! Bank Subordinatad Bond
UCH Jrd Subeedinated Biond
Jamuna Bank Subordnaled Bond
AlBL Second Mudaraba Bord
FDC Subordinatod Dond
ML Subdidnated Bord
Faspotual Bonds
Jamima Bank Parpelual Bond
HCC Dack Pespaiual Bond

evowimant in Praference Share
Uniled Jamaipor Powsi Lig

Tolal sthar inwvestiments
(Dataile are shown in Annexure-B )

panwi jusugsansul 80N
0399 Joppann Suilbieuey

nbuwejpy wizue]
A=

V451 BF3, 788 1488012 333
1,054,006, 245 1,070,167 652
12602 438, 620 BOTLTIBITT
G102, 189,215 5.476,120.992
\ 147

948, 9,5638,192,295

8,008,725 684 |

2880787 877

43,025 430
2,846 157 457
B.273.300,778
4 540,972,240

1171 111178

- TO5565 676
- B8, 458,300
H9.0000

1.409.844 000

1,407 Bad, 194
234,000,195
TURA1T 500
B3, 156,152

:ﬁﬁi 1 mﬁi‘“’.

i B3
17,018,504
542,440,787

145,013,250
1,084, 271,800
1397, 265,909

01,198,200

120,000,000
100,000 000
L0, 000, (0K
0, 000,000
016,000,000

650,000,000 650,000,000

= I_Wwﬁj
IEF 17707 |
—ABTTIIE  FSSESI 0TI

&:‘ £5.4 Thers was no Re-Purchase Agresment (Assets pledged es security for Nabiliies) 55 5| December 31, 3021 with olher Banks. Delalls = fatven bakow:
| (] . :
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—= | BOY
Particulary [ T 1
ii. Thore was o Reverss Rapo s st 31 December 2031,
Minimam Maxrmum Daily avarage
Gulatanding oulilandng oulslanding
during \he year | durieg theyess { | during ihe yosr
BACODIION | 199,001,000 226,540,220
1,504 568 Bi% 8,08 700 40,885 772
Maturity grouplng of Investment as lfolisws:
On Diesnand 1.508,067.474 706,925 664
Loss than Bwee months 1.340,830.4 50 854,728,821
Rdovw fhan lrea monmis bul ks 1had one yeis #0208, 843 $,410,001,373
oiw than ona yaar bul less than Tva yoan 7,301, 271,957
Mot fan fve panm
Consobdated Loans and Advancas/Invatments: - =
Bl Trust Bank Limiled (Mole-7 &) " ELINI 189.101,413.455
MTE Securnlies Limiled 300 80T AT LTEANTIOTE
MTH Capiiad Limitod 30,4808 281,557 048
MTH Exchangs (LK) Listited - .
Laaa: e compeary boan ML L154.990.0
n BELSAE  201.996,814,197
Consofidated bills purchassd and discounied.
Iburlussd Tewesd Bank Limibad (Male-7 ay 1,740,651 274
MTE Securities Limisd '
WTH Capital Lindtod
MATE Enchangs (UM Limiled vl
] 1
L LEd
Significant concontration wite gredping of Consslidaled Loana snd Advancesi nviaimasi;
8] Direcian
1,017,300 85,555

Credd Cands (Nole - 48)
b} Chisl Executive & ather Sanlor Execotiven
I} Managing Dirseter
) Dihor Servor Executives
&) Advances bo induslriss
Agriculhare

82§z

Busldng

Eeesiing
Masufacheing insumiry
faany

HEL

Pereverl, Cia

Tranapon, Storsgs ard Commusicaisn
Trade Bervica
Cosmngroal fosl eslste lnnencing

:::I Masaol (Lean provided for any kind of copial markst ackvilias)
Dirtrs

Clsssilication of Consolidated Loss snd Advancesfnvesimenta:
Conolidsted Unclassifed Loans snd Advances (UC):

Special Menlon Accounl (SMA)
B todal
Consolidatod Classifed Loans & Advancas!
Bubstendand
Douth
fad & Loan
Suib latsl
Tolal

83 Consedidated Gt of Assels pladged as collalarals:
Ceilalaral ef mowablafmmovabie mewls

Commodities and Enpot documents

Fioed depatil receipls

Oahar securilien

Peisonal guatanles

84 Mahuibly grovping of Consokdated Losn and Advances/invesimenis
On Demand

Kad more Ban Bren monlhy

Bard s v s monlive bud less than ane year
More tham ond year bl less han fve penrs
Mora than v years

30720 355,140
|

3,188 BTRES] 1,072 530,720
37,084, 2T 007 001,204,710
12,409,106,162 15,500, 761,634

2,005,322 100 2. 250,291 071

3B, 3ThN8E 3112 006,107
61,140, 858870 51,852, 880.070
FrR LR ECT L JOB0T B8, 716

4,14,0H1171 3.506,234.828

3,002.862120 2818,307 516

Bi1.582573 I74.TIZATH
MO 504TE 14,440,080,020
5,268,060 541 9280, 232.817
15674580 1,005,407 245

10,273, 380140 12,700,004, 375

4,765,258 532 3.737,250.527

B3 B0E243 4,106, 462,040

10,410.310,620
78

@mﬁ

| 1688 425,367,604 |

0642114008 VAT AR 250
48, 69470226 || 16,140,250 080

§
(] 2
[ 3006220034 | [ 23514115207
8148410528 || 44878072 901
61,055876482 || 76441013450
|12 1,155 D08, 736
a8 1,782,008 212
e sTe. st st

Hutq.ml Trust Bank Limitad



Mutual Trust Bank Limltod and lts Subsidiarios
Holes bo the Financlal Statements

LA
Pastcutar e s [ v

T.a Loans and Advances!invesimants

In Banotadesh e DR
3 Loasns {Mhoke-T . 1) 171,583 456 318 148,837 B9 605
Cash Crediy 27810 ,008.073 20.737.353.012

3 Cromsidvadln i

NENGATAE 195101412450

Bets Puchaned s iscountod (Noe-7.a, 1 1 — AT 005 1LTAQBEN TS
TR RN 300,254 100848904 824

Dulside Banaladesh e
~RN4. 20250 _ #00.848.104. 804
Fa\ Loans ! mvestments:
Coitiiiaoun Loans 10,5117 408 857
Densand Loans 28371, 264,065
Torm Lomna 3333 210,883
Short sanm Al Cradil and Micsocrodd TAXG 402 572
Packing Cradil 720,735,700
Coeail Cards 1.208.580 308
il Loan BT 350,129
Lease Financs (Nole.7 8.3 202 140,300
Oithars foan L S§4841.404 )
134,52).660,005
Olishare Banking Linit 164178710
islarnic Banking Branches — ARy .
L1003 4M18 _149.897.830.608
T.a.1.2 BN Parchased and Discounted
Pavabie in Banplasash 221,001,600 LA07 690477
Pravable cudvda Bargladesh
3.0, 200402 1,483 245,070
Cifshore Banking Unli — ABBASHY JA3.446306
b SALTILORS, . LT46.601.375
Pak Wel Loans and Advencesfnvestmenis
EuLmn & Advances (Male- T.a) 122,904,300 254 200.848.704.830
| ]
Intaresi Suspente (Nele: 12 08) 5,313, 18780 I MEI.M.MII
Frewison for Loans & Advances (Mo 1381}
Nal Loans & Advances L1010 904005, _199,440.395.008
T.a.3 Gross Lease Renl Recobvabils
Whinin 1 wear AT, 008485 241053630
Wilvin 5 woses
4,857 211 320,391,833
Laoss: Uneamad Leaso R A E4.509
—t RN, BOR.T48.200
T.a.4 Resldual Maturily grouping of Loans ssd Advancesinvestmsints -
L hesmard 13902125078
Mol moes than Fraa manlhs 44 B17 878 787
o than Bres mioriha but lass thsn one year T, 180,201, 147
fcad than one yoar but lBes Ban e yees 50,140,207 597
Ugrn than Irvd yaaes

T.a.5 Significant concentralion wite grouping of Loans and AdvancesSnvesimants
) Dirdctais

Credil Cards (Mole - 48)
b} Chiel Executive & other Benlor Execetives

Iy Managing Direcion
i} Diher Sarior Exoculives
cl Advances o indusirles

. i 3 meTeesa| [ 1072590728
S i wosizraie? || soeerararn
o8 P ooy 1248162 || 15509781604
m E m Stip Buildng 2.003,300.100 7.250,291.971
25 R bemdbpesnd 380379880 || ATI2820707
Ba = Oty amnatncharing dosiry #i, 140856878 || 51853880070
8 o3 e mamimare || 20007 862,778
=3 41020071 3,606.234,528
- Fuaist. O 3100883120 || 28380518
=5 W Tranapan, Skorage bid Conuruwicaten B&1SB247I 34,7320
ced I° S Feoea MOM160478 || 14,440 080020
i Comreripicasd renl galnte branceg 5,508 000541 0.380,232.017
3 08 Resdantial raa) estals fnsncing 150674580 | 1.105.407,245
go" Gantums cio wznIerap || 12793004376
b Caphal Maske! (Lonn provided ler mnylind of caplial il scthiies) 11718842106 B41,858.780
o BI50ER242 (| 4190463040
l!é!l |!&§
~RIROTAITRIZG . _ 199,9%0,660,140
AILBILI0REEE, 00840108034,

Ta6 Detalls of Large Loas | invesiments .
Numbad of Boitowira wilh oititinding smeol of kans sxcesding 1 0% of iotal capial of e Bnrkand ceasfeatian saius Bwreal. Tolad cogitnlof the Bank |s B0
HA4LD4 millan a3 a1 31 Decamber 2021 @07 24,552.75 mithien a8 of 31 December 2070,

tumber of Glisnis T 7
Dutatanding Advances (BDT Milfien] ‘ 73438 ” 81,208

Mokammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Troup Chiel Financial Gificer
[diual Trust Bank Limited
.j;mrala Head Office, Dhaks
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B B GOtk L Syed Mahbubur Rahman
?::N“ fa"i'u:t OR e Managing Director & CEO
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Mutual Trusi Bank Limltad and its Subsidiaries

Holes to the Financlal Statamenis

Foi tha Yead snched 31 Decambar 1021 o
| Particulsrs ]—m
Cliwnt ditalls are ghvan bakw: mﬂm Millian
| Haima of the clieats Sanction lmil m“h ML?MMM Total g
S Group We
ity Giroug LiC
Cily Seed Crmbhing elusiias LA, %
€1y Deanin H'E
B ¥ (SOLD
[Mioghna Grou UG
(K minahaly Ship Bullders L1d. Viosla & iin shied cancems. ic
negypac Engineerey "
- e
N o -
11 Growp UG
" R G UG
o NN e . w:
& i Covpa ¥4
T i
B3 Ut
W phas el B CEH : - ']
|50 Celnus Lintod & dn miled concams e I
ay Mol [ywing " '
|Ptex Sar Cieoup .
A E Group LC
il .."..-.:’ Ch &
Kabir Sieel |12 & |15 wBod concer
T "

55(5

Ta8.9 Larae Loan Restracturing

1) The Eahillios of Jamurs Bulden Lo snd Jamiuna Denima Lid. were restruciunsd sccondeg o BRIAD circular No ARO1S dated 20,01 2015 ender BE NOC dated
02.00,2018 with grace period for 12 mons for 12 yenes with vaidity 02.08 5027, Accardingly, e 14l insisiment due dobe was 02,12, 2018, Latar, dient again aliowed 13
mardh erim grace indat B8 NOC trom June 2018 1o May 2020 As suth, client avoll iial 3 nvonh grace perod. Afler thal, ciant ware siowed paymenl pause foe
emarith (Lo, vistdity swlended up to 31,04 2028 trom 02.00.2027 according W BRPD cirlar Ko 17 debed 28.00 2020, Tharealier, B8 par BRED Ciroular ONZ021 daiod
1.01.2021 , validity entended for 02 yoarLe, op 10 31.05.2000 (rom 31.052020. 80 far, 85 of Decenbad 3020, chanl have pakd a he Insklmost rgulary In dee lme
sinca inceplian. in 031, According ke BRFD ciroulsr No 53 daled 30.12, 2021, client hive ko pay minksan 15% agains| 4 quarosly nslsimants for e your 2071 which is
amaiingng o 7 39 croew (Th 029 coors (or Jamuns Denims Lid and 2.10 crose for Jamuna Bulldes Lid). Bul chenl paid 5,79 crore (Ti 0,84 eronm in Jensna Denima Lid snd
4,08 tvore 1 Jawarin Duilders Lid). Conidering the sllustion, Currontly cliand have ne ovedue lesi¥ly rifier, eani paid Th 345 croes [0 sévancs bn 2021,

) Abdutl Manem Lid. sid Abdul Menem Sugor Redinery Lid, ware sowad grace pariod ke 00 manta ol Be lime of resbucliving. S0, ho 16 inisimend due dete wie
30002016, The clianis wore sliowsd paynent padss for § menihs Lo, valdily incremses up 10 01002028 from 01 002027 a8 per BRPE- 132020 Mow, 15 numbsr of
imtaliments becoma dus [l 31,1 2.2021 s amownl dus for recovedy sbood at A0T 10058 Crom. The chiant has no overdus instalrmesls. Tolal fecovery bs BOT 124 76
Cradn. §o, lotal 34,17 crore has seen iocovied in advance irce the clanl,

Pa.7 Clanaifcsilon of Loans pnd Advence mfsvasiments

Unelsmuiliad (UC);
Slandand 200, IXVAE500] | | 185 520,566, A6G6
Sjachal Montien Acoourd [BMA) E&m@ Limnmu_[
Sub tatsl FT ] 181,460,372,834
Clansified:
Suppiandard RLALAH B45, 180,000
Diowitful 661 520400 61,807,000
Bad & Loks 1] 7 a
a8 Datalls of Proviuion for Loans snd Adva
Particulars fana far Frovivion Fabe (%) —x ! [ﬂﬂ!!!! Taloed
Siandard _ 1. 378000645 1081070700 104,147 £00
Sisndard- Olshers Banking Unit 11 230018112 230,015,112
) e 0%, 0.25%,1%, :i% 78,502,000 |
Loan againgt “Stay Order” STD 444538500 | 2%,5% & 100% 444 538 500
Reschudulad Loan (fy DB NOG & Lgs Lan) 810 1705863 S8 1,481,384,000 288 600,000
Ium B03802 943 152450736 | 152,450 736
nl Marsin Aseount [GMA) 1,085 244,044 FTE] a4, 750 804
Sub ixlal 244, 794080 458 4, TELE44,000 2,316,304 841
Clsaslbpal:
Substandard BBTT84 544 5% & 0% 61360287 §7,360,287
|umu 484520000 A% & BOW 175855050 175,055 050
s laan 4693770 662 100% 5,680 770652 5,693, 770,662
Bub lots) 148188 118 5084780000 8,008, 786,000
Totsl 213,840,465 163 10, 740430000 8,173,000,841
Provision will be malstalned in fulee® 3,567,239, 160
|Excassiishort) Pravisien s 5t 31 Decembar, 2021 -
A por Bangladesh Bark lalier (Rinfecsnce Ko. DBI-AT) 1WZ023-450 delad Apil 04, 3022 sed D08 (OAMS) 11571 [Dividerd) 20331 DT, daied 10 Apl 3023 nd DO

ACAMAS) 1 VSTIA N (Dividend) (0222000, cuted 13 Aprl 2021 |, the provision of TRka 25673 crorm kas besn defovied which is squiveiant i ihe shorllel amount o the end
ol yedd 7071, The defered proviasion will be saintained in pexd e (03) yoars

ifmm 4 Naznl Hossais, FEAD Detaits of Reauired Provision for Of Balanca Shest lhams

s Chiel Financial Office?

Prequirod Provisien lor OF- Balance Sheot Frposunts
Total Provision maintained (Mot -12.03)

5l Trust Bank Limited  excesuShort) Provision

-l-’ul-& Hiead Ofca, Dhaks
J

vl

!:.llu-.un'l e
Eutpor®e

I 1.IH.HD.HI.'IJ

I IEFTET

1147800040

812207 347

yed Mahbubur Rahman
Managing Director & CEO

Mutugl Trust Bank ( imiten



Mutual Trust Bank Limlied and Its Subsidiaries
Hates bo the Financlal Ststsmenis

o the Yoar sricled 31 Decemisat 2021
Pasticutars

T.atd Goographleal Location wise Loans and Advancestavestmants
Inulde Bampladosh
1 Urban
hada Divivion
Chilsgeng Divislon
Sythel Division
Myimsenmaiigh Division
Rajshahi Divaan

Outside Bangladesh

1.3.11 Seclor-wlte Loansirvestmant (including BIIl Purchased and Diseounted)
Pubile pecion
Co-Dperative sector

72,12 Particulars of Loans and Advances!invesimenta
1} abin conuidarnd good in respect of which [he Bark conmpnnmy is huly tecured.
) Dbt considered good for which ihe bink hokds no ofer secunily than e debtars persenal sseurity
:hlil:h:mwum-ih e parsonal undartakings of oon o mare parias i sddian 1o be personal securily of fe
) Dwben conuidarad doubifal ar had, presiion nal provided for.
V) et due by directors or offcess of the bank ef oy of Ivem either savenssy of joinily wih ary siver parsss,

W) Debts due by companios or firma in which (he Directors of tha bank are inlerssted ay pMrlnen or managng ogents of in case|

of privaby comparéos. an memdor.
Vi) Mamimum total amaunl of advances, Incleding lemporany advances, made sl any ime durlng ha year i Dircloss or

Wanagods cr Cicars of ihe bank o any of tham eithor sevedally or joletly with any oihad peron,
ﬂlwﬂnwmdlﬁmum lemporary advecces granfod during he yesr (o B companies o Fome b
which the Directors of Bha besk are nboresierd ms pariners o+ mesgisg agents of in cass o pul, W, 5 0T

1) Dus feoim banking coimpanies. ey

X} Amcunt of classified loan on which istérest has nol been chaged, should be mesflonsd as kllows:

o i) (Decimansdincroase in

13) anoand makeed aganal losa praviouesly wellon off;
b, Amicad of prowlaben hepl agalnel lnan cassilled s ‘Beddoss’ o e dale of preparing B balance aheel
& inleves ereddable to e inbenest Suspese Al
X} Cumailative smount of kans wrillen aff
COpening Balarcs
Famouril Wikl n off during (e pariod
Balance of Weithen ol Loans & Advance
M) Thete snvsowand of verisien off loam for which law sl has beon fad

T3 Maturity grouping of Bill Purchased and Discounied
Parfntia velthin one morih
Morn han ane month bul less than Brea monihis
Wara e theee monis bul hees thss slx monthe
Wzt [ BF e-guad [0 s mnedhy

Clelt
Seuey

Hbwepy wizugy

Tald List of Assats pladped as collalerals;
Coltatorsd of mowabiefersmavabl nssely
Commodies and Export documants
Finad deposit recalpls
et wecurilins
Persansl guaranisy

T515 Dunlness seginant wise concentration of Losns snd Advancesinveslments
tiechuding bills purchased and discounted)
Comorslg

Ralad

SME

Creda Cards
Stafl Loan
Diars knan

Qifshore Banking Uini
llamic Banking Branches

032 ¥ 1013310 By

B30Wn waunsaay;

880 Conselidated fned puaets inghuding promiuvs, furniture and fixiunes

ozl Hossain, F Truat Bk Linnited (Mose-8.8)
Chiaf Financial Offic : Copital L;:r:l.-d
| Mutual Trust Bank Limitodts Exchange UK) Limited
| rate Hond Olfice, DhalGonsolidated nat book valus st the and of the year
| ) Dotails are ghown in Aanexin-C
|
I
| *a
J y WL\QI AL :B a
. untadl oo e
Mﬁ'l!h_':#“ Vige F1¢ I':,;'i iy
Fg::,,hcumpﬂg?niqtmi
1
[ e ;.1.1"'!“4 Office. DAY
an

171,040,553 408 | | 150,025 840 250
83007.200,758 | | 34082408300
1,507 640,074 1.883 254,200

13.87,875 830,130,752
4477 55 138 4416 667,045
#0340, 504 1,220,050 638
2573 162,438 2,253,788,073

108,515

m.gu.m.la [[TRETRITRETH
3,707,401, 700 060,010,450
1,596, 65, 635 1, B0 01 1,067
81,208,503 01451 658
397 68,330 203,604,113
MO, 393,030 212,999,354
000,385 1,264
170,079,368 350,242 723
iﬂﬁma ! Yil)
160.254,000.534 | [ 164230307 627
2072713014 2,368,599, 336
M490418700 | | 24800408 577
4,343 720 497,359,120
B8 340728 BOT 350,139
1,082, 162430 870,759,202
32,058,175 824,845 578
44 BSR4 34,550,007
8,600, 770803 A032, 173404
5,370, 145769 2437498 43
-I.m.nru;rr m,u:r.l;;m

[ MLOMH.1TE

44T 672,587
A LATR 0T,
1041 730 74 Si6 707 001 |
1,858,635307 10,283,671
078346014 311,600,741

DS, LTRSS,
TIT 33707302 | [ 138,718,855 504
3400500470 | | 18.080,007 301
054114105 || 13,378,383,251
ABARATOZZO | | 16,140, 250,900

L 208034308 | | 13624 547,720

A IRI0AI5A, 100845 104834
[[TH 152,433, 500 2
12825078753 | | 10.194,984,164
18,038351088 | | 18781, 154 494
3,072.733014 2,368,569,330

B48 343720 BB7,358,139
| 1 T 504,041,404 |

199.571.370,182 1852504810
DOOIOVIIZE 105997 628010

~AALBRAINRARY, _A00040,104004

[ 4830, 708 567
81 B2A014
3,708,919

inq Director & CEO

Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Broup Chiol Financlal Officar
{dutual Trust Bank Limited
-'w_m;utn- Head Office, Dhaka

Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
MHobes bo {hs Flnascial Statemenls

l!_ﬂlhl_‘tll.luﬂllhuﬂ.lﬂm. — e —
Particulars ;ﬂ"%,n
Fluwd Assal inchuding Premises, Furniture and Flatuna
Cowl
L 104,253,000 104,253,000
linimavabis Proparly 1458, 760, 705 VASETAD, RS
Furnitire & Fixies 1,852 800, 105 1,554,120 001
PIGE BT amzenon|| 2848907 180
sresesipoedd 214,382,018 107,335,267
Inlmngible Assets 15,28 8T 430 B3N, 168
Highl-af-ure nasein 1
Totad Cost T, a7
Lesa: Accurnyinted Depracipion 737 L
547832100 AB0.TE8 557
Islarmic Banking Branches 18,612,335 -
Bosk value at the end of the yesr —aana AT ded 4830700807
Deladls ke shown in Anmexuie-C [}

The cost of B right-of-use ataeis corgass protond valus of loass gaypmands ke inciollve, phus Btial dieect paymend snd dismaniling cosl eto, The bank, o lesses, on
lease-by-laase bash, pieciod B snge Bveshold less than BOT 20 millon to conaidar i vake assl on e bass ol matarially (loss Ran 1%) of Bark's whal capilal e
HOT 2044304 et i of 31 Dwcornber 2021, Horce, any paymant made by the hank urycher coninect for une of sny rentsl premises of asssls ol 8 paricd nol esceoding
alve nsondhs, anaker, Lels &3 ow value sasely, and subslantaly risks snd banefits of cemorbip of hose reninl prem|sesfastets do nol nanstsr (o 8e bank, |8 recognised

84 experibn &% pot RS 15 Fevenug from costracts with cuslament’ inuissd of recognisng mes RO ssagh

Consolidaled other nssels
Mubusl Tiust Bank Limiled (Mete-0 a)
Less: nvesiman in subsidary

ATH Securibes Limied

WTH Capilal Limiled

WTH Exchangs (UK) Limied

Less inktaproup recevable & payabls

Conspdidated Advance income Tax
bubasl Trust Bank Limiled (Note-9oad 1)
MTA Securities LimBad

MTH Caplil Limnllad

MTE Exchangs (LK) Limied

Consalidited Daterred Tax Assetal (Liabilllins)
Bhutunl Triist Bank levlad (Mole-B a4 ¥)

MT0 Secwites Limied

MTH Capile! Lanibod

W18 Exchangs (LK) Linuied

Other Axvapl
Classification aof Other Asas
A} Incame generating Diher Assal;
i} nyerstmend in Shaes of Subiidisry Companies (Nole-9.a,1)
B) Non-dncoms gensrating Oiher Assel-
0 Blakanery, Sismps. Prinling maledals in sloek e
i) Adymnca Fest and Adverbsamant
i} inloest ACcrued an inyastment bl not collocied & other incomo receivatle (Nole#.o.7)
v} Sacurily Dapoall
¥} Sus pende Accoun (Male Sad)
i Clibyaen (Node- 0,0 4)

Investmanl kn Shares of Bubsldiary Cempanien
W18 Socurilles Limied
WTE Caplal Limiled
T Exchangs (LK) Limiad

Intorasl Accroed on nvestment bid not collected & other ncoms rocelvabile
Inleresl Receivabie on invasimenl
ldra [Eecetvimble an Loan snd Advancos
Irleresd Recewwnble an Treasury Bond
Inierasd Hegsy pbie on Beance vl ofer Bk
Irfereal Receivabie oo Coll Money

Suspenas Account
Sundry Deddors
Legnl Exparias
Sanchay Pala
Qihadn

Others
Advance Incema Tas (Note:ha4 1)
Detormed Tax Asset (Mol Bad 3)
Adwach Bgannl Supplionfaiting
Frolesied fes

Advarce pad o Ermgloyees

Propaid Inderesl Exponse sgnias MT fmaban
Coupon Imeses| Adusiment Aocoun|

Stamyp Choegs Adusbimenl Accoust
Recervabies from MTH on Cards A AT
Torm Placemwan]
Pracemand lo O -Share Banking Unil
Faceseables lran OF-Shofe Banking Linl

28,18
65451 61T
1,485,001
40,670,107 |
d Ll
e
FXETE FFFE]
14B. 680,087
27,120 380
Tl T
BOA, 157 B0
(4,790, 453)
PR e
853,218,709
3,438, Y Boa 158,365,600
3%, 309,220 34,830, 0002
33 415354 148,272 484
1,170,670.408 640 406,000
11,550 240 10,824,172
254,700,671 320,780,285
0,877, 081,812 4,800,451,281
—ldJ24 015514, __$320,132.008
[ 3756,600.600 | 350,000, 000
250,000,000 260,000,000
| 26, 398,800 0,395 800
240,045,001 42830361
458 31,130 143,810,497
470,932 521 487 420,388
i 5,073,710
212847 357,128
—LAILETRARE, 630436080
[ 277510 33,215,300
42,084,181 20,980,875
2L TO5ATS 260,608,463
4878 04T
7317 T TV
7 1.707.582,123
1,741 362031 858,157 826
290, B00804 537 5&7 T08
1,800.559 51,600,555
14, 055000 33,350 560
[E:F FAE 1,003,378
- 1,780,713
272500 81,812
142721943 119,238 600
12165647 .
7,004, 210000 4 274,000,800
178,068 B2 5 159,008, 369

Rahman

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited
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Mutual Trust Bank Limlied and Its Subsidiarios
Motles (o the Financisl Statements

[!ﬂ.ﬂﬂ_fumlﬂ M Dackmbear 1031 by ok
Parlculars = ..{ FTFT T T |
Recaivatds hom Subsdisdes (LK) A0.B70,907
Taha AMC Enchange Houdo Racalvabis
NRE WEDS, DPFY & Ds
Uswaalizesd Exchange ioas on Fevnign Currency
ATOS Adusting Recsivabie Accourt
8,804,007 481
Ofiahare Banking Unlt 238,307,970
Bslamic Banking Branches A
Lods: Wnlragroup bransaclions with Oifsives Basdking Unli (7,251,178 835 4,433,020, 18%)
—DSIIP00, . 4003401431
Mvsoce Incor@ ™ 00000 =
g Halanco 2,737 BA2, 6,068,317 584
Less: Adjusiment made doring e year . (5420637 Jak)
Add, Payment dufing tlw year ] [l 1,207 000, BOT
— A NTE __ LIIT00.33)
Dalwrrad Tan Assatn/ {Linksliitien) e
Opening Halssce [ ﬁ 15 I | BH0430 348 |
Add: Daforred Tax comsiExpsnss) difng tha yoar U]
R ECIR T — LKA
Computation of deferred tax
Accoamiing verithan down valoa
Tai base wiillen doven valme
DeductabibaTax able} tsmporary diffessnce
Effectve Tax Rale
Dalarred Tan Asuata|Lishillies)
Interesi Receivable from Treasury Bond
Less. Tax Basa 3 ¥
Daductabisd (Tanabls) temporary 0lifemnes 410,802,521 .
Effociibve Tax Rale a, A7 50
Dalerred Tox Asseta|Lisbifitivs]
Leasahold Exparues undee FRA 10:
Actousing basad TA BT 280
Lonn, Tax Bate 2,077 28 [
Duductabled (Taxable) tsmporsry difisrmes . (21817 200
EMpcive Tax Rale 350N A7 50%
Colerred Tan Avsstaf{Lisbiitios) [ o | | (WILKTEY|
Loan Loas Provision
Pravison made agens clasilied loans 2710597 nod
Laosy: Tax Base | I
Daductablsi{Tanabls) tempoiary ditfedince 5,058, 783,000 2,770,557 604
Eiecuve Tax Rabe il ¥ !
Deforred Tax Assetsi{Liablitles) * b [ 1p38374,102 ]
Clasing Deterad Tax AssstalLisbites) 7 LEL
Opening Defenad Tax AssatslLinbitios) G
Dwlerrad Tax income|Expenne)
A per IAS 12 Income Tames, dedheclible emporany diffarentes Are daduciad whis dolermining taxabis profl (loss) of fuls period) s el of W akel

o libdly in recovanid of seliioted. Prosilon hepl ageinsi aey kind of unclassifod snd dnssiiad leann i consideved as doducible Wnpomry disrence which will be
dedutied in determining lasable perofil (loa) of fulure pariods when wrile-off of cormespending classfiad loans will be exsculed @3 per banking lons & reguiation. As on
Dacombar 31, 7021, (hore wins @ bolal peevision of BOT 0320000881 kepl againut (e wdasfied and clavsifed loans iscuding olf-balance thesl lems (rola- 17a), b
deifeved lox ossel (BOT 2233704, T50) has been recognized only for iha apecific provisies (DO 5,858, 708,000 kept agains| o classded losms (oliosdng The guideine of
Bangladesh Bank. Binco Ivere i @ growth in specilic prowision maintsinad ol ihe end of Decerniber 31, 2021 = woll a8 some bilmnca of lasl yoer under Bis heacd which was
Fod previcusly consdendd, it has incrosesl (he delered tox assal (BOT 1,741 382.001) by an smoend of BOT B83.204 205 which has beon secognzed n tha Prof mod
Lioss Accound a3 defered lax income.

As por reguinton of Bangisdesh Bank (ref DRPD circufed no. 11 dastesd Decamber 12, 2001) the anioon of Net Prolit Alier Tax (NPAT) incrassed dee b (he recogmbon of
defarred lox saset on such provisions kep! againat clessfiod loana, wil not ba diskbited i divdand, since canying smount of pravisioss (liability] wil bo semind i fube
periods whon defermed tax income Wil Be recovarod. Manca, (his antire smoust of defened W ssset (s BOT 2,100,104, 750 wil ke dodectod whilg delsnmining Ihe

dusinbutablo profil for tho shavehoiden.

Clanaification of Other Asest
nciassfied 12,008, 665524 0,232,504 636
Subsbandard o L
Drosuibitfed 42088181 0858875
Badf.os T & B ETA
1 a1 1]
Contolidaled borrowing from othes basks, financiasl institutlans and aganis
Bt Trust Baok Limited (ot 10.8) (I8 FA TR 000 | [ 30847 308 438
:Em?m TS 109243 0,708, 348
ndln L i,
TS Eiarias (UG Likid 218715684 a2 T;ﬂ‘
Leas; Intragroup Bosrowings | (4R 00a 03T {154, %
1 T8 T, ]
Borrowing From Other Banks, Financisl ingliutions and Agente
Iy Barvalsdesh
Wil Tneth Bank Limded (MNobe 108 1) .57 3871
Ofshore Banhking Uikt 1 oo by st 2?

13, 515.367.730 16.768,019.310

Cutaide Banglsdosh
Mistaal Trusi Bask Limied = =
Offshors Banking Unit Luﬂ.mllﬂ.r L.md
—ATHAZLITE. 8353308070

4121001808 3514M,329.238
—4274.000,000

Lgs: Inter tramsaciion with Offshoss Baking Unit

Mokammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA . —lR0TBI00 . HOMTINAN

Group Chiof Financal Officer
Mdtual Trust Bank Limited

J .:U}'[]l:lrﬂtﬂ Head Office, Dhaks @ | 48 _
[ /
» "I."‘UWWS: ;
| ‘JU 135"[&3}:

51 Exer any e A hman
ciroup CETTgank Wl 3yed Mafibubur FEres
MwtBL i sed O naging Director
Corpet Mutusl Trust Bank Limited



Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiarios
Wodex 1o the Financisl Statements

Et ihe Yout ¢ el 31 Decendear }031 LW E—TY |
I Partleitary f Inllfmlllil |
108 6 Bangladesh:

Mosrowing From Bank 49,0900
| Caill Barrawisn ] f—m S,
4 Vs Borrawiag [ || -
Forelon Currency Boriowing !

Pl Dk Limiled . 1,102 438,000

Bank Asig Lisited = 474 010,000

Unitedd Commercis Blank Limiled = 424010, 000
. Jnimwana Dani Limded L 127200000 |
Borrawkng trom Bangladash Bank: _AAMARTY LSS B0504T

SME Refinancs 1,205 352 418 048,700 518

enidmant Promalion snd Firdncing Faclily (PFF) TI3,270.004 LALE N L

Liwwg Tewm Financirg Fanclity [LTFF) oo FS5 1,434,005, 768 1572 212,610

COVID 18 Financial Stimidies Fund | RleG Salany) 813,751,852 1,064 850,000

CMEME Salmulun LA 000 404 540,235

WC Stimulus Package lof Largs invduitry and Sendice 1.044,112.565 3007 728,004

Agil (Hon-Cropa) 142,001 500 4,242,500

Expont Dawirlopari Fund 12527 S45.526 0,724,511 7,185

Groon Timnsioemadion Fund 115040905 ) ‘

Botrewing irom Other natitsles L

S Fondnton (v | —

Hepe of Treasuwry BillBond
Bangladest Nack [ o | | ]

102 Bocurity againel BDomowing From Othaer Banks, Finaaclal inatliitions snd Aganis
Sacord [ Treasury BE)
Unasgurad

1823 Maturity Grouplng of Berrawing From Other Banks, Financial Institulions & Agents
On Dsmand T A3 637,378,551
Fepayable wihin one manih 3,704 845, TET 2,807.910,005
koo Busn onm month bul wiihin s sl 0,080, 2 P00 8857 008,078
Marg inan six menihs bul within ona year 12,631, 301053 11,330,407, 128
Kard than ane year bl wilhin five yess 10T 012472 6130 452,000
Wdara han five years bul within ten yeors | LIMAENRT0])| 1178080450 |
~—ALARLIRIE00, . _20.847.208,420
1100 Consolidated deposits and sibar sccounls
Current deposils and other accounts
Mubuil Trusd Dank Sostadd (hobe-11 a.1) 032004 10.221,002 340
MTE Securties Limied - -
MTH Cagal Lisitod
MITH Exchangs (LK) Limsd
Less; Inbragnoup Dapoail [FiTozi} {7,053 787))
26,904 004803 19,313 970.582
Bidls payable
Khubunl Trusl Bank limdad (hota-11 8 1) 1.075,002070 1. 000,002,081
MTH Secwilles Linved . :
MTA Cagital Limdad
MTH Enechangs (UK) Lnsiod .
1975002579 1.988,002.091
fSaving deposn
Mutusl Trusl Bank limasd {Mote-11.8.1) arsearani0]|[ a&ziaarasis
WMTE Becurilion Limiled . !
{ el 3= MTE Cagsital Limdtod
(g B wsf MT8 Exchangs LK) Limiled [ :
o 5 W Q80740010 8113470518
Sum J Fizad deposit
£ 3 ™ It Tiruml Bk limited {Node-11.0.1) 01,5348 348 141 ATT 26
B 3 M1 Securlies Limied L '
=9 MTE Capiial Limied
g B Yo MTH Exchange (UK) Lirvlod
25D Less biragreup Depast i 1
= 8 " 91,520,340, 348 15,321 AT7.218
[ | Specisl Woticed Deposits
=YL Wt Truzal Bl Bevsbeed (Mot 11 1) B IITABIAGE | [ 15,740,057 228
ﬁ» m = WTB Socurillas Limied = i
ao MTB Capital Limtod
1478 Exchange (LK) Limvied . !
Less infragroup Deposd (1A TET08, 701 ) (379,723 872}
188001 8T 15,384, 853.350
Daposil Products o n e
Metusal Truat Bank Imiled (Note-11.a.1) [T HEseeasTz | [ 10631 038074
MTE Hocunlios Limiled & H
WTE Capetal Limded
WMTE Exchange W) Linsied =] .
mmad Nazmd Hossain, FCA DETSIE0IE 40631838374
Group Chisf Financial Officor <ILINLIZEIE0 V88703300714

Mutuat Trust Bank Limited
Gorporate Head Offios, Dhaka
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Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and lis Subsidiaries

Motes lo the Flnanclal Stalumenis

[Lzmmmunmw 0l

Parliculars

J[ Al i[ Tm_,_ 2

1.3 Deposhl and Other Accounls

From Cunlemans (Nabo 10.a,1)
From Banks

1181 Deposit pnd Other Accounts

Curranl Depoait & Olher Accounty

Curtond Dopasil (Incding Lincdsimed Dividerd amound, Mote 11,8.0)

Offshore Banking Unit
Islamilg Bankilng Branchos

iy Payable ;
Payrmesnl Order issusd
Pay Shp lssuid
Devmand Draf Foyatie
T.T Pagabln

Oifshore Banking Unit
Islamic Banking Branchon

Savings Deposit!
Firosn Custamens

lulwmic Banking Aranchas

Fined Doposite:
From Custamars
Fram Banks (Nota 11.a.2)

Oftshore Banking Uni
Islamnic Banklng Branches

Special Noticed Depoalia
Islamic Banking Braschas

Deposit Producis
ek by Brick
IATA Milisnale Flan
Childran Education Deposil Schems
MTH Educalion Plan
MTH Gl Chogua
MTE Kolipal
NRE Degosil Pannion Schaina
MATE Lakhapok
MTH Angona (95

latamic Banking Dranches

1122 Fixed Deposis from Banks

Pibsak D Livisled
Prime Bank Limiled
Southeas) Bank Lid

South Bangla Ageculbure & Cammorcs Bank Limitas

United Comemarcial Bark Linied

11.8. Malurity grouping of Deposil and Other Accounts
O Dhemand

[Repayable within ane month

iore ihan one mocdh bid willin s maonkis
Mo ihan six monis bl wilhin ors year
Mors Than cne yeer bl wilhin Eve yean
Mo than fve yoars bul willin ben posn

Miore Man b yosrs

1124 Demand & Tima Deposlt

o) Domand Deposil
Cuiranl Dleposil
Swvirgs Deposi (79%)

Fouwign Cumency Deposl non indarsd searing

Sundry Dapaosd
ELlls Panyiiiie

b Tima Deposits
Saving Dnpasi (B1%)
Fced Depost

Dapost [rom Banks
Sluart Tarm Deposld
(Dhpowt Under Schama

nd & Tim# Deposila

3 6
| tbLWmd-”t J

1 ol
Malik MuntasitRezd

. W Lk
al Trust Ban
'rﬁl;iﬁlﬂ' ad Ofice [ATLE]

m;ﬁuﬂ Bank Limited

06000, 947, 400
(e

180,220.778,373
1 230,776,371

20,280,301, 663 13,255,804, 080

2.780,715,330 3,480,002, 722

130,584 4 7,505, 404,630

1 19,221.052,348
43,011,476 F

691803200 19,221,002,048

[~ 1.0R3AI0.03T

004, 783

3,578, 2000

LOEE 092,001

'ljil.ﬁiﬁ 1-‘!.!.'91.# 1
14,718 040

42055, 410,723 35214, 718,059
ar :

TSI AT

12317 842,174
4002, 844,730
18613338
150,570,316
8827 500
4.701,447,211
124 628,015

[~ 750,000,000 |
600,000,000 -

500,000,000

1,000, 008004
rmﬁtﬂ?' BB10.048,037
0.879,728323 || 18.344,335 962
A2008,720914 || 50.000,022,100
AT, 248 BEY.152 52500611 529
60172424002 | 57.330,822.432
32,047,388 503 6,406 563,079

FEgseh R

JENOTEET0
2788, 724333 3,400,002, 722
ATH 584845 2505 404,639
|_tsmsoniore || 1eenoua0n |
Ll 164,752, 337,347
38, 1 32950, 303 4
67 678348348 U3 AT Ba4 TTO
1,050,000 000 '
18,337 451 488 15,744 357 228
22,575,731 880
ZRERIGBT, TR0



Mutual Trust Bank Limlied and lis Subsidiaries
Hobes ta the Flnancisl Statements

on b Yoear ainded 31 Decembar 2031
Particulars

Rt et —

a8 Sector wise Deposit
Goniwminl
A A a8 Somi-Aal Hoses
Local Ausaniliey
Mutshe Moy Finmneinl Oeganle stion
Ciher Pubiez
Foralgii Cutrancy
Privata
Degoall from Ranka

11,06 Unclabmed Dividend Accounl:
Cash Dividend romsn anclaimsd which wois seclored lod Bia yoars
oo sl
20
2040

As per Direcives No, BSECCMRRCDM0E-38007 daied January 14, 2021 of Bagladeh Seurily & Exchangs

24,000,118 15,545 5408
A5 360,032 587,508, 500
714,427 083 G71.Ta7 300

5017.012.80 1801, 142,170

13,143, Bu2 B1.023,220

2,160,703, 232 3,460.007.737
A00,063, 170,088 | | 180602718755

T B TTeSES
1,004 531 1763, 787
2,148,007 A.310,088

5163 IMMJ

| 1,057 304
(BSEC) [rof. ciause Mo, M), tha

summary of year-wae wapaid or unclabmad cesh desidend rabalad informasan hee bess disckend s tha (nancial sislasnenls 88 & separnis WMo ilen named 5§ “Unolsm

Dividend Account™

12.00 Consolidaied Other Lisbiities
Mutual Truat Bank Bmited (Note-12 a)
MTH Sacurlian Lardled
MTE Capital Limded
MTE Enchange (UK Limied
Less Inkagraup rcevatia & pagable

1201 Consabdated Provislon for Losms ond Advasces
Mubual Trusl Bank Bmiled (Nole-12.a 1)
MTE Socunson Linsted
MTE Capital Limiad
MTH Exchangs (LK) Limited

12,02 Convelidstes Provisbkon for Curreni incasme Tas®
Mutsal Trust Bank lrried (Nole-12.0,1
MTE SecuriSas Limitod
MTIE Copital L
MTE Exchanga (LK) Limited

24 18,899, 706 0,423,108 375
243,343,600 1,273,034 237

4.3, 7 131,320,069
33,040,001 W TNT ATS
| (82.457.333) 140,679,107
ALIT BN 00T 21828559940
B3, 000 840 TATT B4R 120
045, mha T 01 313 ol Tl
57,008,000 332,000 008

SEETRAN, TP

[ E.ZI0.083.871 | 3060.008,011
41,900,110 94,084,050
40,410,659 48,678,383

: 7
“Wcaing lox provision hay Bbean calulaksd considening ol relavonl saclions of the incoms Tax Ovdissnce 1684 NMWM{M

inadmissbie lems rchuding

depreciation s added io he accoiniing proft and sdmissblo Bems such s tae deprrciation, Bapen e nouned fof businass

accourling
coma elc. e dedecled for detennining jolal laxabls inooms for & panicutar income yrar. Then (e provision b caloulaled applying gplicsbia lax mies on Wl laxable

12.3 Diher Lisbilites
Provislon o Leans and Advanco sfAsasiments (Mota-12 8.1}
Special Ganersl Provaion-COVID- 19 (Noke-12.a 7)
Provieios tar 0N Aalance Shoet Roms (Mote-12.2.3)
Provision spalnsl Disdnuiicn valus of investment (Nole: 12,8 4)
Pronvishon for O Assed (Moke-12 a5}
Infaranl Susponss (Node- 17 a8}
Prevision lor incsme Tax (Wole-12 8T}
Leaseheld | inblfas Undor IFRS 16 MNole-12 a8

Irdmrasl Payabils on Depouls snd Diber Accounds
Indeveal Payabis on Subardinsied deti
Intarasl Payalie on Bomeowing
Liatiilios Unider Finsnce Leass
Prosiaion for Expantes

B0 biperiid Fund Parking Accoand (311
Pigelsion for Good Boerowar
Incaniive Do Fayatde
Prowialion for Grabuily

Payabim ko MTH islami Sanking
Conaririlieitonn b MTER Foundalion
Biocked ineresl Receivabln BE Subsdy
Btant-Ulp Fumd fex SME
Clearing House Adjisiment
Miscalarmaus Liabiliey

papwi ] waunsaas] 83N
032 5 1010ang Gubeueyy

Jbwe|y wizuel
IS¢ oy )
i
2
:
i

Offghors Banking Unit

Ivlamle Banking Pranches

Less: inler irmnsaction with (Wshone Bankeg Uni
Mohammad Nazmd Hossaia, FCA

Growp Chisl Fingricia! Oficer

Mutaa) Trowl Bank Limited

Corporate reaa Office, Dhaks

®

[ 7400, e 64 | 000,210,133
T60, 502,000 A0B B39, 000
1,147, 800,040 BI2.297 3BT
1,000,000 1,000,000
185,303,556 141,303,556
5,313,140.760 3,432,400, 143
5270000871 3950588 041
1,404 408450 1,080,759, 150
1570 B,500
127559 ;
88,4192 11.220,578|
75, 078,27 179,045 i
440008312 AN AT4 058
137 068050 00,492,307
15,458 58 £, 887 0BG
¥ BF ) 10,624
99937 22,075,035
AT 1,988 484 800
204,547,422 273,854 200
133807740 1 110,460,702
. 12,000
45005141 18531013
04,704 B4 02,000,115
5 TEB.000 & 168 000
10029402 161,063,149
171,008,800 .
706,145.447 .
20,000.000 20,000,000
1,766.41 108,692 015
38171580 B003, 308
167931 »
. )] Fi
HSETIASE 180,091,1
41858652 421,571,533
RATENID :

Eawseyes. R

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited



Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
Motss 1o the Flnancial Statements

oL the Yesr nided 31 December 2081 s e
Paricners T s

1 12a1 Provislon for Losns and Advancesiinvestments

For Unelasailiad

i Opening Balance 2.780,145.13) 3 6GH 10842
Add: Provision mada duing e yes V3,720,088 168 823 40d
Less. Waives during the year (29,05 1108 5507
Leas: Transfemod bo claasifed provislons as pes Benglede sh Bark leftor DOS (CAMS) 11574 Wividend) (202 2- 1967, dated 10 11,382 047, 300 (1070000, 157)
April 2022 and DO (CAMS) 115701 (Divichond) /2002- 2003, dated 13 Apal 2027
Clasing Batsnca 1,449,802, 841 2,788.146.132
For Clasnified
Qpening Balance 4, 181,084,000 [ 3,008 3003 284
Aikd; Provision mads duing he yaar Tad. 000,719 T8, 750, 263
Add: Hicivarien of mmpunbs praviously weilien edf 44, 858.84% 34,550,087

! Add Transfened from unclassified provison &s per Banglndesh Back loflor DOS (CAMS) 1 1576 1 [Dividond) /2072. 1007, daled 1,352,042 302 1,078,080, 757
10 Al 3033 mivd DOS (CAMS) 115748 1Dividend) 703 2-2000, dated 13 Agril 2097

Lese Wakved during Bha year - (05,642,801 )
Lows: Adpstmant lor Laan wilhen off direg ihe yes (010,014,468
Closing Balance 1 THE000 4,181,064 000
l—llr a—'ﬂ.ﬂﬂ.ﬁlﬂ.
1202 Specisl Oeneral Provision-COVID-18
Opaning Batanco 6,000 .
Adil Proyiskon imagde dunng Ui yea 475 848,001 4 08, 830,000
Lass Provisan transfersd 1 1 g -
© INSHON, _ RENSN
ta.d Provishan for O Balance Sheet tems z
Cigpening Dalarce TWE,
Add: Prowision made durng h year il
L IELEN04 _ B12397,387
1284 Provielon for Dlmbsution In Valius of lnvesiments
Opaning Batance

Ackd; Preryinion made durlng Ifa year
Les Provision iransfened 1o Incoma T proviaion

1288 Provislen for Other Assets

Oponing Balenca "1, 65,103,550
Add Provisles made dufing lhe yes FL) Iﬁ.
1 1 iﬂaiu
12808 Ilerest suspenss socount
Opening Balanca 2134376 448
Add Addilion dusing the year 1,460,313 581
Less Warver of Imlecas] suspense {162 191, 166)
—fEAI R
16T Pravisbon for ncoms Tex*
Dpening balasce B.504 380,700
Lona: Adjniment musda duriog e ysar (6,420,837 248)
Add: Batance vansherred thom Provision tar Diminulion in Vslos of invesbrmenls .
Add: Provislon mada duing the yes IE 4 GO0
11

Cionkng balances of Tax Provision ss st Decembar 31, 2031

12070 Proviskon for eurtent lax msde dusing tha yoar

income e @) 37 50°% on business inceme {Fimated) 1,176,6 826,248 6827
it tag J 20.00% on dididand Fearms 630007 5,854
Incoive bax @ 10 (0% on capisl gain an sals of shares 28§ | 140,124
Total Tax Provislon malntained for Lhe pear 203 —lEEERERE0 36,744,660
Connputation of lakstie butinvess inooms =

Profil Before Provigon and Tax (PERT) 4,878 167.047) 1,727,847 8525
Add; Inedrm|ssdie oapandiluias o8 per s ey 3,734 38 Tl 3087,138,272
Less: Alowabie Expendifures & llams under 5eparabs considesation as pos ta lew 1 4, 126 2624 k]
Taxabie businesn income (setimated) far the year 2031 111
tmruupmmum:mmwmmur-mm.w.erth on Lle -

Provision and Tax (FBFT) mod sl olher wadimissible Sems that are sdded b he accountng pafl. Thers se some alowabio expenditeos which se doducted from the

F-? g EI-‘ (hinass Incomas 18 paf Incoma Tas Dudience 1984, Some lema s reated under soparate connidesation for which foduced (ax rales are applicats a3 por X lew BUCH
S0 3 &% Tncoma (rom investment in Quicled Shares”, Dividend incenss’, ‘Capllal Gain on sals & Gow Seoritios sic. All the noonwes are, therelom, acosmutaled b delermne
3 5 N i 1ol lanalbds iivcome af the Mank for & particular incomo year, The noie- 128,78 presentod sbove evests Ihal kolal (asbls business incoma (rimaled) (or ihe yom
ola o 2021 is BOT 3.710,731,699 and provision mquined for current tox expense is BOT 1,268,500,860, Toil balence of income lax provision maitsined as ol December 31,
§ o3 2021 18 BOT 5.270,003871 (ols. 124.7)
[ g l’" 12a.8 Leasehodd Lisbilltiss Under FRS 18
2 o I mummmrrmuummnmmnlhn-mmLuhmlnmrhlmmmmtﬁluuﬂm“mrmmmwmuu
| indinl apghication). The lease payments inckide foeed and varisbie inase payment izes any sfjusinont i inlisl paysent), and amoun |s espacled ba be piid wdet tasidus
3 ~tO wvalug of guatantoss. Tha leate paynarts 830 inchads the axsciss pdon of purchans oplon Festonnby corain fo be axeicisad by o bank sl paynen| of pennien b
='ms iesiminating he lease. The lease paynent hes besn discounted weing Bank rate as imglich terrowing rele @) 4%.
Q
g' 1280 Provislon for Gratuiy
Regulred Prowision 1200400000  1.171,700.000
Praoreinasn Mabnbnined up 1o ha yesr 2000 B0 200000
Provision to be mainisined In 2021 2500000
Ptovision chargod bor pratully during 2031 —AAB00000 154 002,000
Total Pravision msbnialmed for gratu ity ot the snd sl 2021
Furwl siready wansiesred 1o Grabuly Fund at the end of yeas 2021 —I‘m—%“ 7
1M

Furd 1o be iraeadnrod bo Caalully Fusd

_'-m _l_l—-
MoRammad Mazml Hossain of achiarial valustion mpa, proislon mquinnsont fer Graily hund for B yess 7031 I BOT 340800.000 which has been % his s iﬂ! %
; 1 udumm.m.nmmmhmmmhhmmuﬂﬂLIMEWMFHHMw«Imr—rM1.lemd

Group Chigf Finane|al OGO 171,000,000 wik be translorred soon i the Gealuity Fursd
f':‘,uiunl Trust Bank Limited
Corporate Hes Ofiice, Dhaka
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Mutunl Trust Bank Limited and s Subsidiarles
Hotes to the Financial Staternants
Irmmumu.lhnmumﬂ i

Gl E T g
{ ! 133 Bond

1 MTB Parpitusl Dond 4000000000 650000000

The Bank Hawnd & contingen|-conyedite Peepatusl band smounting o DT 4,000 mlon B acldional Tiar-1 cagilal th:aﬁMluh_ plﬁm !r»-:

\ coupon b Saml anvualy paysible and i ranges from B% 1o V0%, whars tha refermnca o is 5-yes ireasry bond rale slang with 2% margin

Bubardinasted Debis

MTB 2nd Subordinaled Debd

Cpenivg Balance 1,200,000, (00 1,000,000, 000

Lozu: Paymnend dusing ihe year 800000, 00 __%I,@,Q&_
0,690,000 1.200,000.000

MTE Jrd Suboraimated Dbl

Luss: Payrment dusng e ye 1&&,? . 1,000,000,000
3.000.040 4,000,000.000

o]

MTE ath Bubordinated Dabl i
(] 1

The Bank foated MTH fnd Won convesiibie Subordnatod Debl Bvough private piacesent fsr BT 3,000 milion, date of |ssoe # ange of coupan

Iodprenl in from 10 S0% (o 13.50% Tes fuony conwortille subsndinaled dabd which is paystis kol yarly bom e dite of laus Le, Apd nnd Dclober of esch year,

The ark foased MTE 3 Non convertble Subordinated Debl ihewigh piville placesanl for BOT 5,000 milion, dabe of lsse Fobnary 18, 2011 Tha ranga of coopan
Irlevesd g droen T, 00% Io 105t non converhibie sebordinaled dedl wivch is payabite hall yearly fem e dato of lssue e, Febvuary snd Augusi of gach yoar,

Tha bk isued B MTO #ik Nos-convadtble Subordinals Bond amaunting 1o BOT 5,000 miilen an Jsnuary 2020 teugh prlvate placamanl. The Compon i sermi-annualy
payible and d ranges from 7.00% 1o 10 00%.
Datail at of subordinsied debit holders are shawn in Annexurs-0

fda
el Authorized Caplial
1,000,000, 000 ordinary shaves of BOT 10.each

a1 Isseed, Subscribed and Padd-up Capital
103,450 468 erdinasy ahorea @ BOT 10 sach
35,172,072 erdinmry shaves @ BOT 10 esch ssvad as Barus
TRBEI N cadivimry ehaves 8 BOT 10 sach lawsed as barws

142,12 Ralsing of Share Capital

Accouniing Year

14012 I
articulars

Forg {HORF LKD)

nbwejy wizuey

—d Pl

papwi usunsaaul gon
037 7 ioanQ Subeuepy

LLERE | of a8 a3 Firal

¥

¢

| Mghammad Nazmul Hossain, HERE°
Gfoup Chisl Fmancal Officat
Mytual Trusi Bank Limited
Cteporate Heaa Olfice. Dhaka
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Managing Director & CEO
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Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and Its Subsidiaries

Notes 1o the Flaencinl Stajemenis

| BOT
. Particutars f Il YT
Name of Diractors and thair shareholdings as at 31 Decembeer 2031 —_—
I Name Dasignatiea N Degambar 31
i N, ol Shares hai BOT ";EEE'H %
hr. WA, YVl 103816, 750 1z %
T, It Al M sieis w% 1 Atz 163 236, 730 2,0090%
o, e Msepis Bl W%ﬁ_—m 103001%
L 20, MRORYE IR 105640, 160 L TEL .
[ hrs. Khwais Norgs Hossa 16543708 | {BA.47 055 20885%
. Adll Drrvela [T 24507 0158 145026, 150 J05TH
sening Advance al walrens Lid }
RA: M Ahamod Chawdhury Disthor 22448410 134,454,180 7 ERSTY,
Nopeeranteg Appocia L) li
de, M. A, Roul, JP Dvwslar 18,289 763 | PR LT
M, Anikin Chavwdhury Dienclor 18,376,923 [CEE TR 21016
Nir, Tk e Rafwnan Dhvetior B1a%5087 | 12.80,40 [E=re
[ das Plongel Insaance Compdny Lid
pev, Eranigl Lronatd De Lange (Reprosonting HORFLIND Piwor 1 JPAISOTG | 74155790 R A, -
rh, PERY Q0N At _Indaparadinl Dghir 5 i Op000%
Mr. Fanug Atvmad Siidkg Indeperden [ircior - % it "
. Tetal 04,333,085 | 3043.390.58 T A4S0
Consolidalad Canital to Risk-woiahied asssin Ratios ([CRAR) as definad by the Basel Casltal Aecord
Comsmon Eguily Ther-f (Galna-Cancain Caplial) ;
Prid-up Caplal 8,124,5% 560 7.386.324,180
Slaktory Resarve 5,000,254 A58 5,037 423, 388
Shoes Promium 10855304, 7T 1,005,304, 778
Gonesal [Teseen T80, TIT. M 184,777,334
Mo Conlroling Inkesent 133,240 131,752
i - e
1 1
Renutatory Adiustmanits: i
Gandwil pnd ol other knlanahle Assnls S10, 488,091 LLEE-T TR ]
Dederred Tus Anasts (05% of DTA &y par BH Guidaing) 222,908,013 087,025,397
Focipeocal Crosshoidings in tha CET-1 Canilal of Baniing, Fieancial and Insurance Entta - -

Tedal Comman Egulty Tier -1 iGoing-Concem Capital)
Adgzcnal Tier 1 Capikal
Total Tiar-1 Capital (Going-Concern Capiial)

Tiar-2 Cophtal (Oons-Concarn Caphan

Ganeral Provision ischuding Off Belance Sheol Bams
Favakeation Fasorve on irvesiniesd n Seouilies
Subordnated det

Requistery Adjustrments:
Hevaluafon Reserve for Fised Assels | Socuntes & Ecuily Secyritios
Tedlal Tier-2 Capdtal (Qons-Concern Caallaf)

4000 063 520
5,250,300, 254
#2672, TTS

A Total Regulatory Capital [Ties-1+Tiee-2)

B, Rish Welakied Asnsis

Credit Risk on

Badance Shost Expoaury

Off Bianca Shesl Emosirn

Market sk 5810, m 757
Operatcnal Fei

Toti ik Weahied vae j&&m:ﬂﬂﬁz
€. Minimum Required Capital on Risk Walghted Assots (Except capiisl conseryation buffe)

D. Capital BurplusfiShontall) |A-C) (Except caplial connarvation butfer) « m _wi_
[a.c-pu Requirement | Decemberdi, 3831 |

gt Beguired |

[Capilnl 8o Risk-welghted msols Rasos (CRATE) 10.80% 1441% 10.00% 12.02%
|Conwnon Equty Tiee-1 4 5% T 450% 1.84%

I_rir. 1 Capilnl [T 84% B00% LIT%

Tier- 2 Copital 4 TEN 4.75%

Tha ealculilion of CRRAR under Manel ||| has beon made an per - Gudslings on ik

fiasel W)" issued by Bangladesh Bark vide 85 BRPD Crcular no, 18 daled Dacamber 21, 2014,

Canllal 1o Risk-walahled ssseis Ratlos [CRAR as defined by the Base! Capitsl Accord

Common Eguity Tier-1 {Gaing-Concern Caphied)
Pad-wg Capllal

Statubony Resene

Sha Peadihm

General Aeseve

Retnined Earningy

Requlalory Adiusiments:

Chondwil snd o oiher ianghbls Assois

Dedeired Tax Assots (95% of DTA as per 2 Guideling)
Raciprocal

Croasholdngs inthe GET-1 Captal of Ranking, Finsselal snd lniwancs Enliiies

Total Comman Equity Tier <1 (Golng-Coacern Cap|iall
Adedilbanasl Tior. | Cophsl

Cﬂ'ulﬂ Tier-1 Capital (Golng-Concedm Caplal)

12| Trust Bank er:ted
| ﬂfDPFBIE Hoad Office, Dhaky

Hases ::-p-u Adeguncy (Revised Rogualony cnpunmmmu Bk in loe with

[ TR0 |
5.008,164400
1,005,301 78

7777324

4, 1

X
24710803

i T

¥

177 604,083 I

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited



Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and lts Subsidiarios
MHodes la the Financlal Stabemenis

Particutars

I!_u (2031

Tier<2 Capital [Gone-Concarn Caplial

Genatal Provlsion nokidag (6 Balance Shest Barms
Revauation Resene on lnvosimel in Securiigs
Subardinaled dets

Reaulatory Adjustmants

Rovakiaton Raserss (o Fisod Assats, Secwies & Eqully Socuities
Todad Tier-2 Capital (Gone-Concern Caplisl}

A Totsl Regulatery Capital (Tier-1+The-2)

B. Risk Welshind Assete

4000 082 520

| sgmgua 40
LR

Cradit Rink on
Balance Shaet Exposuire 149,638 424 TH?
O Bafance Skt F xpossra 1003
173,108,108, 864
Market Risk :s 853,214,001
Cipprationl Risk m
Totsl Risk Welghtad Assats
C. Minimum Required Capital on Risk Walghtad Avsats (Excopt capital conservatien bulfer) 207905, 131 __ 18261371683 _E_M
0, Capits) Burphusi{Shorifall) (A-C) (Excapt caplial consarvation buffer) IR 8N 5300782114
IE. Copital Reguiremaent Faguires. Hald i “-H.dﬂ
Capan to Risk-weighted ansels Rafios (CRART =
: = SRS RS
5 ;
Wk 1 in e
of CRAR ndor Basal Tl has been made 88 per © Guidelines on Risk Based Capal Adtauacy (Rovised uhq-i:mHmem;hhum

Biasel W) Isswnd by Dangiadosh Deek vida [1s BRPD Ceeular no. 18 dnled Decembar 213014
183 Stlulory Resarve

Ojning Palpnce
Add: Translermed during the year [20% of Profi belede Tax)

18.3 Share Pramium

A Duitling e yomi

Consodidated Ruvadualion Ressrvs o nvesimant in Securillion
Muiliss! Trus) Bank lmiled (Mole- 17 a)

MTH Securdies Limded

MTE Capilal Linviod

MTH Exchanga (LK) Limted

Revaluation Reserve on Investment in Securitios
Opaning balants

Add: AddtondH esiced) dunirg lhe yoar

Closing balance

Ganeral Resarve

Opiting halmmce

Cloeng balance

Consolidated Surplus In Profit snd Loss Account [ Retained earnings
Diponing batanca

Add. Conachdated Profil msde durieg ihe year
Less: Bonus Share Issuod dering b yom

Litan: Caah Dividond paki

Liess. Devidand for Perpalual Bandhoitderns

Lenn; Bors Sharn laugd by MTR Capiisl Limied
Lesa: Trarabeirad o Sinhilony Haseve

Less: Stad-Up Fund

Add: Capstabzed Proft Reserve (Borus Share I5suad by MTE Capitel Limited)

ir.oa

1T.a

8.

100

140 Surpius in Profit and Loss Account/Rstained earnings
Ogumiing Bnlonce

Add Prodd mads dising the year ®

Less: Bonus Share kssued during e yonr

Lesn; Cosh Dividenid paig

Less: Dividend for Pespatusl Bandheidess

Loaw: Tesstaloisd bo Staludory Rasene

Less: Stant-Lip Fund

As pev requliton of Bangladesh Dask (iel BRPD choulsr no, 11 dajsd Docember
mmﬂrmmﬁ:mmnﬂwulﬁtdhmnﬂnmhmmnumm
iperods whed deformed lax ncoma wil ba recovered. Hence, s enilen smounl of defemd tes ass Lo,
deslributndie profe Tar ihe shassholderny

2000 Mon-Controlling Enleresi
Uﬂnuum
Puodit imade diring tha yoa
Ing Balamce

030 % 10paug Buibeve
NBuwepy wizuel

JoEs

panwi juswisasul 30N

- -

U ,‘.Imad Hﬂﬁsam'«

inancial Office
Eiee
|
|

ual Tru’1

ate Hesd Olce, Dhaks

12, 2001} the smouni of Net Profil Afer Tas (NP

486 928 208
AR 113 200

EYEN RN

(351, 770, 730)
(A5, 729.722)

(345,550,547

). incre ased u-hlu recogniton of
mﬂmmmuuwmmmm

BOT 230,706,750 wil b deducied whie determining lhe

121,751

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bapk Limitea




Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidlaries
Holes bo ihe Financial Bralemanis
B0a1

3 Parliculsrs

MTH Securiies Limod KPAT
| 0,000 of NFAT
| 5 MTB Capital Limited: NPAT
| 0.004% ol NPAT

1.2 Of-Batance Shoel Rema
Conira & Contlegam Asasts & Liabditins
! Acceptances snd snderssmants
Aocepbed Ml land)
Aucapted Bill (Foraign)

Less: lnlwr transactian with Off-shors Banking Unit
Inlmimic Danking Branches
Laltor of giuasranies
NG Ouibward {Indand)
B0 Oubaard (Foesig)
Cifshare Banking Unit
lerevocablo letiers of credit
ILC Sight
ILC Usonce
lilamie Banking Branche

illa for callsstion
i 1]

Had Labber of Gusranies
i) Claerns apaingl tie Bank nol pcknowdedged o dalis
) Money for which the bani is contngoniy Balle in respac] of
gunianteon ghen lavoring

Gavesrmand
Bank and ofer Fiaancial inasbiutions
Divers

Loss Margis

i) Liaksliny on Accound of Bils Fo- Discousisd
I} LinksSly o Acconrd of Dulslanding Foomird Exchangs Condtaet

1.01.1 Segregation of Commliment by Type
Degumanlidy Crodil snd Bhorl Tosm Dusiress Relaled Transsction

Forssid Assel Punthased and Fonsard Deposil

Endorssd formal standby faolliiss, Credil fecilition and otlar commitments:

Less i) o0t yair
Oaw year and ahove
Uaidtawn formal slsndly faclifles, credt lnes and other comimibmanta:
Spod eed Forward Foralgn Exchangs Riste Conlect
‘Othed Exchange Conlract
Ll

1100 mcome Siatement
Incoma:
Flaieel, Discount and Similad iecame
Diwidaind Beame
Fea. Commisssn and Bickersg
Emthangs Galn
Dher Crparating incoma

Expansas:
lnleignl, Fea aod Commianlon
Admministralive sspanies
(Jhat aperaling espenues
[imspracisten on Bavking Asseh

Oparsing profd

3300 Convolidated Werest Incomaelprof an veslmenis
Miarlanl Trus! Bk Limidad (Wobe- 23 a)
MTA Securitios Limitad
MTE Cagal Limstad
WTE Exchange (LK) Limited
Lows: Inbtagroup intaresl ndoema (Losss)
Less: inagioup inborest incoure [Bask batnce)

-

039 ¥ J0108uq Suibeuey

nbwepy wizue|
IRl

peuwWwn weswisaaul €90

ha dwrini ey seralll B invesimim
Lidid 50d Advances invesiments (Mote-21 a 1)
Meviay o Cal and Shon Nalice
Shant Term Pracemenl jLecat)

3 Term Placesran (Fansign]
Morammad Nazmul Hossan, F
Group Chiel Financial Q& e wanacion il Ofshacy Backing Usi
Mistual Trust Bank Limited
| Corporate Head Office, Dhaka {
|

|

-' ‘ o

330,598,611 3,801 020, 155

81,081 34745177080

BAM0T,015,205  38,340,705,844
12873 084,

EARE #5.072,241,002

A
44,041 B TOD 25072247 362
nmm [cTin]
710 -H‘.l
MT."?

A0 ARATS _ SGRATEIT AN
6103 5H.7 4,530,063 508

1 ? 20113104071
36.650,851.42) EEREERET RS

T 25153147, 769

47,484 221
gz:?;,'rﬂ 61
a7,887, 052

MM
BT K[ _

B 108270 60550079, 154

[ VOB BARE0 | [ 16035, 700,600 |

156, 174634 4 278 268
1,118,300 B0 028,270,107
BIT.O45235 B0, 168 538

RGNS T 885 048

4,871 ABAADE 11,600, 310,445
4,88, T04482 4,186,765 520
1,401 528340 1.388,810.122

L BRANILA [ 68565600
71 M 15 1

", 1 1. ]

2AVEI43 1,308,510
43230790 PR AR
{24,5:20,508) (8,045 201)

43 (15,011,348}
ﬁ —E 00030500
140 Baagas | [ 15384880600 |
ATLAEQ A, O, 74
n2Rwer 53,341,437

| 105 431
1&%&% 1 a8 inh

yed Mahbubur HahElar‘

ﬁqmﬁ Director & G

Mutual Trust Bank Limited



Mutual Trust Bank Limited and s Subsidiarlos
Noles to tha Financlal Sialements

For tha Yo anded 31 Dsasrber 2031 e ——
Partieviars
l 0t | —
1321 Interesi on Loans and Advances/lnvesimenta
Cmah Credis 1 120 190 Bat 2,BE8311 785
1 Dwrdralls 1.647 680,17 2017 402 626
Dty Purchakod and Dacouned 100, 157,240 A 340 3T
\ Conlinuous Losh 052,008,158 405,904 3
Desvand Loans 2,524,571, 160 3006448 474
Team Losns 5,190,310, 408 4,061,070, 831
\ Shorl berm Anii. Credi and Macrocredit 445,627 387 TEZ 86 320
Packing Crodil 40,608, 041 A0 488, 70
Credl Cands 297,710,584 48201 508
Stall Loan 31,145,255 37 528,850
Leass Finarde LA
1 % 14, 668,346,231
Offshore Banking Unt 702,308 244 80,537,600
Hlaime Banking Branches 1 Al :
34,00 Conwollduied Interssl pabdiprafit shared on deposits and borrawings aic.
Mubaal Trust Bamk Lirmiled (Mote-24.a)
M7 Socurien L imied
MTE Capaal Limied
MATH Exchiega (UK Limbsd

Lops: infragroup Inderas| Expenas (Borrowin g}
Loss nlregroup Inleres! Expensa (Deposin

242 Interest paldiprof shared on deposits and borrowings i,
Indoreal o Deponil sod Ofor Accowums (Nole-24.n.1 )
indarest on Sebordrsted Bonds and Bomowing fhom other Banks and Financial inslibutioss {24 2.2)

Oifshars Barking Unlt
tslamic Banking Branches
Lk Inbar franaaclan wilh Olishang Banbiog Ued

ot Intesiest on Deposits and Other Accounts
Cuwrent Deposd & Other Accounts
Savings Degost
Fizpd Daposits
Specisl Noficed Deposils
Dapasd Producly

Mo nterent on Bebordnated Bonds and Botrowing from ofher Blanks and Financial inaliutiens
Infarest on Barmawing froen ether Backs s Financlal instibions
Wnbarest on Subordirated Debd

15,00 Consclidaled Investmaent Ineome
Mutusl Trusl Bank Limied iNoin-24 &)
MTB Securiies Limied
MTB Capita! Limiled
MTE Exchangs (LK) Limhed

5.8 eveimant income
Intgnes| on Treasury Bal
Inees on Tioasy Dend
Mileresd on reverss REPD
Captal Gan froum Trading in Gowl Getuilies
Capital Gani(Loss) on imeeatmand in shares of quocled companles
Dividenil Incoma frony imvesimant in Shares
Dividerwd ncame bam Preference Shans investment
Dibvidend neame fram Mutual Fund

8on

g Buieueyy

H6wey wizy

el
§
]
i
:
H

16.00 Consolidated Cormmission, Exchange and Brokersge
Bulunl Trasd Bank Lnded (Nole- 248 a)
W10 Securfies Limied
MTB Capital Limited
WTD Exchangs (LK) Limiled

M.a Comabasion, Exchange sad Urohsiage
Commisaicn (Mole-26.a 1)
Eschangs |Meds-20 5 2)
Brohssags

PEIWIT jusunsany)
032 701980

=il

Ha.i Commlission
Cormmission on LeBar of Guaraniee
Covrwmission on Leller of Cradd
Cormaression on Acceplance of By
Comarinalon on lmgeUE sped Coleciion
Commission on LC Advising
Commissionon PO, DDA TT

) Enchange hauaes convission

| Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA ammssiion n 100

Gobup L_h e Finaneial DilicerUnderwiiing Commission regarding Tressury BilBond
| Mutual Trust Bank LimitodSommision on RTGS

Cotporate Head Ofice, Dhaka
}

| W

¥

518860 4528

e, s

5012575

580,831 838,300,037
4270061 573 7.008.830,142
454,512,300 486,607,724
2008030, 070 108, TE 033

02,001 A0S : mﬂﬂ.ﬂ::
ﬂﬂ”__mmm]
ToEeaise _issseses

eR2e 3 v AW
P00 395 309 59,671,993
LT k] 12,704 445
DT RATI SIS
17, 1805 140, 751,058
21027313 330,710, 500
- T8 614
643, T0R. 040 004, 701 48T
83 205278 1,491 243
13,441 805 4339 268
50,579,167 .

4, 784000 ¥
LLERLT LR +
63,056 484 103,477 877

"‘W BETTETEE]

, *

IS S

g 1,707, 450 308
400025000 161,041 923
Hranoa 07,500

. 2,981 840

AN BRTADD 3 §32,450,388
1,990, 303050 28270767
048238 020,188 538
BN INIIA, N787,459,30
208,334,186 T07 843 R

A 30T 010 08 63T B

I AZEEST 212 6700861

41087221 28235147
14610300 10813 854

B1Zia0s5 7048 543
£5.10¢811 4 684 0
12484318 0,837 000

166738 13, T56878

A1 B1RS520 24 665 330

S008850 2aranar

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limitao



Mutunl Trust Bank Limlted and Its Subsidiarios
Nolis lo Ihs Financial Statsments

ot the Year anded 31 Decembar 2031
Particulars

L L 20

Caommitsan on POS

1 ONshare Banking Una
lelamie Bankling Branchas

#6032 Exchange Gain jnet of sxchangs loss)
[ echanga Gan
1 Less: Exchonge Loss

2700 Consclidated olbar operaling incorms
Mubaal Tiusl Back Liemited {ode- 27, 8)
MIB Becuwiies Limilad
MTE Copisl Limdied
MTA Exchasga [U80) Lsnbad

2t Olher Qperating Incomas

WVISA Cand

Chargaa Bgans cads
Senice Chages
Tolephans & SME Chirgs Recovanas
SWIFT Chasge Recoverias
SME Feas and Charges
Manageied lesy

Early Solligmsd Fos

Loan Frocessing Fes
Palial Payrman| Foe
MPER Acqurs Income
Lockes Ren

Mipcslansous Eamings

Oilshera Barking Unil
ttamle Banking Beanghes

1,00 Comsolidated Bataries snd Mlowances
Mulual Trust Bank Limiled (Mobs-38.0)
MTH Securites Limded
MTE Capital Limhss
MTE Exchanga (LK) Limied

#8.a Salary and Alowances
Banio Pay
Allgwantoy
Hanus
Giralusty
Leave Fare Asslstance
PFraviden| Fund

a1 Chisf Exvculive's sslary and fees
Basic
Albwance
Banun
Leave Fare Assistanco
Providan] Fund

.00 Conselidated Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Eecisicily vic.
el Trusd Bank Limited (Molo. 29 o)

iR Ceanin

BOY S4B 138 [EEEFL T
12,500,060 10,064,767
24 800 407 11,075,947

- b | L]
111X L]

7,465 Eaz o0

14T 074 03 TR TOnATA

200602 088 153,000,382
09, TT5, 85 122 424 005
IH,H'I-,.EH TI.TOT 654
31,911,675 .40 318
LR 2,182 001
78_502 251 29,550,778
ATe 168 SAT2.038
67,128,020 51,170,252

E 136,209

22,157,008 16,800,700
7155700 543062

1
861,177,558 633,420, 616
. 7853
TH AT .

—_mieaia ___easazsaer
iﬁl.ﬂtiﬂ 3531 820,178
2,740 437 B3 B82 337

13, 7ea417 12,520,445
. 8,400 |

[ 170 Am A0 | 1,860,307 683

1.292.795.628 1,271,859 705

380, 270.504 204 800,022
343,800,000 54,382 000
‘H.Eﬂ.ﬁ'ﬁs 680,891, 307

il 180558 600 |

7.3 LMY X
CRETI0 77,146 008
1374450 1,880,000
4,010,930 2420250
1010930 3,302,870

:;.Iiisﬁ 1,714 000

708, 148335 S40.400.541

MTE Securies Limied 084,000
S = MTD Capilal Limiled 50y dar 302
WS Eq MTE Exchange (LK) Limiied | EEE BSi:I :i!J
%' 'g ﬁ B.a Rent, Taxes, surance, Electricity sic.
ga = Rant* FE R ETFTED 210,064 080
2 o3 m‘r m:w 70,478307 67.306 462
2 g‘ b h::;.lm B2, 169.187 4,077 B85
= y 13,0807 2 3. 230,034
E oo Etecincity & Uities | 11057807 | 107,702 470
[y 9.3 . "
* Wiidy mplomensng FRS 18 Laawes. i bk recendad Ielere st paid an lease kabilly (rede-38 3} and deprecisnn s ROU assely Tﬁm&ﬁm&
g;.- g =5 H‘“-H*mmlwmmﬂnﬂl'ﬂmnmmmnmaﬁumw‘:nlnunmn:r;nunurnrwﬁ' T

a1 Reconcillation of rental sxpanse is presanted as under:
A) Tatal Rent axpenaes, incurred for offoe premises, pald during 2021
Total Rent sxpenses incurrad in 1021

) Rentsl expenses converted into the nferest axpenses on loase llabilily & deprecision supenses on ROU Assets:
Renl supsnes considering for IFRS 16 Leasss " =

Cl=iA-B). Rent Expenses prasentad lin Note 208

O} Expennes charped during 2021 for FRS 16 - Leases
Inbgveid Exponses on eass Eabily (Molo a)
Mﬂhﬂﬂ'ﬂ!ﬂd”ﬂm‘rj Hesssain Espanses on ROU Assaly (Mo 3% a)
Group Chisf Finaneisl C'!I’]"ucur Spuins shinged fac Rl Aeaeta diring e your
- Mutual Trust Bank LimiD-8), Addtional sxpenves incutred for lsanas during 2021
Ejurpur:rtu Hesd Ofice, Dhaka

oJ L1}
b @\M" ““Qlék f,--g;
ﬂl""&

— SELABRATG  S16.706.207
— RN 355050

—MIRONATR  285.451.181

5845740 558300

— 20400512 222,350,208
—ANQ4RIE8 277,891,200

—SREEEMY 46,626,152

N

ayel Mahbubur Rahman
Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limitao
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
Motes Lo the Financlal Statementy

rnmxmmﬂmnumt 1
T
Janice == e e e
Consalicaled Legal Expanss
Whutlussd Trusd Bark Limitod {Nobe- 30 ) B.907.512 2170560
MTB Securies Limied 2 g
MTE Capilal Limited
MTD Exchangs (UK) Limtod £ :
hiﬂliq ﬁl H 594
Legal Expanie
Legal Expanse w [ 2176569
AET,010 f X
Istamic Banking Beanthas o8 .
Conselidaied Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, ole.
Mubual Trust Bank Limibed (Modo-31 a)
MTIH Socunses Limdad
MATH Capxead Limibed
MTE Exchanga (LK) Limtasd
Paoulage, Stamps, Telecammunicallon ale,
PostagaiCouier Service | 0,800, 7 B4 “ 4,830,824
Teten 1
5,002, 584
Islarnie Banking Branches 12827 =
A0
Consolidated Stationery. Printings, Advgrtissments sic.
bl Truesd Bank Lierited (Mote-32 0} To.101 043
MTE Secunitses Limied 670,539
MTE Capilal Linviled 100,743
MTB Exchangs (LK) Livded 207 514
ETEE
Slalionery, Advarlisemanis s
Printing Slabomnary 24002364
Computar Blalioneny 11,426,118
:‘alrrl- Tmli_rr 15,870,240
ity s i yq gg
Te.
Islasmie Banking Branchss ’
1
Consolidated Director's Fess
Mbuiluand Tl D Linwilad (Mohe- 2 a) 22108040
M1 Securibes Limbed B 400
MTE Capilal Limites 574000
MTB Exchangs (LK) Limied - -
—_ewpw, ___amose.
Direciors Fess
Meoling foa [ ;g;ﬁ“ 1628148 |
1,628,149
Isiamic Banking Branches

Bank has paid B0T 8000 8s Honoimnum accoeding io ihe BRPD cleulai leibar na. 11 datsd 04 October 2015

Contolidated Audiar's Fess
Mutual Trust Bank Limétad (hole-34. 5}
TD Sacurition Linked

MTE Capilal Limilod

MTH Exchangs (LK) Linied

Auditors Fees
Annual Ascoonl
Durariery Aooounls
NOBTRO Ascoun|
BFF Aceoun
Coamporate Govwrnance

Consoldated Depreciation and repair of bank's assely
ulusl Trusd Bank Limited (Male- 3% 0)

MTE Securiliss Limiled

MTH Capilol Limiled

WTH Exchange (LK) Limélsd

Consolidated Depreciation of assate
Rebuilual Toust Bank Limited (Mate-35.a)
WTN Secursies Linded

WTH Capilal Limitad

WTH Euchaige (UK) Lirded

Convolidated Repair of Bank's assels
byl Trust Bank Limited (Nobs-35.a)
MTH Securities Limssd

T Caglal Linlod

TR Exchargs (LK) Limiod

| Mohgmmad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
| Grolp Chief Finanal Officer
Mytynl Trust Bank Limitod

Corporate Hesd Office. Dhaka
wd

-

7 AL

1.485.000 2,267 500
120800 40,000

KL Zaiazo0.

1,380,000 1,760,000
. 345000
A7,.500
57 500
57,000 |
2387500
TOR BT0, 701

G, 300352
BS 307

_ 819,020

——LEE

580,70 120 A6 658,504
015583 5,003,072
1743127 501,157

ﬁti T

108,221,207

14083 3,70

03263 274,160

&71,081
1

—me e

Whouour Ranman

Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limiteo



wizue|

PaUWIT UAWISSAUL SIN
nBwe|

Mohammad Nazmu

35

30,60

dba

ir.og

Ba

e

Mutual Trust Bank Limlted and Its Subsidiarios

Neded 15 the Financlal Stalements

[uﬂu Yoar undes 31 Decembar 1011

Partieulars

T

Denraciation and Rapair of Bank’s assals
Depdacintion

mmovabis Propary

rml. Flibaa

Rapalr of Bank's axseis
Inlamie Banking Branches

Consolldated Ciher Expenves
Mistucal Truesd Bank Liméled {Mote. 38 &)
MTH Socumes Limbed

MTE Capilal Limies

MTB Exchange (LX) Limilod

Ciher Expensen

Socwily & Ausiiary Sorvica
Oilice Clmaming

Otfice Malnlamsnnce

Car Expensa

Erteriainmant
Nawigapes & Parodicals
Clearing House Expanse
Trovedrg & Conyeyancs

Bk Charge

Trakning Expenaa

Piglesalonal Fas

AGM Expense

Gubsoriplion & Donatan
Roulers Changa

CDBL Charges

Fees & Regiaialion

Buringss Developmant Erpense
Conkritllon ks MT Foundalion
Honararium

Cash Camying Expanag

Cantact Pomnl Verlication (CPV) Charges
Sitn Mainbenence & Suppsn Sorvico

i line and connocivily changes

MID Verificalion Chargo

Agent Barking Flost Shading Comenlyslon
bFash Comimssion

Wlifest gxpansos on laase fabiity

Loas on Bmln of Fised Assels

Oiltshars Daaklng Unk
Islamle Banking Branches

Consalidated Provislon for Loans, Investmant & Other
Provision lor Unclassilied Loans and Adwances

Spect Genasal Provialoa-COVD-10

Provision for Clas sied Lasns & Advance

Wycrinion for OF Balanca Shoel lams
Pravision for Margin Loan & Diminution in Valus of Investmants
Provigion for Oilar Asaal

Proviskon lor Loans, Investment & Dther
Frayison lpr Unclassied Lonns mnd Advanoos
Special Gonesal Provision-COVID-19
Proviion for Clnnaiiad Losna & Advinces
Provesion for O Aatance Shoet lems
Provision for minuion in Vil of Invesimants
Piayisen fov O Assel

Cansolidaled Pravishon for Current Tas
Bulual Trusd Benk Limiled (Male-38.3)

Canselidaled Dalerred Tax (incomalErpennes
Ml Truat Bandk limiied {Note-38.8.1)

WT R Sacuilies Limisd

T D Capilal Limilad

UTH Exchange [UK) Limited

Hog sy, F Dlovision for Detarred Tax Expensasiiscoml
| Gigp Chie Financial Officafefered Tex tase noe- 94.4.2 0 8421}

Mutusl Triust Bank | imited

Conporale Heag Office, Dhaka

-

| FITT 00
0713457
 FRERTT

264 424 50D
20373601
80,521,538
)
: —%ﬁ%
140451, 706 103
—eamon e
1, 7e 511
s e
1311 50,08 1.310.509. 204
24,108,248 15 104 260
4785708 2,879,786
731
N1 MR %117
[ 183,508,240 | 0% |
83,645,135 70,182 544 |
1,400,281 20,220,745
207737 547 270,001,650
15,040, 540 17,101 449
.7 B 08
M,16 49,840
MIRIN 25,568,805
2,459,068 i
2,452,108 BsTr210
36,759,634 41297090
502,631 409,600
87,417 208 1a.100. 304
2,269 588 :
1,132,800 70 457
18,178,470 18,879,878
246,801,808 178400 462
30)000,00 20,000,000
1,330,155 36,472
M, 110675 20,700,422
3,141,478 1,551,350
4,348,707 FEaT A
43,85 005 AT A4
1,619,095 327,081
48,004 00 87,005,777
. 4,354 404
8,457 440 65530810
_,‘!% 0,048,165
1,392, 0004 1,200,967, 018
10,430,851 A
1,850 TH1
i L FI[XIIF TN
Il.mﬂ‘“ 168820498
415 880801 408,830,000
712 840710 B70.750.262
335,502.66 0044 871
49,000,000 83,800,000
000
13,729,068 |
475,804 551
730,840 16

33 652 653

[ 1255 525860
187,815,184

11,665557

bubur Rahman

s Diractor & GEO
mﬁﬂ Trust Bank Limited
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Ils Subsidiarios
Mates to the Financlal Stateimenls

For tha Yeu gided 31 Decembar 2031
[ Partlculars

*Tho Bank accousded for defemed i as per (AS 12 ncome Tooes, Deterred fax |5 acomanied for any lemparany difesences between ho canying amounts of assots and
liabibian and Ihow bax basas, Defarmed 184 sxpanae i the amount of income fax payabie i B future panods |1 reapect of e Waxable Mrmpoary ofemances. Doferod lax
irome s i anvound of ncoma tsd recoveratie in ihe fulure pericds In respect of deducible mpamry dilfarences. Any kind of provisien kept agaas! the unclassied and
clapsilad loans inchaling off batance whisl Baivid Is contideiod an deduciile inmperary @eresce ai par IAS 12 a9 wol 8d Incenve Tan Ovdnance 1004, Deledad
catcidation of daleyed fax has been presented In the nole no, Ba 4 2 snd B.a4 2.1 Defemd i incoms rocogrized during Ehe year inchales Ba defered lax Incoma
aming on the nmcanl tranadorned from ganesl provision 10 spaciic provislon last yesr a9 per Dangladosh Bak heller DOSIRMMMCMS) 1 1547 16UZ021. 1841 daled April
20, 2031, Dazing iha yoar 2071 deferred inx incoine of DDT 883 204, 208 has bash recognimd i b proll 5nd loss scesunt duw 1o s rocsgn llos of defamed Lan assals
(B80T 223,704,750 fot speclic provison [BOT 5,058, 788,000} kepd sgainal ihe clossfied losms as b income tax wil be recovered in hufure periods

Conselidated Barming Per Bhase (EPSL"

Conpaldalad Mol Mafl Afer Tis !j?ﬂ,'l'lljg_ OT0IET 008

MNuriber of Oirdinary Shares oulstanding 12 455 6 i Hl?ﬁ&f@

Earping Per Bhore (EPS] !E A8

"Eatmings per shars has been calculalad in acosrdance with IAS 33 Earnings Per Sha [EPS]

Earning Per Share (EPS):*

Nal Profil Afker Tax (i
Nuinbr f Oty Shares cttaedng 11— 1177}
Eaming Par Share [EPS) 141

“Earningh par Ahare ban basn CHUEAIN I SCoV0aIca Wil [AK 23 Esnngs Per Share [[PE] Cormparativg EPE Pas besn resialed 31 per i i of Nloeh diviand

0110% for the yoar 3030 A e snd of yead 121, EPS has incresed by BOT 248 Lo 224 45% dua I8 e seroass of Mot Prod| Afer Tox (NPAT). Durisg 2021 MPAT has incraassd by
BOT 201 65 orern wheh has 3 growth of 724 45% tampaned 10 (el o 2009 Tha main ressen of B Grosif & NPAT & Bhal net kol incasms in 2001 has neraaied by £3 85% [eng wik
T growdl ol nonnlaresl incose] shich & conibuiing signileanily 4 increane e Profil Belwe Provisios and Tas (POFT) of MTE by 48 755 I 200, PRPT has soreased by BOT
15579 ertle snd HPAT has increased By BIOT 204 85 érove compared 1o thad of pear 2030 Ancter reassn of prowsh s botom bre (334 45%) i3 that a5 pariaS 17 ecome Tares, defermed
fan ingmens of BOT B8 33 crore i baen rocegniped in the Profi and Lans Accowst kor B yes andod Docoimier 31, 2331 dus b ¥ s pase of Geliwed s ABEn which wil be secoversd

1 fubine periods 28 pee lncoma The Ordednes 1084

Consolidsted Rocelols from other opsialing sctivitles

Wailizad Tousd Bhank Ureilad (hobe.4i.4) 1,580, 199 060 | 1,680,452 053
MWD Securies Limned 170,211,807 51,125,060
MTE Capilal Limitod 3,147,760 2008415
MTB Excharga (LK) Limsed i ﬁ 434
Receipts fram ather opsraling aciivitiem
Handing chargs B4 £43,700
VISA Gand e areag? TE.TOD 474
Chasges againsl cards 200,802 048 177,078,653
Service Charges 9, 715832 122423065
Tedaphars & SMS Charge Recovenod 10, 251278 17167054
SWIFT Charga Recoveries 381578 27349 219
SME Femn mnd Chagas 4 E88 307 2,102,061
Branagemard heos 10,801 251 20,559,778
Egirly Beilfesnent Foa 1. 78,166 5477,005
Loon Pracassng IFee S, 0380 81,170,252
Padtial Paymenl Fea . 136200
HPEB Acaquire Ingpena ABD0R 16,500,770
Lockey fRant 7,158 700 5,430,823
Discount an Treasurny Bl 17,178.008 140,751,056
Galnimed oii loas) bom Trading in Gow, Securities 45, 705 840 a04, 781 487
Capisl GanfLess) on Imvesiment in shaees of guabed companies B3, 285278 1,491,243
Hhacetansaun Emmnigs 131,042,081 30,058, 075
Oifghoes Banking Lisi . 7.05%
lslamie Banking Branches e e
ﬂ Y (VoA
Consolidsled Paymaenis for othar oparating sctivities "
Flenl, Tas, Insapes and Elechicily sie. [ Tamcaiand | [ 5Fb, 76604
Legal Experse 51687512 2,178,500
Poslage, Starpa, Tesogram & Teleconmnicalion sio 20052310 0.030,554
Dirmciors’ Fea 1,831,000 2,710,040
HAundliors Fees 7, 158280 2,804 200
Repar & Malmenarcs 140,705 752 10,503,218
F AR —Lanonaes, _isiieas
Paymenis for ather operating activities
Ranl, Tax, Inssrsnce. Elociicity 700, 140038 | R0 A0 BAN
Legal Eupansa 5167512 2,178,560
Posiage. Sinmps, Telegram & Telephone 047383 5,062 584
Drocaoiy’ Fee 1211800 1,028,148
Audit foa 1.485000 2,767 500
Rapas & Mainlinaicos 140,238 307 100,221,207
PN o 11717 K K 1R
S IO, TTO
Conyolidated Reconciilation of cash Nows lram operating activites
Frofit before proviskon 3,518,481,197
Adjunimanl for non cash Remy
Crepreciaton on fixed assets. (e FE
Aunilaton on Eolkeie s a0 A3
E33,415.7T
Adjusimen with non-aperating activities
Hecovery of willon of lnan T 34 RSO BNT
Arcourty Recenabis (2,743,532, 518)
Accounts Payabie on doposits A40.645 7HT
Loks on snbe of Basels 7.857 6RZ
MTE Foundasion

J
hjnhmaﬂ Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Grayp Chit! Financial Oifficar

| Mutual Trust Bank Limitad
Combrate Hesd Office, Dhaka

]

Managing Director & CEQ
Mutual Trust Bank Limbeaco
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WMemammad Nazmid Hossaia, F
Gitolip Chied Fapncal Clficer
viulal Trust Bank Limited
‘brfiorate resn Office, Dhaka

wd

Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiares
Hotis Lo ths Financlal Siatomenils

ot the Yeae anded 21 Pecembrer 1031
Parficulats

Changes in operating assats and Fabililes
Changes n lopm & pdvancen
Changes in deposils & other sccounts
Charges in bovrowings
Changes in ol nssely
Charges in giher kabises

Incema lax pald

A28 Reconciliatin of cash Bows from operating activities
Profil balors provision
Adjusiment for non cash (lams

Deprecintion an fund st
Aumoriz ation on saftwing

Al juwtmant with son-operating aciivities
Reeavery of written of loan
Accounts Rocolvable
Accounts Paynlss ol deponily
Loss on sale of assads
MTE Foundalion

Changes ln operating sisels snd BabiBlas
Changus i lomna & sdvincas
Changas in depesits & olfer accounts
Changes in
Changes in olher aseets
Changes n clir inbisey

Incoms tax paid
43,00 Numbser of Employeas

(90, 01657 18)
{2,054,120,464)
W, 148,130,952
6,734 227

4070, 107,043

-3
3 305 511,535

681,303,218 686,656,994

EE.IIJ
1.743.532 618)
BEOO45, AT
6048, 185

0100 B )|
(2888942 651)
0,146,130, 0453
4 488 055
T

¥ |1?
1, T,

Thi namber of simployaes engaged lor B whols yaar of par thareol who received n Lot iormner aken of INT 30,000 or abave ware 433,

00 Mumber of Branchas

)

MNurnber of Bronch
Marmber of Sub Beanch
85,00 Numbar of Meeting
Honrd Menling 14 1"
Eneoutive Commilles Meatng 3 [
Austld Commiian Meading 4 4
ik Managesmanl Conumiies Mesling 4 4
40.00 Welsted Partv Disclosures of ihe Mank
iy Mame af ihe Direcaoss logetned wilh 8 Bsl of enities iy which thay have nleresl Annexure-E
) Sigficant contracts whists Tank is n paty and whetsln Direciods have Inberost during B pedsd onded 31 Decemiba 2021
Relalionship Nature of ;
Hame of Disvcion with the Dank ._%I“!.ﬂ!ﬂ Approva limi %—m uso
Cud | goroooooocn| TBITCA 133 CR
[ﬁ Mt Wik Chalrinan —ém
BOT 100,000.00 2037 M CR -
Wice W _%_ BT 1640000000 1,30, 047 CH
Dérg
M, Syed Mangur Elshi (Fesaneding ERCY Covd il Carcd USD 30,000 00 1150008 CR 4380 DR
Chinirmian) et B e
| 4BRZOECHR 8,180.37 DR
WAr, Fashan Ahbed Chessdhing - A :
presantng Associated Builkders Corporalion Lid 5 4150 0 O -
AE073.00 DR 044 CR
10,1030 CR 161 CR
independent
Diractos o
Indépandent A,
Dirmchor
iy Shares lnvued to Directors and E kecsiives withoul conalderation or sxerclvable sl o dacoust Hil
Funcled
Trannactionn Dulalanding Matire af
Ralstedwich nature mmounl BOT Secyrity
hitllgn
e Syed Mangur Elahi 800 (Ganesl) 23412|| Mol Land and
M. RASHED AHMED CHOWDHURY| T8 Perscasl 8779 E“"""""! i
: Loan firanch

lr T

v BNt ” )
I'E‘:? 'E:'-::c.u-!-ﬂ", i Fl_:‘iué.tr?:;” . ;)
I Company -y -.
G:.":t"::ui T“-!":il Bf:\'f:- }lm_J‘ (i Rahman
R m EGED

Mutual Trust Bank Limise
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and lts Subsidiaries

Nates lo ihe Flrencial Stalemenis

lrmmiumm.uﬂumml._ .

Particutars

— __u:ﬂm'ﬁn'l__' - _

wjLending palleles |n respeci al relatled party

Lerdng to relaled partes is elfected as par fequiramanis of Sociion 27(1) of ihe Dank Comprdas Acl, 1891
¥l BusInwus other then banking buslssss whih sny relstlon concern bo the Directars & par Sectlon 18{2) of the Bank Companisa Ast, 1851

] Leaza agrgement made with the Dirsciors
Mature of conlragt Prsgos | Romarks
Pabna Branc | Approved by
F"'""'""I"'."'L""]'l'. 1 Boo!
[Lease agreemant - ala A Ma. Aniis Chowsihusry fppraved by Rosrd
of MTd
|Luase aguoemun M, Rshad Atvad Ghowdhery W:mm““"
[Lease agreement i, b, Wiahibuein Avpiroved by
(Lnase agrespn el Man ! [ Appeoved by o |
) Insurance agresment mads with the Mrectors
Mame af Party Neme of Diracter and Relaled by Ramarks
. Al Dowia
Pliorbar nsueance Company Limstad (1. by, M Anis Ud Dowts 2
Mr, Tapan Chowdtury 3. A K M. Rshmatifinh 1P} : ﬂ‘mmﬁ e s
(Olunrdian | ile insuransa Lid, (M. Samoel § Cbsovid hury) Ms. Anlen Chavedury Appeoved by Doaid
wil] Business with 4 :
I:I cuieizosie !Em:m' Hofurs of rarmeacion | Oulsfanding
|H_tam Limisd | Loanfsdlily 47518
I" : 218 ;r;
18 Capill Limitad | Loanisclily ELL
Doposils 1385
LT Eschangs (K] Limiiod ]

will) Relationshlp with Funds:
Employess Provident Fund:

Dapasits 12,067,363 167,827 658
Employeos Gratulty Fund:

Deposils T ARIes 136505501
Ky Management personnsl compansation
;:W-hm pevsoenal of the Bank lor e pasicd anded 31 Decomber 2011 |8 & folows: o 2030

i A

Shorl derm erployes beneft [ ieagserra | [ sesaTn |
Ky Mana sl personnsl includes Managing Dinockor, Addional Managing Dinoctor, Deputy Marvsgog Deecior, Head of inlpinal Condoel & Cormpplsnce Division, Chisl
Financial Crlicer and Company Secrelary
Vaillieatlon ef Nisnclal statemants Lhisudh Document Verfllcation Svalam (OVE)

Fursusnl (5 BRPD circuiar leler no, 4 dated 04 January 2021 Banks are required ln preserve e updalod stalulory aud repont of e clierds i loan fie during
approvalinonewal of S faclitien, Aa per BFF D cicuias iefler no 35 detod D6 July 2021, b stettory sudif repor snd Financial Statemsni nesds o be verifed eough e
Dooumanl Veilication Systam (DVS) dewloped by ®a Insltule of Chanerdd Accountints of Bangisdash [ICAD). Fineecial fegorting Coencil (IRC) wide ils latler no
1TRFRCAPRZ02127(23) daled OF Decamber 2021 has Insfractod bo discioss tha perceniags (W) of ha lomn [le eovered uided e compliante of hess ARPD Ciculal 0
Tha eancial stabamants of the Book TMHMMIHNHerMHﬁMHHl fank regrasnmaiyve on 0F Augusd 7031 Tha ek s staried amplessantiog
e compliance upon recehing the masier sceess on DVES sysiam.

Consolidaled Not Assel Ve (MAY] por share
Tortal reirt an sty voke

Muniiber of shives culslandng

Hod Assel Value (AV) por share (2020 Resiated)
Mol Assal Walea (HAV) per ahare

S 177 —1 AN
Mis ioge,

Tokal net Bssety vahs 1
Huiimber of shacas outitnndeig l%ﬁ%ﬂ, 817 465 055
Hal Assat Value (NAV) pev shave (2000 Restated) [ 040
Consolidated Nel Oparating Cash Flows Per Share

Todal nat operaing cash lows i ssaEoaray (2178752377}
Murnber of shares cullvlandeg I TETIT TR [T 0
Mel Operating Ciash Flows Per Shave (2020 Restaled) uzi ‘_ﬂ'ﬂh’.“’_l.f‘!"E
Mat Opsrating Canh Flows Per Share

Tatal net operaling caah fiows 11,189,003.238 (786,021,430
Humbor of shaes oulstanding B AsEAD B2 405 050
Mol Opacating Cash Fiows Par Shac (2020 Rowmabad) 177 LELTS

Eveivls slter tha Datsnce Shasl Date
Subsequent 1o e Bafance Shael date, The Board of Direciors recommanded 10% (tan pescori) Slock Dividend 1of he yem 3921 which will bo recognized in P accounts
&% nnd whea appioved by he Bhareholden i1 e uptoming Ansusl Ganersl Maslng (AG)

Financial HighEahts ae 8t 31 December 21 are shown in Annexure-F

i Harmud Hossain, FCA
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Balance with other Banks- Oul Sido Bangladesh (NOSTRO Account) Anrimcura: A

As al 31 December 2021
Currency wisa posiion and Exchange rate apphed for conversion of Balance with other Banks in Forelgn Guirency into Local cumency as ot 31

; Decombar 2021,
2021 020
[ = Nama of the Bank Currenay :my mxm o ;;:"'Jr E:l-;h.:.nnl =
Amount 4 Amount
Mas hroq bink, New York U5s 5,172,365 B580) A4 TABATE | 1,102,004 BA.BO| 101,001,650
' Standard Chartered Bank, New York uss 4,340,568 B5BO| 372420813 | 4205315 84,80 384251320
Habib Amarican Bank, New York uss 419,685 85,80 36,008,955 | 4,756, 84.80| 03,358,862
Comimerze Bank, Germany us$ 361,626 86,80 31,018,824 306,383 84.60| 32,766,083
Mashreq Bank London US§ : 86.60 - 47,130] 84,80 3,806,725
KB Kockmin Bank uss 241,840 85,80 20,158,550 108.548] m4m0| 87718405
JP Morgan, Now York uss | 45345616 8580 388,081,432 226016  sa.80] 10,242,826
ICICI, Hong Kong uss 316,068 85.80 27,118,598 246,041 84.80)  20841,116
Standard Chartared Bank, Singapore SG0 97,636 6282 6,133,604 153,211 50,60 8,962,014
JP Margan, London GEP 66,602 115,73 7,107 626 62885 114,50 7,200,063
Stanclard Charterad Bank, Londan GBP 362,880 118,73 40,838,747 195481] 114.50] 22,381,603
Habib Amarican Bank, Zurich CHF 86,082 93.72 0,008,217 190,162 91,38 17,371,305
Standird Chartered Bank_ Tokyo JPY | 12,947,088 0.75 0,663,602 | 22,709,808 0,78 17,713,651
UBAE, Tokyo JPY - . . T11.148] 0.74 554,687
Standand Charlered Bank, Germany EUR 440,578 9738 42,604 758 31.000] 103.87 3,219,994
ICICI, Mumbai EUR 6,164 57.348 600,308 6,184] 10087 640,207
Unécredit, Garmany EUR 140,485 §7.38 13,680,635 169,162] 100,87 16,632, 143
Commerze Bank, Germany EUR 1,065,600 97.38] 102,797,452 548,478 103.87 56,870,447
Linital Bank of Incin, Kolkala EUR 4,228 97,38 411,487 4206 10387 438,908
Standard Chartered Bank. Mumbal ACU 128,116 85.80 10,992,205 387668  B4BO 32,875,080
Standasd Charered Bank, Kolksta ACU 500,482 5.80 42,041,326 500,482 BeB0| 42441994
Standard Gharlored Bank, Pokistan ACU 323,601 A5.80 27,158,060 258,650 BA80| 21,062,563
Standard Chartered Bank, Colambo ACU 164,725 85,80 13,275,444 107,018 84,80 9,075,357
Sonall Bank, Kolkats ACU 44,610 85.80 3,817,604 865,265 84,80 7,315,446
Habib Metropaktan ACU 251,316 85,80 21,562, 666 162,446 84,80 12,027,756
Mashireq bank, Mumbal ACU 429,510 85.80 16 851,044 4372751  B4@0| 37,081,756
AB Bank, Mumstd ACU 1,130,783 85,00 07,021,150 502,700 BiBO| 42,630,713
Axis Bark, Mumbai ACU 634,250 B5.00 45,839,396 410,04 B480| 34772630
[IGIE, Mumbal ACL 838,623 85.80 71,670,873 228,204 8480 19,352,123
Himalayan Bank Lid , Kethmundu ACU 108,490 85,60 2,394,242 108,400 8480 9,284,071
Mepal Bangladash Bank Lid ACU 131,974 85.80 11,323,378 131,974 8480 11,191,668
United Bank of Indi, Kolksta ACU 82,430 B6.80 7,002,602 51,274 8480 4,348,187
HDFC Bank, Mumbai ACU 858,110 B5.80 57,409,684 61,540  Ba@0 22,178,152
EMIRATES ISLAMIC BANK AED 431,670 23.38 10,083,688 | 2,811,630 2110 55,128 492
MASHREQ BANK, UAE AED 2,220,100 2330 51,050,078 |  4,048801 2110 85,426,107
(Commerz Bank, Germany AUD 44_ 446 62.20 2,754,354 84,438 59.44 5,019,070
Bank Al Biad SAR 397,116 22.85 B,015, 718 500,044 1952 9,760,803
[Bank Al Rajhi SAR 220,000 7285 5,007, 902 - - :
Riyadh Bank SAR 105,000 22,85 2,399,680 . . .
ICICI Bark Ltg, Mumbal 28,032,607 . - 28,032,807
1 120,406,147 | 47,78 1,660,389, 742 |

-
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
List of MTB Bond Holders as at 31 Dacombar 2021

Annexure-D

3 Pardicaisre ::nz1muuTI]In EDT!UEG
A MTE Perpeotual Bond
Investment Investmant
5l. g Namae of Party Amount
1 | Trust Bank Limited 650,000,000 650,000,000
2 |Bank Asia Limited 1,000,000,000 .
3 |Easfern Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 -
4 Ms. Alroza Sultana 100,000,000
& |Mercantile Bank Limited 400,000,000
6 _Prime Bank Limited 850,000,000 -
Bub-Total (A) 4,000,000,000 | 650,000,000
B MTB 2nd Subordinate Bond
Investment Investment
5, Name of Party Amount Amount
1 |Sonali Bank Limiled 200,000,000 | 400,000,000
2 |BRAC Providenl Fund 100,000,000 | 200,000,000
3 |Bank Asia Limited 0,000,000 [ 160,000,000
4 _|Uttara Bank Limited 60,000,000 | 120,000,000
5 |BRAC 60,000,000 100,000,000
| & |BRAC Bank Limiled £0,000,000 100,000,000
7 |[NRB Commercial Bank Limited 40,000,000 80,000,000
8 |Uniled Finance Limited 000,000 40,000,000
otal (8] 00,000.000] [7:200,000,000]
C MTB 3rd Subordinate Bond
sL L Name of Party Investment Invutn::it
1 |Pubali Bank Limited 570,000,000 760,000,000
2 |Dhaka Bank Limilad 540,000,000 720,000,000
3 |Sonah Bank Limiled 450,000,000 500,000,000
4 |Southeast Bank Limited 380,000,000 | 520,000,000
5 |Janota Bank Limited 300,000,000 4
6 |Agrani Bank Limiled 180,000,000 240,000,000
7_|Eastern Bank Limiled 180,000,000 240,000.000
8 |Rupali Bank Limited 120 160,000,000 |
0 |Della Life Insurance Company Limited 120,000,000 160,000.000
10|Standard Bank Limited 90,000,000 120,000,000
11 [United Finance Limited 60,000,000 B0,000,000
Sub-Tetal (C) 4,000,000,000
& 0 MTB 4th Subordinate Bond
o= Investment Investment
@ E n_‘.'" SL Name of Party Ainiine Amount
e 1 |[BRAC Bank Limitod 400,000,000 400,000,000
2 L.?, § 2 |Community Bank Limiled 100,000,000 100,000,000
g3 - 3 |Sonali Bank Limi 600,000,000 600,000,000
2 a=], 4 |Shadaran Bima Corparation 100,000 1
=8 g 5 |Guardian Life Insurance Limiled 100,000,000 100,000,000
5 o@ 6 |Agrani Bank Limited 500,000,000 500,000,000
E oS 7 |Easlern Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 1,000,000000
8 [MS. MONISHA ANWAR HUQ 200,000,000 200,000,000
8 |Shimanto Bank Limited 100,000,000 | 100,000,000
10 |SQUARE Pharmaceuticals Lid 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Sub-Total (D) 50 [ 5,000,000,000
l Tolal Bomss (B eCAD) L12200,000.000] [_10.35090000]

i

J
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Hams of Cormpanies in which the Directors o the Bank heve |neros
As 2t M December 2021

Hime of Companien In which tha Direction have istares

e, Mcl. Wiak|Ruddin
Chasir i

[_iit ] __ Mame of Olvciors of ths Bank__

Chalrman
Baikmara Corpotaton Lid,
Bankdhaa Ao & Food Processing Lid
Masaglng Oiro clet
= Swadeih Propenss Lid
- Evvadeily Glabal Medls Lid,
1ﬂlncl:|r
+  HURDCO isarnasonal Bchoot
Buwadesl Lo Divulopors Lid
Chalrmian (Fully swned subsidiary of MTB)
+  MTO Securbes Linitad (MTOSL)

1 |Wir. Wd. Abdul Malek
Whacas |1 man

+ MTB Capits Limfied (MTERCL}
Propdlelor
Gaedenis

3 |Mr. Syed Manzw Elnkd
Diveciod (Fouisdng Channs)

G halrman

« Apex Tanney Lid

»  Apex Feolbwear Lid

o Apo Phanma Lid

+  Blus Doean Foolwesr Lid

Apox Erborprai L

Apea imosimani Lk

Grey Advorining (Bangiadesh) Lid

«  Owndon Ceanumir Soltions Lid

«  Mpmsher Joono Foundation

«  Bunbaame Schod Lid

= MTH Feuncidon

Formgr Chidin e
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|Former Divestor
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4 [Mr, Mal. Hedayeiuiiah
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As ol 31 Decembar 2001

___Manw of Direciprs o the Bank

Tarna ol Gempanies In which e Dleciors have Iofeil

Dirwcio
(Regeosanting Advanted Chamicl indusbres Lia )

Chairman
= Tolley AT {Bangisdash) Lid
Vice € halrman
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Managtng Dlrecicr
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Member of e Board of Governors
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Highlights
As at 31 Decembaer 2021

Annexure - F
BDT in Milllon
Sl. No. Items 2021 2020
1 |Pald up Capital 8,124,986 7.386.32
Total Capital (Tier-1 & 2) 30,343.20 25226.11
3 |Surplus/ (Shortage) Capital 9,278.61 5697.61
4 |Tolal Assel 306,500.93| 260.260.26
5 |Tolal Deposil 211,782 43 190,120.48
8 |Tolal Loans and Advances 226,011.57 203.887.32
7 [Total Contingent Liabilities 132,011.35 83,585.97
8 |Lending-Deposit Ratio B2.42% 83.90%
8 [|Classified Loans as Porcentage (%) of Total Loans and Advances 5.80% 4.60%
10 |Profit after Provision and Tax 2973.20 970.39
11  |Tolal Classified Loans and Advances 13,107.02 9,387.73
12 |Total Provision Malntained against Classified Loans 5956.79 4,181.06
13 |Surplush{Deficit) in Provision against Classified Loans - -
14  |Cost of Fund B.46% 1.92%
16 |Earmning Assets 2682.313.68 235,591.40
16  |Non-Interest Earming Assels 44,187.25 33,677 86
17 |Return on Investments (ROI) 8.73% 9.77%
18  |Return on Assel (ROA) 1.03% 0.37%
19 |Income from |nvastment 3,668.78 3.461.03
20 |Earnings Per Share (BDT) 3.66 1,31
21 |Operating Profit Per Share (BDT) 6.97 4.76
22 |Price-Earning Ratio (Times) 5.36 18.34
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Financial Highlighls
| ™ As at 31 December 2021

Annexure - F (I)
BOT in Million

SL.No. [Items 2021 2020
1 |Paid up Capilal 8,124.96 7,386.32
2  |Tolal Caplal (Tier-1 & 2) 20,443.04 24.552.75
3 |Surplus/(shortage) Capilal 8,652.056 5,200.78
4 |Tolal Assets 304,742.53 267.913.21
5 |Tolal Deposils 212,056.94 180,607.26
6 |Tolal Loans and Advances 22292420 200,891.92
T |Tolal Contingent Liabilities 132.011.35 83.595.97
8 |Lending-Deposil Ratio 5.88% 83.90%
8 |Classified Loans as Percentage (%) of Tolal Loans and Advances 5.88% 4.67%
10  |Profit afler Provision and Tax 2,917.83 899 32
11 |Tolal Classifled Loans and Advances 13,107.02 9.387.73
12 [Total Provision Maintained against Classified Loans 5,056.79 4,181.06
13 |Surplus/(Deficit) In Provision against Classified Loans = *
14 |Cosl of Fund 6.46% 7.92%
16 |Earning Assets 257,333.63 231,046.27
16 |Mon-Interest Eaming Assals 47,408.90 36.866.94
17 [Return on Investments (ROI) B.36% 9.88%
18 [Relurn on Asset (ROA) 1.02% 0.24%
19 |Income from Investment 3.302.20 3,388.58
20 |Earnings Per Share (BDT) 3.58 1.22
21 |Operating Profit Per Share (BDT) 6.00 4.50
22 |Price-Earning Rallo (Times) 5.46 19.79
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Cash

I harsd {ctdrgg Bavign cuto nciga)
Baiznce wilh Bangladesh Bank ad ils agen) bank (x]
{irchding lone'gn cunancies)

Balance with aller banks snd Baancisl indlfublons

In Bangladesh
Outuids Bangiaddenh

Lowms and sdvances
Lied, £ovs crodie, avnrdealls e
Bilk purchased and discosnted

Fived assets Incheding premises, furniture snd fxlores
Orfhar ansatn

Mo - baniing sesels

Vol ansets

Llasditlen wndl Capstal

Boorawlngs troms ciher banka, [inescisl instibutions and sguaty
Depesits and glher stcouals

Cumenl degesils & Other Account

Bith paryutie
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Toitad Enbriiis.

Capltal | Shasehobdery’ equity
Paid up capial

Slablory reuervn
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Oihae rapnsve

Retanad eamangs

Totsl Sharehalders' souiity

Total Liabaities and Ghareholdens’ equity

Dit-Gatance Shiel Remy
Confnges! liabilitas
Acceplances ard erdicdiemenls

Lediers of gaaranine
lirevecatily lellors of credd

Bifls kar colleclion
Drihee cantingn| Badiing

Othir commstmants

[Docemanlaty crechis and sherl Losm rade -refaled Favsachons
Foraard sisets porchaned arvl onwand deposts placed
Undussn nole issusnca and mvolving undenaniing facilibes
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited

\ O Shore Banking Linkt (OBU)
Profil and Loss Accomnt

1 For tha Year ended 31 December 2021

» 2021 Il FIF] .
articulars Hotes T BOT [ uSD [ BOT | EURD] BOT]
Ibarest Incoens _ 10 | 8830084 | TE1008038 || 1280 | 1268320 || 8207395 | 696533859 I
iefarest pold on daposis and bierowings sic 1w [sgarym| seoesssa || 93 )| 611000 || 518880 508
FE

418 .
Het Interest Incomn LM WA ), 1093450 TTEeLIAE .
Comméssion, Exthunga and Brokseags : i > .

Other Oparateg ncoma 1

Toe Oeratng ncome B 1717 T 111 e

Less; Qparating Expenses:
Salory snd Aowasnoes
Renl, Taxes, Insiwance, Eleciricly slc
Legal Exporses
Posslages, Stamps, Telscommunicalion e
Sinlipnery, Piintings, AdverSsemonts ol
Budliers Fees
Daprociation and repair of bunk's assels
Other Expanses

Totul operating expanses

Profit before provisicn

18 fi

bl e i
®

Lesa: Prowislon for Losas, lsvestment & Other
Spacilc provision . 5 7 .

15055  181B5T - -
Provisien for deminkion in vakue of lvesiments . el [ b
Total provislon . . . ' v ¥ .
Tatal profit belore laxes 050878 115204812 0.3 6384 VATS085 19129817
Less: Prowislon for Taastlon

Currend tax - . < g " . I - E ¥

Defarred tax

Nt profil aftar taxation T TR LT R R % TR 113 X F ] A

Fietaingd earnings brought forward kom previous yean [ u“ﬂ_ . H!_‘ “ﬂ i - f
—ENSER ST 2% ea TaToes _veiman
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" "

nbuie

1 [y UWHZUE]
T

039 % towanq Bubeuen

) Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chial Financial Oficef o + .
Mui:_lpul. Trust Bank Limited 1#311'!:‘3::: Wi ;;drf'«:-ﬂ‘f sy ahhubur HEEE‘;E
o b S B g, BXcy! ey S5 ging Director &
Corpo oup C pank L i
Crtunl T Doifee DR Mutual Trust Bank Lim
!



1.00

2

am

202

2.0

2.04

01

wzue|

.09

L0

PajLT uawisasu gon
037 ¥ 10132:g Suibeuey

-

| ]
| W
| w2

vl
Mohammad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chial Financial Cific
Mutual Trust Bank Limite
Corporate Huad Office, Dbl

Mutual Trust Bank Limited Annaxure-H

Olf Shore Banking Unit (OBU)
Moles to ihe Flnsncial Stalemenls
For the Year onded 31 Docembor 2021

Stabon of ihe untl

The Bark cbtaned the Of-shore Banking Lint (‘the Uni) permission vide letler No, BRPDP-3)744( 10520094470 dated Decarmber 3, 2009, The Bank commenced
operation of this usil lrom Docember 07, 2008, The Of-shaes Banking Uinit is gevemed unds ho nies ded guidelings of tha Bangladesh Bank, 16 ofico s focated ol 76,
WTE corder, Guishan Seuth Avenue, Gulshan Circle 1, Dhaka 1212,

Principal acilvilies
The principal activiies of ihe usis are fo provide all kinds of commercial banking senvices fo is cusimers frough if's off-shore Banking Units in Bargladesh,

Significant accounting policies and basis of preparation of financlal statemanis

Basky of sccounting
The Dfl-shore Banking Unit maintains ils accounting records in USD kam which accounts sne prepared actending fo the Bank Companss Ad 1851, Inlarnational

Accouning Standwds (IASs), Indornstional Finonclal Reporing Slondards (IFRSs) and oler soplicobls drectives lssund by Tha Bangladosh Bark, In padticular,
Blanking reguialions and policy depadment (BRPOD) Circular No. 14 daled 25 June 2003,

Liwe of ostimatas and judgments

The preparaton of fnandal stslemants faquires managament 1o make judgments. asbmales snd asumphons hal allect ke application of accountng pofcies and the
roportad Ameunts of nesety, isbtins, ncome snd enpanses. Actual rosulls may dilfer lrom Bai svimaln

Estimalos and undeclying assumptions ar reviswnd on an cngoing basls. Revision ko sccoenling siimales as recognizied in the poriod in which B2 estmale is
revised and in any lubure periods alfected,

Forelgn cusrencles iransaction

Foneign cusrarsy bangaclions are convariod il oquivalent Toka uting the ruling oxchange nias on the datos of mspeciive banssclions os por 1A5-21° The Efscly of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™. The Snancisl slatements of (he Unit see presented i LS Doler (LISD) and Bangledesh Taka whera USD i the knclional
clmency and Taka are e Unifs preseniabon corency, Endlies lonclional curency Is Bangladesh Teka.

Foseign curmancy banspetions are tecorded in lhe presenislion currency using the ralo of sxchange al averago rate of inkir-bank markel as dolermined by The
Bangladesh Bank on the closing dabe of every monih. Moneiary assels and |lablilies denominaizd in foregn cumencizs are bianslated into the luncianal wnency al the
raln of axchangn rding ot tha balance shool daly,

Raporting perlod
These financial stalements caver fram 01 January 2021 [0 31 Docember 2031,

Loand and advances | invesimenls

@} Leans and advances of Ofl-shose Banking Units 2 staled in fhe balance sheel on gross basl.

b Ieteret is corlcytabed on o dady product bass bul chivged and accountad for on acoruil basls, Inktrest s nol charged on bad and lovs loans Bs per gudelines of the
Bangladesh Bank. Records of sech nierasi amounis are kepl in separaie momosandum acoouts.

) Prowigion lor Loans and Advances has been made on the basis of measuremen| required sed as per itnuchons by the Bangiadesh Bank BRPO Ciredlar 14 and 19

diolod 33 Soplember 2012 and 27 Decembor 2002 respociivaly,

Provislon fos labilithes
A provision s recognized in Me balance sheal when tha unil has a legal o constuctive chigation ag & resill of A pasl evenl and il s probabie thal an oulfow of
econonic benahl wil b rsquind 10 sellle ihe stigations, |n accordance with the IAS 37 "Provaions, Conlisgen Lisbilles and Conlingenl Assals®,

Interest Income
Iy by ol e prossions of the IFRS-15 "Revena lons contracls with customods®, the ntorest ncos |8 rcognired on sccrus! bass.

Inlerest pald and cdhar sxpanses
I tesrms. of the provisions of fha WAS « 1 Presectaticn of Finarcial Statomants® inberes! and olher xpesns i recognized on accrial basia,

Allocation of comman expenses
Operating espenses in the nalkire of safary, o, mios and tames, management expanses. prining stsfionary, olc. are not afocaled in the oerend year dua bo

nsigrahean amount

Ganeral
) Thesa fnancil stalements are prosended in Taka, which & ihe Bank's kinclional curnency, Figures appearing i theee financial salomants have boan mended off 1o

o nearos! Taka
b) Assely and llpbites & income and expendes have boen convesied inlo Taka curmency @ USSi=Tals 848020 & EURQ =Taka 97.3830 (cesing mis &s al 31

Diacembar 2021) and BOT 84,8666 & 97 1786 (sverage rale which reprasects al the parod and)
) Fined aysets of this unil are appearing in the books of (he main operation of the bank and degroclsion is also charged o Proft § loss Accounts of ihe man operalion

o the bank,

Group Gom b Lmitad Managing Director & GEO
rust Ban Mulual Trust Bank Limitea
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited

Annexung-H

0N Shon Banking Linil (OBU)
Nides Lo the Financlsl Salements
Foi the Year ended 31 December 2021
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Giass § Glzamare Products Faciries 24018 192812537 . . 454483 19,350,080 -
Hospiss & Dines ), (0468 91,2453 || . . 1400218 1108873 .
Hiuysg Compray 5o ol L 8,555,992 . . . . v
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited

O Shore Banking Unit {0BU)

MNotes to (he Finangial Stalemants

For ihe Year ended 31 Decombaer 2021
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' QN Shore Banking Unit (OBU)
MNotea to the Flnancial Statements
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
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Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Islamiec Banking Branches
Balance Shoeat

As at 31 December 2021

Tolal Sharcholders’ Equity
Total Liabllities and Sharsholdars' Equily

' Amaount in BOT
Particulars Notos 2021 [ 2020

Proparty and Assels

} Cash 3 134,526,666 -

In Hand {including loreign currancies) 23,709,088 -

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and lls Agent Bank (5} 110,727 578 :

{including foreign currencies)

Balance with Other Banks and Financial Institutions - .

In Bangladesh *

Ouslde Bangladesh -

Placemeant with Banks and Other Financial Institution 4 1,000,000,000 -

Invesitmants in Shares and Securities 5 419,980,000

Govarnmanl 410,980,000

Ofhars -

Investinants B 344,915,845 -

Ganaral Investments elc. 344,015,845 -

Bits Purchased and Discounted - -

Fiuad Assets Including Premlsos, Fumiture and Fixlures T 20,612,325 .

Othor Assets 8 309,618,273 .

Wan - banking Assals . B i U

Tolal Assels —2,3271,653,109_ .

Linbilitles and CGapftal

Placamant from Banks and Other Financial Instltutions - -

Deposits and Othar Accounts ] 2,317,774,086 .

Alwadeeah Current Accounts and Other Deposil Accounts 43,011,475 -

Bils Payable 187,5M -

Mudaraba Savings Deposils 534,328 487 *

Mudaraba Term Deposits 1.688,150,449 -

Special Notica Deposil 26,885,671

Scheame Deposit product 27,191 433 -

Othar Liabilities i0 8,879,023 -

Subordinaled Bond F -

Total Liabllities 2,327,653,109 R

Capital | Shareholders’ Equity

Paid up Capital . B

Statulory Reserve - -

General Reserve - -

Other Reseni o -

Retained Eamings = i

£ 5 S

B 3

a N Confingent Liabilities -

o 3 Accoplances and Endorsements .

g b= Letlers of Guarantes .

& o | Irrevocable Latlers of Cradil

p.é Bifls for Caollection

R - \ Oiher Contingant Liabilities

o

Other Commitmants
Total Off-Balance Shoet Exposures Including Contingent Liabllities

/ 82
mimad Nazmul Hossain, FCA
Group Chinl Financial Officer
Mutual Trust Bank Limited ot
C&Hpnruwhl_.‘ g COvifce, Dinakon gh o
'E\T?‘E‘::c#m':r ten Presdait &

Group Company Scorelaty

el

Trust Bank LT yited
= Sitise SR,

ST,

" 524,200,580

418,342,504

105,868,004

544,200 580

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limiteo



Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Islamic Banking Branches

Profit and Loss Account
For tha Year onded 31 December 2021

Amount in BDT

\ HEne 2021 20
Investmant Income 12 13,534,411 -

| Profit Paid on Deposits 13 21,866 815 -
Net Investment Income (8,332,404) .
Income from lnvesimenis in Shares/Securilies 14 7,018,271
Commission, Exchange and Brokarage 16 1,444,870 -
Other Operating Income 16 770,570 -
Total Other Income 9,233,711
Total Operating Income (A) 201,307 .
Loss: Operating Expensos
Salary and Allowances 17 - -
Renl, Taxes, Insurance, Electricily, ale., 18 . .
Legal Expenses 18 500 .
Postage, Stamp, Telecommunication, el 20 12,627 .
Stationery, Printing, Advaertisaments, etc 21 1,639,734 -
Shariah Supervisory Commillee’s Fees & Expenses 22 158,400
Audilors' Fees p 2 . .
Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assels 24 1,746,511 -
Zakal Expenses 25 .
Other Expensos 26 1,859,781 -
Total Operating Expenses (B) 5,417,553 -
Prafit ({Loss) before Provision (C=A-B) (4,516,246) .

Provision for Investments

Specific provision
General provision

Provision for olf-balance sheet ilems

Provision for Diminution in Value of Investiments

Olhar Provision
Total Provision (D)

Total profit | (loss) beforo taxes (C-D)

Blv wizue|
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Mabarfimad Nazmul Hessain, FCA
Group Crel Financial Officer
Mutue Vrust dank Limiied
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Notes Lo the Financiol Statements

For the Year ended 31 Dacombaer 2021

Status of the unli

MTB Boerd of Directors, in ils 232ih meeling on January 20, 2019, approved fha proposal for introducing lslamic Barking Window.
Subsequently, MYE applied for Banglodesh Bank's parmissien on February 11, 2010, The Bank obtaled permisson for inlliating
Isizmic Banking operalions from Bangladesh Bank vide Latler No. BRPD{P-3)745{51) 2019-0842 daled Novembar 25, 2019, MTE
Yaqeen islamic Banking business services wane rolled oul on February 22, 2021

Princlpal activitles/ 1slamic Banking operalion:

The operation of ow ltlamis Banking channol is complataly sepsrato bem ho Bank's conventional aperation as the former operales (s
businesses on tha basis of Islamic Shari'ah, Theaugh the Islamic Banking chanael, ihe Bank extends a wide range of lamic Shari'ah
compliant dopesil products such ns Al-Wadee'sh Currenl Accounts, Mudarabah Savings Accounts, Mudarabah Mendhly Savings
Schemes, Mudarabah Term Deposit Accounts (Retall and Institutional) and investmentfinancing products such as Musharakah,
Dimindshing Musharakah, Bai-Murabahah, Bal Salam, Bal Isiisna’a elc. An sppropriale accounting syslam has alss boen implementad
in order to fudher reinforce our emphasis on Shan‘ah compRance. in a nutshell, we follow under noled accounting principles, un
fhrough a complaiely separaie Islamic Core Banking System (ICBS) named ‘Ababll-NG'.

Significant accounting policles and basks of preparation of financisl stalements

Depasli Collection and Incame Sharing Ratlo (1SR) based Profil Distrlbullon

Islamic Banking operation usually folows Al-Wadeo'ash principle and Mudambah principle for procuring deposil. Tha corant accounle
are operaled under the 'Al-Wades'sh Principle’. Under this principla, bank bears the risk of loss and therefore, enjoys tha right to gel
e entire profit.

All othor deposil products follow the Mudarabah principle, which rofen 1o a parnership contract, where ona party, knewn as Rab-ul-
Maal, provides capital and the colher parly, known as Mudarb {enlreprenedr) provides skill and manages the business, mainlaining
Shari'ah principies. Rab-ul-Moal cannol take pard in tha managemont of the business. Prafil is shared as par pre-agresd rafio, whilo
loss is bome by the Rab-ul-Maal on pro-rala basis.

The pre-agreed profit ralio is known as Income Sharing Ratio (ISR), which may vary based on tha produst typo, lenure and amount
The ISR determings the portion of Income for each typa of deposilor and he Benk, For sxample, the ISR of 7525 would mean ihal
T5% of distributable incoma is 1o ba shared by the concemed deposilors and the res! 25% lo ba shared by the Bank. The ISR betweon
each lype of Mudarabah depositors and the Bank (Mudarlb) are duly disclosed af the Bme of Account opening andlor beglnning of tho
concained pariod. Profil rate is emerged &t actudl, as dafived from Ihe income fetched from daploymant of the concemad fund. As
sudh our rate of profit on deposit under Isiamic Banking is nolhing bul a post facle axpression of the respecive mgracd sharing ratios,
Our profil rale is an outpul based on the Bank's earning on invesiment.

The ISR declared on Mudarabah deposit products for the year 2021

Distributable Investment

Income Sharing Ratle (I8R)
Types of Mudarabah Deposit wa.t. 01.11.2021

Cliant Bank
1. Yagqean Regulsr Savings Account 10% - 28% 00% - 12%
2. Yageen Priviloge Savings Account 24% - 5% 76% - B5%
3. Yageen Banaal General Savings Account 28% —35% 72% - 65%

4, Yaqeen Banaal Premium Savings Account 35% 85%

5 Ya Short Notice o8l (5 Account 20% - 31% B0% - B3%
fi, Yagean Asdyn Schamae BE% - 94% 14% - 06%
7. Yagean Mudarabah Term Deposil Accoun! (Retail) 20% - 75% BO% - 25%
8. Yaqeen Mudarabah Term Deposit Account (Less than 01 Crore) (Coiponle Cuslomers) 17% - 54% B2% - 46%
0. Yageen & Cruarierly Profit Scheme B4% - TI% 38% - 28%
10. Yagean Banas! Term Dopost Account 20% - T0% B0% - 26%
11, Yageen Flexible & Monlhly Savings Schame T1% - %% 20% - 08%
12. Yageen Hal Schame B6% - 92% 34% - 0B%
13. Yoqoan Umrah Schome B80% - 88% #0% - 12%
14. Yageen Sayyldah Savers Scheme B3% - 93% 17% - 08%
15 Yngesn Marriage Daposit Schome B3% - BO% 7% - 1%

Investment Operalion and Return Thareon
investments of cur lslamlc Banking are broadly calegoized in the followng twa types In respoct of charging (rale of) relum:

2, Fixad relurn based investmoent

b. Variable retum based imesimant
Fixgd relum base investment system I8 applicable for sur Bal-Murabahah Muajjal lnvestment mode. Under this mede, Bank sells the
goods lo o client at & fixed profid imark-up on defercod payment including post impor basi. Hire Purchase Shirkatul Melk (HPSM) is
also a fwed return based investmont mode. In ks case rate of renl is Mxed bul amound of rent becomes varlablo on the basis of
diminishing balanca method, Vasrable relumn based income is appliad lor ow Musharskah mode of invesiment. In these cases, only
ratio of Income Sharing is slated in the agreement. Bank bags Incoma on the basis of the concerned venlure sccording o he agreed
talio fearmparable to our Modarabah deposit producta). Ganuing loss, if any, & bome according o eapital ralio of 1he clienl & 1ha Bank

Group Chiel Financial Cificer |
: : o fice o7 somtarsir Roern
?qc:r..“,h,. Tust Bank Limited E:?‘E‘-;é::;;i::a{mng Prosldet &
3 : ir r-. r - rd Y | — 5 b o . L5
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Islamle Banking Branches
Motos to the Financial Statomenls
For the Year ended 31 Decomber 2021

Ineomal Rovenus Recognition Princlples

The bank eains income from varous sources such as charges, lees, commission and investman) income. To recogniza all sors of
incoma, Bank foliows Shari'sh principle sidclly. Usually chargus, feas & comnlssion elc. are recognized on aclual basls. Recognition of
incamo from invostment lollows principlas as under;

Eor Bal-Murabahah Mualial Investman)

While creating sach deal, in cass of Bal-Murabahah Muaijal mode of invvestiment. markupfprofil s added to the bank’s purchase cos|
with a credlt to unearned income Ale. Thereafler time apporlionmen of proft Is recognized oul of the uneamed Incorme amount sl thi
end of each month on accrual basis. Allowance {rebale) for early repaymant, If any, may however be applied at Bark's dscrotion,

In case of HPSM moda of investment renl is charged and laken info income account #l the end of each monih on accnml basis. If the
account has a provision of gestallon pariod, generally no Income |5 eamed durlsg [he poried. In this case income slads just afler the
and of gestation period. Howoever rent Is chargeable in spile of geslation, If tha dellvery of assel is compleled in usable condition such
s & machine o a set of machinery of bullding etc. Al accrsal Incomes are subject lo pravalling classificalion and provisionkng rules of

Bangladesh Bank.

For Musharahah Invegtmen|
In recognizing the revense from Musharakah Invesiment we follow the actual {cash/ realizatlion) basis inslead of accruelie. no incoma
I8 recognized wntll the resull of the venlure is arrived sl

Cosi Rocognitlon Principle
Coslt in respect of profil pald on deposil is recognized on accrual basis. Mosthly accruals in this respect are calculaled on he basis of
Income Sharling Ratio. Clher cosls ane also recognized on Iha accrual basis kllowing the malching concept of Accounting.

To ensure and supervise Shar'sh complance n banking opesalion, MTB has o formed a knowledgeabls Sharish Supervisory
Commiflee comprising ronownod Figh scholars, Islamic bankars and ncadomicians conversant In islamic Econemics & Finance.

Amount In BOT
Particulars 2021 n— " 3020

Cash
Cash In hand {Including foralgn currancies)

Local Currency 22,799,088

Fameign Curency " -

E minu .

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and Ils agent bankis)

Lacal Currency 110,727,578 .

Foreign Currency - -

With Sanall Bank (as agent of Bangladesh Bank-Local Currancy) .
110,727,578

Placement with Banks and Other Financlal institution

Mercantile Bank Limited 110,000,000
Exim Bank Limited 580,000,000
Premier Baok Limited 400,000,000

Investments In Shores and Socuiltles

1Ilﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂ 1

Sulk Istamic Bond 418,980,000
Others .
419,080,000
Investments
iy Invastments
Hire Purchase Shirkstul Melk (HPSM) (Mole-8.01) [ 315845
344,915,845
il} Bitls purchased and discounted
344,015,848
Clagsillcation of Loans snd Advances Including bill discounted
Unclassified (LC):
Standard 344,015,845
Special Mentllon Accownl [SMA) |
Sub total 344,015 845
Classified:
Substandard
Doutsttul =
Bad & Loss
Sub total 3
344,015,848

( a5
v
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gl Executive Vice President &

Socrolaly
Group Company Jer_r?_' ¥
= sutual Trust E"n.:mh Lingined

: Director &
M‘I Hmmgml'l' rust Bank Limite



PapuIT suSaAEgIN

039 ¥ i2anq Busbeusyy

ubluejy wizte|

==

Group Chial | ypesah Qfficed N'lﬂ“h ML .
putual [nist Sarne ""'U ’ gy, Exe c

i phieers Offica, Dial Group .
I Mi.‘hl"i T.

Mutual Trust Bank Lid.

islamie Banking Branchos

Notes to the Financial Statements

For tho Year endod 31 Decombar 2021

AT XLy

Amount in BOT
Particulars 2021 2020
7.00 Flxed Assats Including Pramises, Furnllure snd Flilures
Fumiture & Fisiure 2,024,508
Office Equipments 33,640 .
Computers & Periphesals 25,585,000 -
Intenglida Assol 2,416,000 -
10,072,238 -
Less: Accumulated Dapraciation 1,458 811 -
28,612,325 -
8,00 Othor Assels
Advances 4,600,000 -
Slock ol Stationery 831,450 -
Due to Head Office (Retainad eamlngs) 4,518,248 -
Receivable from MTB 284,189 408 -
Profit Recelvable on Placemant wilh Banks 7,035,428 .
Profit Recalvabla on Govemment Bond 8,445,731 -

9,00 Deposits and cther accounis
Al-wadosah Current Accounts and Other Deposit Accounts
Bills Payable
Mudaraba Savings Deposits
Mudaraba Term Deposils
Special Notlce Deposit
Schema Deposi product

10.00 Other liabilllies
Profil Payable on Deposits and Ciher Accounis
VAT payabia
Sowrce Tax payable
Excise Duty payable
Card Seiflement

11.00 Contingent Liabilities
Acceplances and Endorsamants
Irravocabis Letars of Credil

12,00 lnvestment Incomae
Income lrom general investment (12.01)
Other Banks and Financial Institution

12.01 Income from genaral Invesiment
Hira Purcheso Shirkatul Malk (HPSM)

13.00 Profit Paid on Deposits
Profii pald on deposils

14.00 Incoma from Investments In Shares/Sacuritios
Profil Receved on Sukuk Islamic Band

15.00 Commission, sxchange and brokerage
Commission on Loller of Guaranteg
Commission on Leller of Credil
Commission on Acceplance of Bits
Commission on PO. DDA TT
Commission on IBC
Commission on RTGS

15.01 Exchange
Exchange Gain on Foraign Cufrency

Lghammad Hagma Hos E.Flll'l FCA

CotpatE

300,618,273 .

43,011,475 -
187,671 -
534,328, 4487 -
1,686,159, 449 -
20,885,611 .
27,181 413 .
2,317,774,086

06,380,148
662,600
1,138,101
1,606,450
£0.332

9,879,023 .

418,242,604
105,866, 994 -
524,209,680 *

|
l

8,318,973
T.E II.‘“ -
13,534,411 :

6,318,073 || == |
6,318,073 -

| 21,808,815 || == |

1 813 *

| rote.2n || 31

7,018,2M s

o

1,000 .
545,778 .
421,287 .
1,800 -
100 .

1,308 .
877,370 .

[ 467,600 | [ -]
"ﬂ}m .
1,444,870 -

wasﬁmr Rahman

Managing Director & CEO
Mutual Trust Bank Limited




Mutual Trust Bank Lid. Anngxure-i
Islamle Banking Branches
Notes o the Financial Statements
For tha Year ended 31 Decembar 2021
Particulars H;imm h HD;\HE
16.00 Other Operating Incoma
Income from Cards BAz0 .
Seivich Charges 23,780
Telephone & SMS Charge Recovores 302,022
SWIFT Charge Recovories 17,700
SME Fees and Charges 4,500 -
Recovery of NID varification charges 1,800
Miscellaneous Eamings 112,648 2
770,570
17.00 Salary and Allowancos
18.00 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Electricity, ate.
19.00 Logal Exponses
Logal Expenses l 500 || =]
500 .
20,00 Poslage, Stamp, Telecommunication, ote.
PostagelCourier Service [ 12,621 || - |
12,621 -
21.00 Stationery, Printling, Advertlsements, eic.
Prinding Stalionary 1,040,967
Publicily & Advertisenient 2 598,767
'lﬂlﬂ-l
22,00 Shariah Supervisory Commitlee's Feos & Expanses
Shatiah Supenvisory Commillee’s Fees [ 156,400 || -1
158,400 -
23.00 Auditors' Foes
14,00 Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assels
Dopreciation :
Immovable Proparty * *
Fumiture & Fixlure 132,174
Oifice Equipmants 1,312,519 .
Motor Vehlcies - .
Intangible Assel 15,218
Right off use Assets & &
1,450,911 .
Repalrs on Bank's property: 256,600 -
1,748,511 .

25.00 Zakal Expenses

76.00 Other Expenses

Office Cleaning and Mamlenance
Enlertalnmant
Mowspaper & Periodicals
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Subordinated Bonds of up to BLYT 5,000 Million

Annexure 3: Credit Rating Report of the Issue

Credit Rating Report of
Non-Convertible Subordinated Bond (Up to BDT 5,000 million) of Mutual
Trust Bank Limited
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Credit Rating Report
Subordinated Bond Rating
June 15, 2022 ne 14, 2023 AA-y. Stable
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Date of Incorporation : September 29, 1999
Managing Director & CEO ' Mr, Syed Mahbubur Rahman
Issue : MTB 5th Subordinated Bond
Program Tenure : 7 years
Issuer : Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Lead Arranger : RSA Advisory Limited
Co-Arranger : MTB Capital Limited
Trustee : UCB Investment Limited
Contact Analysts : Md. Rajiur Rahman
rajlur@emergingrating.com
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2022 Initial Review

MTB 5th Subordinated Bond
Major Rating Factors

Strengths

Challenge/
Risks

Rationale
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Good capital base.

Increase in total asset and loan portfolio,

Income diversified through strengthening investment portfolio.
Compliant with CRR and SLR.

Competitive bond market.

Non-performing loan growth,
Provision deferral facility would undermine future profit.

Emerging Credit Rating Limited (ECRL) has assigned AA-s (Pronounced as 'Double A
minus Bond’) long term credit rating to MTB Sth Subordinated Bond (hereinafter
referred to as “The Subordinated Bond” or "The Bond" or “The Issue”) to be issued by
Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB). The outlook on the rating is Stable. The rating Is
consistent with ECRL's methodology for this type of bond rating.

The rating reflects the strengths of the bank and prospective performance of the bond
which are backed by good capital base, growth in total asset base and loan portfolio,
income diversification through strengthening Investment portfolio, compliance with the
CRR and SLR requirement. However, ECRL is concemed that the bond market is
competitive with limited subscribers, non-performing loan (NPL) growth of the bank as
well as provision deferral facility which would limit the future profit of the bank. The
rating was assigned on the basis of draft information memorandum, draft
agreements between the issuer and trustee provided by the entity in
discussion and the rating may significantly change if the covenants in those
documents are altered.

The proposed bond will be repayable in seven years with five equal instaliments starting
from the end of year three. Semi-annual coupon payment will be paid starting at the
end of 6 months from the date of drawdown. The interest rate for the bond Is between
6.00% to 9.00% p.a. Coupon rate of the bond will be determined by the benchmark
rate/ reference rate plus 2.00% p.a. Moreover, RSA Advisory Limited will act as the
mandated lead arranger, MTB Capital Limited will act as the co-arranger and UCB
Investment Limited will act as the trustee for this issue. The fund will be used in regular
lending and business activities of the bank which will help to grow the bank’s loan and

advance portfolio,

In terms of performance of the issuer, Mutual Trust Bank Limited has Improved its
capital base recently through issuance of perpetual bond of BDT 4,000 million as well as
10% bonus share in FY2021 (10% in FY2020). A good growth of retained eamings has
also facilitated to strengthen the capital base in FY2021 as a result, the capital to risk
weighted assets ratio (CRAR) reached to 14.16% (12.75% in FY2020) which was well
above the regulatory requirement of 12.50%.

The total loans portfolio of MTB reached to BDT 222,924.20 million In FY2021 from BOT
200,848.10 million a year back with a growth of 10.99% (7.54% In FY2020) as the
demand for loan has increased recently. Besides, the investment portfolio of MTB has
had fluctuating growth in the recent four fi al-years with a remarkable 29.38%
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growth in FY2021. Since the interest rate cap was established, banks in the country
have begun to focus moare on diversifying their income streams and asset base by
paying close attention to their investment portfolio. MTB has increased its investment in
government’s treasury bonds by 36.13% in FY2021 to BDT 40,209.43 million from BDT
29,538.19 milllon in FY2020,

On the other hand, NPL ratio of the bank remained at 5.88% in the |atest year in review
which was 4,67% in FY2020 and 5.48% in FY2019, Gross NPL has increased by 39.62%
and 28.16% in 2021 as compared to FY2020 and FY2019 respectively, It is concerning
that the performance of loan may further deterorate in FY2022 due to the withdrawal
of provided relaxation on lpan repayment,

The bank rescheduled a total of BDT 759.59 milion worth of loan as compared to BDT
403.21 million loans in FY2020 and BDT 4,201.00 million loans in FY2019. The bank
wrote off BDT 362.06 million, BOT 924.85 million and BOT 334,96 million bad loans
respectively in last three years |.e. 2021, 2020 and 2019. NPL along with reschedule and
written off loan altogether comprise 6.38% of loans & advances in FY2021 whereas the
rates were 5.34% and 7.90% In the year 2020 and 2019 respectively, The bank's
exposure to large loans (funded and non-funded together exceeding 109% of bank's
capital) has declined from a year ago. The number of such large loan accounts was 26
individual accounts with total outstanding amounting to BOT 73,336.40 million in
FY2021 in contrast to the 28 accounts with total oulstanding amount of BDT 91,205.00
million in FY2020.

The deposit composition of the bank has changed recently and nowadays MTB is
focusing more on low cost or no cost fund i.e, current account—saving accounts (CASA)
thus, the CASA funding has improved to 46.74% of the total deposit in FY2021 as
opposed to 38.67% and 38.39% in FY2020 and FY2019 respectively. Loan to deposit
ratio of the bank has been always within the regulatory limit (currently 87%) in last four
years indicating a good balance between the deposit collection and loan disbursement.

MTB has kept 4.08% CRR and 21.61% SLR at the end of FY2021 with a surplus CRR of
BDT 168.36 million and surplus SLR of BDT 18,036.28 milion against the requirement in
FY2021. The maturity-based asset and liabilities profile of MTB are distributed over
different time horizons. The bank had net liquidity gap in 1 - 5 years bracket in FY2021
and shown surplus net liquidity In the other brackets. However, the total net liquidity
comprising all maturity periods in FY2021 has surplus liquidity.

From the profitability perspective, MTB has regained its pace in FY2021 after a sharp
decline of net interest income in FY2020. Net interest income significantly increased by
43.55% In FY2021 as opposed to a 25.45% decline In FY2020. However, comparing
with the FY2019 income, net interest income of the bank only grew by 4.22%. The
interest expense of the bank fell by 24.18% as a consequence of increasing low-cost
funding (i.e. CASA) in the deposit mix as well as the excess liquidity in the banking
sector in FY2021. On the other hand, the bank has continued its growth in non-interest
income portion through good growth In commission/fees, exchange and other operating
income in FY2021. Consequently, the overall operating income of the bank improved
with a rate of 23.22% to BDT 11,849.75 million in FY2021 from BDT 9,616.57 million in
FY2020. Operating expense, however, Increased by 10.81% which ultimately resulted
the pre-provision profit of BDT 4,876.19 million in FY2021 from BOT 3,323.40 million a
year ago with a record growth of 46.72% year-on-year.

The bank s under the provision deferral facility and as per Bangladesh Bank letter in
April, 2022, the provision of BDT 2,567.34 million has been deferred which is equivalent
to the shortfall amount at the end of year 2021. For its classified loan full provision was
kept but unclassified loan has provision deficit of BDT 2,567.34 million in FY2021 for
which deferral facility has been taken. The deferred provision will be maintained in next
three (03) years. In FY2021, the bank had deferred tax income of BDT 883.20 million
{specific provision caused huge differed tax income) which underpins the profit in that
year. Therefore, post-tax profit had a suddén ga and re ‘- d BOT 2,917.83 million in
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million In FY2020).

%

FY2021 from BODT 1,263.71 milllon in FY2019 with 130.89% increase (BDT 899.32

ECRL views MTBL's outlook as Stable due to the current position of the bank and good

FY2018-2021 Data Extracted from Audited Financial Statements
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Exhibit 1: Financial Highlights: Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)
FY 31 December 2021 2020 2019 2018

| Tokal Asset (BOT miiion) [ 30474253 26791321  256,056.00  221,827.56 |
Asset Growth (%) 13.75 4.63 15.43 10.21
Gross Loans (BDT Million) 222,924.20 200,848.10 186,768.62 163,281.71
Gross Loans Growth (%) 10.99 7.54 14.38 14.33
Deposits (BDT Million) 212,956,94 189,220.78 191,369.29 166,700.99
Deposit Growth (%) 12.54 (1.12) 14.80 9.50
Gross NPL Ratio (%) 5.88 467 548 5.48
Loan to Deposit Ratio (%) 8242 83.90 B3.38 B2.83
Net Interest Income (BDT million) 5,508.26 3,837.11 5,285.13 5,000.84
Net Interest Income Growth (%) 43.55 (27.40) 3.82 19.88

| Non-Interest Income (BDT million) 6,341.50 5,179.46 5,535.80 4,300.03 |
Non-Interest Income Growth (%) 9.72 4.40 28.74 12.40 |
Pre-Tax Profit (BDT million) 3,294.16 1,727.85 2,979.75 2,368.90 I
Post-Tax ROAE (%) 32,66 5.54 8.73 12.81

 CRAR (%) 14.16 1275 1286 _12.82 l
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A. BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

A.l. Company Background

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB), incorporated as a public limited company in Bangladesh on September
29, 1999 under the companies Act 1994, The company was also issued Certificate for Commencement of
Business on the same day and was granted license on October 05, 1999 by Bangladesh Bank under the
Banking Companies Act 1991 and started its banking operation from October 24, 1999. The bank got
listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited in 2003. Mutual Trust
Bank's vision Is based on the philosophy well known as MTB3V. Its vision s to be a bank of first choice
through maximizing value for its clients, shareholders & employees and contributing to the national
economy with social commitments and its mission is be the most admired financial institution in the
country, recognized as a dynamic, Innovative and client focused company that offers an array of
products and services in the search for excellence and to create an impressive economic value. The
bank offers services for all commercial banking needs of the customers, which include deposit banking,
loans & advances, export & import financing, inland & international remittance facility etc, In addition
the bank has commenced operation of its offshore banking unit from 2009,

A.2. Group Composition Structure

Mutual Trust Bank Limited has three subsidiaries namely "MTB Securities Ltd', *“MTB Capital Ltd" and 'MTR
Exchange (UK) Ltd.". MTB Securities Ltd was Incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on
March 01, 2010 under the Companies Act 1994, Initially Mutual Trust Bank Ltd started its Brokerage
functions from June 2006 as a division of the bank. Subsequently as per Bangladesh Bank and Securities
Exchange Commission's directive the division emerged as a subsidiary company of the Mutual Trust
Bank limited in the name of MTB Securities Limited with the objective to carry out the business related
to capital market. As a fully owned subsidiary of Mutual Trust Bank Ltd, MTB Securities Limited started
Its operation as a corporate member of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited on September 23, 2010.

MTB Capital Ltd a fully owned subsidiary of Mutual Trust Bank Limited is a private limited company by
shares was incorporated in Bangladesh on October 08, 2009 and the company obtained a Merchant
banking License from Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission on December 06, 2010. The
company established with an objective to carry out the business as Issue Manager, Underwriter and
Portfolio Manager,

MTB Exchange (UK) Ltd. was incorporated on June 14, 2010 under the Companies Act 2006 under the
registration number 7282261 as a private company limited by shares and the situation of the registered
office is in England and Wales for carrying out remittance and money exchange business.

A.3. Shareholding Structure

Mutual Trust Bank Limited started its
joumey with paid-up capital of BDT

200.00 milion. Presently it has Hikahaiding postion
authorized capital of BDT 10,000.00
milion and paid-up capital of BOT
8,124.96 million at the end of December
31, 2021, The shareholding position of

 Sponsors / Directors

# Forelgn Investors

MTB consists of four types of investors (NORFUND)
where Sponsors |/ Directors are holding

32.81% Foreign Investors (NORFUND) * Institutions
are holding 9.53%, Institutions are

holding 23.00% and General # General

shareholders holding 34.67%as on
December 31, 2021.
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A.4, Operational Network

Mutual Trust Bank Limited has a spread network of 119 branches, 33 Sub branches, 310 ATM Booths,
201 Agent Banking outlets across Bangladesh and plans to open more branches to cover the Important
commercial areas in Dhaka, Chattogram, Sylhet and other areas. During the year, a good number of
Branches were relocated to convenient and best locations with the view to ensuring a conducive
environment to the customers. Recently, MTB openad 14 (fourteen) new branches at different places in
Bangladesh and enhanced coverage of MTB ATM Booths In the major Domestic Alrports in Bangladesh
(i.e. Dhaka, Chattogram, Cox's Bazar, Sylhet, & Saidpur). The largest concentration of branches is in the
Dhaka region (62 branches) and Chattogram region (34 branches).

A.5. Market Share

MTBL's loans & advances and deposit position were BDT 222,924,20 milion and BDT 212,956.94 million
respectively at the end December, 2021. Considering the banking industry as a whole, aggregated loans
& advances and deposit of the industry were BDT 12,360,817.00 milion and BDT 14,093,426.00 million
respectively at the same period. MTBL contributed 1.80% of market share In terms of loans and
advances and 1.51% of market share in terms of deposit at the end of December, 2021,

Figure 1: TBL s markel share by loans & advances Figure 2: TBLS market share by daposits

Marketshare by Loans & Advances Marketshare by Deposits
. 1.80% 1.51%
mMTBL B MTBL
= Other Banks 8 Other Banks
98.20%

98.49%
A.6, Products and Services

To fulfill the commitment at banking industry in an innovative way and do things differently to support
the stakeholders is the key factor in being the best in the industry Mutual Trust Bank Limited has been
offering a number of services. MTB offers a full range of commerdal banking products and services,
which includes deposit banking, loans & advances, export Import financing, inland and International
remittance facility etc, MTB's product-basket encompasses real time online branch banking, MTB Visa
Signature credit card, MTB MasterCard World, ATMs, consumer loan, MTB Brick by Brick, MTB Double
Saver, MTB Millonaire Plan, MTB Education Plan, MTB Kotipati, SME banking, corporate banking,
syndicate loan, monthly savings scheme, fixed deposit, penslon saving scheme, SM5 banking etc. in
addition to traditional credit and foreign trade related products and services, The credit portfolio of MTB
is diversified with a blend of corporate lending lease finance, syndication, structured finance, project
finance, trade finance, SME Loan, Agricultural credit, commerclal/working capital loan, retall banking
products etc among others. Moreover auxiliary services such as online banking, off shore banking, cash
deposit machine, NRB banking, mobile banking, internet banking, ATM booth services, deblt and credit
card services, locker services etc. are also provided by MTB in order to make the whole banking
experience more effortless for its clients.

MTB has 4 Air Lounges situated in Hazrat Shahjalal International Airport in Dhaka, Shah Amanat
International Airport in Chattogram, Osmani International Airport in Sylhet and Cox's Bazar Alrport in
Cox's Bazar. The establishment of MTB Air Lounges has enabled the bank to extend the banking reach
while ensuring greater comfort and convenience for MTB customers when travelling through the airport,
The bank's privilege customers and MTE premium credit card holders can access and relax in the

lounges as per policy.
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A.7. MTB 5th Subordinated Bond Issuance Objective

The objective behind issuance of the Subordinated Bond is to further strengthen the capital base as
supplementary (Tier-1I) capital of the bank and to comply with the capital adequacy requirements as per
Basel-I11, which will enable the bank to reach sustainable growth in business, The fund raised through
issuing the bond will provide the bank additional capital cushion under risk based capital adequacy
framework, and will help the bank to grow its loans and advance portfolio.

A.8. Structure of MTB 5th Subordinated Bond and Terms
_Exhibit 2: Structure of MTB 5th Subordinated Bond

- Name of the Instrument: - MTB 57 Subordinated Bond
Issuer: . | Mutual Trust Bank Limited
Purpose: | To ralse Tier-2 Capital

Lead Arranger: | RSA Advisory Limited
| Co-Arranger: | MTB Capitai Linited
(Tvustwe: l UCB Investment Limited
= ne Agent, Reglster, Transfer | g jnvestment Limited -
Legal Counsel: Lex Juris e
| Emr.ﬂt Illtinn lgenqr | Emerging C Credlt dit Rating Hmited (EtRL}
' Issue Size: . BDT 5,000,000,000 (Five Billion Taka)
IssueType: Tier 2 Eligible Subordinated Bond
ITumr* o, ' 7 years from the date of ssuance
'Facevalue: BDT 10,000,000 (Ten Milion) Per Bond %
Minimum Subscription: BDT 10,000,000 (Ten Milion Taka) —
| Total Bonds to be issued: 500 (Five Hundred) no. A |
Investors: | Institutional investors and high net-worth individual investors
Mode of Placement: Private Placement on a best effort basis N

Yield to Maturity/ Rate of Ral:um Coupon Rate N N
Coupon Rate: | Reference Rate + Coupon Margin _ -

Latest average 6-month FDR rate of all private mmmerclal
banks excluding banks licensed after 2010 as published by |
| Bangladesh Bank on the quotation day,
Reference Rate: The Reference Rate will be rounded to 2 (two) decimal places. |

For example, if the benchmark rate is 5.155, then it should be
| rounded off to 5.16 and if the benchmark rate is 5.154 then it |
. should be rounded off to 5.15

= 5 business days before the first day of any period for which a |
o tlﬂhﬂ
5‘5.% 2 ofation Deys ——— _Coupon Rate s to be determined. —
g235 |  CouponMargin: REX — |
E’g_ _Range of Coupon Rate: 6.00% to 9.00% at all times
8 o= (LI R RS TV . —
o %  Coupon Payment: | SEmrannuaﬂ',r starting after ﬁ nmtl'ls fmm the drawdown date
% ﬁ‘?lw l Tmnshrahllttﬁquuidltr | Transferable in accordance with the provisions of Trust Deed.
o T — '
| mm ori C;;Ic:::undlng, The Bond is non-convertible and not-callable in nature and has
we | No prepayment option.
 Features:

' The Issuer shall pa-,r a late payment penaltf of 2% (two pEr
,cent} higher than the Coupon Rate and be payable on the

Late Redemption: |amnunl: not paid on the due date up till the date of actual
| payment,

M Nazmel HMEE Sl Subardinated Bond
Jm”"‘ Chiel Financig Cifficar
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| Tax Feature: Ar.r:urdlnu to the laws of Bangladesh
iFECE Value {pﬂncipal} redemptions will be in 5 (five) equal
annual tranches commencing at the end of 3™ year from the

| date of drawdown in the fn!luwli manner:
' 20.0%

Repayment Schedule: | 3 Year | D
4" Year [E 20.0%
SiYear | 200%
. 6" Year | 200%
{ — j - 7" Year 20,0%
| Call or put option, and premium
' or discount thereof, if any | NOUADpNCaRie ) .
Cmdit enhancement or
 guarantee, if any Mok ﬁmlicab!e ’
Description of Cullﬂturnl Security
and Type of Charges to be ' Unsecured
~Created Against the Issue: ,
Listing: 3 ’ Wil be listed on Nternative Trading Board (ATE) i
Governing Law |j.aws of Bangladesh. _______ B

B. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

B.1, Capital Adequacy
Exhibit 3: Selected indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)

FY 31" December 2021 2020 2019 2018
Tier-I Capital (BDT Million) 19,744.89 15,570,50 14,221.91 11,336.32
Total Capital (BDT Million) 29,443.04 24,552.75 23,872.20 20,800.01
Risk Weighted Assets (BDT Million) | 207,909.90 19261972 18561262  162,296.65
Tier-1 Ratio (%) 9.50 8.08 7.66 6.98
CRAR (%) 14.16 12.75 12.86 12.82 |

FY2018-2021 Data Extracted from Audited Financial Statements

Mutual Trust Bank Limited has improved Its capital base recently through Issuance of perpetual bond of
BDT 4,000 million as well as 10% bonus share in FY2021 (5% in FY2020). A good growth of retained
eamings has also facilitated to strengthen the capital base in FY2021. As a result, the tier I capital had
a gain of 26.81% in FY2021 as opposed to FY2020, On the other hand, tier 11 capital of the bank grew
by 7.97% as the subordinated debt portion increased by 27.36%. These additions in regulatory capital
have ultimately boosted the eligible capital to BDT 29,443.04 million in FY2021 from BDT 24,552.75
million a year back with 19 82% increase in year-on-year

Besides, the risk weighted assels of the bank which comprise of credit risk, market risk as well as
operational risk have soared by 7.94% in FY2021 than a year back as a consequence the capital lo risk
weighted assels ratio (CRAR) reached to 14.168% (12.75% in FY2020) which was well above the
ragulatory requiremnent of 12 50%.
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Figure 3: Capital Adequacy Position of MTB
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B.2, Asset Composition & Trends
Exhibit 4: Selected Indicators for Mutual Trust Bank Limied (MTB)
FY 31 December 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total Asset (BDT Million) 304,742.53 267,913.21 256,056.00 221,827.58
Asset Growth (%) 13.75 4,63 15.43 10.21
Gross Loans (BDT Million) 222,924.20 200,848.10 186,768.62 163,281.71
| Grose Losns Growh (%) 10.99 154 14,38 14,33
- Investments (BOT Million) 45,776.42 35,381.95 33,194.75 26,589.50
| Investments Growth (%) 29.38 6,59 24.84 8.18
Gross NPLs (BDT Million) 13,107.02 9,381.73 10,227.22 8,951.40
| NPLs Growth (%) 39.62 (8.21) 14.25 42.80
Gross Loans to Total Assets (%) 73.15 7497 72,94 73.61
Gross NPL Ratio (%) 5.88 467 5.48 5.48
Net NPL Ratio (%) (0.19) (0.75) 0.73 1.48
| Loan Loss Reserve Coverage (%) 62.36 78.59 66.47 58.10
| NPLs to Equity & Loan Loss 47.95 39.20 45,02 49.10
| Reserve (%) :

FY2018-2021 Data Extracted from Audited Financial Statements

The banking sector is regaining its pace after a long closure of economic activities caused by the covid-
19. In FY2021, total asset base reached to BDT 304,742.53 million from BOT 267,913.21 in FY2020 and
BDT 256,056.00 million in FY2019, The total assets growth was aiced by the improvement in its major
contributors which are gross loan portfolio that grew by 10,9%%, cash by 25.83%, other assets by
30.08% and Investment portfolio by 29.38% in FY2021.

B.2.1. Asset Quality

The gross lpans and advances of the bank showed continuous growth over the FY2018-21 period in
review. Total loans portfolio of MTB reached to BDT 222,924.20 million in FY2021 from BDT 200,848.10
milion in FY2020. Similar to the loan base, the investment portiolio of MTB has had continuous

i? &t fluctuating growth in the recent four financial years with a remarkable 20.38% growth in FY2021. Since

g 5 the interest rate cap was established, banks in the country have begun to focus more on diversifying
5‘ their income streams and asset base by paying close attention to their investment portfolio, MTB has

= = increased its investment in government’s treasury bonds by 36.13% in FY2021 to BDT 40,209.43 million

& £[,  from BOT 29,538,219 million in FY2020,
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Figure 4: Selected Indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Lintited (MT8)
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NPL ratio of the bank remained at 5.88% in the latest year in review which was 4.67% in FY2020 and
5.48% in FY2019, Gross NPL has increased by 39.62% and 28.16% In 2021 as compared to FY2020 and
FY2019 respectively. The gross NPL had 9.06% sub-standard, 5.05% doubtful and 85.90% bad loss
loans in FY2021. In an effort to preserving banks' asset quality while helping the econamy in dire needs,
the central bank has provided relaxation over non-performing loans and penalties on late payments as
well as prohibited downward loan classification in 2020 and 2021 to some extent. It 5 concerning that
the performance of loan may further deteriorate in FY2022 due to the withdrawal of provided relaxation
on loan repayment.

Figure §; Selected Indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTE)
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Furthermore, the bank is under the provision deferral facility and as per Bangladesh Bank letter in April,
2022, the provision of BDT 2,567.34 million has been deferred which is equivalent to the shortfall
amount at the end of year 2021. The deferred provision will be maintained in next three (03) years. For
its classified loan full provision was kept but undassified loan has provision deficit in FY2021 BODT
2,567.34 million for which deferral facility has been taken.

However, loan loss reserve coverage fell remarkably due to the prowvision shortfall. NPLs with regards to
equity and loan loss reserve together were at 47.95% from 39.20% in the previous year which was
primarily due to higher NPL in 2021. As mentioned earlier, the NPL has increased significantly by
39.62% in FY2021.

B.2.2. Loan Diversification and Concentration

The bank retains a diversified loan portfolio with concentration in different industries of the economy
such as RMG, SME loans, Textile, Trade Service, Consumer credit and many more. Industry wise
concentration shows that loans and advances portfolio was dominated by other manufacturing industry
(27.43%), followed by RMG (16.62%), SME loans (12.48%), Trade Service (10,77%), and the rest by

Page 10 of 21

( f MTB Sth Subordinated Bond -.-ﬂ1 i .}:{.1E?.1] NI o
A/

Mohammad Mazmul Hossain, FCA s

Group Chiel Fnancal Officet Slik Muntasit FReza
Mutual Trus: Bank Limitad Mall Prasigent &
e acae s e, DhOKD Siioun Company Sacetar yo Wanbuber B
| Trust Buank Lim Director
T':ﬂuﬂuur:n:p Hoad Offca, Dhuka Managing Inited!

Mutual Trust Bank L.



=2

various other industries by the end of 2021. Notably, the loan portfolio of RMG and SME segment was
lowered in FY2021 while other manufacturing industry and trade service increased in FY2021.

Figure 6: Sector-wise distribution of loans & advances of Mutual Trust Bank Limted (MTB)
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The bank rescheduled a total of BDT 759.59 million worth of loan against 62 accounts in FY2021 as
compared to BOT 403.21 million loans of 17 accounts in FY2020 and BDT 4,201.00 million loans against
255 accounts in FY2019. The bank wrote off BDT 362.06 million, BOT 924.85 milllon and BOT 334.96
million bad loans respectively in last three years i.e. 2021, 2020 and 2019. NPL along with reschedule
and written off loan altogether comprise 6.38% of loans & advances in FY2021 whereas the rates were
5.34% and 7.90% in the year 2020 and 2019 respectively.

B.2.4. Large Loan Exposure

The bank's exposure to large loans (funded and non-funded together exceeding 10% of bank's capital)
has declined from a year ago. The number of such large loan accounts was 26 individual accounts with
total outstanding amounting to BDT 73,336.40 million in FY2021 in contrast to the 28 accounts with
total outstanding amount of BDT 91,205.00 million in FY2020.

SE - B.2.5. Off-Balance sheet exposure

“_"é o Total off-balance sheet exposure of the bank has increased to BDT 132,011.35 million in FY2021 from
§ = B BDT 93,595.97 million in FY2020, The off-balance sheet items were 43,32% In comparison to the total
23 asset in FY2021. The off balance sheet items consist of acceptances and endorsements, letters of
g é > guarantee, letters of credit and bills for collection which consisted 33.97%, 30.57%, 27.85%, 7.62% of
-2 g *  total off-balance sheet exposure respectively in FY2021,
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B.3. Funding and Liquidity
Exhibit 5: Selected indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)

FY 31* December 2021 2020 2019 2018

"Deposit (BDT Million) 212,956.94  189220.78 191,369.29  166,700.99

| Deposit Growth (%) 12,54 (1.12) 14,80 9,50

| Loan to Deposit (%) 82.42 83.90 83.38 82.83
Net Loans to Stable Funding Base (%) 182,82 168.86 167.57 17215 |
Net Loans to Customer Deposits (%) 98,34 100,43 92.93 93,97 |
Deposits to Total Funding (%) 69,88 70.63 74.74 75.15

 Interbank Liabilities to Total Funding 11.55 11.51 8.48 8.85
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FY2018-2021 Data Extracted from Audited Financial Statements
B.3.1. Fund Management

MTB’s total deposits account for 69.88% of the total liabilities & equity base at the end of FY2021. The
rest of the total funding base is then comprised with 11.55% interbank labilities, 8.14% other liabilities,
6.29% equity and 4.13% by bonds. The total deposit of the bank s made of 42.98% fixed deposits,
11.09% deposit products, 20.00% savings deposits, 12.64% current deposits & other accounts, 12.37%
special notice deposits and 0.93% of bills Payable in FY2021. The depasit composition of the bank has
changed recently and recently MTB is focusing more on low cost or no cost fund i.e. current account—
saving accounts (CASA) thus, the CASA funding has improved to 32.64% of the total deposit in FY2021
as opposed to 29.30% and 24.16% in FY2020 and FY2019 respectively.

Loan to deposit ratio of the bank has been always within the regulatory limit (currently 879) in last four
years indicating a good balance between the depostt collection and loan disbursement. The net loans to
stable funding base ratio stood at 182.82% in FY2021 which was 168.86% in FY2020, since the fixed
deposit in FY2021 strategically reduced by 2.08% to keep the funding cost low, Moreaver, the interbank
liabilities in 2021 has increased to 14.13% but total funding based also grew with almost similar rate
(13.75%) as a result interbank liabilities to total funding remained mostly similar in FY2021 and FY2020
as shown in the table above.

Figure 7: Sefected indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)
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B.3.2. Liquidity Management

Bangladesh Bank's regulatory requirement states Statutory Liquidity Reserve (SLR) of 13.00% based on
weekly Average Total Demand and Time Liabilities (ATDTL) of the base month and Cash Reserve
Requirement (CRR) of 4.00% on bi-weekly basis are to be maintained by conventional banks operating
in Bangladesh. Bangladesh Bank has recently lowered the CRR from 5.00% to 3.50% on a daily basis,
and 5.5% to 4% In bi-weekly basis due to the pandemic.

MTB has kept 4.08% CRR and 21.61% SLR at the end of FY2021 with a surplus CRR of BDT 168.36
miflion and surplus SLR of BDT 18,036.28 million against the requirement in FY2 )21,
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The maturity-based asset and liabilities profile of MTB are distributed over different time horizons, The
bank had net liquidity gap in 1 - 5 years bracket in FY2021 and shown surplus net liquidity in the other
brackets. However, the total net liquidity comprising all maturity periods in FY2021 has surplus liquidity.

B.4. Earning Trends and Profitability
Exhibit & Seiacted Indicators of Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MT8)

FY 31" December 2021 2020 2019 2018
l— L T e o
Net Interest Income (BDT Million) 5,508.26 3837.11 5,285.13 5,090.84
Net Interest Income Growth (%) 43.55 (27.40) 3.82 19.88
Non-Interest Income (BDT Million) 6,341.50 5,779.46 5,535.80 4,300.03
Non-Interest Income Growth (%) 9,72 4.40 28.74 12.40
Pre-Provision Profit (BDT Million) 4,876.19 3,323.40 5,028.13 4,608.36
Pre-Tax Profit (BDT Million) 3,294.16 1,727.85 2,979.75 2,368.90
 Post-Tax Profit (BDT Million) 2,917.83 899,32 1,263.71 1,582.40
' Post - Tax ROAE (%) 32.66 5.54 8.73 12.81
Average Interest Spread (%) 3.25 342 4.12 4.47
| Net Interest Margin (%) 221 1.70 2.63 2.91
' Cost to Income Ratio (%) 58.85 65.44 53.53 50.93

FY2018-2021 Data Extracted from Audited Financial Statements

From the profitability perspective, MTB has regained its pace In FY2021 after a sharp decline of net
interest income in FY2020. Net interest income increased by 43.55% in FY2021 as opposed to 24.40%
dedline in FY2020. However, comparing with the FY2019 income, net interest income of the bank only
grew by 4.22%. The interest expense of the bank fell by 24.18% as a consequence of Increasing low
cost funding (i.e. CASA) in the deposit mix as well as the excess liquidity In the banking sector in
FY2021. On the other hand, the bank has continued its growth in non-interest income portion through
good growth in commission/fees, exchange and other operating Income In FY2021, Consequently, the
overall operating income of the bank improved with a rate of 23.22% to BDT 11,849.75 million in
FY2021 from BDT 9,616.57 million in FY2020. Operating expense, however, increased by 10.81% which
ultimately resulted a pre-provision profit of BOT 4,876.19 million in FY2021 from BOT 3,323,40 million a
year ago with a record growth of 46.72% year-on-year,

As staled earlier, the bank Is under the provision deferral facllity and as per Bangladesh Bank letter in
April, 2022, the provision of BDT 2,567.34 million has been deferred which is equivalent to the shortfall
amount at the end of year 2021. The deferred provision will be maintained In next three (03) years. In
FY2021, the bank had deferred tax income of BDT 883.20 million (specific provision caused huge
differed tax income) which underpins the profit in that year, Therefore, post-tax profit had a sudden
gain and reached BDT 2,917.83 million in FY2021 from BOT 1,263.71 milllon In FY2019 with 130.89%

increase.
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Figure 8: Selected indicators of Mutua! Trust Bank Limited (MTB)
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Although average interest spread fell slbﬁhtln,.! but high gain in overall operating income as opposed to
operating cost led relatively better cost to income ratio than a year back.

Figure 9: Selected indicators Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB)
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C. MARKET RISK ANALYSIS

Markels risks of a Subordinated Bond may arise due to uncertainty related to interest rate risk and
pricing risk of the bond. Moreover bond by nature are exposed to many sources of risk, The term
structure of the interest rate can shift and twist In different ways, Issuers may default due to sector
wide problems or individual credit difficulties. However the bond market Is still a new concept to the
Bangladesh economy as well as the conventional bond market |s underdeveloped.

The debt instrument that Mutual Trust Bank Limited has issued Is sensitive towards both market and
company specific risks. All investments which offer a Balance between risk and potential return are
graded to be the higher rated investment. The Balance between risk and return varies by the type of
investment (in this case Subordinated Bond), the entity that issues it, the state of the economy and the
cycle of the securities markets (this risk is eliminated as it will not be publically traded in secondary
market).

The entity in discussion will |ssue non-convertible Subordinated bond for the purpose of strengthening
its Tire 1I capital base. RSA Advisory Limited Is acting as the mandated lead arranger and MTB Capital
Limited Is acting as the co-arranger whereas UCB Investment Limited is acting as the trustee.

Interest rate risk affects the value of bonds that arises when an investment's value will change due to a
change in the absolute level of interest rates. Coupon rate of the bond s determined by the benchmark
rate and then a margin of 2.00% p.a. added to the benchmark rate. The coupon rate will be determined
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based on latest average 6-month FDR rate of all private commercial banks excluding banks licensed
after 2010 as published by Bangladesh Bank on the quotation day on the quotation day plus 2.00%
margin. The published deposit rate will be taken from Bangladesh Bank sources. This will be fixed semi-
annually,

D. COMPANY SPECIFIC RISK ANALYSIS

Risk is an integral part of financing business and thus every financial institution is exposed to risk of
different type and magnitude. So, the prime responsibility of every financial institution is to manage its
risk so that its retum from business can be maximized, As a prudent and responsible financial institution,
the bank attaches top priority to ensuring safety and security of the finances that are being extended.

D.1. Impact of COVID-19

As conferred earlier, the pandemic would affect the bank in many aspects both in short term and long
term. Among various risks, credit risk and liquidity risk likely to shake the bank mostly. The Non-
performing Loan (NPL) of the Bank likely to rise in a new level due to this pandemic. In this situation,
the credit worthiness of the existing borrower will be deteriorated which would undermine the passibility
of repayment of loan.

D.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of a borrower or counterparty failing to meet its financial obligations in
accordance with agreed terms. To manage these risks, MTB's credit functions are conducted In a
compliant manner under strict and rational credit policies, and principles in conformity with Credit Risk
Management (CRM) guidelines of Bangladesh Bank (BB). MTB approves credit to the eligible clients
through credit processing system. In MTB, renewal and extension of any credit facility require
completion of pertinent due diligence processes including, as applicable, stock verification, rigorous need
assessment, insurance coverage of the insurable objects, appropriate collateral coverage, cash flow
supported repayment capacity etc. MTB's panel lawyers examine the security related documents to
reduce the legal risks. Other than these, the mechanisms and todls, through which MTB manages credit
risks, are as follows:

Exposure ceilings: MTB has its lending cap for different business sectors, industries, and geographic
locations. Lending cap Is constantly reviewed, in order to remain reasonably aligned with the business
needs, The bank never exceeds the Single Borrower Exposure Limit set by Bangladesh Bank.

Prudent credit sanctioning process: Credit initiation and approvals, in MTB, are done in a
segregated manner. Each sanction Is done through a very stringent evaluation process, which, in fine,
ensures quality of assets and minimizes losses likely to arise from potential bad loans. In order to make
credit operations judicious, quality and rewarding, MTB has a strict credit policy in place. The policy,
among others, requires:

» Clean and up to date Credit Information Bureau (CIB) report of the clent, and their allied concern;

» Verification of the collaterals by the enlisted surveyors, and obtaining legal opinion on acceptability
of the collaterals and protecting banks interest;

Ascertaining credit worthiness, need of the borrower, purpose, and sources of repayment;
Conducting lending operations complying with the underlying norms, and regulations;

Emphasizing maintenance of rational loan deposit ratio;

Avoiding directed and name lending.

b

Y Y

Credit monitoring: MTB Credit Monitoring Department (CMD) continuously monitors the asset (loan)
portfolio of the Bank. MTB's credit monitoring system provides an early indication/alert about the
deterioration in the status of the loans that allows immediate launching of effective management
actions, In a rational manner, to prevent them from turning into Non-Performing Loans (NPL).
Statements on early alert accounts, delinquent and special mentioned accounts are generated
periodically. MTB's credit monitoring tools are effective to keep the overdue, and SMA loans well below
the industry average.

Portfolio management: Credit concentration 15 against the spirit of diversification of portfolio, and
enhances credit risks. To avold concentration, the principle of credit diversification is followed in MTB,
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keeping in mind the essence of geographic/sector/group concentration. Any exceptions in credit
operations are considered for approval at appropriate level,

Review/renewal: All credits approved on revolving basis, are reviewed annually, and renewed if found
renewal worthy by the appropriate authority as per credit approval discretion. Credits, continuous or
term-based, are reviewed to ascertain the regularity In transaction, and repayments as per covenants of
the approvals.

Borrowers' credit rating: Under the Standardized Approach of Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
guidelines of Basel-111, prescribed by the Bangladesh Bank, rating of the borrowers are an effective and
efficient tool to manage credit risks. Good rating (1. e. low risk weight) of the borrowers, which facilitates
identification of the borrowers as quality/rewarding one, also requires less capital. For achieving these
two fold objectives, and to comply with the requirements under Basel 111, management has assigned
priority on rating of all the eligible clients, by External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAls). In its
constant effort to understand the risk intensity of the assets, extent of capital relief and also, in order to
be able to make appropriate choice in respect of selection of the borrowers, ECAI rating is considered
while sanctioning credit. With laying of adequate importance on ECAI rating, the number of ECAI rated
clients has increased significantly,

D.3. Asset Liability Management Risk

Asset Liability Management (ALM) is considered as a key to Balance sheet risk management discipline,
which mainly focuses on liquidity risk, interest rate risk, and exchange rate risk of the bank. As per BB
guideline, MTB has a fully functional ALCO for prudent Balance sheet risk management. The Committee
consists of the Managing Director & CEO, as the Chairman of the Committee, and strategically important
divisional heads. In accordance with Bangladesh Bank guidelines on ALM risk management, MTB has
developed an Asset Liability Risk Management Manual, which is appraved by the Board of Directors of
the bank,

D.4. Internal Control and Compliance Risk Management

MTB has an Internal Control and Compliance (ICC) Department, which ensures internal control structure
in the Bank with appropriate assignment, accountability of the personnel, and delegation of authorities
to functional management to exercise control, and create a compliance culture within the organization,
under the active guidance and supervision of the senior management, and the Board of Directors. 1CC
Department has the following three distinct divisions, headed by senior level executives:

1. Audit and Inspection Division
2. Compliance Division
3. Monitoring Division

As a tool of internal control, the audit and Inspection divislon undertakes periodic and special audits and
inspections on the branches and departments/divisions of the head office in order to find out the
weaknesses and defects in the control processes. It reports to the Audit Committee of the Board for
corrective measures to protect the interest of the bank.

The compliance and monitoring divisions of the ICC Department ensure timely and proper compliance
with the relevant laws, regulatory instructions, internal policies, and procedures in the day-to-day
operations of the bank, by way of using various control tools. The concerned divisions assess the
operational risks and acts appropriately to mitigate the same for smooth operation of the Bank.

Overall, the ICC Department reports on serious noncompliance issues, detected by the Internal and
external auditors and Bangladesh Bank's inspection teams, with up-to-date compliance position, large
financial risk exposures, weaknesses in control mechanism, and other risk areas to the Audit Committee
of the Board, for review and taking appropriate remedial measures,
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D.5. Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Risk Management

MTB pursues growth by ensuring the total security of the customers, and all other stakeholders. In the
era of an Increased rellance on complex IT systems, and operations In the financlal sector, the risk of
cyber-attacks and system disruptions is high, and it is increasing alarmingly. In this regard, MTB Is
constantly deepening its technology risk management capabilities by adopting strong “Information &
Communication Technology (ICT) Security Policy.” The underlying principles in this regard define
responsibilities, and requirements for protecting information assets (e.g. hardware, network, operating
system, database, application, storage and related technologies), and their use in providing world class
financial services.

E. MANAGEMENT AND OTHER QUALITATIVE FACTORS

E.1. Corporate Governance

Mutual Trust Bank Limited (MTB) believes that its ongoing commitment and efforts in ensuring a strong
corporate governance structure and culture across the organization will help it deliver value to all its
stakeholders. Hence, the Bank has strived to have good corporate governance practices put in place and
the highest standards of business integrity applied to all its activities, The bank focuses on ethics,
Innovation and transparency for establishing well organized corporate govemnance within the company,
Focus is placed on educating and increasing awareness among direclors, executive officers and
employees on the bank’s codes of conduct, the relevant laws and regulatory requirements as well as
disciplinary procedures. The Bank's corporate govemnance policy, which contains guidelines for directors,
executive officers, and employees, has been formulated as per guidelines of regulators, With adherence
to this policy in its operations, the Bank alms to build trust and confidence among investors and
stakeholders, thereby Improve its competitiveness, enhance value and promote stability, The policies are
updated time to time in order to comply with the good governance principles and relevant regulatory
requirements. The board of directors of MTB consists of twelve members including the Managing
director & CEO. It Is well structured with a Chalrman, one Vice Chalrman, seven Directors, two
independent directors and Managing Director,

Currently, Mr. Md. Wakiluddin is holding the position as the bank's Chairman and supervising the bank's
operation and ensuring compliance. Mr. Md. Abdul Malek Is the respective Vice Chairman of the board
whereas Mr, Syed Mahbubur Rahman s holding the position of Managing Director & CEO in the bank. All
the directors are well-qualified, experienced professionals and carrying tremendous value in their
respective management capability.

E.2. Board Committees

In order to ensure proper accountability and transparency to highest ethical standards MTB has In place
three board committees. In broad terms the duties of these committees involve overseeing and directing
the operations, performance and strategic direction of the bank, The corporate governance system of
the bank ensures that duties and responsibilities are appropriately segregated between the BoD and
management to provide sufficient checks, balance and flexibility for smooth business operation.

The BoD approves the bank's budget and business plan and reviews those time to time so as to give
directions as per changing economic and market environment. The BoD reviews the policies and
manuals of the various segments of businesses in order to establish effective risk management In credit
and other key areas of operations. The BoD also ensures that adequate internal control systems are in
place and they are consistently complied with to provide reasonable assurance that financial records are
reliable for preparation of financial statements. The BoD further ensures that quality of financial
reporting is maintained, assets of the bank are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and
accountability for assets and business transactions are maintained. With an objective to assist in
screening and scrutinizing specific operations and support the performance of duties of the Board to
ensure efficiency and effectiveness and maintain a good corporate governance system, the bank has
established three different board committee; the Board Executive Committee, the Board Audit
Committee and the Board Risk Management Committee,
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E.1.1. Executive Committee (EC)

The executive committee of the bank consists of five board members and is currently convened by Mr.
Md. Hedayetullah. The Committee takes all necessary decisions and approves cases within the power
delegated by the board. All decisions taken in the Board Executive Committee are approved in the board
meeting. The committee oversees the degree of execution of policies and guidelines entrusted with the

management.
E.2.2. Board Audit Committee (BAC)

The audit committee of MTB is formed with three members and is chaired by Ms. Nasreen Sattar. The
role of the committee Is set according to its charter and is bestowed with a wide range of responsibilities
ranging from overseeing the bank’s financial reporting process, hiring and performance of external
auditors, review the adequacy of internal audit function, ensuring sound internal control, analyzing and
assisting external auditors and making sure that the bank is compliant with the policies set by the
regulatory body.

E.2.3. Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)

The bank realizes the significance of risk management covering both internal and external risk factors.
The committee is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise and oversee risk management processes
in the Bank. Other responsibilities of the committee include identifying risks and developing well
formulated strategy and ensuring the implementation of policies, complying with instructions issued by
the controlling authority from time to time. The committee was also formed to congregate the
requirement of section 15 of the Banking Company Act, 1991, The BRMC of MTE is formed with five
members and lead by Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury.

E.3. Senior Management

The strategic management activities and overall business operations of MTB are supervised and directed
by the core management team of the bank. In an effective corporate governance structure, the bank
management has a collective mandate under the leadership of Managing Director & CEO to carry out
daily operations to the best interest of the stakeholders. The management of team of MTB is headed by
the Managing Director Mr, Syed Mahbubur Rahman. He has 34 years of experience in banking services
and credit related arena. Prior to Joining MTB, he was the Managing Director & CEQ of Dhaka Bank
Limited and BRAC Bank Limited. Mr. Rahman worked in various renowned financial institutions of
Bangladesh such as Prime Bank limited, Citibank NA, Standard Chartered Bank, ANZ Grindlays Bank,
IDLC Finance Limited etc, He holds his Master's in Business Administration (MBA) from the Institution of
Business Administration (IBA), University of Dhaka. During his career, he attended numerous training,
seminars and workshop on different aspects of Banking held in the country and abroad.

To perform the day-to-day tasks smoothly, provide support in decision-making process, and to comply
regulatory requirements, the management forms different committees, subcommittees and units/cells
comprising executives/staff of different levels. The committees are Core Management Committee,
Management Committee (MANCOM), All Risk Committee, Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), Credit
Evaluation Committee, Exception Approval Committee, Supervisory Review Process (SRP) Team, IT
Steering Committee, IT Security Committee, Group Integrity Committee etc. Managing Director leads the
two most important committees which are MANCOM and ALCO.

E.3.1. Management Committee (MANCOM)

MANCOM is considered the highest decision and policy making authority of the bank. MANCOM of MTB
consists with thirteen members, which comprises of senlor executives of the management headed by
the Managing Director of the bank. MANCOM meets on regular basis to discuss relevant agenda and
scrutinizes all the cases thoroughly before referring to Executive Committee/Board for due approval
decision.

E.3.2. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

The bank has set up Asset Liability Committee which Is headed by the Managing Director & CEO. The
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) consist seven members comprising senior management,
which is responsible for the overall Balance sheet (Asset- Liability Management) of the bank. ALCO
formulates and reviews strategies, and provides guidance to manage liquidity risk within the framework
laid out in the ALM Policy. The committee proactively manages lquidi as a part of Its ALM
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activities. ALM Desk analyses, evaluates and interprets the market scenario on a regular basis to ensure
the right Balance between product profiles; cost and risk exposure places recommendations Lo the ALCO
through the Head of Treasury & Financial Institutions, The committee’s prime roles and responsibilities
are to manage liquidity & profit rate risk of deposit and lending, understanding the market dynamics and
risk elements involved within the business, assuming money market activities and last but not least
complying bank’s statutory obligations with the local Central Bank regulations. As per management
corespondence, the committee calls for a meeting once every month to set and review strategies on

Asset-Liability Management.

E.4. Human resource

As of 31 December 2021, the total manpower of the Bank was 2,418 of whom 356 work at executive
level, 816 work at mid-level officer, 1,221 at junior level officer, 25 work at non officers. As part of the
learning and organizational development, even in a year ravished by pandemics & lockdowns, MTB
hasted 177 training sessions offline as well as online. It embraced this challenge by moving the training
programs to the digital platform. The sessions were conducted by in-house trainers, invited speakers as
well as collaboration with other reputed institutes that catered to over 2,079 participants in total.

Paitun Juawisany 80n
032 ¥ so1au17 Suibeyey
ABwepy wizuejy

A~

Mohammad Nasemul HosSFPIRIR Subordinated Bond
Group Criel Frmancal Dffiger

Mutusii Trumi Bonk Limited
Corporate Aued O, Dhaka

L 11ing L
'ﬂq"ﬂ is bwiatd 1VAS] @24
&1, Exoculive Vico Presideie§
=roup Company SeCroe)
Eﬂ:.:wl;l TruuF; Bank Limited
Corperate Head Oifles okt

=
LIRS

Y Ewiy, 20%
L




Palw wsussAu 82N

032 ¥ 00an( Suibeuepy

nBwey wizuer

L

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mr. Md. Wakiluddin

Mr. Md. Abdul Malek

Mr. Syed Manzur Elahi

Mr, Md. Hedayetullah

Mr. Rashed Ahmed Chowdhury
Dr. Anf Dowla

Ms. Khwaja Nargis Hossain

Ms. Anika Chowdhury

Mr. Danlel Donald de Lange
Ms. Nasreen Sattar

Mr. Farug Ahmad Siddigi
Mr. Syed Mahbubur Rahman

Management Committee

Mr. Syed Mahbubur Rahman
Mr. Chowdhury Akther Asif
Mr. Goutam Prosad Das

Mr. Md. Khalid Mahmood Khan
Mr. Rais Uddin Ahmad

Mr. Md. Bakhteyer Hossain
Mr. Md. Shamsul Islam

Mr. Malik Muntasir Reza

Mr. Usman Rashed Muyeen
Mr, Md. Shafquat Hossain
Mr. Masud Mushfig Zaman
Mr. Azam Khan

Mr. Nazmul Hossain

Shareholders Structure
Shareholders

Sponsor/ Directors
Farelgn Investors
Institutions
General
Auditor

M.J. Abedin & Co
Chartered Accountants

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Director (Founding Chairman) & Chalrman, MTB Foundation
Director & Chairman, MTB Board Executive Committee
Director & Chairman, MTB Board Risk Management Committee
Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director & Chairman, Board Audit Committee
Independent Director

Managing Director & CEO

Managing Director & CEO

Additional Managing Director & GCRO
Deputy Managing Director & GHOICC
Deputy Managing Director, CCB
Deputy Managing Director & CAMLCO
SEVP & HO Transaction Banking

SEVP & GHOT

SEVP & GCS

SEVP & HOCRM

SEVP & Head Of Retall Banking Division
Group Head Of Human Resources
SVP & GCCO

Group CFO

(As on December 31, 2021)
Shareholding Percentage

32.81%
9.53%
23.00%
34.67%

National Plaza, 3rd Floor 109 Bir Uttam C. R. Datta Road

Dhaka - 1205, Bangladesh
Corporate Head Office

MTB Center 26 Guishan Avenue, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

Phone: 02-58812298, 02-222283966

Fax : 02-222264303

Email : info@mutualtrustbank.com
Website: www. mutualtrustbank.com
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Draft Information Memorandum
Subordinated Bonds of up to BIT 5,000 Million

Annexure 4: Declaration about the RCHpI][‘lHihiﬁt}' of the Directors

g GrT e fie
— ] Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

gy Bk o s

This information memorandum has been prepared, seen and approved by us, and we,
individually and collectively, accept full responsibliity for the authenticity, accuracy and
adequacy of the statements made, information given in the prospectus, documents,
financial statlements, axhibits, annexes, papers submilied lo the Commission in lupqm‘l
thereol, and confirm, afler making all reasonable inquiries that all conditions concarning
this public issue and prospectus have been met and that here are no other hhnnarli:!n
or documents, the omission of which make any information or statements lherein
misleading for which the Commission may take any civil, criminal or adminisirative actions

against any or all of us as it may deam fil,

We also confirm that full and fair disclosures have been made in this information
memorandum to enable the investors 1o make a well-informerd decision for investment.

SYED MAHBUB
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEQ

Date: July 31, 2022
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Annexure 5: Due Diligence Certificate of the Trustee
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DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE OF THE TRUSTEE

The Chairman
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

SUBJECT: ISSUACNCE OF MTB 5™ SUBORDINATED BOND OF MUTUAL TRUST BAMK LIMITED
We, the ander-noted trustee to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state as follows:

1. We, while act as trustee to the above mentioned issue on behalf of the eligtle investors, have
examined Uhe diaft infarmation Memorandum, legal snd olher domments and materdials as rélevani to
our decision; and

2. on ihe basls of such examination and the discussions with thi lsuer, it directon and afficers, and
other agencies; independent verification of the statements conceming objedts of the isue and the
contents of the documents and olher materials furnished by the lsuer;

WE CONFIRM THAT:

a) Al infarmation snd documents as are relevant Lo the sue have been reteived ind examined by us and the
draft IM, draft Deed of Trust and drafl Subscription Agreement forwanded 1o the Commission has been
approved by us;

b) W have alio coamined all documents of the assels to be charged with the Trost sed are sathified that the
assels bear the vilue, title and chasge status as disclesed in the i

&) Whike examining the above documents, we find that all the requirements of the Rangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules , 2021 have been complied with;

d) Wi shall act as trustee 1o the lssue as mentioned obove as por provision of Uhe D eed of Tiutl 1o be esocuted
with the isswer and shali assume the dutles and responsibilities as desaibed in the Geed of Trust and in the
IM;

€] ‘We shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission [Debt Securities) Rules, 2021
and conditions imposed by the Commision as regards of the lssue: and

fi  The abave declarations as unequivocal and irmevocable.
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Annexure 6: Status of Debt Securities issued under trusteeship
UCB Investment Limited
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